
Steve SisOLAK

Governor

DR. Tiffany G. Tyler-Garner

Director

KIMBERLV GaA

Administrator

STATE OF NEVADA Kelly D, Wi est

Commission Administrator

Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation
EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DIVISION

500 E. Third Street

Carson City, Nevada 89713-0001

Nevada Commission on Postsecondarv Education

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING

Post Date: September 6, 2019

The Commission on Postsecondaiy Education will conduct a meeting on September 18.2019. commencing 9:00 a.m.,
at the locations listed below via videoconferencing:

Place of Meeting: Live Meeting:

DETR - SAO Auditorium

500 East Third Street

Carson City, Nevada 89713

Live Meeting:
DETR - Stan Jones Building, Conf. Rm. A-C
2800 E. St. Louis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89104

The Commission may take items out of order; combine two or more items for consideration; remove an item from the
agenda; or, delay discussion on any item. The Commission will take public comment at the beginning and end of this
meeting and may allow public comment after conclusion of any contested case or quasi-judicial proceedings that may
affect the due process rights of an individual. The Commission will limit public comment to three minutes. Written
submissions may be considered. While there will be no restriction on comments based on viewpoint, repetitive
comments may be limited.

AGENDA

General Business

A. Call to Order Informational
B. Public Comment Informational

Chair may limit public comment to 3 minutes per speaker, but may not restrict comment based upon viewpoint. No
action may be taken upon a matter raised under the public comment period, unless the matter itself has been
specifically included on this agenda as an action item.

C. Review Written CommentsConfirmation of Posting Informational
D. Confirmation of Posting Informational
E. Open Meeting Compliance Informational
F. Roll Call Informational
G. Adoption of Agenda For possible action
H. Approval of May 8, 2019 Minutes For possible action
I. Adoption of 2020 Meeting Dates For possible action
J. Administrator's Report Informational

Applicants for consideration of a Full-Term License
1. HVAC Air Conditioning Academy
2. Aviation Institute of Maintenance

•For possible action
•For possible action

plicants for consideration of Initial Provisional Licensure
Covered 6 For possible action
Las Vegas Institute of Welding For possible action
Live Savers Training Center, CLC For possible action
Reno Dental Assistant School For possible action
Reno Medical Assistant School For possible action
Total Physician Resources Inc., DBA TPR PSVTS For possible action
Unitek C^ollege For possible action

Page 1 of2



Commission on Postsecondary Education
Meeting Notice and Agenda

September 18,2019

Applicants for Added Program
10. Finishing Trade Institute Southwest For possible action

Hearing

11. Art Institute of Las Vegas (Renewal Denial) For possible action

Elections
12. Election of Officers For possible action

Comments
13. Public Comment Informational

Chair may limit public comment to 3 minutes per speaker but may not restrict comment based upon viewpoint. No
action may be taken upon a matter raised under the public comment period, unless the matter itself has been
specifically included on this agenda as an action item.

Adjournment
14. Adjournment For possible action

A copy of the meeting Notice and Agenda can be requested either in person or by written request to the Commission
on Postsecondary Education, 8778 South Maryland Parkway, Suite 115, Las Vegas, Nevada 89123 or telephone Susan
Beckett at (702) 486-7330 ext. 223 or fax request to (702) 486-7340. Copies of pertinent documents will also be made
available on the CPE and DETR website at: http://cpe.nv.gov and http://detr.nv.gov.

NOTE: Written comments must be received by the Commission on Postsecondary Education on or before September
11,2019, at the following address:

Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation
Employment Security Division
Commission on Postsecondary Education
Attn: Susan Beckett

8778 South Maryland Pkwy, Suite 115
Las Vegas, NV 89123

NOTE: Persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations or assistance at the meeting should notify
the Commission on Postsecondary Education in writing at 8778 S. Maryland Pkwy, Suite 115, Las Vegas, Nevada
89123, or call Susan Beckett at (702) 486-7330 ext. 223 (for individuals who are deaf or have hearing disabilities, dial
UY (800) 326-6868 or 711 for Relay Nevada) or send a fax to (702) 486-7340 within 72 hours of meeting date and
time. Supporting materials as provided for in NRS 241.020(5) may be obtained by contacting Susan Beckett at the
above-noted contact information.

Notice of this meeting was mailed to groups and individuals as requested at the following locations on or before
9 a.m. on the 3'*'' working day prior to the scheduled meeting date.
1. Commission on Postsecondary Education principal office at 8778 South Maryland Parkway, Suite 115 Las Vegas

NV 89123

2. DETR - Stan Jones Building, 2800 E. St. Louis Avenue, Las Vegas, NV 89148
3. DETR - State Administrative Office, 500 E. Third Street, Carson City, NV 89713
4. Grant Sawyer Building, 2501 Washington Street, Las Vegas, NV 89101
Notice of this meeting was posted on the Internet on the following websites: DETR's Public Notices website at:
http://detr.nv.gov/Page/PLfBLlC NOTICES, the State of Nevada's Public Notices website at: https://notice.nv.gov/.
the Commission on Postsecondary Education page at www.cpe.nv.gov and the Administrative Regulation Notices
website at: http://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/Notice/A/.

Page 2 of2



STATE OF NEVADA

EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DIVISION

COMMISSION ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION

This meeting, conducted by the Commission on Postsecondary Education Chapter 394 of Nevada
Administrative Code pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute NRS 394.383.

NEVADA COMMISSION ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION

Wednesday, May 8, 2019; 9:28 A.M..

Place of Meeting: Live Meeting: Video CoriiFerence to:
DETR - SAO Auditorium DCTjR'^tan Jones Building, Conf. Rm. A-C
500 East Third Street 1^0 E. ̂ ^uis Avenue
Carson City, Nevada 89713 -J' Las Vegas,"NeVada 89104

Department of Emolovment. Training and Rehaibllltation (DETR) Staff
Present in Carson Citv

Michelle Mash, Commission on Postsecondary Educatic^CPE) E^cation Speci^ist|^
Brian Deem, Employment Security Division Managemeiit^qgys^gy^
Department of Emplovment. Training ai^ Rehabilitation (DETRI Staff
Present in Las Vegas ^||
Kelly D. Wuest, CPE Administrator : x
Maricris Wu, CPE Education Specialist -
Susan Beckett, CPE AdrnlnlstratlVe Assistant lll^

Members of the Public. Media and Other Aqencie^#^ ^
Present in Carson Citv

Roselle Has^gavya, Professional Institute

Members oHhe Public. Media and Other Agencies ^

Present In Las Veaas - % x
Robert Whitney, Nevada Attorney General Office Deputy Attorney General
Ted Farace, Nevada Security Guard Trairiing Academy
Chris Palma, Nevada Security Gua^ Academy ■
Rebecca Carmo^^jGpmmunity Am|ulance
Larry Johnson, Comfminity Ambulance
Chris Stachyra, Commu^t^y Ambulance
Brian Anderson, Community^;^iTibu1ance
Robert Richardson, CommurijtyAmbulance
Leo Craven, Laurus College
Jeff Redmond, Laurus College
Jason Smith, Laurus College
Ralph Salazar, Redemption Kitchen
Erika Rendon, Rika Makeup Academy
Elizabeth Martinez, Century 21 Americana Real Estate School
Lori Bossy, Montessori Training of Southern Nevada
Lisa Knutsen, Montessori Training of Southern Nevada
Lisa Murphy, Southeastern University



Members of the Commission on Postsecondarv Education

Present in Carson City

Larry Nathan (Nate) Clark, Vice Chair
Grant Nielsen

Member of the Commission on Postsecondarv Education

Present in Las Veaas

Sharon Frederick

Jill Hersha

Member of the Commission on Postsecondarv Education

Present via Conference Line

BJ North. Chairperson

Member of the Commission on Postsecondarv Educatiori

Not Present

Rene Cantu

Jon Ponder

-

&

.  ■

....



STATE OF NEVADA

EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DIVISION

COMMISSION ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION

May 8, 2019-9:28 A.M.

Call to Order

The meeting was held at the Department of Employment Training and Rehabilitation Conference Meeting
Rooms, in Las Vegas, Nevada and the SAO Auditorium, Carson City (via video conferencing). The
meeting was called to order by Vice Chair Commissioner Nathan Clark at approximately 9:28 AM.

Public Comments

None. ^ .

Confirmation of Posting ^
Susan Beckett, for the record. Administrative Assistant ijpErhploymenrSecurity Division, Commission on
Postsecondary Education. Yes, proper Notice was^proyided for this Meeting pursuant to Nevada's Open
Meeting Law, NRS 241.020 and confirmation of p^tirig was received.

Open Meeting Compliance \

For the record, this is Susan Beckett, again, Administrat[ve Assistant III, EmploymentLSecurity Division,
Commission on Postsecondary Educatipn^vye are in compli^ce the open meetin^taw.

Written Comments

None, in the North, Michelle Nash. For the record, thjs is Administrator Wuest, we have none. No written
comments.

Roll Call ^ ^ :

Rene Cantu-Ex^iised " ; •
Vice Chair NathaiJCIark-Present
Sharon Frederick-Pre^sent
Jill Hersha-Resent " , >
GraniNieli^^Present - >
Chair BJ North-Present I. ,

^pn Ponder-Excus^ p
This is Kelly Wuest, roll has Ij^n taken and quorum has been confirmed.

Adoption of Agenda: ^

Motion: Commissioner Frederick -Motion to adopt the agenda, for May 8, 2019.
Second: Commissioner Herstia.

Discussion: None.""^^^
Results: Unanimous^agenda is adopted as presented.

Approval of Minutes February 5. 2019

Motion: Commissioner Frederick - Motion to approve the minutes from February 5, 2019 meeting.
Second: Commissioner Hersha.

Discussion: None.

Results: Unanimous, motion passes.

Administrators Report

Administrator Kelly Wuest gave the Administrators report that was prepared on April 22, 2019 and
submitted with Agenda in Public Packet. Additionally, Administrator Wuest updated Commission on
current Art Institute matters.



Commissioner North asked, are the budget items SB466 and AB465, you mentioned that there is going to
be a higher volume because of the emerging technology and energy, we will be getting more license
requests for schools, did you put in an additional possible staff in the budget? Did you think about that or
do you think you can handle that extra volume with the team that you have? Administrator Wuest
responded, there were several items where we indicated impacts. On this item, there was not enough
detail to tell what the impact would be. The fiscal note stated that it did have an impact on us, but it could
not be determined. Every session we have several of these bills where there is an attempt to heighten
training and education for a specific area. We did put a note that we could not actually predict how it would
impact us on the end.

Applications for Full Term License

Century 21 Americana

Testified: Elizabeth Martinez, owner, gave background infprrfiatlon about the school.
Discussion: Commissioner North, it is my understanding you now have had students go through the

training? Martinez replied, yes, that is correct inBur April session and students started in
the May 6^^ session for our second sessiprf^p^

Motion: Commissioner North - The provisjonaf period for Century 21 Americana Real Estate
School be extended for six-month^^^" Pfp,

Second: Commissioner Hersha.

Discussion: None.

Results: Unanimous.

Musical Alliance Academy

Testified: None present. For the record,^dm WiSst, there is not a school representative
here. They are out of the country right now and unable to attend.

Discussion: None. '

Motion: Commissioner North - The provisional license for Music Alliance Academy be extended
for nine-months. ?

Second: Commissioner Frederick. \
Discussion: None. PIp
Results: ^^Unanimous^^plp^p^^

Neyada Security Guard Training Academy

Testified:

Discussion:

Motion:

Second:

Discussion:

Results:

Ted Farace, Director, and Chris Raima, Director, gave background and information about
his company, the schoorand upcoming legislature with security guards.
Commissioner Clark asked, about scholarships and student tuition payments. Mr. Farace
updated Commission if the NRS changes he would offer students a new course based on
NRS and additionally it was done to get the instructors training to handle the class and
training for this program. Scholarships and fees would be updated for future classes.

Commissioner Frederick - A motion that Nevada Security Guard Training Academy be
granted a full-term licensure.
Commissioner North.

None.

Unanimous.

Redemption Kitchen

Testified: Ralph Salazar, Owner, gave background and information about the school. Between
August 2018 and May 2, 2019, we enrolled 20 students and 15 graduating. Five students
moved on for various reasons, but we had to keep the doors open for them to return. We
are expanding to a 1900 square foot facility. We need more of a facility instead of a
restaurant. I can facilitate up to 29 students at this location. I have become a Proctor for
ServSafe and I am in the process of becoming a ITEA for Wonderlic to help assess our



Discussion:

Motion:

Second:

Discussion:

Results:

students. Out of the 15 students that graduated, six are employed, two of those are still
currently employed.
Commissioner Clark, the review that took place had several deficiencies noted. What are
your plans to come into compliance with those requirements? Mr. Salazar, well
unfortunately during that transition period at the end of last year and in to January I lost
my head instructor he unexpectedly died at 55 due to a stroke. He was my partner,
manager, the person I started this program with. All those I's that were not dotted and T's
that were not crossed was due to that situation. I am now able to recover, based on the
steps that I have taken to acquire a facility, implement new programs within the programs.
I have taken control of the situation.

Commissioner Frederick asked, so are you also an instructor? Mr. Salazar replied, yes
ma'am. Commissioner Frederick, how many instructors are there? Mr. Salazar, during
that transition period I acquired a new instructori|IPreviously, my partner ran the class and
I was the assistant. Now, I am number one ahj have an assistant.

Commissioner Hersha asked, do you have a^plan forlspmeone to manage the details?
Mr. Salazar responded, yes, I have been instructed very well. I live not too far from CPE
and trust me I have been instructed ̂ ery well.

Commissioner North asked, you had mentioned you were the assistant at that time and
were your job functions administrative during that time? Mr. ̂S|lazar replied, yes.
Commissioner North asked, were you doing the administration during%at time or was
your partner? Mr. Salazar replied, yes, I was dpjng it the whole time. Commissioner North
furthered, the deficiencies are significant. What are you going to do to change this? Mr.
Salazar replied, I have enlisted people who have expertise in administration. I have also
had sit down periods with Kejiy and Maricris on all my deficiencies that I have and know it
very well. I am correcting it right now and not only that it was just a transition period for
that loss having to have me take over the restaurant, running the component and just
stretching me out to thin. s;

Commissioner Frederick asked, Dougie J's had a restaurant component. The new facility
on Pecos, is there also a restaurant there? Mr. Salazar responded, yes. Commissioner
Frederick or is it strictly classroom? Mr. Salazar, there is a restaurant there and it will be
open. Commissioner Frederick, breakfast, lunch and dinner or? Mr. Salazar, right now
we plan to have our school sessions from the two to six and the restaurant component will
be right after that from six to midnight. The students will be able to participate in that. So
those are our operating hours right now. Commissioner Frederick is that seven days a
week? Mr. Salazar, seven days a week.

Commissioner Clark asked, how did you get to a point where you were not using receipts
and has that been cprrected and are you now issuing receipts? Mr. Salazar responded,
oh yes. Based on tbe agreement with Hope for Prisoners the ITA's are receipts and then
we get a check stub back, from Workforce Connections for instance and then each agency
we understand this has been paid and collected. Commissioner Clark, so I would assume
that the issue is also tied to inspection item, contracts, correct? Administrator Wuest, yes.
He did have one case where the enrollment agreement was missing and another where it
wasn't signed properly. I think it was an oversight. However, it is something that needs
to be noted because it is not an official contract until it is signed by both parties.

Commissioner North - The provisional license for Redemption Kitchen be extended for
nine-months.

Commissioner Frederick.

None.

Unanimous.



Applications for Initial Provisional Licensure

Community Ambulance Health Science Center

Testified: Larry Johnson, Director; provided information about Community Ambulance with founding
principles and background of company history. Brian Anderson gave a financial history
and introduced staff with credentials. Rebecca Carmody gave information about the
curriculum for both the EMT program and the AEMT program and the testing requirements
pertaining to Nevada and on the national level.

Discussion:

Motion:

Second:

Discussion:

Results:

Laurus College

Testified:

Discussion:

Motion:

Second:

Discussion:

Results:

Commissioner Nielson asked if the tuition include textbooks, uniforms and equipment. Mr.
Anderson replied, it does not.

Administrator Wuest indicated a change on the licensing worksheet - the curriculum has
been approved by the Clark County Health District^The facility review has occurred and
is compliant. Commissioner Clark stated the only contingencies would be the surety and
personnel information. Administrator Wuest, yes that is correct.

Commission Hersha - That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Community
Ambulance Health Science Center to offer the Emergency Medical Technician and
Advanced Emergency Medical Technician upon surety bond in the amount of $19,000,
approval of personnel. "^8^" ? u
Commissioner North. ^885-
None. ".5- %■:
Unanimous, motion carries.

Jason Smith, Leo Craven, and Jeff Redmond, gave background of the college,
college began in 2006 and accredited in 2008.

The

Commissioner Frederick stated, I need to disclose I had a professional relationship with
Jason Smith when I was at Le Cordon Blu College. He was the campus President when
we were both at Le Cordon Blu College and I was a staff member.

Commissioner Hersha asked about accreditation and transferability of credits between
your college and others here in Nevada?; Mr. Craven replied, we cannot guarantee that
However, we have accreditation with ACICS and DEAC and we can accept seventy-five
percent from another accredited school and will evaluate students to try to help them.

Commission Frederick - That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Laurus
College to offer an Occupational Associates Degree in Digital Arts & Computer Animation,
IT & Network Systems, Medical Billing & Coding. Professional Business Systems and
Web Design and a Bachelor of Science Degree in Digital Arts & Computer Animation, IT
& Network Systems, Business Systems, Management and Web Design & Development
upon surety bond in the amount of $228,000, facility Information, and approval of
personnel. , -
Commissioner Hersha.
None.
Unanimous, motion carries.

Montessori Trainina of Southern Nevada
Testified:

Discussion:

Lori Jo Bossy, Owner, Lisa Knudson Instructor, Ms. Bossy gave background about the
school. The school is accredited with Montessori Accreditation Council for Teacher
Education (MACTE).

Commissioner Nielson asked, just so I am clear this certificate sits on top of a regular
teaching license? Ms. Bossy responded, yes that is correct.



Motion:

Second:

Discussion:

Results:

Administrator Wuest stated, CPE conducted a facility review for both their locations, and
it is no longer a contingency.

Commission Hersha — That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Montessori
Training of Southern Nevada to offer four certificate programs in Infant/Toddler; Early
Childhood; Elementary I and Elementary II; contingent upon surety bond in the amount of
$78,000 and personnel requirements.
Commissioner North.
None.

Unanimous, motion carries.

Reno Dental Assistant School

Not in attendance. Not heard. Tabled.

Reno Medical Assistant School

Not in attendance. Not heard. Tabled.

Rika Makeup Academy

Testified:

Discussion:

Erika Rendon, Director, asked if her representative could explain the school on her behalf.
Rafael Aguayo was introduced%y^ Erika Rendon. Mr. "Agbayo gave background
information on the school and experience of Erika Rendon. . -• -

Administrator Wuest stated, the facility has been approved. Their curncuium has received
final approval. The only cbntirigency remaining is the surety bond.

Commissioner North asked, is there another certification to be an instructor make-up artist.
Administrator Wuest, they do not require an additional certification for make-up. You will
notice there is a little bit about hair, they are exempt from being a cosmetologist.
Commissioner North furthered, I am asking about being an instructor and is there a
requirement to be an instructor? Administrator Wuest, while there is no requirement, we
follow our typical requirement for years in occupation. For a non-degree program, it is two
years and she has ten years' experience and own her make-up store.

Commissioner Nielson, the graduates of this program work as independent contractors
correct? Mr. Aguayo, yes that is correct. Commissioner Nielson, as such, how will your
school help them get connected to the community in order to receive jobs/contacts? Mr.
Aguayo, specially to be self employed we help them get leads from actual events and from
subscribers to help them during seasons. We provide job leads from ten to twenty people
every weekend. 5

Commissioner Clark asked, are there actual sustainable employment opportunities verses
free-lance gigs? Mr. Aguayo responded, in my experience a dedicated makeup artist
here in Las Vegas can be working all week. Just working one Quinceanera on the
weekend can be five or six hundred a week.

Motion:

Second:

Discussion:

Results:

Commission Frederick - That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Rika
Makeup Academy to offer the Pro Makeup Artist program upon receipt surety bond in the
amount of $74,000.
Commissioner Hersha.

None.

Unanimous, motion carries.

Southeastern University

Testified: Lisa Murphy, Compliance Director, gave background and information on the University
and the partnership with churches.



Discussion:

Motion:

Second:

Discussion:

Results:

Commissioner Nielson asked, the cost of the tuition for the whole program for Associates
Degree General Education is $17,050 is that correct? Ms. Murphy replied, I going to say
that it is. On the tuition form it is stated $7,080.00 which is correct? Administrator Wuest
responded, if you are looking at the budget projections that is what is collected in the year.
Commissioner Nielson, it just doesn't add up. Ms. Murphy, we have additional costs such
as a technology fee and various site fees. Commissioner Clark asked, is the bond amount
correct due to the tuition? Administrator Wuest, I think the difference is because the tuition
fees and then you have the embedded costs of technology fees and other fees.

Commission North - That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Southeastern
University, to offer the Associate of Arts In General Education, Associate in Ministerial
Leadership, Bachelor of Science in Ministerial Leadership and Bachelor of Science in
Business & Professional Leadership degrees upon surety bond increase of $4,000 and
approval of personnel.
Commissioner Hersha.
None. ^ -
Unanimous, motion carries. -

Order to Refund

Gold Star School of Gamina

Discussion: Administrator Wuest, the new Order Refund for Gold Star Gaming was discussed in the
last meeting to place it on the agenda because the bond company had refused to pay
With the 19 students included with this closure, the total indemnification is $6,742.00, with
your permission. The finding of fact, conclusions of law and order would heed to be signed
the we would move forward with the D^p^ment of Employment, Training and
Rehabilitation to do a work prograni to release the money. The 19 students who submitted
a claim from the closure could be paid the refund, usually within about a 30-day time frame.

Motion:

Second:

Discussion:

Results:

Commissioner North - Motion to approve the order required to refund students from the
student indemnification account, t k
Commissioner Frederick. ^ -
None. 'V;.
Unanimouspmotion carries.. ^

Commission Comments
None. ; :

Public Comment

No further comments.

Meeting Adiourned

Motion: Commissioner North - Move to Adjourn.
Second: Commissioner Hersha.
Discussion: None.
Results: Unanimous, motion carries.

The meeting was adjourned by Commissioner Clark. Time: 11:39 AM.



To: CPE Commissioners

From: Kelly D. Wuest, Administrator

Subject: 2020 Proposed Meeting Schedule

For Action: September 18, 2019

Attached are the proposed meeting dates for review, modification, and/or discussion
and adoption of the 2020 meeting schedule.

Proposed Scheduled

Meeting Date

February 5, 2020

May 6, 2020

August 5. 2020

November 4, 2020

Application Submission
Deadline

December 5, 2019

March 6, 2020

June 5, 2019

September 4, 2020



The Commission is authorized by statute to meet a minimum of four times per calendar year
and has traditionally met on Wednesday of February, May, August and November.

Included are the calendars for the month of the proposed meetings. The Commission can
select to move any date due to scheduling conflicts. The application submission date will be a
minimum of 60 days prior to the scheduled meeting date.

February 2020
SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1

2 3 4 5

CPE Meeting
6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17

Presidents

Day

18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

AAay 2020

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 2

3 4 5 6

CPE Meeting

7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

24 25

VIemorial Day

26 27 28 29 30



August 2020

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1

2 3 4 5

CPE Meeting
6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

November 2020

SUN MON TUE WED THU FRI SAT

1 2 3 4

CPE Meeting

5 6 7

8 9 10 11

Veterans

Day

12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

22 23 24 25 26

Thanksgiving

27

Family Day

28

29 30



Administrators Report
Prepared September 5,2019

1. Budget Updates
CPE has received the VA Agreement for FY 20, with an allocation of $121,198.00.

2. CPE participated in the DETR Summer Youth Internship Program
This year, CPE received two interns that started in early July. One individual worked on scanning the Morrison
University and Anthem College transcripts into separate files and performing data entry work. The other individual
assisted with the VA Education program. Participating in this program has been pivotal is helping the agency
process the backlog of transcripts. The CPE staff would like to thank the interns for their assistance.

3. Closure

Cortiva Institute - Closed on 6/14/19. Student offered accelerated teach out or refund and payment of all financial
aid. CPE has received all transcripts and close out documents.

Complete Contractors Service - Business stop providing courses as of 8/23/19. CPE has received transcripts and
close out documents.

4. CPE Quarterly Activities - April - June 2019

CPE Activity Applications
Processed

CPE Activity Applications
Processed

License Renewals 19 Added Proorams 16
Experiential License/Agent
Schools Applications

1 Agent Permits 24

SARA Notifications 3 Backgrounds Processed 325
Distance Education Exemptions 8 VA Compliance

Visits/Other Visits
9

License Evaluations 7 VA Program Approvals 63

5. Quarterly Report - With 8 schools unreported, total enrollment for the April 1, 2019 quarter stands at 6,867

April - June 2019 April - June 2018 April - June 2017 April - June 2016 April - June 2015

6,867 7,292 5.814 5,340 6,614

6. CPE Student Complaints:

School

Name

Date Filed Issues/Allegations Findings Status

Art Institute 5/13/19 Failure to Refund Open

Art Institute Email Failure to Refund Open

Art Institute 5/2/19 Incorrect billing and VA processing
Open

Art Institute 5/3/19 Failure to Refund Open

Art Institute 2/1/19 and

5/1/19
No receiving Stafford loan, unpaid

credit balance

open



Art Institute 5/2/19 Incorrect VA processing

Not receiving stipend

Open

Art Institute 5/9/19 Failure to provide disability

accommodations

Open

Art Institute 1/30/19 Failure to pay stipend

Incorrect processing of VA

Inadequate staffing

Open

Art Institute 2/4/19 and

5/13/19
Failure to Refund Open

Art Institute 2/4/19 Failure to release stipend Open

Art Institute Informal Communication concerning financial
aid and payments

Open

Art Institute No date Failure to release stipend Open

Art Institute 6/3/19 Quality of Education Open

Art Institute 6/15/19 Quality of Education

School unable to answer questions

about FA

Open

Art Institute 7/2/19 Failure to release stipend Open

Art Institute 8/17/19 Quality of Education Open

The

International
School of

Hosoitalitv

6/24/19 Unfair termination School followed student code
of conduct policy. Claim
unsubstantiated.

Closed

Let's Make a

Dealer
3/28/19 Quality of Education/Materials all in

Chinese

Confirmed school workbook
is bilingual English Chinese,
claim unsubstantiated. School
adjusted refund due to
miscalculation

Closed

Crescent

School of
Gaming

2/28/19 Quality of Education

Student unable to find work

Verified student grades,
program completion and
initial employment. School
reached out to provide
additional training to student
and career services

Closed



To:

From:

Subject:

CPE Commissioners

Kelly Wuest, Administrator.

Request for Extension of Provisional ucense

Aviation Institute of Maintenance

For Action: September 18, 2019

Aviation Institute of Maintenance was granted a provisional approval to offer the
Maintenance Technician program during the September 5, 2018 Commission meeting.
All contingencies were fulfilled by the time of the Commission meeting and the license
was issued on that day.

At the time of the required audit pursuant to NAC 394.445, the school had not enrolled
any students due to construction delays on the expansion to their current facility. On
May 16, 2019, the school requested an extension of their provisional license. The school
has planned the program start to occur in September 2019.

I recommend that:

The provisional license for Aviation Institute of Maintenance be extended for nine-
months.



To:

From:

Subject:

CPE Commissioners

Maricris Wu* Postsecondary Education Specialist

Full Term Licensure Recommendation, HVAC Air Conditioning
Academy/633
Cesar Garcia, Owner/Director

For Action: September 18, 2019

HVAC Air Conditioning Academy was granted a provisional licensure during the
September 2018 Commission meeting to offer a certificate program in heating,
ventilation and air conditioning consisting of 120 hours and taught over 20 weeks. The
program is offered in English and Spanish version. The provisional audit was conducted
on June 12, 2019 in accordance to NAC 394.445 and concluded that the school

substantially operates with the provision of the MRS and NAC Chapters 394, therefore:

Full term licensure is recommended.



^  Licensing Worksheet
(fir

Prepared by: Maricrls Wu, Postsecondary Education Specialist

Applicant: Gina Rodriguez, Director of Educational Programs
Christopher Dunn, Owner

School: Covered 6

For Action: September 18,2019

Recommendation

That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Covered 6, to offer the three programs In Physical
Security Specialist; Executive Protection and Cyber Security Technician, contingent upon personnel
facility information and receipt of surety in the amount of $90,000.

Curriculum:

Bond:

Received June 10, 2019 and approved on August 13,2019.

Recommended amount is $90

Financial

Statement:

Budget

Estimate:

Financial

Release:

Personnel

Information:

,000. CONTINGENCY.

Received on June 10,2019 and reviewed on August 13, 2019.

Received on June 10,2019 and reviewed on August 13,2019.

Received on June 10,2019 and reviewed on August 13,2019.

Received on June 10, 2019. CONTINGENCY.

Certifications: Received on June 10,2019 and reviewed on August 13 & 28,2019.

Catalog: Received on June 10,2019 and reviewed on August 13 & 28,2019.

Contract:

Completion

Certificates:

Facility

Information:

Fees:

Received on June 10,2019 and reviewed on August 13 & 28,2019.

Received on June 10,2019 and reviewed on August 13 & 28,2019.

CONTINGENCY.

Received on June 10,2019.



Licensing Worksheet

Prepared by: Maricris Wu, Postsecondary Education Specialist

Applicant: Dan Raimer, Director

Gabrielle Roper, Owner

School: Las Vegas Institute of Welding

For Action: September 18, 2019

Recommendation

That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Las Vegas Institute of Welding, to offer the
Introduction to Welding- Gas Metal Arc Welding (GMAW) that consists of 100 hours and Introduction to
Welding- Shielded Metal Arc Welding (SMAW) that consist of 100 hours, contingent upon receipt of
surety in the amount of $65,000, facility information, and staffing information.

Curriculum:

Bond:

Financial

Statement:

Budget

Estimate:

Financial

Release:

Personnel

Information:

Received on July 11,2019 and reviewed on June 20-26, 2019.

Recommended amount of $65,000 CONTINGENCY.

Received on June 11, 2019 and reviewed on June 20,2019.

Received on June 11, 2019 and reviewed on July 3,2019.

Received on June 11,2019 and reviewed on June 20,2019.

CONTINGENCY.

Certifications: Received on June 11, 2019 and reviewed on July 3, 2019.

Catalog: Received on June 11, 2019 and reviewed on August 22, 2019.

Contract: Received on June 11,2019 and reviewed on August 22,2019.

Completion

Certificates:

Facility

Information:

Fees:

Received on June 11, 2019 and reviewed on June 20, 2019.

CONTINGENCY.

Received on March 8, 2019.



.  Licensing Worksheet

pr'
Prepared by: Maricris Wu, Postsecondary Education Specialist

Applicant: Alexis Lodge, Owner

School: Live Savers Training Center, LLC.

For Action: September 18, 2019

Recommendation

That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Live Savers Training Center, LLC. to offer a nursing
assistant certificate program, contingent upon surety bond in the amount of $28,000, facility
information, personnel requirements and curriculum approval from the Nevada State Board of Nursing.

Curriculum:

Bond:

Financial

Statement:

Budget

Estimate:

Financial

Release:

Personnel

Information:

Received on June 10, 2019 CONTINGENCY.

Recommended amount of $28,000 CGNTINGENCV.

Received on June 10, 2019 and reviewed on July 5, 2019.

Received on June 10,2019 and approved on July 25,2019.

Received on June 10, 2019 and reviewed on July 5, 2019.

CONTINGENCY.

Certifications: Received on June 10,2019 and reviewed on July 5,2019.

Catalog: Received on June 10,2019 and reviewed on July 25,2019.

Contract:

Completion

Certificates:

Facility:

Information:

Received on June 10,2019 and reviewed on July 25,2019.

Received on June 10,2019 and reviewed on July 5,2019.

CONTINGENCY.

Fees: Received on June 10, 2019.



Licensing Worksheet

r
Prepared by: Maricris Wu, Postsecondary Education Specialist

Applicant: Zachary Eckert, Compliance Associate

School: Reno Dental Assistant School

For Action: September 18,2019

Recommendation

That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Reno Dental Assistant School to offer the Dental
Assistant Certificate program, contingent upon surety bond in the amount of $15,300, facility inspection
and personnel information.

Curriculum: Received on February 25,2019 and approved on May 22,2019.

Bond: Recommended amount of $15,300 CONTINGENCY.

Financial

Statement:

Budget

Estimate:

Financial

Release:

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 8,2019.

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 13,2019.

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 8,2019.

Personnel

Information: CONTINGENCY.

Certifications: Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 13,2019.

Catalog:

Contract:

Completion

Certificates:

Facility:
Information:

Fees:

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on May 22,2019.

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on May 22, 2019.

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 13,2019

CONTINGENCY.

Received on February 25, 2019.



.  Licensing Worksheet

fti
Prepared by: Maricris Wu/Postsecondary Education Specialist

Applicant: Zachary Eckert, Compliance Associate

School: Reno Medical Assistant School

For Action: September 18, 2019

Recommendation

That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Reno Medical Assistant School to offer a Medical
Assistant Certificate program, contingent upon surety bond in the amount of $60,000, facility inspection
and personnel requirements.

Curriculum:

Bond:

Financial

Statement:

Budget

Estimate:

Financial

Release:

Personnel

Information:

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 13,2019.

Recommended amount of $60.000 CONTINGENCY.

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 8,2019.

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 13, 2019.

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 8,2019.

CONTINGENCY.

Certifications: Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 13,2019.

Catalog: Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 13, 2019.

Contract:

Completion

Certificates:

Facility:

Information:

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 13,2019.

Received on February 25,2019 and approved on March 13,2019.

CONTINGENCY.

Fees: Received on February 25,2019



Licensing Worksheet

Prepared by: Maricris Wu, Postsecondary Education Specialist

Applicant: Rosa Padilla RN, Owner

School: Total Physician Resources Inc., dba TPR PSVTS

For Action: September 18,2019

Recommendation

That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Total Physician Resources Inc., dba TPR PSVTS to
offer the Medication Management and Caregiver Program, contingent upon facility information,
personnel information, curriculum approvals and surety in the amount $10,000.

Curriculum:

Bond:

Financial

Statement:

Budget

Estimate:

Financial

Release:

Personnel

Information:

Received on May 29, 2019 CONTINGENCY.

Recommended amount of $10,000.

Received on May 29,2019.

Received on May 29,2019 and approved on July 31, 2019.

Received on May 29,2019 and approved on July 18,2019.

CONTINGENCY.

Certifications: Received on May 29,2019 and approved on July 18, 2019.

Catalog:

Contract:

Completion

Certificates:

Facility:
Information:

Fees:

Received on May 29,2019 and approved on August 15,2019.

Received on May 29, 2019 and approved on August 15, 2019.

Received on May 29,2019 and approved on July 18, 2019.

CONTINGENCY.

Received on May 29, 2019



r

Prepared by:

Applicant:

School:

For Action:

Licensing Worksheet

Kelly D. Wuest, CPE Administrat^

Steve Watkins, Vice President Programi)evelot3Tnent & Regulatory Affairs

Unitek College

September 18, 2019

Recommendation

That a twelve-month provisional license be granted to Unitek College, to offer the Bachelor of Science
degree in Nursing and certificate programs in practical nursing and medical assisting program contingent
upon approval from the Nevada State Board of Nursing, facility information, staffing and surety in the
amount of $505,000.

Curriculum: Approval received from ACCSC for campus to operate. Approval for BSN and Practical
Nursing curriculum required. CONTINGENCY.

Surety Bond: Recommended amount $505,000. CONTINGENCY.

Financial

Statement:

Budget

Estimate:

Financial

Release:

Personnel

Information:

Received on June 12, 2019 and reviewed on July 11, 2019.

Received on June 12,2019 and reviewed on July 11, 2019.

Received on June 12, 2019 and reviewed on July 11, 2019.

CONTINGENCY.

Certifications: Received on June 12,2019 and reviewed on August 13,2019.

Catalog: Received on June 12, 2019 and reviewed on August 20,2019.

Contract:

Completion

Certificates:

Facility

Information:

Fees:

Received on June 12, 2019 and reviewed on August 20, 2019.

Received on June 12, 2019 and reviewed on August 1, 2019.

CONTINGENCY.

Received on June 12,2019.



Licensing Worksheet

Prepared by: Kelly Wuest, Administrator

Applicant: Thomas Pfundstein, Director
Harold Daly, Manager

School: Finishing Trades Institute - Southwest

For Action: September 18, 2019

Recommended Motion:

Finishing Trades Institute Southwest be granted approval to offer the proposed
Associate of Applied Science Degree In Construction Technologies with concentrations
In Architectural Glazier, Master Glazier, Commercial Paint, Drywall Finisher and Floor
Coverer.

Curriculum:

Bond:

Budget

Estimate:

Personnel

Information:

Certifications:

Catalog:

Received on May 2,2019 and reviewed on May 2, 2019.

No additional coverage recommended.

Received on July 9, 2019 and reviewed on July 9, 2019.

Received on August 20,2019.

Received on July 9, 2019 and reviewed on July 9,2019.

Received on July 9,2019 and reviewed on August 20, 2019.

Accreditation: Received on May 2, 2019.

Fees: Received on September 4,2019.



To: CPE Commissioners

From: Kelly D. Wuest, Administrat

Subject: Art Institute of Las Vegas - Denial of Renewal

Date: Prepared September 5,2019

For Action: September 18, 2019

Authority

Pursuant to NRS 394.421, the Commission shall establish minimum criteria including quality of
education, ethical and business practices, health and safety, and fiscal responsibility which applicants
for a license to operate must meet before the license or permit may be issued and to continue the
license or permit in effect.
NRS 394.490 (1) requires the Administrator, upon review and consideration of an application of renewal
of a license, determines that the applicant fails to meet the criteria for granting the application must set
forth the reason for the denial of application.
NRS 394.510 permits the Commission to impose administrative fines against a license, revoke a license
or make a license conditional after its issuance if the Commission reasonably believes that the holder
has violated the provisions of NRS 394.383 to 394.560 inclusive or regulations pursuant to those sections
or has failed to comply with a lawful order of the Commission.

NRS 394.441(3) requires an institution to maintain adequate records at the licensed facility to reflect
attendance, progress and performance of each student.
NRS 394.441(4) requires an institution to provide each student with a copy of the enrollment
agreement, dated and signed by the student or student's guardian and an officer of the institution.
NRS 394.445 requires a postsecondary educational institution to be financially sound and capable of
fulfilling item commitments to students.

NRS 394.449 requires an institution to refund students within 15 days of withdrawal or termination
from the institution.

NRS 394.450 established minimum criteria for quality and content of courses and programs, adequate
facilities, materials and personnel and compliance with ordinances and laws.
NRS 394.465 requires a background investigation of certain applicants before the institution employs or
contracts with a person to occupy an instruction position or administrative or financial position with the
institution.

NRS 394.510 permits the Commission revoke or place conditions on license; order of cessation of
operations or to impose administrative fines.

Overview

DCEH Financial Issues and Appointment of Receivership

Evidence concerning the financial difficulties of Dream Center Educational Holdings, the parent company
of the Art Institute of Las Vegas is public information. On January 18, 2019, the United States District
Court, Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division appointed Receiver Mark E. Dottore as the federal
custodian and liquidator of Dream Center Educational Holdings LLC, which includes the Art Institute of
Las Vegas LLC, due to indebtedness of DCEH in excess of $100,000,000. Two days prior to the court
approving the Receivership, DCEH laid off all administrative staff excluding the campus director. This



exasperated student Issues since It removed the "normal" channels to resolve problems and answer
questions. Many of the individuals laid off by DCEH did not come back or returned for a limited time
but eventually left due to lack of regular pay. In March, the surety bond for the school was cancelled by
the insurance carrier. The publicized condition of the company and role of the court appointed Receiver
creates a situation where an institution that goes into Receivership is able to maintain coverage for an
extended time. Currently, no surety bond exists for Art Institute of Las Vegas. If the sale of the
institution is completed, the new owners will be required to secure surety as a condition of approval per
NRS 394.480.

Management Services Agreement

On March 28, 2019, the Receiver entered into a Management Services Agreement with Save the Art
Institute Limited (AiLV) effective April 1, 2019. This agreement outlines the AiLV obligations to operate
the college in a manner intended to be in accordance with applicable standards of the higher education
community. This included responsibility for paying staff and maintaining the campus. Since the
inception of the MSA, there has been limited administrative staff. As noted in the deficiencies from the

accrediting body, the career services position had been vacant for an extensive amount of time. This is

a key position that assists students with employment transitions, internships and capturing the required
data for the Campus Accountability Report (CAR).

Asset Purchase Agreement

On July 15, 2019, the Receiver entered into an asset purchase agreement (APA) with Save the Art

Institute of Las Vegas Limited (AiLV). The original documents filed in the courts limited the buyer's
liabilities for issues that occurred prior to the sale. This would have been in violation of NRS 394.520(1)
which provides students the right to file a complaint up to one year from the date of attendance.

Eliminating the liability would inappropriately place liability to the Commission for any indemnification

claim and fail to meet the standards for the VA Educational Benefits program under 38 CFR 21.4209(f)

which has the ability to review students for up to three years from a compliance survey or file audit.
CPE filed a limited objection requesting clarifying language for the new owners to become responsible

for claims as outlined in CPE statute and the CFR. The document was amended to reflect CPE's

requested changes as attached in the packet.

The APA outlines that the Buyer AiLV is responsible for the daily operations of the campus and holds

the rights to all student tuition collected after the original MSA date of April 1,2019. Closing must occur
prior to November 1,2019, or the Asset Purchase Agreement shall be null and void.

Outstanding Issues

On August 14, 2019, CPE requested a number of items from Art Institute to assist with preparation for

the Commission meeting and to place the institution in a position to go forward. This Information was

due on August 26,2019. As the date of this report, the status on the table below indicates whether the
institution was compliant with each item from CPE's requested information.

CPE staff send several hours each week, dealing with student complaints and fielding calls from current

and past students and faculty. Both DAG Robert Whitney and the Administrator have held weekly
meeting with the AiLV and their legal team about the situation. The amount of time spent by CPE on
this issue is unprecedented for our agency.



Requested item Rationale Status

Current student list Provide Commissioners information on

student enrollment and impact of decision

by Commission.

Received

List of Current faculty

with courses taught

and contact

information

Identify staff current teaching. CPE has
received complaints of faculty leaving and
being replaced with unqualified individuals.

Not received

All Faculty and

required staff

complete background

process as required by

NRS 394.465

CPE had not received any backgrounds since

March 2019 in violation of NRS 394.465. ACICS

visit revealed several new staff who had not

completed the process. CPE received a catalog
dated 7/11/19 listing faculty who had

communicated to CPE they left their position.

Partial - CPE has signed off for

faculty to fingerprint but
completed documents have not

been received. CPE received

qualification on half of those

submitted. Many of the

qualifications received did not
clearly qualify the faculty member
for the courses lists. Additional

information has been requested.
Submission of

approvable

enrollment agreement

Enrollment agreement not valid. Several

references to DCEH corporate structure.
Received initial EA. Sent list

of correction needed and

waiting on revision.
Approvable catalog Catalog not valid. Several references to

DCEH corporate structure and institutional

processes that are no longer in existence.

Not received

Enrollment Agreement for

student who were

transferred & do not have a

Nevada enrollment

agreement along with

related quarterly fees

DCEH inappropriately transferred students

from other Al locations without a Nevada

enrollment agreement in violation of NRS

394.441(4). Student fees for these

students were not paid.

As 1 have not received an

approved EA, this is not

complete.

Payment of current

and past employee

wages

Pursuant to NRS 608.060, employers are

required to regularly pay employees. Several
faculty have indicated the institution last paid
wages in May 2019 for part of April wages.

No documentation has

been received concerning
staff pay/back pay

Payment of CPE

quarterly fees
All institutions are required to pay
quarterly fee for new enrollments

pursuant to NRS 394.540(3). CPE has not

received payment for quarters Oct 2018 -

December 2018 & January 2019 - March

2019 totaling $300 and the required late
fees of $500.

Not received

Resolution of Student

Complaints
Provided the institution with list of required
documents to investigate student issues and
complaints. NRS 394.441(3) requires
institutions to maintain adequate records.

Several investigations were started during
Winter term. School has not provided

information required within the student

files.

Received updated student

ledgers, check copies and
description from Receivers office

concerning some payments
related to Winter 2019 term.

Except for ledgers, did not

receive other documents

requested.



VA Suspension

Art Institute of Las Vegas is suspended for the enrollment of new VA Educational Benefits program
beneficiaries at this time. CPE has received numerous complaints from current and past veteran
students and continues to investigate both student concerns as well as concerns with the school's
ability to operate. Several of the student complaints are based in Issues with VA certification and
payments, timeliness of reporting and failing to apply VA Yellow Ribbon. The failure of the institution
to provide the requested student records for the student complaints is not only a violation of NRS
394.441(3) but 38 CFR 21.4209 when the student Is being certified for the program. Similar to the
Commission, the VA Educational Benefits program have regulations concerning quality of instruction,
adequate equipment and instructional materials and instructor personnel to provide training of good
quality. As a note, monies received by the institution on behalf of VA Educational Benefit recipients
have been a primary source of income for the past several months.

Student Complaints

Attached is a list of student complaints and information obtained by the AiLV and/or receiver. Several
of the complaints have been outstanding for months and request for documents/documentation has
not be provided. NRS 394.441(3) requires all institutions to maintain student records and the failure to
provide documents required within the student files is concerning.

Initial complaints primarily focused on the student not receiving stipends and issues with the student
ledger. Stipends are the funds remaining after Federal Aid, scholarships and VA Educational Benefits
monies are recorded on a student ledger leaving a balance. This remaining balance must be paid out to
the student during the semester the overage occurred. As the institutions is on Heighten Cash
Monitoring 2 (HCM2), the payment must be received by the student prior to the U. S. Department of
Education reimbursing students for the funds. In the cases where CPE has indicated "failure to refund",
there is an action such as a student withdrawal that requires the school to provide a refund within 15
days pursuant to NRS 394.449. During the Winter term, a limited number of the student received
stipends and the remainder were charged for Spring term and the tuition amount was deducted.
Currently, DOE is conducting an audit of all financial aid files for Winter term. No FA has process for
Spring or Summer terms. As students graduate or elect to withdrawal, eligibility for unprocessed terms
become problematic. The Commission is concerned that students will become liable for tuition that

based on their eligibility would have been covered by federal financial aid.

Later complaints have focused on staff communications and quality of education to include faculty
quitting during the semester, lack of culinary product, broken or missing equipment, no gas for cooking
and AC issues. The Administrator has directly inquired about issues with the campus having the gas
turned off and AC issues which was confirmed.

Accreditation Issues

On June 25, 2019, Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools (ACICS) conducted a Fast
Assessment and Compliance Team (FACT) visit. At that visit, the evaluators had 15 findings requiring
institutional response. The results of this visit and the institutions response were reviewed in the August
2019 Council meeting. On August 30, 2019, Art Institute of Las Vegas was issued a continue to show-



cause requiring an in-person hearing at the December 2019 Council to determine "why its current grant
of accreditation should not be withdrawn by suspension or otherwise conditioned". There is a required
payment and response within 10 days of the notice, September 13, 2019. The required documents to
demonstrate compliance with ACICS standards are required no later than October 25, 2019. CPE has not
received notification from the institution of its plans to move forward to the hearing.

Previously in January 2019, ACICS issued a Campus Level Student Achievement Show Cause for

Placement. The campus placement rate was 49% materially below the required 60%. This required
quarterly submissions of reports and plans to ACICS. The accrediting body also issued a Campus Level
Student Achievement Review Compliance Warning for student retention. At that time the student
retention rate was 59% and the minimum compliance was 60% with a 24-month corrective time frame.

Quarterly Fees

The institution has failed to report quarterly enrollments for Oct 2018 - December 2018 & January 2019
- March 2019 and payment of the related quarter fees pursuant to NRS 394.540(3). Based on student
lists provided by the school, a total of $300 in fees are past fee in addition to the mandatory fine for
failure to report timely of $500. As of today, the institution remains delinquent.

Denial of Renewal

On July 11, 2019, CPE received a renewal application for the Art Institute of Las Vegas' private
postsecondary educational license due to expire on 7/31/19. The renewal packet received did not
include the Release of Substantiation of Financial Data as required by NAC 394.381 (3) and a verification
of the applicants financial stability by providing either a financial statement reviewed or audited by a
certified public accountant, a financial statement prepared according to generally accepted accounting
principles or a balance sheet presented on forms provide within the renewal application per NAC
394.381(4). The renewal checklist was inappropriately marked as n/a for both financial items. There
were additional issues with the enrollment agreement and catalog submitted with the renewal
application. While the Receiver provided a financial statement after the notice of denial, the court
permitting the company to be placed in Receivership in direct evidence of the DCHC financial instability.
Since the Receiver is in possession of the institution with a MSA and pending APA with Save the Art
Institution Limited, the institution cannot demonstrate financial soundness.

The Commission Administrator does not have the authority to renew a license when the applicant fails
to meet the criteria for granting the application and therefore a denial of licensure was issued on July
31,2019. CPE received a request for a hearing from both Mark E. Dorette, Receiver and William Turbay,
Save the Art Institute Manager, concerning the denial of renewal within the allowable time frames.

Student Population Impact

Included in the packet is breakdown concerning student enrollment at the beginning of Summer term
along with anticipated graduation cohorts through the remainder of the year. The reported enrollment
is 231 students with a potential 60 students with anticipated graduation for the remainder of the year.
As a note, most of the institutions degree and certificate programs have a limited overlap in curriculum.
This requires the institutions to offer many courses to fulfill student graduation requirements and makes
it challenging for a student to elect to move from one program to another without adding additional
time and cost to the program.



Potential actions by Commission

The Commission may motion to:

Renew the license

This would be a full license to operate 24 months as if there are no issues. This action could set
precedence for future problematic licensees.

Suspend the license

Suspending the license for new enrollments until the sale is complete.

Issue a Conditional license (Provisional)
Set any conditions that must be fulfilled as a contingency within a provisional time frame.

Revoke the license -This would require the institution to cease it operations and granting degrees
requiring each enrolled student be refunded the cost of the student's current course or program.
The institutions bond was cancelled in March 2019 requiring CPE to access the student
indemnification account.



NRS 394.421 Powers and duties of Commission.

1. The Commission shall:

(a) Establish minimum criteria including quality of education, ethical and business practices, health and safety,
and fiscal responsibility. The criteria must not unreasonably hinder legitimate educational innovation.

(b) Adopt regulations concerning the content of the agreement to enroll.
2. The Commission may:

(a) Issue, suspend or revoke a license, or a provisional license;
(b) Authorize a postsecondary educational institution to offer a degree in a specific subject; and
(c) Authorize a postsecondary educational institution to add vocational programs or degrees in specific

subjects to its curriculum.

NRS 394.411 Regulations of Commission; administration by Administrator.
1. The Commission shall adopt regulations governing the administration of NRS 394.383 to 394.560. inclusive,

and may adopt such other regulations as are proper or necessary for the execution of the powers and duties
conferred upon it by law.

2. Subject to the administrative supervision of the Administrator of the Employment Security Division of the
Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation pursuant to NRS 612.220. the Administrator of the
Commission shall execute, direct or supervise all administrative, technical and procedural activities for which the
Administrator is responsible in accordance with the policies and regulations of the Commission.

NRS 394.445 Financial condition; false or misleading advertising prohibited; employment of personnel A
postsecondary educational institution:
1. Must be financially sound and capable of fulfilling its commitments to students.
2. Shall not engage in advertising, sales, collection, credit or other practices of any type which are false deceptive
misleading or unfair. ' '
3. Shall employ persons of good reputation and character.

NRS 394.449 Requirements of policy for refunds by postsecondary educational institutions.
1. Each postsecondary educational institution shall have a policy for refunds which at least provides:
(a) That if the institution has substantially failed to furnish the training program agreed upon in the enrollment

agreement, the institution shall refund to a student all the money the student has paid.
(b) That if a student cancels his or her enrollment before the start of the training program, the institution shall

re und to the student all the money the student has paid, minus 10 percent of the tuition agreed upon in the
enrollment agreement or $150, whichever is less, and that if the institution is accredited by a regional accreditine
agency recognized by the United States Department of Education, the institution may also retain any amount paid
as a nonrefundable deposit to secure a position in the program upon acceptance so long as the institution dearly
disclosed to the applicant that the deposit was nonrefundable before the deposit was paid.

(c) That if a student withdraws or is expelled by the institution after the start of the training program and
before the completion of more than 60 percent of the program, the institution shall refund to the student a pro
rata amount of the tuition agreed upon in the enrollment agreement, minus 10 percent of the tuition agreed uoon
in the enrollment agreement or $150, whichever is less.

(d) That if a student withdraws or is expelled by the institution after completion of more than 60 percent of
the training program, the institution is not required to refund the student any money and may charge the student
the entire cost of the tuition agreed upon in the enrollment agreement.

2. If a refund is owed pursuant to subsection 1, the institution shall pay the refund to the person or entity
who paid the tuition within 15 calendar days after the:

(a) Date of cancellation by a student of his or her enrollment;
(b) Date of termination by the institution of the enrollment of a student;
(c) Last day of an authorized leave of absence if a student fails to return after the period of authorized absence;

(d) Last day of attendance of a student,
§ whichever is applicable.



3. Books, educational supplies or equipment for individual use are not included in the policy for refund
required by subsection 1, and a separate refund must be paid by the institution to the student if those items were
not used by the student. Disputes must be resolved by the Administrator for refunds required by this subsection
on a case-by-case basis.

4. For the purposes of this section:

(a) The period of a student's attendance must be measured from the first day of instruction as set forth in the
enrollment agreement through the student's last day of actual attendance, regardless of absences.

(b) The period of time for a training program is the period set forth in the enrollment agreement.
(c) Tuition must be calculated using the tuition and fees set forth in the enrollment agreement and does not

include books, educational supplies or equipment that is listed separately from the tuition and fees.

NRS 394.450 Quality and content of courses and programs; adequate facilities, materials and personnel;
compliance with ordinances and laws; adequate housing for students. A postsecondary educational institution
shall ensure that:

1. The quality and content of each vocational or academic course or program of instruction, training or study
reasonably and adequately achieve the stated objective for which the course or program is offered.

2. The institution has adequate space, equipment, instructional materials and personnel to provide education of
good quality.

3. The education and experience of directors, administrators, supervisors and instructors reasonably provide the
students with an education consistent with the objectives of the course or program of study.

4. The institution is maintained and operated in compliance with^aiLpertinent local ordinances andstate laws,
including regulations adopted pursuant thereto, relative to the safety and health of all persons upon the
premises.

5. The housing, if any, owned, maintained or approved by the institution for its students is appropriate, safe and
adequate.

NRS 394.490 Denial of license, permit or authorization: Notice; extension of time to correct deficiencies.

1. If the Commission, upon review and consideration of a person required to be licensed or of an application for
a license to operate, or the Administrator, upon review and consideration of an application for an agent's
permit, for renewal of a license or agent's permit or for authorization to employ agents, determines that the
applicant fails to meet the criteria for granting the application, the Administrator shall notify the applicant by
certified mail, setting forth the reasons for the denial of the application.

2. The Administrator may grant to an applicant for renewal an extension of time to eliminate the reasons recited
in the denial letter if:

(a) The applicant has demonstrated his or her desire to meet the criteria; and
(b) The Administrator reasonably believes that the applicant can correct the deficiencies within the extension

period.

3. If the Administrator denies an application for an agent's permit, or an application for renewal, the
Administrator shall notify the institution the agent represented or sought to represent, setting forth the
reasons for the denial.

NRS 394.510 Revocation of or conditions on license or permit: Grounds; notification; cessation of operations;
administrative fine.

1. The Commission may impose an administrative fine of not more than $10,000 against a licensee, revoke a
license, or make a license conditional after its issuance, if the Commission reasonably believes that the holder
has violated the provisions of NRS 394.383 to 394.560, inclusive, or regulations adopted pursuant to those
sections, or has failed to comply with a lawful order of the Commission. The Administrator shall notify the
institution of the reasons for the action by certified mail to its last known address, 20 days before the meeting
of the Commission at which the action will be considered.

2. If the Commission revokes a license, the institution shall cease its operations and granting degrees and shall
refund to each enrolled student the cost of the student's current course or program.

3. The Administrator may impose an administrative fine of not more than $10,000 against an institution or agent,
revoke an agent's permit, or make a permit conditional after its issuance, if the Administrator reasonably
believes that the holder has violated the provisions of NRS 394.383 to 394.560, inclusive, or regulations
adopted pursuant thereto. Before action is taken, the Administrator shall notify the holder by certified mail of



facts or conduct that warrant the impending action and advise the holder that if a hearing is desired it must
be requested within 10 days after receipt of the notice letter. If no hearing is requested within the prescribed
period the action becomes final.

4. If an agent is fined or the agent's permit is revoked or conditions imposed, the Administrator shall notify, by
certified mail, the institution the agent represented in addition to the agent and any other parties to any
hearing.

NRS 394.465 Background investigation of certain applicants for employment with postsecondary educational
institution; confidentiality of results; payment of cost by applicant; exception to requirements for certain
applicants.

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 6, before a postsecondary educational institution employs or
contracts with a person:

(a) To occupy an instructional position;
(b) To occupy an administrative or financial position, including a position as school director, personnel officer,

counselor, admission representative, solicitor, canvasser, surveyor, financial aid officer or any similar
position; or

(c) To act as an agent for the institution
the applicant must submit to the Administrator the information set forth in subsection 2.
2. The applicant must submit to the Administrator:

(a) A complete set of fingerprints taken by a law enforcement agency and written permission authorizing the
Administrator to submit the applicant's fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada Records of
Criminal History for submission to the Federal Bureau of investigation for a report on the applicant's
background and to such other law enforcement agencies as the Administrator deems necessary; or

(b) Written verification, on a form prescribed by the Administrator, stating that the fingerprints of the
applicant were taken and directly forwarded electronically or by another means to the Central Repository
and that the applicant has given written permission to the law enforcement agency or other authorized
entity taking the fingerprints to submit the fingerprints to the Central Repository for submission to the
Federal Bureau of Investigation for a report on the applicant's background and to such other law
enforcement agencies as the Administrator deems necessary.

3. The Administrator may:
(a) Unless the applicant's fingerprints are directly forwarded pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 2,

submit those fingerprints to the Central Repository for submission to the Federal Bureau of Investigation
and to such other law enforcement agencies as the Administrator deems necessary; and

(b) Request from each such agency any information regarding the applicant's background as the
Administrator deems necessary.

4. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 239.0115, the Administrator shall keep the results of the investigation
confidential.

5. The applicant shall pay the cost of the investigation.
6. An applicant is not required to satisfy the requirements of this section if the applicant:

(a) Is licensed by the Superintendent of Public Instruction;
(b) Is an employee of the United States Department of Defense;
(c) Is a member of the faculty of an accredited postsecondary educational institution in another state who is

domiciled in a state other than Nevada and is present in Nevada for a temporary period to teach at a
branch of that accredited institution;

(d) Is an instructor who provides instruction from a location outside this State through a program of distance
education for a postsecondary educational institution licensed by the Commission who previously
underwent an investigation of his or her background and the Administrator determines that an additional
investigation is not necessary; or

(e) Has satisfied the requirements of subsection 1 within the immediately preceding S years.
7. As used in this section, "distance education" means instruction delivered by means of video, computer,

television, or the Internet or other electronic means of communication, or any combination thereof, in such a
manner that the person supervising or providing the instruction and the student receiving the instruction are
separated geographically.



NRS 394.480 Surety bond required of certain institutions; Commission authorized to require additional bond;
release of surety on bond; suspension of agent's permit if institution not covered by bond.
1. Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 100.065 to the contrary, each:

(a) Postsecondary educational institution initially licensed on or after July 1, 1995, shall file with the
Administrator a surety bond in the amount of $10,000 or in a greater amount determined by the
Commission for the period of the initial license to operate, including any provisional period.

(b) Postsecondary educational institution or other entity which is authorized to employ one or more agents
in this State shall file with the Administrator a surety bond in the amount of $10,000 or in a greater
amount determined by the Commission for the period of the agent's permit.

(c) Postsecondary educational institution that poses a financial risk to the students who are enrolled in the
institution, as determined by the Commission, shall file with the Administrator a surety bond In the
amount of $10,000 or in a greater amount determined by the Commission for a period that the
Commission determines is appropriate.

(d) Postsecondary educational institution that files for a change of ownership shall file with the Administrator
a surety bond in the amount of $10,000 or in a greater amount determined by the Commission for the
period of the initial license to operate issued to the new owner, including any provisional period.

(e) Postsecondary educational institution may be required by the Commission to file a new or supplementary
bond in an amount and for a period determined appropriate by the Commission if the Commission
determines that the current bond filed by the institution is insufficient to cover all claims, accrued or
contingent, against the institution.

2. The bond required of a postsecondary educational institution pursuant to subsection 1 must be executed by
the entity that owns the institution as principal, by a surety company as surety and by a licensed insurance
agent residing in this State. The bond must be payable to the State of Nevada and must be conditioned to
provide indemnification to any student, enrollee or his or her parent or guardian determined by the
Commission to have suffered damage as a result of any act by the postsecondary educational institution that
is a violation of NRS 394.383 to 394.560, inclusive. The bonding company shall provide indemnification upon
receipt of written notice of the determination by the Commission. The bond may be continuous, but regardless
of the duration of the bond the aggregate liability of the surety does not exceed the penal sum of the bond.

3. A surety on any bond filed pursuant to this section may be released after the surety gives 30 days' written
notice to the Administrator, but the release does not discharge or otherwise affect any claim filed by a student,
enrollee or his or her parent or guardian for damage resulting from any act of the postsecondary educational
institution or agent alleged to have occurred while the bond was in effect, or for an institution's ceasing
operations during the term for which tuition had been paid while the bond was in force.

4. A license or an agent's permit is suspended by operation of law when the institution or agent is no longer
covered by a surety bond as required by this section. The Administrator shall give the institution or agent, or
both, at least 20 days' written notice before the release of the surety, to the effect that the license or permit
will be suspended by operation of law until another surety bond is filed in the same manner and amount as
the bond being terminated.

5. If any student is entitled to a refund from an institution pursuant to any provision of NRS 394.383 to 394.560,
inclusive, the surety shall provide indemnification.

NRS 394.510 Revocation of or conditions on license or permit: Grounds; notification; cessation of operations;
administrative fine.

1. The Commission may impose an administrative fine of not more than $10,000 against a licensee, revoke a
license, or make a license conditional after its issuance, if the Commission reasonably believes that the holder
has violated the provisions of NRS 394.383 to 394.560, inclusive, or regulations adopted pursuant to those
sections, or has failed to comply with a lawful order of the Commission. The Administrator shall notify the
institution of the reasons for the action by certified mail to its last known address, 20 days before the meeting
of the Commission at which the action will be considered.

2. If the Commission revokes a license, the institution shall cease its operations and granting degrees and shall
refund to each enrolled student the cost of the student's current course or program.

3. The Administrator may impose an administrative fine of not more than $10,000 against an institution or agent,
revoke an agent's permit, or make a permit conditional after its issuance, if the Administrator reasonably



believes that the holder has violated the provisions of NRS 394.383 to 394.560, inclusive, or regulations
adopted pursuant thereto. Before action is taken, the Administrator shall notify the holder by certified mail of
facts or conduct that warrant the impending action and advise the holder that if a hearing is desired it must
be requested within 10 days after receipt of the notice letter. If no hearing is requested within the prescribed
period the action becomes final.
If an agent is fined or the agent's permit is revoked or conditions imposed, the Administrator shall notify, by
certified mail, the institution the agent represented in addition to the agent and any other parties to any
hearing.



student Enrollment

Starting Summer
Term

Julys, 2019-
September 20, 2019



Art Institute of Las Vegas

Student Enrollment as of July 8, 2019 Term

Degree

Audio Production - Bachelor of Science

Baking & Pastry - Associate

Baking & Pastry - Diploma

Culinary Arts - Associate of Science

Culinary Arts - Diploma

Culinary Management - Bachelor of Science

Digital Filmmaking & Video Production - Bachelor

Digital Photography - Associate of Science

Digital Photography - Bachelor of Science

Drafting Technology & Design - Associate of Science

Fashion & Retail Management - Bachelor of Science

Fashion Design - Bachelor of Arts

Game Art & Design - Bachelor of Science

Graphic Design - Bachelor of Science

Interior Design - Bachelor of Arts

Marketing & Entertainment Management - Bachelor of Science

Media Arts & Animation - Bachelor of Science

Professional Writing for Creative Arts - Bachelor

Software Development for Creative Technologies - Bachelor

Visual Effects & Motion Graphics - Bachelor of Science

Web Design & Interactive Media - Bachelor

Students Enrolled

20

12

1

25

1

6

16

6

9

1

5

10

30

14

15

3

39

2

1

12

3

Total Enrollment 7/8/19 231

Anticipated Graduates

Sep-19

Nov-19

Dec-19

20

1

39



Appointment of

Receivership



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 lofl7. PagelD#:108

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO
EASTERN DIVISION

DIGITAL MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC, ) CASENO. I:I9-cv-I45
\

PLAINTIFF,
/

)  JUDGE dan AARON POLSTER
\

V.
)
)
\

SOUTH UNIVERSITY OF OHIO, LLC, et
)
)

ai. )
\

DEFENDANTS.
)

)

ORDER APPOINTING RECEIVER

This cause coming to be heard on the Emergency Motion for Appointment of Receiver

Ex Parte (the "Motion") filed by Plaintiff Digital Media Solutions, LLC ("DMS").

The Court hereby finds that:

1. This Court has subject matter Jurisdiction under U.S. CONST, art. Ill, § 2 and 28

U.S.C. § 1332. This Court exercises diversity because the parties are of complete diverse

citizenship and the amount in controversy is in excess of $75,000. The Court has ancillary

jurisdiction of the request to appoint a receiver and for an injunction, because such relief is

substantially related to the claims of the Plaintiff. See, U.S. Bank Nat'I Assoc. v. Nesbitt Bellevue

Props., 866 F.Supp.2d 247, 255 (S.D.N.Y. 2012) (appointing a receiver while exercising

diversity subject matter jurisdiction as an ancillary remedy to protect the value of properties

located in six states). Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(e)(1)(B) because a

substantial part of the events giving rise to this action took place in this judicial district and a

substantial part of the property that is the subject of the action is situated in this judicial district

1797048; 1425 0001)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 2 of 17. PagelD#:109

South Ohio currently employs approximately many Ohio residents and their Ohio institution has

enrolled over 50 active students; and

2. Defendants South University of Ohio, LLC ("South Ohio") and Dream Center

Educational Holdings LLC ("DCEH") (collectively, "Defendants") are indebted to Plaintiff for

a sum in excess of $250,000; and

3. Defendants are also Indebted to other secured, trade, and unsecured creditors for a

sum in excess of $100,000,000; and

4. Federal courts typically consider the following factors when determining whether

to appoint a receiver: (I) the probability that fraudulent conduct has occurred or will occur to

frustrate that claim; (2) imminent danger that property will be concealed, lost, or diminished in

value; (3) inadequacy of legal remedies; (4) lack of a less drastic equitable remedy; and

(5) likelihood that appointing a receiver will do more good than harm. See, Consolidated Rail

Corp. V. Fore River Ry. 861 F.2d 322, yi6-yn (P^ Cir. 1988); Mintzer v. Arthur Wright & Co.,

263 F.2d 823, 826 (3d Cir. 1959); Bookout v. Atlas Fin. Corp., 395 F. Supp. 1338, 1342 (N.D..

Ga 1974), afTdSXA F.2d 757 (5*^ Cir. 1975); and

5. Based on an analysis of these factors, the Court finds that a receiver should be

appointed because both the Plaintiff and the Defendants have demonstrated that (i) there is a

significant sum due Plaintiff and other creditors; (ii) that there is imminent danger of damage to

the stakeholders of the Defendants, which include the students that are enrolled in the

Defendants' educational institutions (whether owned directly or through a limited liability

company ownership interest) (the "Institutions"); (iii) the Plaintiffs' other legal remedies are not

adequate to protect their interests and the interests of other stakeholders, including the interests

of the students; (iv) a receiver will protect the interests of the Secured Lenders, the students, the

{797048: 142^0001)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 3 of 17. PagelD#:110

Department of Education, the accrediting agencies and the other stakeholders; (v) there is no

other adequate remedy available to the Plaintiffs and the Defendants because a bankruptcy filing

is not reasonable or practical in the circumstances; and (vi) the appointment of a receiver is

appropriate and necessary to preserve, manage and dispose of the assets in accordance with the

Credit Documents and to prevent waste; and

6. Mark E. Dottore is (i) a resident of Ohio; (ii) a disinterested person; and (iii) an

experienced and qualified receiver.

Accordingly, after due consideration and for good cause shown, pursuant to Rule 65 and

Rule 66 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, said Motion is hereby GRANTED.

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED

THAT:

1. Mark E. Dottore (the "Receiver"), whose business address is 2344 Canal Road,

Cleveland, Ohio 44113, is hereby appointed the federal equity receiver, custodian and Liquidator

for South University of Ohio LLC, Dream Center Education Holdings LLC, The DC Art Institute

of Raleigh-Durham LLC, The DC Art Institute of Charlotte LLC, DC Art Institute of Charleston

LLC, DC Art Institute of Washington LLC, The Art Institute of Tennessee - Nashville LLC,

AiTN Restaurant LLC, The Art Institute of Colorado LLC, DC Art Institute of Phoenix LLC,

The Art Institute of Portland LLC, The Art Institute of Seattle LLC, The Art Institute of

Pittsburgh, DC LLC, The Art Institute of Philadelphia, DC, LLC, DC Art Institute of Fort

Lauderdale LLC, The Illinois Institute of Art LLC, The Art Institute of Michigan LLC, The

Illinois Institute of Art at Schaumberg LLC, DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC and its direct

subsidiaries the Art Institute of Las Vegas LLC, the Art Institute of Indianapolis, LLC, and AilN

Restaurant LLC; Dream Center Argosy University of California LLC and its direct subsidiaries,

(791048; l42S-OOOt) 3



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 4 of 17. PagelD#:lll

Argosy Education Group LLC and AU Student Funding, LLC; Dream Center Education

Management LLC; and, South University of Michigan LLC (the "Receivership Entities"),

effective upon the Receiver's posting of the bond as required below and taking the oath required

by law. The Receiver is hereby authorized to take possession and control of all of the real and

personal property arising out of, or pertaining to the Receivership Entities, including but not

limited to, any and all cash and cash deposits, receivables and accounts receivable, obligations or

commitments owed by any person or entity, including the United States Department of

Education, equipment, furniture, fixtures and deposit accounts held by third parties, the general

intangibles, any real property (the "Real Property"), any and all tax attributes, and all other

assets of whatever kind or nature belonging to the Receivership Entities and the Receiver shall

have all authority and power of a receiver under 28 U.S.C. §§ 754, 959 and 1692, Rule 66 of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and Rule 66.1(d) of the Local Rules for the United States

District Court for the Northem District of Ohio, this Court's inherent powers, and Ohio laws

where applicable (the "Receivership Authorities"), and as ordered further by this Court.

(Hereinafter, all of the assets described in this paragraph shall be referred to as the

"Receivership Property").

2. The Receiver shall take immediate possession, control, management, operation

and charge of the Receivership Entities and its Receivership Property and maintain all such

entities and property In a Receivership Estate. This Court hereby vests the Receiver with

authority and jurisdiction over the Receivership Estate and the Receivership Property to the

maximum extent permitted by the Receivership Authorities, and hereby empowers and permits

the Receiver to take any and all actions necessary and proper to carry out the express provisions

of this Order, including but not limited to the following powers and duties:

I797M8: 1425-OOOI)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 5 of 17. PagelD#:112

a. The Receiver shall take immediate possession, control,
management and charge of the Receivership Entities' accounting books
and records of whatever nature and wherever located, in the possession
of the Receivership Entities or any other person or Entities, including all
information regarding the assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses
of the Receivership Entities. The Receiver shall take immediate
possession, control, management and charge of all of the Receivership
Entities's financial statements, ledgers and journals, balance sheets, trial
balances, statements of cash flows, income statements, statements of
retained earnings, accounting journals and books of original entry,
including but not to (i) accounts receivable agings, rent rolls, and any
other documentation which indicate the amounts owing from lessees and
other debtors of the Receivership Entities on accounts receivable and
from whom such amounts are or were owing and when any amounts
were collected and deposited; (ii) fixed asset ledgers, schedules, records,
documentation and/or appraisals of the Receivership Entities's
equipment, motor vehicles, boats and their engines, accessories, furniture
inventory, furnishings, and supplies; (iii) inventory listings or other
detail; (iv) all information and documentation which relates or pertains to
any checking, saving, banking and money management accounts of any
kind or nature belonging to the Receivership Entities, or into which any
proceeds of the collection or sale of any asset of the Property have been
deposited; (v) all accounts payable documentation and information and
all correspondence or written documents regarding negotiations with
current accounts or proposed accounts; (vi) all information of whatever
type or nature, regarding the payroll and benefits of the employees of the
Receivership Entities, including wage or salary information, medical
insurance information, child support payments or other employee
deductions withheld or to be withheld, and all information regarding
withholding taxes whether federal, state, or local and any information
regarding any and all of the employer matching obligations or the
employer payroll tax obligations; (vii) ail information and documentation
of any asset transfers by the Receivership Entities any time in the past;
(viii) all information and documentation regarding the federal, state and
local tax liabilities and tax attributes of the Receivership Entities,
including any and all federal, state and local tax returns filed or unfiled,
and any documents generated during the planning of any construction
project, including the Real Property, and the preparation and filing of tax
returns for the Receivership Entities; (ix) all contracts and leases
pertaining to the Property and/or to which Receivership Entities are a
party; (x) all information and documentation of any other financial
transaction or interest in and any asset of the Receivership Entities which
may be necessary or pertinent to the Receiver's operation and
management of the Receivership Entities's assets; and (xi) any
documentation that relates or pertains to the Receivership Entities and is
kept in the ordinary course of their business in connection with the

(797048; U2^000tt



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 6 of 17. PagelD#:113

record-keeping or accounting. The information described in this
subparagraph shall hereinafter be referred to as the "Books and
Records."

b. The Receiver shall take immediate possession, control,
management and charge of the Property, including all assets and
property appertaining thereto consisting of all personal property, real
property (including leasehold interests), all cash or cash equivalents
including, but not limited to, rights, title and interest in and to all bank
accounts, all accounts and notes receivable, all inventory of any type or
nature, all furniture, fixtures, equipment, computers (hardware and
software), and all general intangibles, including, but not limited to, all
licenses and liquor licenses applied for, owned or utilized by the
Receivership Entities, rights in leases, rights to proceeds from any
insurance or sales of equipment or other asset, all choses in action and
causes of action, including avoidance actions for transfers of any of the
assets of the Receivership Entities for less than equivalent value against
the transferees of those assets, and any other asset or interest owned by
the Receivership Entities or in which the Receivership Entities asserts an
interest which has any value which pertains to the Property, and the
Books and Records and the Property are hereby placed in custodia legis
and are subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of this Court. Receiver shall
not be charged with the responsibility to take possession of any real
estate or other assets which had or have existing hazardous or toxic
contamination nor shall the Receiver be required to take possession of
any hazardous or toxic materials owned or used by the Receivership
Entities. Should the Receiver elect to take possession of, or exercise his
dominion and control over, any real estate, hazardous or toxic materials,
pollutants or contaminants, he shall do so in his capacity as Receiver for
the Property.

c. The Receiver shall have the authority to operate and manage the
Receivership Entities and the Property as he deems prudent in his sole
discretion throughout the litigation, subject to further order of this Court.
The Receiver shall preserve and care for any and all of the Property and
utilize any and all of the Property to preserve and maximize the value of
the Property.

d. The Receiver shall secure the business premises, business
equipment, data and documents; take control of all means of
communication with students, investors, secured and unsecured lenders,
landlords, vendors, agents and others doing business with the
Receivership Entities (the "Business"). The Receiver shall have the
authority to communicate and negotiate with and enter into agreements
with the Department of Education regarding the "teach-out" or any other

(797041; I42}.000l)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 7 of 17. PagelD #: 114

issue. The Receiver shall have the authority to take all reasonable and
necessary steps to wind-down and liquidate the business operations.

e. The Receiver shall have the authority, responsibility and duty to
review the participation of the directors, officers or managers of any
entity whose stock shares or membership interest he holds and based
upon his business judgment, to remove any director, officer or manager
and nominate and elect any replacement director, officer or manager.
However, the Receiver shall not remove any officer or director without
seeking and obtaining leave of Court. The Receiver is hereby authorized
to take any action, execute any document and do those things necessary
to transfer a stock interest to himself, or accept admission as a member
of any limited liability entity.

f. The Receiver shall succeed to management of each of the
Receivership Entities, to be the sole and exclusive managing member,
representative, custodian, and, its Liquidator, as that term is described in
each entity's Operating Agreement, with the sole and exclusive power
and authority to manage and direct the business and financial affairs of
the Receivership Entities and its liquidation and wind-down, including
without limitation, the authority to petition for protection under the
Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. §§101 et. seq. (the "Bankruptcy Code")
for the Receivership Entities and in connection therewith be and be
deemed a debtor in possession for the Receivership Entities in
proceedings under the Bankruptcy Code, and prosecute such adversary
proceedings and other matters as may be permitted under the Code
and/or applicable law.

g. The Receiver may, without seeking further authorization from
this Court, file voluntary petitions for relief under title 11 of the United
States Code (the "Bankruptcy Code") for each of the Defendants and
for any entity whose membership interests are held in whole or in part by
Dream Holdings. If any of Defendants, or any of the entities whose
membership interests are held in whole or in part by Dream Holdings are
placed in bankruptcy proceedings, the Receiver may become the
management of any debtor in possession or may be appointed as the
trustee of the debtor, and is thus empowered to operate each of those
debtor entities as a debtor in possession. In such a situation, the Receiver
shall have all of the powers and duties as provided a debtor in possession
under the Bankruptcy Code to the exclusion of any other person or
entity. Pursuant to Paragraph 2(e) above, the Receiver is vested with
management authority for the Defendants and all entities whose
membership interests are held in whole or in part by Dream Holdings
and may therefore file and manage a Chapter 11 petition. See, In re
Bayou Group, LLC, 564 F.3d 541,548-49 (2nd Cir. 2009).

{797WB: 1423^)0011



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 8 of 17. PagelD#:115

|79704g: l42}-000i|

h. The Receiver shall, in his own business judgment, determine
whether to file a plan for liquidation and distribution of the Property, and
if the Receiver shall so determine, then in conjunction with and in
consultation with, the Receivership Entities* secured and general
creditors, the Receiver shall submit such a plan to this Court for
approval.

i. The Receiver shall immediately implement the use of any state or
federal historic tax credits (the "Tax Credits'*) that may be available to
the Receivership Entities and take all necessary actions to preserve the
value and prevent the waste of the Tax Credits.

j. The Receiver is authorized to collect all profits, rents, receivables
and revenues of any nature whatsoever generated from the Property
and/or the business operations of the Property and to pay all necessary
expenses relating to said operations, including his fees and the fees of his
attorneys, accountants and other professionals, as he deems prudent in
his sole discretion, from funds in his possession, whether such funds are
derived from the operation or the sale of the Property.

k. The Receiver shall have the authority without further order of this
Court to maintain or purchase insurance from any agent or carrier, of any
type reasonably necessary or desirable, on all the Property, subject to
maintaining adequate coverage appropriately and naming appropriate
loss payees as any properly perfected security interests provide within
the corresponding security agreement.

1. The Receiver is authorized to establish or maintain one or more

bank accounts in the Receiver's name for its operations as Receiver in
this matter at any federally insured bank as reasonably needed to engage
in business operations on behalf of the Property. The Receiver shall
keep a true and accurate account of any and all receipts and
disbursements which the Receiver shall receive or make as Receiver in

the course of the operation of the Property.

m. The Receiver is hereby authorized to negotiate, enter into and
execute leases of any portion or part of the premises of the Real Property
at rental rates and for terms of years consistent with those that the market
will bear, which he, in his business judgment concludes are in the best
interest of the creditors of the Receivership Estate.

n. The Receiver is authorized to negotiate and effect an orderly sale,
transfer, use or assignment of all or a portion of any of the Property in or
outside of the ordinary course of business of the Receivership Entities
and, from the proceeds thereof, to pay the secured and unsecured
indebtedness of the Property, including the Real Property. Payments to

8



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 9 of 17. PagelD#:116

creditors by the Receiver shall include trade indebtedness which arises
during the course of the Receiver's operation of the Property, which shall
be paid first from the sale proceeds, together with the fees and expenses
of the Receiver and his attorneys, accountants and other professionals.
The Receiver is authorized to conduct such a sale of the Property in any
manner which he, in his good faith and reasonable discretion, believes
will maximize the proceeds received from the sale.

0. The Receiver is authorized to institute, prosecute, or intervene in
any lawsuit or summary proceeding against any other person(s) or
entity(ies) to preserve and/or maximize the value of the Property or to
obtain possession of any of the Property unlawfully in the possession of
third parties.

p. The Receiver is authorized but not required to defend actions
against the Property or the Receivership Entities and may incur expenses
to defend such actions to the extent that he believes, in his sole
discretion, it will protect and preserve the Property.

q. The Receiver is authorized to perform pursuant to the terms of
any existing contracts executed by the Receivership Entities in
connection with the Property to the extent that the Receiver determines,
in his sole discretion, that such performance will preserve and maximize
the value of the Property. The Receiver may reject contracts not deemed
to be in the interest of creditors of the estate, and the holder of any
contract so rejected shall be allowed a claim as an unsecured creditor of
the Property, said claim to be calculated consistent with the law.

r. The Receiver is authorized to employ any assistants, servants,
agents, tax accountants, financial accountants, attorneys, or other persons
deemed necessary or desirable to assist the Receiver in diligently
executing the duties imposed upon the Receiver by this Order and
pursuant to the Receivership Authorities.

s. The Receiver is authorized to repair the Property, and/or its
fixtures and appurtenances as needed. Such repairs shall be made at the
time and in the way that the Receiver, in his sole discretion, deems
reasonable and necessary in the circumstances. Such repairs and
construction include the time and expense of relocating tenants or caring
for tenants while their suites are under construction.

t. Any person or entity, other than the Receiver, is barred from
placing any of the Receivership Entities in bankruptcy proceedings.

{797048; U25<4)OOI)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 10 of 17. PagelD #: 117

3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiver and the Receivership Estate shall not

be liable for the payment of taxes, assessments or utility charges pre-dating the date of this

Order. Any individual or entity receiving a copy of this Order is hereby enjoined and restrained

from discontinuing service to the Receiver or the Receivership Estate based upon the non

payment of such taxes or utilities prior to the date of this Order and from attempting to collect

taxes and utility charges from the Receiver pre-dating the date of this Order.

4. No provision of this Order shall be deemed by any federal, state, or local

governmental agency, or accrediting agency, as having triggered a substantive change of

ownership or control requiring the approval of such agency; further, the actions taken by the

Receiver during the course of the receivership shall not be taken into account by any such agency

in any future determination of whether the Receiver is qualified to hold the stock or membership

interest of, or serve in any capacity with, an institution approved or regulated by that agency.

5. The Receiver shall not be deemed, nor or at any point in the future, to exercise, or

have exercised, "substantial control" as that term is defined in 20 U.S.C. § 1099c and 34 C.F.R.

§668.174, over the Receivership Entities, the Business, the Receivership Estate, or the

Receivership Property based upon the Receiver's appointment by this Court or subsequent

involvement in the operation and management of the Business and the Receivership Property.

6. The Receiver may obtain unsecured credit and incur unsecured debt in the

ordinary course of business of this title and said unsecured debt shall be a lien shall be a charge

upon all property of whatsoever kind or nature in the Receivership Estate and the lien shall

extend to all proceeds of or arising from the Receivership Property or any other property in the

Receivership Estate, including all after-acquired property which but for the date of the

1797048; l42)-000t} 10



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 11 of 17. PagelD#:118

acquisition would have been Receivership Property in the Receivership Estate, second in priority

to the Receiver's lien for fees and expenses set forth in Paragraph 25 of this Order.

7. If the Receiver is unable to obtain unsecured credit consistent with the terms and

conditions set forth in Paragraph 8 above, this Court, after notice and a hearing, may authorize

the obtaining of credit or the incurring of debt on such other terms and conditions as are

equitable in the circumstances, including the granting of a lien secured by property of the

Receivership Estate that is not otherwise subject to a lien or secured by a Junior lien on property

of the estate that is subject to a lien. The Court, after notice and a hearing, may authorize the

obtaining of credit or the incurring of debt secured by a senior or equal lien on property of the

estate that is subject to a lien only if it is equitable in the circumstances and only if the holder of

any lien on property receives adequate protection.

8. The reversal or modification on appeal of an authorization given to the Receiver

to obtain credit or incur debt, or of a grant by this Court of a priority or a lien, does not affect the

validity of any debt so incurred, or any priority or lien so granted, to an entity that extended such

credit in good faith, whether or not such entity knew of the pendency of the appeal, unless such

authorization and the incurring of such debt, or the granting of such priority or lien, were stayed

pending appeal.

9. The Receivership Entities and any persons, firms or entities acting under the

direction of such Receivership Entities, and any third parties, persons, firms or entities, shall,

upon presentation of a copy of this Order, identify the location of and deliver to the Receiver,

any and all receivership property, both the Books and Records and the Property, in the

possession or under the control of such parties; and all persons are enjoined and restrained: (a)

from payment of any amounts owing to the Receivership Entities relating to the Property to

{797048; i42$4)00t| 11



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 12 of 17. PagelD#:119

anyone other than the Receiver; and (b) from in any way disturbing or interfering with the

collection, management or sale of any of the Property.

10. All creditors, claimants, bodies politic, parties in interest, and their respective

attorneys, servants, agents, and employees, and all other persons, firms, and corporations be, and

they hereby are, jointly and severally, enjoined and stayed from commencing or continuing any

action at law or suit or proceeding in equity to foreclose any lien or enforce any claim against the

Property, or its Books and Records or Property, or against the Receiver, in any court. The parties

are further stayed from executing or issuing or causing the execution or issuance out of any court

of any writ, process, summons, attachment, subpoena, replevin, execution, or other process for

the purpose of impounding or taking possession of or interfering with, or enforcing any claim or

lien upon the Property owned by or in the possession of the Receivership Entities, or the

Receiver, and from doing any act or thing whatsoever to interfere with the Receiver in the

discharge of his duties in this proceedings or with the exclusive jurisdiction of this Court over the

Property, its Books and Records and Property and the said Receiver.

11. Parties in this case and their respective attorneys, servants, agents, and employees,

and all other persons, firms, and corporations be, and they hereby are, jointly and severally,

enjoined and stayed from commencing any action at law or suit or proceeding in equity in any

court or to prosecute any claim, or to execute or issue or cause the execution or issuance out of

any court of any writ, process, summons, attachment or subpoena, against Mark E. Dottore, the

individual, or any entities in which he holds an interest, without first obtaining permission of this

appointing Court. Such a lawsuit may be used to intimidate the Receiver and therefore interfere

with the discharge of his duties in this proceeding. Upon a request to sue Mark E. Dottore, the

individual, or an entities in which he holds an interest, by any party, the Court will undertake a

(79704S: I42S^K)0I| 12



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 13 of 17. PagelD#:120

review of the facts and circumstances, and upon notice and hearing, determine whether the suit is

meritorious or interposed for the purpose of harassment of the Receiver.

12. The Receivership Entities and its agents and employees, and any other party, shall

turn over to the Receiver, as soon as possible or within three (3) days from the date of this Order,

any and all Books and Records.

13. The Receivership Entities and its agents and employees, and any other party, shall

turn over to the Receiver, as soon as possible or within three (3) days from the date of this Order,

all sums in existence on the date hereof that are related or pertain to, or derived from the

Property, including, but not limited to (a) all cash on hand; (b) all cash equivalents and

negotiable instruments (such as checks, notes, drafts or other related documents or instruments);

and (c) all sums held in accounts in any financial institutions, including but not limited to, all

sums of any kind relating to the use, enjoyment, possession, improvement or occupancy of all or

any portion of the Property.

14. Except as directed by the Receiver, the Receivership Entities, its affiliates, agents,

officers, directors, shareholders, members, employees, representatives or creditors, and all other

persons or entities, are hereby prohibited from taking any act for or on behalf of the Receivership

Entities, interfering in any way with the acts of the Receiver, and from in any way, manner or

means wasting, disposing of, transferring, selling, assigning, pledging, canceling, concealing,

interfering with, or hypothecating any of the Books and Records or the Property. Upon the

request of the Receiver, the foregoing persons and entities shall cooperate and affirmatively

assist the Receiver in making available to the Receiver or his agents, the Books and Records and

the Property. Nothing in this paragraph shall be construed to require a waiver of any attorney-

client privilege.

(797048; I42S-OOOII 13



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 14of 17. PagelD#:121

15. The Receiver, and his agents, including his attorneys and any accountants or other

professionals that are appointed by the Court, shall be entitled to reasonable compensation for

services rendered and reimbursement for expenses incurred which are (a) related to the

Receiver's duties, rights, and obligations under this order or any future orders of the Court and

applicable law; (b) related to the administration, management, protection or liquidation of the

Property; or (c) related to the defense or prosecution of any claim or suit brought by or against

the Receiver or by the Receiver against any person or entities. Such compensation of the

Receiver and his agents, his counsel and his accountants shall be paid consistent with the

Receivership Authorities, Paragraphs 16 through 19 of this Order Appointing Receiver and

awarded from the Receivership Estate. As and for the payment of the Receiver's fees and

expenses and the fees and expenses of his attorneys, accountants and other professionals, the

Receiver is hereby granted a lien upon all of the Assets in the Receivership Estate, which lien

shall be a charge upon all property of whatsoever kind or nature in the Receivership Estate and

the lien shall extend to all proceeds of or arising from the Assets or other property in the

Receivership Estate, including all after-acquired property which but for the date of the

acquisition would have been an Asset of the Receivership Estate. If the Receivership Estate does

not have funds to pay the fees and expenses of the Receiver and his attorneys, accountants and

other professionals, those fees will be assessed as costs of this case.

16. The Receiver shall be compensated at his normal hourly billing rate, which is the

rate he charges in cases of like kind and complexity. At this time, the Receiver's billing rate is

$400.00 per hour plus reimbursement for all reasonable and necessary out of pocket costs and

expenses.

(797048; 1423-00011 14



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 15 of 17. PagelD#:122

17. From time to time, the Receiver utilizes the assistance and expertise of persons on

the payroll of his companies. These individuals are billed hourly as follows; administrative

personnel ($125.00); Thomas Dottore ($300.00) and Charles Dottore ($300.00). If the services

of others are required, they will be billed at an hourly rate consistent with or below the rates

charged by others in this community with similar skills and ability, as is true with all hourly rates

charged under this Order.

18. Routine accounting services are included in the rates charged by the Receiver.

Routine accounting services include bookkeeping, bank account review and reconciliation, and

the filing of periodic reports required by this Order and under the Receivership Authorities. The

filing of tax returns, other governmental reporting requirements, assistance to any governmental

law enforcement agency, and other non-bookkeeping accounting functions will be charged at

ordinary, hourly rates. The Receiver will utilize the services of Mr. David S. Linscott, CPA,

CIRA, at the rate of $325.00 per hour.

19. The Receiver and his attorneys, accountants, or other professionals hired by him,

may, at the Receiver's option, file with this Court monthly applications (or less frequent, if he

deems appropriate), for payment of fees and expenses incurred in the conduct of this

Receivership Estate, and each such application shall be served via U.S. Mail upon the Plaintiff,

the Defendants, and other interested parties who have requested that such applications be served

upon them. The Receiver shall be authorized to pay the fees and expenses requested by the

Receiver or his attorneys, accountants or other professionals in any such application after ten

(10) days have expired after service has been effected, without further order of this Court. If any

party or person shall file an objection to the fees and expenses of the Receiver, or of his

attorneys, accountants or other professionals, the Court shall consider the objection in the

(797048; 142^0001) 15



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 16 of 17. PagelD#:123

ordinary course. Pending consideration of the objection, the Receiver shall be authorized to pay

any portion of the fees and expenses not subject to the objection.

20. The Receiver shall have full and unrestricted access to all of the Property, and the

Receivership Entities and its officers, directors, shareholders, employees and agents, and any

other party, are directed to take all steps necessary to give the Receiver access to the premises

and to give the Receiver all keys to the facilities.

21. Nothing in this Order shall be read or interpreted as requiring Plaintiff to continue

to extend credit to the Receivership Entities and Plaintiff shall continue to have all rights and

remedies to which it is entitled under its agreements with Defendants and pursuant to the

Receivership Authorities and subject to the terms of this Order.

22. The Receiver may, from time to time, make payments to creditors on account of

pre-receivership claims, especially secured creditors, according to their interests as they may

appear. The Receiver, in his sole discretion, shall determine when or if it is appropriate to make

payments to creditors, if any. All payments made prior to the conclusion of the Receivership

shall be made after application to the Court and pursuant to Court Order.

23. The Receiver shall, under his authority to operate and manage the businesses of

the Receivership Entities, operate and manage such businesses in compliance with applicable

statutes. Nothing in this Order shall be read or interpreted, however, to abrogate the Receiver's

immunities from personal liability for conduct related to his receivership duties.

24. The Bond of the Receiver is set at $ 100.00.

25. The Court retains jurisdiction with respect to any matters addressed in this Order,

including without limitation any and all matters relating to or affecting the Receivership Estate,

(797048; U2S4X)011 16



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 8 Filed: 01/18/19 17 of 17. PagelD#:124

the Property, the Receiver and the scope of authority granted the Receiver hereunder. The terms

of this Order shall continue in full force and effect unless jnd until further order of this Court.

[signature page to follow]

"^v ofIT IS SO ORDERED this day 2019.

U.S. DISTRICT JUDGE

pDfl- l^/bJ h-^ PC?UTS^

J797048; 1425^1} 17



Management
Services Agreement

MOU



•  MANAGED SERVICES AGREEMENT

cl, 11 K ""i' Services Agreement (this "Agreemeni-n is made as of March 28 2019 butshall be effectve as of April 1,2019 fthe "Effective Date'i i,„ j L-™ *
INSTITUTE OF LAS VFOAS r T p 7„ i7v!. i"?; oftween, and among THE ART

S'Ss^A^SUf LAb VEGAS LIMITED, a Nevada limited habilitv comnanv ite /tedmioa „

•t®- »«««-•«»■A. »1S

Case No. l:19-cv-145 (N-D. Ohio) (the "Litigation^; University of Oho. LLC. et oL,

ViTffiREAS, simultaneously with entering into this Agreement, AiLV has entered into aTt^mon Services Agreement (the "TSA") xvith Dream Center Eduction HoidingrLLC a^^^not-for-profit limited liability company, by and through MarkB. DottXaSv^
U»iy®fsity wishes to engage AiLV to provide certain Core Swvices fasdefined herem) m support of its academic mission and purposes, as well as to be resnorsiWe krfte payment ^d obligations of the University from nffecti'S u^L^a S LeSe

Agreement entered into on September 14, 2001 by and among HLLC BSP Tech Sf
Nevada limited habihly company and The Art Institute of Las Vegas Inc. a Nevada c^™«nnfor the property located at 2350 Corporate Circle, Henderson NV 89074 securitv and mh^rvices required by the University for the mainteniice and m?air7f
SriSeSr administration, faculty
fi, n that the a letter dated February 27.2019 fromthe Departaent of Education, Multi-Regional and Foreign Schools Participation Division, does
S,? to SS iSSS; " » ™' "■ Ptoto, „ todu
Service]!S^hSin)?e%o'lSdby'^LV
AgteeJ^^^' University has reviewed and approved the terms of this

{01300962-1}



r^\ ^ . ̂-5 General Definitions. Unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms
> _ used m this Agreement are defined as set forth in Appendix (Definitions) hereto.

2. AiLV's Responsibilities.

•  R®^latory Matters. AiLV expressly acknowledges its afBrmative obligationsto conduct Its affairs on behalf of the University in carrying out its obligations under this
Agreement in a m^er intended to be in accordance with applicable standards of the higher
education community. In furtherance thereof, and not by limitation, AiLV warrants, renresents
and covenents that: ^

AiLV s use and maintenance of any educational records containing
personally identifiable student information that is provided to it through this Agreement remains
subject to the oversight and control of the University. AiLV is familiar with, and will use
cominercially reasonable efforts to comply in all material respects with, all applicable Laws
pert^ng to student educational records and privacy, including the Family Educational Rights

^  ̂ and subsequent codes, and its implementation regulations at34 C.F.R. Part 99, and the Gramm Leach Bliley Financial Modernization Act, 15 U.SC
§§ 6801^803 (collectively, the "Privacy Laws and Remilarinnt-^ AiLV wili not divulge any
protected student information to anyone without prior notice to and written consent of the
Umveisity; provided, however, that this requirement shall not apply to the divulging of protected
student infomiation to DCEH in accordance with the TSA.

3) V. event this Agreement is terminated, AiLV wU use commerciallyreasonable efforts to promptly deliver to the University all data regarding prospective students
applicants and students provided to it or obtained by it in accordance with this Agreement,

t.i Service Standards. AiLV agrees that it will use commercially reasonable
efforts to provide or cause to be provided the Core Services in an ethical, professional
workmadike manner and in all material respects in accordance with this Agreement, the Laws
idenUfied m Section 2.1 and any other applicable Laws and relevant evolving state of the
industry standard.

3. AiLV Responsibilities. '

3.1 AiLV's Responsibility to Operate in Normal Course and Provide Services
not Included in this Agreement Other than the Non-Core Services to be performed by DCEH
AiLV shall remain fully responsible for insuring the performance of aU other fimrtinn^
associated wiA the existing operations of &e University, whether through insriti.tinnn| staffer
a^eements with affiliates or third parties, in compliance with all applicable laws and together
with the Board of Trustees of the University.

3.2 Certain Actions of AiLV. AiLV, in conjunction with the Board of the
Umversity, shall (a) operate the University and provide the Core Services in accordance with the
tenns of this Agreement, and (b) comply in all material respects with all applicable Laws.

3  Payment of Payroll Arrearage. On or before April 5, 2019, AiLV shall loanthe Receiver the amount of One Hundred and Fifty Four Thousand Dollars ($154,000.00) for the

3
{01300962-1)



payment of payroll that is due and owino the facnltv cfow * *t. ti •
The Receiver shall repay the Loan within seven r7^^ • I University (the "Loan").
Receiver receives from the DOE relatin" to Titie IV FundTfo rif
ej^d to all Title IV Funds thar .h. Pnor quarters ^LV shall be
other school related income onagot^vard Fi^ the University as well as any and all

Tl,„. Erd?,d eS,, NI™ Dfc .TC; S c™ (SlJM a?; ™"!
the Receiver has paid or will oav the Landlord Tool, o,... ̂  l ® (563,389.33) for rentthe Receiver has paid or will pay!he Landlord, T'ch Park 6 LLC ^
through and including March 31 2019 The aforemonim ^ ' t® March 11,2019
llllL^ the Receiver sh^ll;^ reiiirinthe Loan that the Receiver .hnll ̂ 13 T ^all be renaid h. r.d...i„„

beiore Apnl 5, 2019 and and the 28"' dav of each mon.u .wlol- 'before Apnl 5, 2019 and and the 28'" day of each monTh^LlVe ?
remains at the premises located at 2350 Corporate Circle Suite 100 H° d°"® " University
shall pay the Receiver the sum of One Hundred nS n!'.®" '"O-"f'tderson, Nevada, AiLVshall pay the Receiver the sum of One Hu^rd and "our

t^prSr' tb^isthe premises

4. Asset Purchase Agreement.

.ge,»
10 ̂ u«i ,nd recive from ihe Receive! any and all documeni^n'^lh! ffepesea and

nie ,V pijw ̂.da SSTSnSrdnSrpe'S"^^^^^ "
shall enter into negotiations with the (mal tn • ♦ penod, AiLV and Receiver
prior to the expirarion Tth: Xe dilfgete petd ^ P-chase agreement Cm")
conditions by which AiLV shall purchase the Business Asset ̂ f tite l ln-^' •?
negotiated between the Parties. University at a price to be

5. Term and Termination.

period of One Hundredttd EfghljTfTsO^day^^ Effectje Date and continue for a
extended by agreement of the PartL^or ihould
expiration oftheTerai whereunon fhp T/»rm .• P"®*" to the
on the Receiver's Motion to Approve Sale ("Motion'^ IHh "m i'
shall remain in effect for the period as long aslT^ded so thit a! v"
Services to its third party contractors and Ail V Qhaii h can transition all Non-Core
other governmental ag^y
sooner and, as a result, neither Party sliail have further obligarion't^tirolen

further liability of obhgafi JnTtolwdroni^ano^^^^^
have not been paid during the period of this Agreement shall remaiit the oSlJarif nT""''

{01300962-1}^



O' Receiver and the University, and its officers trustce^'d^^' t themembers, managers, agents, attorneys and representative fSh
from and against any and ail claims. liability losses damiaes en.f T" ^'■1^")
"to") incurred by any Receiver Indemnified Pany as^sult of rektedw. h this Agreement, inclduing Losses related to an/uncured b each bfAir^ v
obligations under this Agreement- provided that contractal=««« w sow, .0 !te t "■««contractual obligations under the Agreement or (iil DCEH^ niai^- , ! ^ breach of itsis not cured within the applicable cure period! material breach of the TSA which
6. Title IV Funding and Other Governmental Funding.

deposited into a hank ar""m"?n governmental agency shall be
Las Vegas LLC. ihe reee.va. ,1,011 .L: D°' Ihe Art InstituiTofLas veaas I.I.f Th. .^-,11 ' °re neceiver tor llie Amnslituteof
Budget.

7. Confidentiality and Disclosure.

receivingkrvice^2'rartrmS°Slo"s?f"D!^^^^^ n -the other Party ("Receivlno Paiiy"^ m.g Party ) its Confidential Infomiation to

Party's Confidential Information and no Receivino p,J^ .,P^^hI) any of the Disclosing
Confidential Information for any purpose other tlian ° ^ Disclosing Party'sof the Services. NotSstandino fhe fo enot. h^RcstaKi wl;5;r,fr """r«"
employees, accountants, attomeys. financino sources" aoents and oncers, dtrectors.
know such information in connection with the Receivino" PartvW^^'^^"'®"T- *°
under this Agreement; provided that in earli ° ^ ® P®'^'^™2nce of its obltgations
maintained in accordance with Seclioni of this Agreeknt ®hall be
covenanSfolbw?'"'' =""> Covenants of AILV. AiLY represents, warrants and
violate or constiSte a nkTerialtachVf any ^s romSTobligkls'ltiS^^^

{0I300962dl

/P<^



contendere to or have been found euiltv nf n rn'm^ i • t
of funds under the Title IV Proorams or been iudir- n acquisition, use or expenditure
involving funds under the Title IV Programs. ^ determined to have committed fraud

authority to enter into tWs Agreement and ̂ ^03^ theT ^OfPorate power and
thereby. transactions contemplated hereby and

Agreement and^he co^^summatL'^of"he trILVtbnfcontem' performance of this
beendulyauthorizedbyallrequisitecorporateS^^^

and delivered bVAiLV aid (assuming'the 2!e''auThOTi'zatio ̂  Agreement has been duly executed
thereof by AiLV) is a valid and bind^g owtiion of™ and
With its terms. ' enforceable against it in accordance

9. General.

of this Agreement or to exercise any^righ[or'pr!vneaThe^'^°'^T
continuing or ftiture waiver of such term condit^nn .®, ""eundcr will not be construed as aexisting under this Agreement are cumulative to, a;d ttwSve of t"
othenvise available. No waiver of any nrovision nf ik- a remedies
made in writing and executed by the applicable Party giving suihTalvlr "

unenforceable, such provision will be dLmerdele"ed°from'ih' '"valid or
by a valid and enforceable provision which so far as nossihtn . ^11 be replaced
severed provision was intended to achieve and the rLainino^^ 'c"'® objectives as the
continue in full force and effect. ' provisions of this Agreement will

in separate counterparts by the pZties'^lac^irsuch c'm thereto may be executed
an original, but all such counted togeth ^wi . c^^^^^^^^^^^ ''® ''®--d
telecopy, .pdf or other reproduction of this Aareeiry bfeVerreH"t,''™'"'"'- ^
and an executed copy of this Agreement may be delive^L ^ ""e " rac-e Parties,
facsimile or similar instantaneous electronic transmission Hpv* Parties by email,
of or on behalf of such Party can be seen and such pypp r which the signature
valid, binding and effective for all purposes as of the and delivery shall be considered
other Parties agree to execute an ori^I of this i the
other reproduction hereof. facsimile, telecopy or

{01300962-1}



9.4 Governing Law; Jurisdiction and Venue; Waiver of Jurj' Trial.

(whether based oi, conSchSor mhe^^S^) a'riJhTou.Vf"' counterclaims
actions of the Parties hereto in the neaotiation "I® Agreement or the
hereof and thereof, shall be governed by and eon«^ P®'''°™®"ce and enforcement
substantive Usvs of the State of Ohb. ;viLt giv^n^^provision or rule (whether of the State of Ohio or Inv
application of the Laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of Ohio''°

exclusive jurisdiction and venue^of the''u^iterstat« O" fr submits to the
Division, located in Cleveland Ohio or if such cmin ^"""..Northern District, Eastem
federal court sitting in Cleveland Ohio 'in anv Jr "jf^cjurisd'ct'on, in any state or
.1.1. ^ r»
and determined in any such court and herebv evnrpcdv c u i proceedings may be heard
v.... or,™. „„ L ,1. p.rp"«
and any claim that such courts are an inconvenient forum ^?h of it P,5 T
irrevocably consents to the service of process of anv of tha af .• j
i«H «». or p,«™ii„g by Ho millog orcoplo. iboi,of by oTtmS'Zl"' T'
EJbisS'"" ■"" -""" "~sr.r;rd.i;
ANY RIOHT !t Ma?:«ve

or oblig^aLn unto t'hTothS^aEble p'^rt ?'herwise) any right
Any attempted assignment without such consent wiii be void T"®" consent.

£Spict'?u'cSs toThe bS/i^

accordance with this Section 8.6V pecified m a notice given in

{01300962-1}



C)
Mark E. Dottore, Receiver
Dottore Companies, LLC
2344 Canal Road
Cleveland, Ohio 44113
E-Mail: Mark@DottoreCo.com

with copy (Wliicli Sinll nnt ranstitute nn.i.,)...

Liffman Co.. L.P.A.101 West Pi ospect Avenue, Suite 1800
Cleveland, Ohio 44115
E-mail: can@mccarthylebit.com
Attention: Charles A. Nemer, Esq.

(b) if to AiLV, tn-

William A. Turbay
3017 West Charleston Boulevard, Suite 20E
Las Vegas, NY 89102
E-mail: waturbay@gmail.com

^  Attention: William A. Turbay

with copy (which shall nnt rnnstitiite

Howard and Howard
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000
Las Vegas, NV 89169
E mail, gniullins@howardandhoward.com
Attention: Gwen Rutar-Mullins, Esq.

^•7 Inferprefation.

Schedules, shaSedeemedToS^AS^^^^^ Sections orapplicable. or Schedules of or to this Agreement, Z

"including," when used herein"'shah Te detmed''' "include," "includes" and"without limitation." ' ' case to be followed by the words
(c) The word "or" is not e.xclusive.

-N . The words "hereof" j suJ  import when used in this Agreement shall refer to this Aaril"®"'! "
—  particular provision of this Agreement. Agreement as a whole and not to any

{01300962-1} ^
7.



convenience of^lferenceVuiposw (Sy and shalln^oflT T' l°"!j Agreement are forthe meaning or interpretation of this Agreement or any term'or pr^visSreof'""'"

shall include the corresponding mascid^ne'fmfni'ne"''^^' Pronouns used in this Agreement
nouns and pronouns shall include the plural, and vice versa^^

the degree to which a subject rn'mtofting extendrrf d'
mean "if." S"ch word or phrase shall not simply

that is referred to hfrefn^raJf suth°Law^'lf from^to ^gteement orinstrament
supp.emented,including(inthec.eofstatutes)rystrirorco^^^^^^^
are to calendar days. business Dajs are expressly specified, ail references to "days"

Q)

the negotiation^L ex^tLn ofLaw, holding or rule of construln p®~ £ aSitier"'
document will be construed against the party dmfting sucht^em or docu^r"' "

the parties hereto as paTnli^ o^rticiJ^nSnTj^^^®"'"

puT:ose!"Lly, ald'sh^nirSy 25
Agreement or othervvise affect the meaning or inte;pretati;n of Ss Agreer^^^^^^^
other doclment, all feTs'L e££5£umd'toco'® ̂
negotiation, execution and perforaiance of this Agree2ent'£££?r"^''°"'
transactions contemplated hereby shall be the oblioatinn 7. P"'®"'®'""tstimmation of the
fees and expenses. obligation of the respective Party incurring such

or attachments hereto, may be'anLn'Ld oT^difie^f exhibits, appendices, schedules,
by all of the Parties. P®" °n'>' by a writing signed

.pi»nd'i! "«"«""'• •«' ■■■»

{01300962-1}



the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof n •
proposals and other communications, oral or written, with res^^^tLt^TmSrS^^

the day SJd™rl'aSvS executed as of

THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS LLC
by and through Mark E. Dottore. Receiver

mMark E. Doltpre, Receiver

SAVE THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS
LIMITED 'cvjAi

By: Ji/L
William AAurl^ HTN^e:

Title: Manager

Dated: S ' ̂

{01300962-1}
10



G

O

G

MEMORANDUM OF UNDV.RSTANDINO

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (this "MOU'Yis entered into effective as of
the 28 day of March, 2019 (the "Effective Date"1 by and among THE ART INSTITUTE OF
LAS VEGAS, LLC. an Arizona non-profit limited liability company that is registered in the
State of Nevada as The DC Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, by and through MARKE.
DOTTORE, Receiver ("the "University"! and SAVE THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS
VEGAS LIMITED, a Nevada limited liability company, its designee or assignee ("Save Ai Las
Vegas'*).

RECITALS;

Mark E. Dottore has been appointed Receiver of the University by Order
dated January 18, 2019 in Digital Media Solutions, LLC v. South Uniyersity of Ohio, LLC et al
Case No. 1:19-cv-l45 (N.D. Ohio) (the "Litigation"); \

V(HEREAS, the University is an institution of higher education duly authorized by
applicable state and federal authorities to deliver programs of instruction leading to academic
egrees mstiMionally accredited by the AGIOS: Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges

and Schools ( Universitv AccreditQr"h ®

^ asset purchase agreement
n . 2 ̂  Umversity to acquire the Business Assets of University and University desires tosell its Busmess Assets to Save Ai Las Vegas;

IWHEREAS, simultaneously with entering into this MOU, Save Ai Las Vegas shall enter
into^ a Managed Services Agreement (the "MSA");

f  ;.
1.1. Capitalized Terms. Capitalized terms used herein that are hot specifically defined shall

have the meaning set forth in the MSA, or any future amended version of the MSA,
which has been attached as Exhibit A.

Business Assets. The Business Assets will be acquired free and clear of all liens and
encumbrances pursuant to a court order.

1.3. Purchase Price. The Purchase price for the Business Assets in Two Hundred and Fifty
Thousand Dollars ($250,000), which shall be paid in readily available fund by wire
transfer within one (1) day prior to the date the court in the Litigation has scheduled a
hearing on any objection to the sale of the Business Assets tp Save Ai Las Vegas.

{01294730-2}



1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

fikito Closing shall take place on the date the court has granted the Receiver's motion
to seli the Business Assets of the University to Save Ai Las Vegas.

Assumption 6f Tfahilifies, Save Ai Las Vegas shali either assume University's current

S'rtrS ^ leaselgreeZ;\  location. To the extent applicable anv
aS ^ "

Vendor Contracts. To the extent that Save Ai Las Vegas needs any services that are
bemg provided to the University by vendors which Save Ai Las Vegas wishes to
conhnue. then Save AI Las Vegas shall agree to assume and have assigned toTl e
vendor contracts, which shaU be set forth in the schedule attached to the 5a.
^ Univ^sity and Save Ai Las Vegas shall enter into an APA within ninety (90) days
from the date that tins MOU is executed. During the ninety (90) day prior Sve ii^L
Vegas shall perform any due diligence that it deems necessary prior to entering into an

O

1.8. Bin^ :^e temis of this MOU shall be binding upon the parties subject to the Court P)

1.9. Counterparts-This MOU may be executed in one or more counterparts each of which
sha be d^med an original Facsimile or email transmission
shali have the same force and effect as an original counterpart counterpart

and effective

THE ART INSTITUTE OF

LAS VEGAS, LLC

Signature:

Name: Mark E. Dottore, Receiver

Date:

SAVE THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS
VEGAS LIMITED

Signatu:

Name: William A. TofBay, Manage?

Date: S . /4

c

{01294730-2}



Property Owners

Court Documents

Concerning Lease



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 134 Filed: 03/10/19 1 of 4. PagelD #: 3355

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

EASTERN DIVISION

DIGITAL MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC,

Plaintiff,

CASE NO. i:i9-cv-i45

JUDGE DAN AARON POLSTER

MAGISTRATE JUDGE
THOMAS M. PARKER

SOUTH UNIVERSITY OF OHIO, LLC
etal.y

Defendants.

The Receiver's Response to Tech Park 6, LLC's Joinder to Motion of 3601
Sunflower LLC to Vacate the Injunction and Receiver 6rder TDoc. qtI

As the Receiver reported to this Court before the March 8th status hearing {see

Third Supplement to First Receiver Report at 2 [Doc. 120]) and during the March 8th

status hearing, he has a deal in place with a buyer. Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas,

Limited, to acquire the Art Institute of Las Vegas ("Ai Las Vegas"). Ai Las Vegas's

landlord is Intervenor Tech Park 6, LLC ("Tech Park").

Tech Park moved this Court for "an order... compelling the Receiver to elect to

assume or reject the Lease within 30 (thirty) days and in the interim, to pay all Rent

contemplated under the Lease on a per diem basis from the commencement of the

Receivership on January 18, 2019, forward." Tech Park's Joinder to Motion of 3601

Sunflower LLC to Vacate the Injunction and Receiver Order at 2 (Doc. 97) (describing

Tech Park's Motion to Expedite Decision to Assume or Reject Lease [Doc. 59]). Tech

Park also joined 3601 Sunflower, LLC's motion to vacate the Receivership Order. (Doc.

97).

{01294727-2}



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 134 Filed: 03/10/19 2 of 4. PagelD#:3356

On March 7, 2019,1 Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas, Limited's manager spoke

with one of Tech Park's principals. Declaration of William A. Turbay H 6. Save the Art

Institute of Las Vegas, Limited offered Tech Park, assuming Save the Art Institute of Las

Vegas, Limited's deal with the Receiver is approved by this Court, to assume Ai Las

Vegas's lease in full, pay the rent arrearage (excluding interest, penalties, late fees, and

attorney fees) over a 24-month period. Id. H 7. Tech Park responded that Save the Art

Institute of Las Vegas, Limited's interest in assuming the lease was not acceptable. Id. H

8.

"Should the landlord be unwilling to allow Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas,

Limited to assume Ai Las Vegas's lease or, in the alternative, to negotiate a new lease

agreement, then Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas, Limited cannot close any deal with

the Receiver to acquire Ai Las Vegas." Id. H 9.

Currently, 469 students attend Ai Las Vegas.

Tech Park has joined in a motion that seeks to vacate this receivership principally

on the ground that this Court's equitable jurisdiction was not invoked. See (Doc. 97).

But '"he who comes into equity must come with clean hands." Precision Instrument

Mfg. Co. V. Auto. Maint. Mach. Co., 324 U.S. 806, 814 (1945). The Supreme Court has

explained that "[t]his maxim is far more than a mere banality. It is a self-imposed

ordinance that closes the doors of a court of equity to one tainted with inequitableness

or bad faith relative to the matter in which he seeks relief, however improper may have

been the behavior of the defendant." Id. Thus, equitable defenses are only available to

those with clean hands. See United States v. Weintraub, 613 F.2d 612, 619 (6th Cir.

1979).

^ The Receiver only learned of this conversation yesterday, March 9, 2019.
{01294727-2}

2



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 134 Filed: 03/10/19 3 of 4. PagelD #: 3357

Tech Park does not have clean hands. On the one hand, it asks this Court vacate a

federal equity receivership on the ground that this Court did not have equitable

jurisdiction. On the other hand, it has rejected the Receiver and Save the Art Institute of

Las Vegas, Limited's proposed deal to save Ai Las Vegas and provide continued

education to Ai Las Vegas's 469 students. Tech Park's joinder to the motion to vacate

should thus be disregarded by this Court.

Dated: March 10,2019 Respectfully submitted.

Is! Nicholas R. Qleski

Robert T. Glickman (0059579)
Charles A. Nemer (0009261)
Robert R. Kracht (0025574)
Hugh D. Berkson (0063997)
Nicholas R. Oleski (0095808)
McCarthy, Lebit, Crystal & Liffman Co., LPA
101 West Prospect Avenue, Suite 1800
Cleveland, Ohio 44115
(216) 696-1422 - Telephone
(216) 696-1210 - Facsimile
rtg@mccarthvlebit.com

can@mccarthvlebit.com

rrk@mccarthvlebit.com

hdb@mccarthvlebit.com

nro@ mccarthvlebit.com

Special Counsel for the Receiver

{01294727-2}



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 134 Filed: 03/10/19 4of4. PageiD#:3358

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The foregoing was electronically filed this loth day of March, 2019. Notice of this

filing will be sent to all parties by operation of the Court's electronic filing system.

Parties may access this filing through the Court's system.

In addition, copies of the foregoing were sent via regular U.S. mail on this loth

day of March, 2019 to the following:

Cheyanna Jaffke
P.O. Box 2520
Anaheim, CA 92814

/s/ Nicholas R. Oleski

Nicholas R. Oleski (0095808)

{01294727-2}



Order Granting
Emergency Motion

for Art Institute of Las

Vegas Sale



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 45 of 59. PagelD #: 10667

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

EASTERN DIVISION

DIGITAL MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC, CASE NO. I:l9-cv-145

FlaintiH, JUDGE DAN AARON POLSTER

V. MAGISTRATE JUDGE

THOMAS M. PARKER

SOUTH UNIVERSITY OF OHIO,
LLC, e& al,

Defendants.

ORDER GRANTING EMERGENCY MOTION OF MARE E. DOTTORE,
RECEIVER OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, FOR AN
ORDER AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE
ASSETS OF THE ART INSTITUTE OP LAS VEGAS, LLC, FREE AND

CLEAR OP LIENS, ENCUMBRANCES, CLAIMS AND OTHER INTEBESTS
(WITH CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS) AND FOR TRANSFER OF THE

INTERESTS OF UNPAID HOLDERS OP INTERESTS TO THE PROCEEDS
OF THE SALE

This matter having come before the Court on the Motion, (the "Sale Motion")

of Mark B, Dcttore (the "Receiver'*), Receiver of The Art Institute of Las Vegaa

LLC, for an Order Authorizing the sale of substantially all of the assets of The Art

Institute of Las Vegaa, LLC, an Arizona nonprofit limited liability company that is

registered in the State of Nevada as The DC Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC 0F£

ID #04061300 (the "School"), free and clear of all mortgages, pledges, security

interests, liens, encumbrances, claims, charges, and any other interests of any kind

or type whatsoever (the 'Tnterests") (with certain exceptions as hereinafter

provided) and for the transfer the Interests of unpaid holders of Interests to the

Proceeds of the Sale. In the Sale Motion, the Receiver seeks the entry of an Order:

(i) authorizing the sale of all or substantially all of the assets (the "Assets") of the

(Moaas.!}



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 46 of 59. PagelD #: 10668

School to Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited C*Save Las Vegas" or the

"Buyer")» consistent with the terms of an Asset Purchase Agreement (the "APA")

dated Julyl5, 2019; 6i) determining and directing that the sale of the Assets is &ae

and clear of all Interests except for amounts that are required to be paid as part of

the process of approval of the Sale by the United States Department of Education

(the "DOE")Gr the Nevada Department of Employment, Training and

RehahiHtation, Commission of Fostsecondaiy Education (the "DETR") (the

"DOE/DETR Required Amounts"); and (iii) and transferring any unpaid claims of

the holders of Interests and other interest holders in the Assets to the proceeds of

sale; and (iv) granting such other and further relief as is warranted in the

circumstances.

The Court having reviewed the Sale Motion, the Declaration of the Receiver,

and all other pleadings, motions, objections, and other responses (the "Written

Statements") related thereto, and a hearing having been held before this Court on

July , 2019 (the "Sale Hearing"), to consider the proposed sale (the "Sale") of the

Assets pursuant to the terms and conditions of the APA, at which time all parties in

interest were afforded an opportunity to he heard and the ..Court having-weighed

and considered the Written Statements and the oral comments made at the Sale

Hearing by the parties in interest:

rr IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED THAT;

A. All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning

as set forth in the Sale Motion and the APA;

{DOOUtfZ'l)



case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 47 of 59. PagelD#: 10669

3. The relief raquested in this mottou is governed by FED. E. CW. P. 66,
Bnle 66.1(c) end (d) of the Local Enles for the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Ohio (the "Local Kules ), federal
common Uw and the Eeceiver Order;

0. The Interim Eeceiver Order provides,

2.n. The Eeceiver is authorized to negotiate mdorderly sale, transfer, use or assignmrat of an or a poiton
of any of the Property in or outside of the ordu^ roui
of business of the Eeceivership Entiries ^d, for fte
pUeeds thereof, to pay the seemed ̂ d

of the Property, mcluding the Itad
Property... The Eeceiver is authorized to conduct such a!de'om; i-roperty in any n^er vrhich he m ̂ d
faith and reasonable discretion, behevea vnH maanuze
the proceeds received from the sale.

D. The Amended Eeceiver Order provides that the Eeceiver's authority to
negotiate and effect a sale of the assets is subject Paragraphs 13 and
U of the Amended Eeceiver Order. Paragraph 13 affirms that the
regulatory authority of the United States may not be stayed or
constrained and Paragraph 14 afeims the vaUdity of the Federal
Priority Statute, 31 U,S.C. § 3713.

E. Notice of the Sale Morion and the Sale was provided to hundreds of
persons, who the Eeceiver identified as having an interest in the sale
proceeding. Notice was served upon all parties to this lawsuit and
their Uwyers. the federal, state and local taxing authorities, all
secured creditors, unsecured creditors that have demonstrated an
interest in the assets, the Department of Justice, the Department of



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 48 of 59. PagelD#: 10670

Education, the Nevada state education regulators, the Nevada

Attorney General, and all regulatory and accrediting agencies. The list

of persona served through the Court is a matter of record; the

additional parties served is contained in a certificate of service filed

with the Court.

F. Proper, timely, adequate and sufBcient notice of the Sale Motion, the

Sale Hearing and the proposed Sale has been provided to all interested

parties.

G. Objections were filed by -- ■■ .

H. This Court has the authority to approve a Sale of the Assets &ee and

clear of all Interests (except for the ODE/DETB Bequked Amounts),

and to transfer all Interests whatsoever to the proceeds derived from

the respective sales of the Assets.

I. liens reported against the Assets are as stated in the Sale Motion;

J. The DOE and DETB have an interest in the Assets in the amount that

is required to be paid prior to the change of ownership to Save Las

Vegas;

K. Those other holders of Interests who did not object to the Sale Motion

axe deemed to have consented to the Sale. Those holders of Interests

who did object, if any, are adequately protected by having their

Interests, if any, attach to the proceeds of Sale;

{goon<u.i)



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 49 of 59. Page!D#: 10671

L, Prior to the appointment of the Receiver, the School advertised itself as

for sale to a willing buyer. The School was one of the Excluded

Campuses; that is, it was not selected for acquisition by Education

Principle Foundation, The Arts Institute International, LLC or the

Dream Center South University, LLC. Immediately after his

appointment, the Receiver was approached by Save Las Vegas and

another group who were seriously interested in acquiring the School.

M. Since his appointment in this case, the Receiver has marketed all of

the Assets in a manner that was designed to attract the maximum

number of individuals and groups with an interest in purchasing one

or multiple campuses. Further, this case has been the subject of

extensive press coverage. Through the press coverage and through

earlier efforts to sell the institution, the Receiver's interest in a sale

transaction and its financial situation were widely known among

educators, educational institutions and investors in educational

institutionB and in excess of twenty prospective buyers have contacted

the Receiver about the possibility of purchasing one or. more campuses

of the Receivership Entities;

N, The APA submitted by Buyer is the highest and best offer received &r

the Assets. It represents the highest in terms of money offered for the

Assets and also includes the opportunity to continue the institution

and honor the students' wishes to complete their programs of study.

(amucM)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 50 of 59. PagelD #: 10672

0.

P,

The APA offers the School's creditors the most money and the Schoors

students an uninterrupted education. Principals of Buyer have

demonstrated postaecondaiy education experience and knowledge and

are more likely than other prospective purchasers to be successful in

obtaining approvals from regulatory authorities which are required to

complete the sale transaction. Buyer also seeks to close at the earliest

possible time and demonstrates the frnancial wherewithal to do so. A

Sale to Buyer is consistent with good business judgment and is

approved by this Court;

If the Assets are not sold to Buyer at this time, they will be

substantially devalued or the sale will fail and the School will close.

The Assets are more valuable when sold as a "going concern," that is,

as an educational institution. The sale to Buyer will also benefit the

Schoors students, faculty and the community as the school will remain

open. In order to sdl the Assets as a continuing educational enterprise

in good standing, the Seller must complete its sale transaction

immediately, as it cannot continue to operate as an educational

institution even for a short time without financial assistance and is in

danger of losing both its accreditation and its ability to participate in

federal student aid programs;

A reasonable opportunity to object or be heard with respect to the Sale

Motion and the relief requested herein has been afforded to all

{0QeS4U.l)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 51 of 59. PagelD #: 10673

interested persons and entities, including but not limited to, all parties

and intervenors to this action, all secured lenders, all unsecured

creditors who have requested that notices he sent to them. Attorney

General of the State of Nevada, all full time faculty members, all of the

Schoors educational accrediting agencies, and other parties that the

Heceiver believes would have an interest in the Sale or who have

requestied that they be notified of any sale;

Q,. The Receiver has demonstrated that approval of the Sale Motion and

consummation of the Sale to the Buyer at this time is in the beat

interests of the School, its creditors and its students. The Receiver has

advanced good and sufficient business justification supporting the sale

of the Assets to the Buyer as set forth in the Sale Motion and at the

Sale Hearing, and it is a reasonable exercise of the Receiver's business

judgment to consummate a sale of the Assets on the terms and

conditioDa set forth in the APA, and to execute, deliver and perform its

obligations thereunder. Sound business judgment indudes, but is not

limited to, the fact that (i) there is. a risk of immediate and irreparable

loss of value of the Assets if the Sale is not consummated, (ii) there is

a substantial risk of loss of accreditation fiom the Accrediting Counsel

for Independent Colleges and Schools CACIGS") and American

Culinary Federation Education Foundation's Accrediting CommlssiQn

("ACFEFAG"), and loss of eligibility to participate in federal student

[000«4St>X)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 52of 59. Page!D#: 10674

aid progranis (iii) the School cannot continue as an educational

institution for even a short time without financial assistance, (iv) if the

School ceases to operate as an educational institution, its students wiU

be unable to complete their programs of study, and (v) the

consummation of the transaction contemplated under the APA

presents the hest opportunity to realize the value of the Assets to avoid

further decline and devaluation thereof; (vi) the sale is at arm's length;

and (vii) the Beceiver has exercised reasonable diligence and good faith

judgment;

R. The consideration to be paid by the Buyer for the Assets constitutes

adequate and fair value for the Assets and the terms and conditions of

the APA axe fair and reasonable;

S. The Receiver is authorized and directed to negotiate, execute and

deliver ell documents necessary to consummate the Sale with the

Buyer on the seme general terms and conditions as the APA with such

changes as the Receiver, in his sole discretion, deems necessary or

desirable, and is fiirther authorized to execute other ancillary

agreements and other documents to sell the Assets and to complete the

Sale of the Assets without further order of this Court firee and clear of

all Interests (except for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts), as long as

the terms and conditions of the APA and other documents are not

materially worse, in the aggregate, to the School, or materially worse

(WKBUSM) g



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#:390-i Filed; 07/15/19 53 of 59. Page!D #: 10675

with respect to the intereata of individual secured creditors, than the

terms and conditiotis contained m the APA;

T. The School has good title to the Assets, and accordingly the sale of

such Assets to the Buyer will be a legal, valid and effective sale of the

Assets;

U. The terms and conditions of the APA were negotiated, proposed and

entered into in good faith, from arm's length bargaining positions by

the Eeceiver and the Buyer and constitute the highest or othsrwiae

best offer for the Assets after a period in which third parties had ample

opportunity to seeh information and enter into discussions or

negotiations with the Beceiver concerning a sale of the Assets. The

Buyer is entitled to the protections of a good faith purchaser with

respect to the Sale approved hereby;

V. The APA b conditioned upon several events, which include (i) all of the

terms and conditions of the sale must be approved by the Court

through an Order of Sale and the Order of Sale must be final and not

appealable;..(u) clear of. all.Intereata (except

for the DOE/DETR Eequired Amounts); and (iii) obtaining necessary

approvals ffom the Governing Authorities and Educational Agencies

(as defined in the APA). The Buyer will not consummate the

transactions contemplated in the APA, thus adversely affecting the

School, its creditors and its students, if the sale of the Assets to the

pMlUKM)



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 54of 59. PagelD#: 10676

Buyer is not free and dear of all Interests, or if the Buyer would, or in

the future could, be liable for any of the Interests (except for the

DOE/DETB Required Amounts);

W. The Receiver does not have any interest in Buyer or any party

affiliated with Buyer;

X. The Sale was non-collusive, fair and reasonable and conducted in good

faith.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED

THAT:

1. The Sale of the Assets is approved and authorized on terms consistent

with those in the APA which is attached to the Sale Motion and made a part hereof;

2. Any objections to the Sale Motion or the relief requested therein that

have not been withdrawn, waived or settled, and aU reservations of rights included

therein, are overruled on the merits;

3. The APA is hereby approved and the Receiver is hereby authorized and

empowered to fully perform thereunder and to consummate the sale as

contemplated under the APA on the same general terms and conditions as the APA.

To the extent that changes are needed to consummate the sals as contemplated

under the APA, the Receiver, in his sole discretion and without further order of this

Court, is authorized to execute such additional instruments and documents that

may be reasonably necessary or desirable to implement the APA and to take all

further actions as may reasonably be requested by the Buyer for the purpose of

(D00mi2.t) 10



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 55 of 59. PagelD #: 10677

selling, assigning, transferring, granting, conveying and conferring to the Buyer, or

reducing to the Buyer's possession, any or all of the Assets free and clear of all

Interests;

4. As of the closing of the Sale of the Assets, the sale of the Assets to the

Buyer will be a legal, valid, enforceable, and effective sale of the Assets, and will

vest the Buyer with all right, title, and interest in the Assets free and clear of all

Interests (except for the DOE/DETE Required Amounts);

6. Except as may be expressly permitted by the contemplated APA, all

persona and entities holding Hens or interests, including the Secured Claimants, are

hereby barred from asserting such liens or interests against the Buyer, its

successors or assigns, or the Assets;

6. Proper, timely, adequate and sufficient notice of the proposed Sale has

been provided by the Receiver to all relevant parties, and no other or further notice

is required;

7. The foregoing notwithstanding, the provision of this Order authorizing

the Sale of the Assets free and clear of all Interests (except for the DOE/DETR

Required Amounts) shall be self-executing, and notwithstanding the failure of the

Receiver, the Buyer or any other party to execute, file or obtain releases, discharges,

termination statements, aasignmenta, consents or other instruments to effectuate,

consummate and/or implement the provisions hereof or the contsxnplated APA with

respect to the Sale of the Assets, all liens, claims, encumbrances and interests on

(OOOUMM)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 56 of 59. PagelD #: 10678

such Assets shall be deemed released and shall attach to the proceeds of the Sale

except for the DOE/DETK Eequired Amounts;

8. This Order shall be binding upon and govern the acts of all entities,

including vnthout limitation, all filing agents, filing officers, title agents, title

companies, recorders of mortgages, recorders of deeds, registrars of deeds,

administrative agencies, governmental departments, secretaries of state, federal,

state and local officials, and all other persons or entities who may be required by

operation of law, the duties of their office or contract to accept, file, register or

otherwise record or release any documents or instruments, or who may be required

to report to or insure title or state of title in or to any of the Assets;

9. From and after entry of this Order, neither the School nor any creditor

or other party in interest shall take or cause to he taken any action that would

interfere with the sale of the Assets to the Buyer in accordance with the terms of

tbis Order;

10. From and after entry of this Order, no creditor or other party in

interest shall assert any claims or take any legal or other actions relating to the

Assets to be sold to Buyer, before the closing of the Sale against Buyer, its

principals or the Assets;

11. The Receiver is authorized to execute such other documents as are

necessary or desirable to implement this Order;

12. This Court shall retain jurisdiction (i) to enforce and implement the

terms and provisions of the contemplated APA and all amendments thereto, any

eoooziwi.1 J
12



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 57 of 59. PagelD #: 10679

waivers and consents thereunder and any other agreements executed in connection

therewith, (li) to resolve any disputes arising under or related to the AFA, except as

otherwiae provided therein, and (iii) to interpret, implement and enforce the

provisions of this Order.

13. The Objection of (the *XXX Objection") filed by

("XX3C') is hereby resolved as follows;

14 Pursuant to Fed. E. Civ.E. 54(B), this Order is a final Order and there

is no just reason for delay.

rris SO OEDERED.

Date; ■

MAGISTRATE JUDGE THOMAS M,
PARKER

JUDGE DAN AARON POLSTER

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ MarvK. Whitmer
Mary K. Whitm'er (0018213)
James W. Ehrman (0011006)
Robert M. Stefancin (0047184)
Whttmsr & Ehrman LLC

2344 Canal Road, Suite 401
Cleveland, Ohio 44113-2535
Telephone: (216) 771-5066
Email: m1cw'@Weadvocate.net

Attorney for Mark E, Dotioret Eeceiver
4S33-462a-1«S2,v.1

HMouma) IS



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 58 of 59. Page!D#: 10680

EXHmrrs

Biiver'3 ClertiiBeate from the Nevafla Swretarv ofState j.  - - . . I
\

i

4840.1709-0718, V.1 |
1
t
I;

(ttxnaMiM) 40
SMIVShoOM



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 59 of 59. PagelD#: 10681

ARY of ST/iXp

CERTIFICATE OF EXISTENCE

WITH STATUS IN GOOD STANDING

I, Barbara K. Cegavske, the duly elected and qualified Nevada Secretary of State, do hereby
certify that I am, by the laws ofsaid State,tlie custodian ofthe records relating to filings by
corporations, non-profit corporations, coqjoration soles, limited-liability companies, limited
partnerships, limited-liability partnerships and business trusts pursuant to Title Tofthe Nevada
Revised Statutes which are either presently in a status of good standing or were in good standing
for a time period subsequent of 1976 and am the proper officer to execute this certificate.

I further certify that the records of the Nevada Secretary of State, at the date ofthis certificate,
evidence, SAVE THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS LIMITED, as a limited liability
company duly organized under the laws of Nevada and existing under and by virtue ofthe laws
ofthe Stats ofNevada since January 25,2019, and is in good standing in this state,

Mm

Certified By; Paul Reyee
Certificate Number: C20190710-1431

IN "WTTNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the Great Seal of State, at my
office on July 10,2019.

Barbara K. Cegavske

Secretary of State



Limited Objection
fiied by CPE



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 396 Filed: 07/23/19 lof7. PagelD#: 10706

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

EASTERN DIVISION

DIGITAL MEDIA SOLUTIONS,
LLC,

Plaintiff,

V.

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY OF
OHIO, LLC, et al,

Defendant(s).

Case No. l:19-cv-145

Judge: Dan Aaron Roister

THE STATE OF NEVADA, COMMISSION ON POSTSECONDARY

EDUCATION'S GOOD FAITH LIMITED OBJECTION TO THE
RECEIVER'S SALE OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS. LLC

Comes now, the State of Nevada, Commission on Postsecondary Education

("Commission"), through its attorney of record, State of Nevada Attorney General

AARON FORD, through his Deputy, Deputy Attorney General Robert A.

Whitney, and hereby files its Good Faith Limited Objection to the Receiver's Sale

of the Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC ("Objection").

L

FACTS

1. On July 15, 2019, Receiver Mark Dottore filed his Emergency Motion for

an Order Authorizing the Sale of Substantially all of the Assets of the Art



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 396 Filed: 07/23/19 2 of 7. PagelD#: 10707

Institute of Las Vegas LLC, Free and Clear of All Liens, Encumbrances,

Claims and other Interests (with Certain Exceptions) and for Transfer of the

Interests of Unpaid Holders of Interests to the Proceeds of the Sale

("Emergency Motion")- ECF # 390.

2. An Asset Purchase Agreement ("APA") was filed as an attachment to the

Emergency Motion.

3. Page 13 of the Emergency Motion provided for the filing of objections to

the sale of the Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC.

4. Mark Dottore (hereinafter "Receiver"), filed his Motion for an Order

Expediting Consideration of and Shortening the Notice and Objection

Periods for the Emergency Motion ("Motion for Order") on July 15, 2019.

ECF #391.

5. The Court granted Receiver's Motion for Order on July 16, 2019. ECF #

392.

6. The Court's Order (ECF # 392) allowed for good faith objections to

Receiver's Emergency Motion to be filed on or before July 23, 2019, 5:00

p.m.

7. The Commission is the designated State Approving Agency ("SAA") for

purposes of assuming responsibilities delegated under 38 U.S.C. chapter 36,



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 396 Filed: 07/23/19 3 of 7. PagelD #: 10708

which includes approving courses of education for veterans. See 38 CFR §

21.4150; NAC 394.375.

II.

OBJECTION

The Commission has a limited objection to the sale of the Art Institute

of Las Vegas, LLC, because it appears that the parties to the APA have agreed to

limit liabilities so that there may be no actual party liable for possible violations of

Nevada Revise Statute ("NRS")/ Nevada Administrative Code ("NAC") Chapter

394 if the violations occurred prior to April 1, 2019 after the Art Institute of Las

Vegas, LLC is sold and the receivership in this case ends. In particular. Section

2.2 and 5.3 of the APA divides up the liabilities of the Buyer and Seller, and make

Seller responsible for liabilities prior to April 1, 2019. The Seller, pursuant to the

APA, pages one and Section 3.1 page 14 apparently is the Art Institute of Las

Vegas, LLC.

Once the sale of the Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC is completed it is the

Commission's understanding that the receivership will cease to exist soon after the

sale, along with Seller the Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC. If that happens there

apparently would be no actual party liable for actions by the Art Institute of Las

Vegas, LLC, that occurred prior to April 1, 2019, which could have violated

NRS/NAC Chapter 394, as the Art institute of Las Vegas, LLC, would no longer



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 396 Filed; 07/23/19 4 of 7. PagelD #: 10709

exist, and as the APA limits the purchaser's liability to actions that occurred after

April 1, 2019. Pursuant to NRS 394.520(1) students have until either one year

after the last date of the student's last date of attendance or the date on which the

particular damage occurred (whichever is later) to file a complaint with the

Commission's Administrator if a student is claiming he or she was damaged as a

result of a licensed postsecondary educational institution's actions that violated

NRS 394.383-NRS 394.560 or NAG Chapter 394.300-394.685.

It is possible that the Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC committed a violation

of NRS 394.383-NRS 394.560 or NAC Chapter 394.300-394.685 and caused one

of its students or former students damage. If this indeed turns out to be the case

and the violation that caused the student or former student damage occurred prior

to April 1, 2019 then there apparently would be no way to address the violation

after the Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, was sold and the receivership ended.

As noted above, the Commission is the SAA for the purpose of approving

courses for veterans. Additionally, pursuant to 38 CFR § 21.4209(f), records and

accounts must be kept by a school/institution approved to teach veteran approved

courses for at least three years following the end of the enrollment period. Another

duty of the Commission is that it performs audits of school records of institutions

with approved to teach courses for veterans, and during the audits the Commission

would look for errors or mistakes, such as overpayments.



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 396 Filed: 07/23/19 5 of 7. PagelD #: 10710

Pursuant to 38 CFR § 21.4009(f), a school that has been approved to teach

courses for veteran's would not be relieved of liability in certain circumstances.

Thus, it is conceivable that the Commission could be auditing records of student

veterans in possession of Buyer institution and find an error or mistake by the Art

Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, which occurred prior to April 1, 2019. However, as

noted above, the APA purports to limit liability of the Buyer institution, and it

appears that liability of the Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, may end when the

receivership ends. Such a lack of liability could conceivably result in the

Commission being required to suspend the Buyer institution pursuant to 38 CFR §

21.4259.

///

///

///



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 396 Filed: 07/23/19 6 of 7. PagelD #: 10711

The Commission does not want to hold up the sale of the Art Institute of Las

Vegas LLC, but it objects to any provision in the APA that would in fact prevent

any recovery pursuant to NRS 394.520 for violations of NRS 394.383-NRS

394.560 or NAC Chapter 394.300-394.685, or for any recovery for potential

violations of 38 CFR § 21.4009(f) if the Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, was sold

and the receivership subsequently ended.

Dated: July 23, 2019.

AARON FORD

Attorney General

By: /s/ Robert A. Whitnev
ROBERT A. WHITNEY

Deputy Attorney General
Nevada Bar No. 8726

Office of Nevada Attorney General
555 East Washington Ave., Ste. 3900
Las Vegas, NV 89101
(702) 483-3104

rwhitnev@ag.nv.gov

Attorney for State of Nevada,
Commission on Postsecondary
Education

6



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 396 Filed: 07/23/19 7 of 7. PagelD #: 10712

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that on this 23''^ day of

July, 2019 a copy of the foregoing THE STATE OF NEVADA,

COMMISSION ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION'S GOOD FAITH

LIMITED OBJECTION TO THE RECEIVER'S SALE OF THE ART

INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC was filed electronically. Notice of

this filing will be sent by operation of the Court's electronic filing

system to all parties indicated on the electronic filing receipt.

Parties may access this filing through the Court's system.

Is/ Marilyn Millam

An employee of the Office of the
Nevada Attorney General



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 lof24. PagelD#: 10553

r

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

EASTERN DIVISION

DIGITAL MEDIA SOLUTIONS,
LLC,

Plaintiff,

V.

SOUTHERN UNIVERSITY OF
OHIO, LLC, et al,

Defendant(s).

Case No. l:19-cv-145

Judge: Dan Aaron Bolster

MOTION FOR INTERVENTION AND THE T.TMTTP.n

LIFTING OF RECEIVERSIP STAY

Comes now, the State of Nevada, Commission on

Postsecondary Education ("Commission"), through its attorney of

record, State of Nevada Attorney General AARON FORD, through

Ills Deputy, Deputy Attorney General Robert A. Whitney, and

hereby files its Motion for Intervention and the Limited T.ifting of

Receivership Stay. The Commission's Motion is based on Local

Rule 7.1, on Federal Rule of Civil Procedure ("FRCP") 24(b)(2) and

on and the Point and Authorities below.



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 2 of 24. PagelD #: 10554

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I.

FACTS

1. The Art Institute of Las Vegas ("Art Institute") is a

postsecondary educational institution licensed by the

Commission.

2. The Art Institute had been Ucensed by the Commission since

1985, but at this time has failed to renew its license to

operate, as its application for renewal was due June 4, 2019.

Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute C'NRS") 394.460(7),

hcensed postsecondary educational institutions must submit

an application for license renewal at least sixty (60) days

before license expiration. Recently the Art Institute

contacted the Commission about renewing its license and

requested an extension of time to renew its license. See

Exhibit 1.

3. On January 18, 2019, this Court signed an Order Appointing

Receiver ("Order" or "Order Appointing Receiver"; Document

No. 8) which encompassed the Art Institute, as the Art



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 3 of 24. PagelD #: 10555

Institute is owned by Dream Center Educational Holdings,

LLC.

4. Paragraph 10 on page 12 of the Court's Order states:

All creditors, claimants, bodies politic, parties in
interest and their respective attorneys, servants, agents
and employees, and all other persons, firms and
corporations be, and they hereby are, jointly and
severally, enjoined and stayed from commencing or
continuing any action at law or suit or proceeding in
equity to foreclose any lien or enforce any claim against
the Property, or its Books and Records or Property, or
against the Receiver in any court. The pai'ties are
further stayed from executing or issuing or causing the
execution or issuance out of any court of any writ,
process, summons, attachment, subpoena, replevin,
execution, or other process for the purpose of
impounding or taking possession or interfering with, or
enforcing any claim or hen upon the Property owned by
or in possession of the Receivership Entities, or the
Receiver, and from doing any act or thing whatsoever to
interfere with the Receiver in the discharge of his
duties in this proceedings or with the exclusive
jurisdiction of this Court over the Property, its Books
and Records and Property and the said Receiver.

Thus, it appears that this Court's stay would need to be lifted for

the Commission to take any action against the Art Institute.

5. Upon information and belief, the Art Institute has not been paying

its staff, including its instructors, their full salary since it almost

paid full salary owed to staff on April 12, 2019. See Exhibit 1.



(■

Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 4 of 24. PagelD #: 10556

6. The Art Institute failed to pay its quarterly fees to the

Commission pursuant to NRS 394.540 for new enrollments for the

past two academic quarters. Fees for the October 1, 2018 -

December 31, 2018 and the January 1, 2019 - March 31, 2019

quarter were due to the Commission no later than 15 days after

the end of the respective quarters. According to enrollment data

provided to the Commission by the Art Institute, 19 student who

started in the October-December 2018 quarter are still enrolled at

the Art Institute, and 23 students who originally started in the

January-March 2019 quarter are still enrolled at the Ait Institute.

See Exhibit 1.

7. Services to Art Institute students have diminished since the

transition of the school to the Receiver. This includes the loss of

E-textbook and student disability accommodations provided by the

Office of Disability Support Services, and Career Services. See

Exhibit 1.

8. The Art Institute's Financial Aid staff possess limited ability to

manage its student ledger, as staff was unable to provide

documentation requested to resolve student complaints in



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 5 of 24. Page!D#: 10557

response to the Commission Administrator's request for

information. See Exhibit 1.

9. A number of current and former Art Institute students have filed

complaints concerning incurring debt with the Veteran's

Administration ("VA") as a result of the Art Institute's inaction or

failure to process adjustments and student refunds in a timely

manner, which is a violation of NRS 394.449. See Exhibits 1 and

2. These facts appear to demonstrate an apparent deficiency in

administrative capacity at the Art Institute.

II.

ARGUMENT

Out of an abundance of caution the Commission has filed a motion

to intervene and a motion for this Court to lift the stay in its Order'

Appointing Receiver for the limited purpose of allowing the Commission

to suspend the Art Institute s ability to enroll new students pursuant to

Nevada Administrative Code ("NAC") 394.670(l)(a) and, if the

violations alleged by the Commission Administrator are not resolved to

the Commission Administrator's satisfaction within 30 days after

suspension of enrollment, other possible action such as fining the Art



(

Case. 1.19-CV-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 6of 24. PagelD#: 10558

Institute or revoking its license, or a combination of those actions. The

Art Institute would have the right to challenge such action at a hearing

if requested pursuant to NRS 394.510(3).

Although the Sixth Circuit has not explicitly articulated a test for

determining if a receivership stay should be lifted, it appears that Sixth

Ciicuit Courts follow the standards for the lifting of receivership stays

in the Wencke cases (SEC v. Wencke, 622 F.2d 1363 (9th Cir.1980) (

"Wendte I") and SEC v. Wencke, 742 F.2d 1230 (9th Cir.1984) ('Wen/ee

11" )). See S.E.C. v. One Equity Corp., No. 2;08-CV-667, 2010 WL

4878993, at *6 (S.D. Ohio Nov. 23, 2010); Huntinglon Nat'l Bank v.

Saint Catharine Coll., Inc., No. 3:16-CV-465-DJH, 2017 WL 6347971, at

*6 (W.D. Ky. Dec. 12, 2017).

With respect to whether a stay in a receivership should be lifted,

the three part test stated by the Wencke Court is:

(1) whether refusing to lift the stay genuinely preserves the
status quo or whether the moving party will suffer
substantial injury if not permitted to proceed; (2) the time in
the course of the receivership at which the motion for relief
from the stay is made; and (3) the merit of the moving
party's underl3dng claim. In reviewing the district court's
application of this test and ultimate decision, we apply an
abuse of discretion standard

S.E.C. V. Wencke, 742 F.2d 1230, 1231 (9th Cir. 1984).

6



r

(

Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 7 of 24. PagelD #: 10559

With respect to the first Wencke factor, whether a refusal to lift

the stay would genuinely preserve the status quo, or whether the

moving party would suffer substantial injury if not permitted to

proceed, the Court balances the interests in preserving the receivership

estate with the interests of the movants. Hunlington Nat'I Bank v.

Saint Catharine Coll., Inc., No. 3:16-CV-465-DJH, 2017 WL 6347971, at

*6 (W.D. Ky. Dec. 12, 2017). S.E.C. v. Stanford Infl. Bank Ltd., 424

Fed.Appx. 338, 341 (5th Cir. 2012). It has been recognized in non-

receivership cases that States have a legitimate interest in enforcing

their laws. Maine v. Taylor, 477 U.S. 131, 137, 106 S. Ct. 2440, 2446,

91 L. Ed. 2d 110 (1986); See Younger v. Harris, 401 U.S. 37, 44, 91 S.

Ct. 746, 750, 27 L. Ed. 2d 669 (1971).

In the present case the State of Nevada will suffer substantial

injury if it is not permitted to lift the stay put in place by the Court's

Order Appointing Receiver for the limited purpose of following NAC

394.670. With the current situation at the Art Institute, Nevada

residents who enroll at the Art Institute face the real prospect of

beginning their education at that institution only to have the Ait

Institute cease its operations, as it is apparent the Art Institute cannot



r

c

Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 8 of 24. PagelD #: 10560

meet its various legal obligations, ranging from paying mandatory fees

to the Commission in connection with licensing and operation, to failing

to pay staff salaries, including instructor salaries. If the Art Institute

closes and teach outs cannot be arranged then students wiU have paid

their money and started to take courses that will have led to no

educational credentials of any kind.

Additionally, pursuant to NRS 394.480(2), postsecondary

educational institutions licensed in Nevada are required to file a surety

bond with the Commission of at least $10,000.00 in the event that

students enrolled at the postsecondary educational institution suffer

damages as a result of a violation of NRS 394.383 to 394.560. inclusive.

The surety bond hold by the Art Institute pursuant to NRS

394.480(2) was cancelled in January 2019. See Exhibit 3. Therefore,

the Account for Student Indemnification established by NRS 394.553

would have to bo used to indemnify students if the Art Institute were to

close, NRS 394.553 states in relevant part:

NRS 394.553 Account for Student Indemnification.
1. The Account for Student Indemnification is hereby
created in the State General Fund. The existence of the

Account does not create a right in any person to receive
money from the Account. The Administrator shall

8



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 9 of 24. PagelD #: 10561

administer the Account in accordance with regulations
adopted by the Commission.
2. Except as otherwise limited by subsection 3, the money
in the Account may be used to indemnify any student or
enrollee who has suffered damage as a result of:
(a) The discontinuance of operation of a postsecondary
educational institution licensed in this state; or
(b) The violation by such an institution of any provision of
NRS 394.383 to 394.560. inclusive, or the regulations
adopted pursuant thereto. .. .

It is estimated that if the Art Institute were to close and all

students currently enrolled at the Ai't Institute made a claim for the

amount of tuition for one year they had paid, the Account for Student

Indemnification would be required to pay one million one hundred

seventy-seven thousand four-hundred eighty-eight dollars

($1,177,488.00) for V.A. students and three hundred fifty-one thousand

and eight hundred sixty one dollars ($351,861.00) for non-V.A. students.

See Exhibit 1.

Although there is an interest in preserving the status quo of the

receivership, such as perhaps allowing the possible sale of the Art

Institute, with the Art Institute's failure to comply with parts of NRS

Chapter 394, with the indicators that the Art Institute is not

financially sound and capable of fulfilling commitments to students,

^  such as the failure to pay its teaching staff its salary, failure to pay



r

I

Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 10 of 24. PagelD#: 10562

mandatory fees to the Commission, the reduction in student services,

and apparent failure to provide required student refunds, the State of

Nevada and its residents will suffer substantial injury if not permitted

to prohibit the Art Institute from enrolling new students, as the Art

Institute's ability to serve future students and its current students and

provide them with quality education appears impaired.

The Art Institute appears to be heading towards closure, thus

resulting in the State of Nevada paying from its Account for Student

Indemnification students harmed by the Art Institute's closure.

Therefore, in balancing leaving the stay in place in order to preserve the

status quo against the harm the State of Nevada will suffer if the stay

is not lifted, it appears that the first factor, that the State of Nevada

will suffer substantial injury if not allowed to proceed, favors the State

of Nevada and the limited removal of the stay.

With respect to the second Wencke factor, the time in the course of

the receivership at which the motion for rehef from the stay is made,

this factor seems to favor leaving the stay in place.

"Timing in a receivership process is fact specific, based on the

number of entities, the complexity of the scheme, and any number of

10



r

(

Case. l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 11 of 24. PagelD #: 10563

other factors." S.RC. v. Stanford Int'l Bank Ltd., 424 F. App'x 338, 341

(5th Cir. 2011). Such factors courts appear to consider with respect to

the second Wencke factor include the length of time a stay had been in

existence, along with whether the stay is in essence still necessary. See

742 F.2d at 1231-32; See S.E.C. v. Universal Fin., 760 F.2d 1034, 1039

(9th Cir. 1985). For example, courts have considered, in deciding if

stays should be lifted, whether important facts were still coming to light

in a receivership, and whether or not the receiver had time to become

famihar with the subject of the receivership. 760 F.2d at 1039.

In the present case, although the receivership has only been in

existence since January 2019, the purpose of the receivership appears

to have been substantially completed, but not with respect to the Art

Institute. In fact, the Court signed an Order (ECF No. 335) terminating

the receivership on May 31, 2019. However, the Receiver, in response

to the Court's Order (ECF #335), filed ECF #349, Proposed Plan to

Modify and Streamline the Receivership ("Proposed Plan"), in which the

Receiver asked the Court to continue the receivership and allow him to

continue to operate the Art Institute and another* entity. Some of the

stated purposes listed by the Receiver in his Proposed Plan included

11



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 12 of 24. PagelD#: 10564

responding to "governmental investigations and attempt to fulfill

governmental regulatory requirements," (ECF # 349, page 2) and

attempting to maintain the Art Institute's accreditation and licensure.

Additionally, the Receiver noted that the receivership needed cash

advances in order to pay outstanding administrative obligations, such

as payroll, landlord and vendor claims, and so there was a need "to

continue to sell, transition or liquidate assets . . " (ECF # 349, page

4) so this was another reason for the receivership to continue. Thus,

there appear to be stated reasons for continuing the receivership,

although in reality the stated reasons for maintaining the receivership

may not be fulfilled.

The third WeiicJze factor is the merit of the moving party's

underlying claim. In this matter the Commission's claim has

substantial merit. The Commission is the wState of Nevada agency

charged with hcensing postsecondary educational institutions (NRS

394.415) and estabhshing minimum criteria for "quality of education,

ethical and business practices, health and safety, and fiscal

responsibility . . ." that must be met by licensed postsecondary

educational institutions. See NRS 394.421(l)(a).

12



f

Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 13 of 24. PagelD #: 10565

Additionally, the Commission sen'es as the State enforcement

agency with respect to postsecondary educational institutions pursuant

to MRS 394.510, and may revoke postsecondary educational institution

licenses to operate if the postsecondary educational institution violates

"the provisions of MRS 394.383 to 394.560. inclusive, or regulations

adopted pursuant to those sections " NRS 394.510(1). Finally, NRS

394.445(1) states that "[a] postsecondary educational institution.

[m]ust be financially sound and capable of fulfilling its commitments to

students."

With respect to the Commission's role as an enforcement agency

for the State of Nevada, the purpose of NRS Chapter 394, which the

Commission administers, is a helpful guide for the Commission's role as

a State of Nevada enforcement agency.

NRS 394.125 states in relevant part that:

It is the purpose of this chapter to provide for the protection,
education and welfare of the residents of the State of
Nevada, its educational, vocational and professional
institutions, and its students, by:

1. Establishing minimum standards concerning quality of
education, ethical and business practices, health and safety,
and fiscal responsibility, to pi'otect against substandard,
transient, unethical, deceptive or fraudulent institutions and
practices;

13



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 14of 24. PagelD#: 10566

(

(

6. Providing for the preservation of essential academic
records; and
7, Providing certain rights and remedies to the consuming
public and the Commission and the Board necessary to
effectuate the purposes of this chapter.

By seeking to lift the stay imposed by this Court in its Order

Appointing Receiver for limited purposes so that the Commission can

suspend the continued enrollment of students at the Art Institute and

possibly take further action, the Commission is "attempting to

"implement the . , . statutory purpose of protecting the public interest"

(In re Lusldn's, Inc., 213 B.R. 107, 111 (D. Md. 1997) (Internal

quotations omitted), and enforcing minimum standards concerning the

quality of education in Nevada, as the Ail Institute does not appear to

be financially sound, or capable of fulfilling its commitment to students.

In order for the Commission to fulfill its purpose of protecting

Nevada students against substandard practices and ensuring the

quality of education for Nevada residents, it is imperative that the

Commission be allowed to take action against the Ail Institute by

suspending further enrollments of students at that institution, as the

current situation at the Ail Institute is one where new students should

14



r

i

Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 15 of 24. PagelD #: 10567

not be enrolled, as the Art Institute does not appear to be financially

sound and/or capable of fulfilling its commitments to students.

As noted above, the Art Institute has not paid its staff its full

salary since April 10, 2019. Common sense tells us that unpaid staff

will only teach a relatively short period of time before the staff leaves

the Art Institute ( as some have already done, according to Exhibit 1),

and since the Art Institute is not paying its instructors, it will be unable

to recruit new instructors. Additionally, the Art Institute's resources

for disabled students apparently has impacted, as the Art Institute has

been unable to afford a sign language interpreter for a deaf student

enrolled at the Art Institute. See Exhibit 1. Additionally, the loss of

facility without quality replacements compromises the quality of

education at the Art Institute.

Finally, there is evidence that the Art Institute has failed to

process adjustments and refunds. See Exhibit 1. Pursuant to NES

394.449(2), the Art Institute is required to refund money owed to

students no later than 15 days after either the date of cancellation by

the student of his or her enrollment, the date the Art Institute

terminated the student's eni'ollment, the last day of an authorized leave

15



r

f

Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 16 of 24. PagelD #: 10568

of absence if the student fails to return after the period of authorized

absence, or the last day of the student's attendance, whichever situation

is applicable. The Art Institute apparently failed to refund student

money in accordance with NRS 394.449, thus again showing that it is

not capable of fulfilling its commitments to students.

Therefore, the third factor of the Wencke test, the merit of the

moving party's underlying claim, favors the Commission, as the

evidence shows that the Art Institute is not financially sound and

capable of fulfilling its commitment to students, and so it should not be

permitted to continue enrolling students into such an environment.

Additionally, as noted pre\'iously, the State of Nevada has an interest in

enforcing its laws, especially its statutes designed to protect the welfare

of its residents/students.

The Commission should be granted nermission to

intervene so that it can file it.s Motion for the limited

lifting of the Receivership stay.

Intervention pursuant to FRCP 24(b)(2) is proper in this case in

order to allow the Commission to file its motion for the limited lifting of

the stay imposed in this case. FRCP 24(b)(2) states in relevant part:

16



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 17 of 24. PagelD#: 10569

b) Permissive Intervention.

(1) In General. On timely motion, the court may permit
anyone to intervene who:

(A) is given a conditional right to intervene by a federal
statute; or

(B) has a claim or defense that shares with the main action a
common question of law or fact.

(2) By a Government Officer or Agency. On timely motion, the
court may permit a federal or state governmental officer or
agency to intervene if a party's claim or defense is based on:

(A) a statute or executive order administered by the officer
or agency; or

(B) any regulation, order, requirement, or agreement issued
or made under the statute or executive order.

(3) Delay or Prejudice. In exercising its discretion, the court must
consider whether the intervention will unduly delay or prejudice
the adjudication of the original parties' rights.

A court's decision to grant permissive intervention pursuant to

FRCP 24(b) will be reviewed for "clear abuse of discretion." Purnell v.

City of Ahron^ 925 F.2d 941, 951 (6th Cir.1991). Courts consider the

following factors when determining whether a motion to intervene was

timely made:

(1) the point to which the suit has progi-essed; (2) the
purpose for which intervention is sought; (3) the length of
time preceding the application during which the proposed
intervenor knew or reasonably should have known of his
interest in the case; (4) the prejudice to the original parties
due to the proposed intervenor's failure, after he or she knew

17



r

(

Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 18 of 24. PagelD#: 10570

or reasonably should have known of his interest in the case,
to apply promptly for intervention; and (5) the existence of
unusual circumstances militating against or in favor of
intervention.

United States v. Tennessee, 260 F.3d 587, 592 (6th Cir. 2001).

In this case the Commission, as stated above, requests to intervene in

order to motion the Court lift its stay so that the Commission

Administrator can suspend further enrollment of students at the Art

Institute pursuant to NAC 394.670, and possibly take further action

under that regulation. As noted above, the Commission is the State of

Nevada agency charged with enforcing NRS/NAC Chapter 394,

including NAC 394.670.

The Commission's motion is timely. With respect to the first

factor, courts consider not only the passage of time in a case, court also

consider the nature of a case and the stage of a case's proceedings.

United States u. City of Detroit, 712 F.3d 925, 931 (6th Cir. 2013). The

current case has been in existence for approximately five months, being

filed on January 18, 2019. At this time the Court has already

terminated the receivership, but not with respect to the Art Institute.

With respect to the Art Institute and another entity, the Receiver asked

that the receivership continue to allow the operation of the Art Institute

18



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 19 of 24. PagelD#: 10571

to continue in order to transfer student records to State regulatory

agencies, liquidate assets, fulfill government regulatory requirements

and maintain accreditation, among other stated reasons (See ECF 349).

Apparently at present the Receiver is stUl in the process of trying

to accomplish these tasks, and the chances of successful completion in

view of the various problems at the Art Institute seem problematic, so

that intervention at the present time is proper with respect to the point

at which the present action/suit is currently in. In fact, the Commission

refrained from taking action for some weeks to allow the Receiver time

to hopefully correct the issues and problems the Aid Institute has but it

appears that these acts were not accomplished, and the Art Institute is

coming up on the expiration of its license.

With respect to the purpose of intervention, the Commission is

seeking to intervene in order to take action under NAC 394.670 and

enforce laws that it has been charged with administering in order to

protect State of Nevada students and residents by ensuring that the Art

Institute complies with applicable sections of NRS and NAC Chapter

394.

19



r

Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 20 of 24. Page!D#: 10572

The State of Nevada has been aware of the existence of the

receivership in this case since soon after the Receiver was appointed by

the Court, and has had an interest in the proceedings of the case since

that time, as the Art Institute was a licensed postsecondary educational

institution operating in Nevada. Although the Art Institute was behind

on paying its new student fees prior to the Court's Order Appointing

Receiver in this case, matters did not reach the point where the

Commission s Administrator determined there was the need to suspend

further student enrollment at the Art Institute until after it began to

fail to meet its pajrroll and after students began informing the

Commission Administrator about the Art Institute's failure to process

refunds and provide student refunds through the complaint process.

With respect to the prejudice the original parties might suffer

from the Commission not attempting to intervene at an earlier stage of

this proceeding, the prejudice the original parties would suffer appears

no greater at this time than it would have been if the Commission had

intervened within days of the Receiver being appointed. In fact, any

alleged delay by the Commission in moving to intervene in this case has

apparently provided the Receiver more time to attempt to sell the Art

20



f

Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 21 of 24. PagelD#: 10573

Institute and to comply with the Art Institute's legal obligations, such

as paying fees, processing refunds properly and finding or generating

money to pay staff. Unfortunately, even with the extra time provided

the Art Institute's legal obligations under NRS 394 have not been met.

Finally, there appear to be to be no unusual cu'cumstances that

militate for or against intervention in this case.

in.

cqncluston

Thus based on all of the above, the Art Institute's enrollment

should be limited pursuant to NAC 894.670(l)(a), but in order to do so

the stay put in place by this Court in its Order Appointing Receiver

would need to be lifted for the limited purpose of allowing the

Commission to suspend further enrollment of students at the Art

Institute pursuant to NAC 394.670, and if the Art Institute fails to

correct the vdolations, possibly pursue revocation of its license or impose

a fine.

In sum, the Commission is simply asking that the stay that this

Court put in place when appointing the Receiver be lifted for the limited

purpose of allowing the Commission to take the same action against the

Art Institute that the Commission would take against any other

21



r

Cas6.1.19-CV-00145-DAP Doc #: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 22 of 24. PagelD #: 10574

licensed Nevada postsecondary educational institution that was

performing in the same manner as the Art Institute is currently

performing.

As demonstrated above, the Commission has satisfied the factors

set forth in Wencke that Circuit Courts look to when deciding

whether to lift stays in receivership cases.

The Commission is seeking to intervene in this case only to allow

it to motion for the limited lifting of the stay put in place by the Court

in its Order Appointing Receiver. Furthermore, as noted above, all of

the factors for permissive intervention pursuant to FRCF 24(b)(2) have

been met by the Commission.

22



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 23 of 24. PagelD #: 10575

Thus, it is respectfully requested that the Commission's Motion

for Intervention and the Limited Lifting of Receivership Stay be

granted by the Court.

Dated; June 28, 2019.

AARON FORD

Attorney General

Bv: ^ -N—- -

ROBERT A. WHITNEY ■
Deputy Attorney General
Nevada Bar No. 8726
Office of Nevada Attorney General
555 East Washington Ave., Ste. 3900
Las Vegas, NV 89101
(702) 483-3104
rwhitnev@ag.nv.gQv

Attorney for State of Nevada,
Commission on Postsecondary
Education

23



r

Case. 1.19-CV-00145-DAP Doc #: 383 Filed: 06/28/19 24 of 24, PagelD #: 10576

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that on this 28^^^ day of June

2019 a copy of the foregoing Motion for Intervention and the Limited

Lifting of Receivership Stay was filed electronically. Notice of this filing

wiil be sent by operation of the Court's electronic filing system to all

parties indicated on the electronic fihng receipt. Parties may access

this fding through the Court's system.

An employee of the Office of the
Nevada Attorney General

24



DECLARATION OF KELLY D. WUEST

1. I, Kelly D. Wuest, am the Administrator for the State of Nevada, Commission on

Postsecondary Education ("Commission").

2. I have served as the Administrator of the Commission since December 2014. As the

Commission Administrator, it is my responsibility to regulate and oversee the daily

operations of licensing for private postsecondary institutions within Nevada.

3. The Commission provides licensure for Art Institute of Las Vegas referred to as the

"University" to operate as a private postsecondary institution within Nevada. The

University has been licensed since March 15,1985 and initially operated under the

name Interior Design Institute.

4. The University has failed to pay the State of Nevada new students fees required by

NRS 394.540(3) for the quarters October 1, 2018 - December 31, 2018 - 52 students

and January 1, 2019 - March 31, 2019 - 23 students enrolled totaling $300.00 in fees

and the associated late fees of $500.00. New student enrollment was determined from

the active student files sent to the Commission from the University.

5. The University has not submitted its licensure renewal for the Nevada license, which

was due to the Commission no later than June 3, 2019, although the University recently

contacted me and requested an extension in order to renew its license in response to a

letter I had sent to the University. The current license expires on July 30, 2019. Failure

to submit the renewal paperwork will result in a termination of the license.

6. The Commission received a cancellation notice on March 5, 2019 for the $100,000

bond #PB11772901996 required by the Commission pursuant to NRS 394.480.

Without this surety bond coverage, the Commission will bear all indemnification

responsibilities for cash pay students, third party payments including tuition paid by the



VA Educational Benefits program, and students with third party loans if closure occurs.

The estimate liability for the 51 enrolled students using VA Educational Benefits is

$1,177,488 and $351,861 for the 127 non-VA students assuming 12% cash payments

and an average of one year of tuition at $23,088. Permitting the University to continue

to recruit new students without surety protection creates additional liability for the

Commission.

7. During the course of the last three months, I have attended numerous meetings,

including meetings held on or about March 7, 2019, March 18, 2019, March 28, 2019,

April 8, 2019 and May 3, 2019, where the topic of late and missed pay periods for

faculty and staff was discussed.

8. I have received complaints from the past campus director, faculty and staff members

that the University has not paid wages earned as required by NRS 608.060. Employees

have indicated they received either partial payment or full payments through the pay

period ending April 5, 2019 on Friday May 10, 2019 and then they failed to receive

payment for two regular pay periods, and then received another partial payment on

June 7, 2019. I have personal knowledge of faculty and staff members who resigned

their position due to the failure of the University to pay employees, compromising the

University's ability to provide a quality education.

9. Both students and faculty have informed the Commission that they lack access to E-

books that were previously part of the institutions educational practice. While I have

confirmed that students were not charged fees for E-books starting with the spring

semester, many students have told the Commission that they lack the financial

resources to purchase books. Student who were anticipating stipend payments owed

from the winter quarter attendance had spring tuition and fees posted on their student

account prior to receiving payment of stipends. Students have reported to the



Commission that they lack the financial resources to continue their studies under the

current conditions.

10. At the beginning of May 2019, a student government representative came to me to voice

her concerns that deaf students were no longer receiving interpreter services. I spoke with

Mr. Turbay about the issue on May 3, 2019 and he indicated that the institution lacked the

funds to pay the cost of interpreters. On May 18, 2019, 1 received an email complaint from

a student who was previously approved for a sign language interpreter that he had been

without the accommodation for the past four weeks and needed the service to be

successful in his courses. To my knowledge, the University has not remedied this issue.

11. Starting in February 2019, student began filing complaints with the Commission concerning

the failure of the University to pay student stipends, refund student who withdrew or to pay

debts owed to the VA Educational Benefits program. On May 15, 2019, 1 met with Dawn

Batullia, Financial Aid Officer about the twelve student complaints filed with the

Commission (Exhibit 2) in an attempt at resolution. She provided ledger statements for

most students but was unable to provide necessary VA documents and attendance

documents to determine each student's last date of attendance. The ledgers provided by

the University showed the charges for courses but did not include the refund amounts when

students dropped a course. Ms. Batullia said she only had access to post tuition charges

but lacked access to post refunds. The Commission has received two additional student
/

complaints since this date. The Commission has not received evidence of University's

resolution of these student issues. These issues are outside the scope of the Title IV

funding.

12. The Commission has documented the University's failure to provided students refunds

pursuant to NRS 394.449 leaving veterans with tuition debts from the VA Educational

Benefits program or outstanding student balances for students with other payment options.



I have found instances where the student ledger indicates a refund to the VA but there is no

record of the VA receiving the payment. I have requested either evidence of an EFT or

check payment from the University financial aid officer but have not received the proof of

payment to date stating they lack access to said information. Exhibit A - Summary of

Inputs for 13 Week Cash Flow included in the Proposed Plan to Modify and Streamline the

Receivership filed with the court on May 30, 2019, does not identify any monies obligated

to refund students unearned tuition from either Winter or Spring term and only obligates

$1,832 for student stipends. The failure of the Receive to acknowledge these debts beyond

the issues identified with Department of Education Title IV is alarming.

13. The Commission has provided several months for the University and Receiver to rectify

issues with student refunds, outstanding stipends and to finalize a sales agreement to

permit the University to go forward. As the license for Art Institute of Las Vegas expires at

the end of July, we are at a critical juncture to rectify the issues stated in this declaration.

I HEREBY DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY THAT THE ABOVE IS TRUE AND CORRECT
TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

DATED 27th of June,2019

Kelly D. Wbest, Administrator



Philadelphia
Insurance Companies

A \lcrab«r of the Tokio Marine Croup

One Bala Plaza, Bala Cynwyd, PA 19004

OBLIGEE

Nevada Commission on Postsecondary Education
8778 S. Maryland Parkway Suite 115
Las Vegas, NY 89123

BOND NUMBER: PB11772901996

CANCELLATION NOTICE

PRINCIPAL NAME: The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC

PRESENT PENAL SUM: $100.000.00

BOND DESCRIPTION: 940 - Schools (All Other)

ORIGINAL EFFECTIVE DATE: 03/05/2018

CANCEL DATE: 03/05/2019

We hereby cancel the above referenced bond in accordance with the cancellation/termination provisions contained in the
bond. If, for any reason, the effective date of this notice does not fully comply with the cancellation/termination provisions
contained in the bond, then this notice shall be deemed amended to contain the earliest effective date which is in
compliance with the provisions of the bond.

REASON: Agent's Request

Signed and Sealed this 3rd day of January, 2019.

Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company

By:
Edward M. Titus, Attomey-in-fact

m i92nRi
<?/

SSr''

CC: NAME AND ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL

The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC
2350 Corporate Cir
Henderson, NV 89074

CC: NAME AND ADDRESS OF AGENT

Alpha Surety & Insurance Brokerage LLC [ 117729
650 S Shackleford Rd Ste 325

Little Rock, AR 72211-3546



Asset Purchase

Agreement and
Addendum



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 lof59. Page!D#: 10623

FINAL EXECUTION COPY July 15,2019

ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

TWs:j^SBT;PyECHASjE'AGREEMENT (this Agrqemeot'-). l3~nia^ entered into
BS of July ^ Date";), by and between SSAVE^ TiEtE AMf feSTTITOT OF
LAS VEGAS LlMliED, a Nevada limited liability company, its designee or assignee
("Buyer"), and THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGASy LLC, an Arizona nonprofit limited
liabilily company that is registered in the State of Nevada as The DC Art Institute of Las
Vegas, LLC, by and through Mark E. Dottore, Receiver ("Seller"), appointed by the United
States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division (the "Court")- Buyer
and Seller may be lefened to in this Agreement individually as a "Party" and coUectivelv. as the
"Parties."

REaTALS:

A. Seller owns and operates a private nonprofit, ACICS accredited and Title IV
Program participating (i,e. under OPB ID # 04051300) institutioa of postsecondaiy education
offe^g all or a portion of many academic degree and credential programs in design, media arts,
fashion and culinaiy arts at 2350 Corporate CirclB, Suite 100, Henderson, Nevada 89074 (the
"ScEool").

B. Pursuant to that certain Order Appointing Receiver (the "Appointment Order")
entered on January 18, 2019, by the Court in Case No. l:19-cv-145, Mark E. Dottore
C'Receiver") was appointed receiver of various entities, including Dream Center Education
Holdings, LLC, The term "Seller" as used in this Agreement shall mean the School by and
through its Court appointed Receiver in connection with the sale of the Purchased Assets.

C. Buyer desires to purchase from Seller, and Seller desires to sell to Buyer, the
Purchased Assets (as hereinaltBr defined) held in connection with, necessary for, or material
ownership and operations of the School (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the Excluded
Assets), on terms and ccndidons set forth in this Agreement (the "Transaction").

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants,
agreemente and representations set forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable
coQsideralion, (he receipt and sufEciency of which me"acknowledged, the PaMes agree m
follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

The terms set frirth in this ARTICLE I have the following meanings whdn used in this
Agreement:

"Accounts Receivable" means all accounts receivable and all notes, bonds and other
evidence of indebtedness of and rights to receive payments arising out of tuition payments or
sales occurring in the usual conduct of the School, including but not limited to VA funds. Title
IV funds and all student cash paid tuition made by students from April 1, 2019 forward.

(OOQUMO.])



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 2 of 59. PagelD #: 10624

Accounts Receivable shall not include any account receivable that Studio is entitled to receive
pursuant to the Irrevocable Direction Letter Regarding Certain Accounts Receivable dated
February27,2019.

"Accrediting Body*' means any non-governmental entity, including without limitation
institutional and specialized accrediting agencies, which engage in the granting or withholding of
accreditation of postsecondary educational institutions or programs, or accreditation of private
elementary and secondary schools or programs, in accordance with standards relating to the
performance, operations, financial condition or academic standards of such institutions and
schools, including, without limitation, ACICS, ACF or CIDA.

"ACF" means the American Culinary Federation.

"ACICS" means the Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools

"Actions" or "Proceedings" means any claim, action, cause of action, suit, demwd,
inquiiy, proceeding, audit, hearing, subpoena, investigatioD, charge, notice of violation, citation,
simunons, litigation or suit (of any nature, whether civil, criminal, administrative, regulatory,
judicial or investigative, whether formal or informal, whether public or private, whether at law or
in equity) commenced, brought, conducted or heard by or before, or otherwise involving, my
Governmental Authority or Educational Agency, or any other arbitiatioQ, mediation or similar
proceedmg.

"Adverse Regulatory Condition" shall mean any term or condition that would impede
Buyer firom operating the School in the same manner and to the M extent it is currently being
operated by Seller, impose any conditions that would dilute, in any material respect; the benefits
of the ccntemplat^ transactions to Buyer and its Affiliates or otherwise require any provision of
credit support by Buyer or any of its Affiliates.

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person who directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with,
such Person. The term "control," including the terms "controlled by" and "under common
control with," means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the
direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether through the ownership of at least
fifty percent (50%) of the voting securities, by contract or othavrise, including toe ab^^^
a majority of the members of the governing board of such Person.

"Agreement" means this Asset Purchase Agreement, including all Exhibits and Schedules
hereto, as toe same may be amended fiom time to time m accordance with its terms.

"Applicable Law" or "Law" means any federal, state, or local law, statute, Regulation,
rule, ordinance, order, judgment, decision, or decree by any Govenunental Authority applicable
to Seller and Buyer.

"Assignment and Assumption Agreement" means that assignment and assumption
agreement to be executed by Buyer and Seller, in toe form attached as Exhibit A.

(B0a&4O.I]
OMIVSSIOU.I



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 3 of 59. PageiO #: 10625

"Assumed Contracts" means all enroUment agreements and those contracts listed on
Schedule I attached hereto.

"Assumed Uabilities" means all liabilities of Seller arising or to be performed after the
Closing under the Assumed Contracts (but not related to matters, facts or circumstances existing
at, prior to or as a consequence of Closing as identified in Schedule 2.2.

"Bill of Sale" means that bill of sale to be executed by Seller, in the form attached as
Exhibit B.

"Business Records or Business Data" means all data or infonnation, in any format,
collected, generated, or used in the Ordinary Course of Business or necessary for the conduct of
the Business, including, without limitaticn, records relating to accreditatioD, all financial data
relating to the Business, all educatiohal and student records or data, including all fmancial,
educational and student data contained in any databases including on the Shared IT Platform
that are used in or necessary for the conduct of the Business of the School.

"Business" means the business of the School.

"CIDA" means the Council for Interior Design Accreditation.

"Claim" or "Claims" will have the meaning set forth in sectiott 101(5) of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code.

"Closing" has the meaning given that term in Section.?:! of thia Agreement

"Closing Date" has the meaning given that term in Section 7.1.

"Code" means the Litemal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

"Curriculum" means all curricula owned by Seller and used in any educational programs
of the School in the form of computer programs or software, slide shows, texts, films, web site
content, audio, videos or any other form or media, including the following items: School catalog
(without reference to AX or AHV), faculty notes, course and faculty evaluation materials, syllabi
for all classes for the School, student handbook, faculty handbook policy and procedure
manuals, program and course curricula, program and course materials, academic policies,
procedures and standards, handbooks and guidebooks. Cumculum does not include any online
courses or programs.

"DETR" means the Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation,
Commission of Postsecondary Educatioii.

"DOB" means the United States Department of Education and any successor agency
administering student financial assistance under Title IV.

"Educational Agenc/' means any entity or organization, whether governmental,
government chartered, tribal, private, or quasi-private, that engages in granliDg or withholding
Educational Approvals, administers Financial Assistance Programs to or for students of, or

t)M)\9S5l019.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 4of 59. Page!D#: 10626

otherwise ragidates postsecondaiy schools or prograins, in accordance with standards relating to
the perfbnnance. operation, financial condition, privacy or academic standards of such schools
and programs, including DOE and any Accrediting Body or State Educational Agency.

"Educational Approval" means any license, Permit, consent, franchise, approval,
authotization, certificate, or accreditatioii issued or required to be issued by an Educational
Agency to Buyer with respect to any aspect of the School and Seller's campus operations subject
to the oversight of such Educational Agency, including any such approval for the Buyer and the
School to participate in any Financial Assist^e Program.

"Educational Notices/Consents" means any approval, authorization or consent by any
Educational Agency, or any notification to be made by Buyer with the cocperation of Seller to an
Edurational Agency, with regard to the transacticns contemplated by this Agreement, whetiier
required to he obtained prior to or after the Closing Date, which is necessary under appiicable
Laws or Regulatioiis in order to maintain or continue any Educational Approval held by Seller or
its School as of the date of this Agreement,

"Educational Law" means any United States federal, state, local or similar statute. Law,
ordinance. Regulation, rule, Accrediting Standard, code, order or standard, including the
provisions of Title IV and any Regulations implementing or relating thereto, issued or
administered by any Educational Agency or any Financial Assistance Program.

"Employee Benefit Plan" means any "employee benefit plan" (aa such term is defined in
ERJSA §3^)) and any other compensation or benefit plan, program policy, practice, agreement,
understanding or arrangement of any Idnd, including, without limitation, all incentive, bonus,
severance, change in control, defencd compensation, vacation, holiday, cafeteria, medical or
disability.

"Encumbrance" means any mortgage, encumbrance, charge. Claim, commiuiity property
interest, condition, equitable interest. Lien, option, pledge, security interest, right of first refusal
or restriction of any l^d, including any restriction on use, voting, transfer (other than restrictions
on transfer under applicable securities laws), receipt of income or exercise of any other attribute
of ownership.

"Environmental Laws" means all federal, state, and local laws, rules. Regulations, imd
bindihg gbveiriihehtal deternii^^ relating to ehvhbiimeritai, heai&, and s^ety matte
(including, without limitation, those relating to toxic or hazardous substances), including,
without limitation, the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Solid Waste Management Act (as
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act), CBROLA (as amended by the
Superfimd Amendments and Reauthorization Act), the Emergency Flaiming and Community
Right-to-Know Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, and £e Occupation Safety and Health
Act.

"Environmental Liabilities" means any Liability or investigatory, corrective or remedial
obiigatioD, whenever arising or occuiring, arising under Environmental Laws with respect to the
School or the Purchased Assets (including without timitation any arising ftom the on-site or off-

VNOMMMI

BMi\»]8a9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 5 of 59. PagelD#: 10627

site release, ̂ eatened Release, treatment, storage, disposal, or arrangement for disposal of
hazardous substances).

•'ERISA*' means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

"Excluded Assets" means:

(1) all bank accounts of Seller.

(2) all rights to receive mail and other communications addressed to Seller
relating to any of the Excluded Assets or Excluded Liabilities;

(3) all company records of Seller, including minute books and Organizational
Documents;

(4) all personnel and other records of Seller required by Applicable Law to be
retained by the Seller;

j

<5) all contracts and agreements, whether written or oral, to which Seller is a
party other than tibe Assumed Contracts;

(d) any Excluded Receivables; and

(7) Trademark and tradename "The Art Institute of Las Vegas"; "AT'; "Ait
Institute" or any variation diereof or siznilar names and nomenclature;

(8) any assets of Seller not used or held for use by the School.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, the Excluded Assets shall not,include Accounts
Receivable or any funds in Seller's bank accounts or otherwise held by Seller that Seller received
or is to receive for tuitioa or otherwise for the 2019 Spring Quarter, 2019 Summer Quarter and
all subsequent quarters, including but not limited to VA funds and Title IV funds &om April 1,
2019 forward,

"Excluded Liabilities" has the meaning givea that term in Section 2.2.

"Excluded Receivables" means any smdent receivable of the School in existence at the
Closing Date that are attributable to the 2019 Winter Quarter or any prior quarters and all causes
of action pertaining to the collection of the fcregomg. Excluded Receivables shall not include
any account receivable that Studio is entitled to receive punuant to the Irrevocable Direction
Letter Regarding Certain Accounts ReceivablB dated February 27,2019.

"Financial Assistance Programs" means the Title IV Program pursuant to which Title IV
Program funding has been provided to or on behalf of the Schoors stunts, and any other
govemment-aponsored or private program of student financial assistance odier than the Title IV
Program pursuant to which student financial assistance, grants or loans were provided to or on
behalf of the School's students.

fDOsuua.!)

DHIWSU»,4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 6 of 59. PagelD#: 10628

"GovemmeDtal Approval" means any Permit, consent, waiver, approval, order or
authorization of, or registration, accreditation, declaration issued, granted given or otherwise
made, or filing with, any Qovemmental Authority.

"Governmental Authority" means any government, any governmental or regulatory entity
or body, department, commission, board, agency or instrumentality.

"Indebtedness" with respect to any Person means any obligation of such Person for any
Trailing Liability or for borrowed money, including, without limitatioa or duplication, (a) any
obligatioo mcurred for all or any part of the purchase price of property or other assets or for the
coat of property or other assets constructed or of improvements thereto, other than accounts
payable included in current liabllitiea and incuned in respect of property purchased in the
ordin^ co^e of bus^ of .alU^ers of credit issued.,f^^ of
such Peirson, (c) obligations (whether or not such Person has assumed or become liable for the
payment of such obligation) secured by Liens, (d) capitalized lease obligations, (e) all
guarantees and similar obligations of such Person, (Q all accrued interest, foes and charges in
respect of any Indebtedness, and (g) ell prepayment premiums and penalties, and any other fees,
expenses, indemmties and other amounts payable os a result of the prepayment or discharge of
any Indebtedness.

"Intellectual Fiopeity'* means all of the following in any jurisdiction throughout the
world: (a) patents, patent applications and invention disclosures, together with all reissuances,
continuations, continuations-in-part, revisions, extensions and reexaminations thereof; (b)
copyrights, works of authorship, mask works and copyrigbtable works, and applicatioos,
registrations and renewals in connection therewith; (c) trade secrets and confidentia} business
information (including concepts, research and development, know-how, inventions, formulas,
compositions, discoveries, compositions, privacy data and non-public personal information,
algorithms, models, methodologies, technical and engineering data, business and marketing
plans, processes and techniques, designs, drawings end specifications); (d) IT Systems; (e)
copies and tangible embodiments of any of the foregoing in whatever form or medium; (g) rights
of publicity and privacy related to the use of the names, likenesses, voices, signatures and
biographic^ information of real persons; and (g) all other intellectual property or proprietary
fights protectable as a matter of law and licenses, immunities, covenants not to sue relating to
any of the foregoing. Intellectual Property shall not mean any software programs from foe
Shared rr Platform,

"IT Systems" means all devices and/or computer software (including but not limited to
source code, executable code data, databases, scripts, libraries, compilers, files, applicatioos and
documentation, software that is available generally through consumer retail stores or distribution
networks including, without limitation, any sof^are pre-installed in the Ordinary Course of
Business as a standard part of hardware), hardware, and technology (including but not limited to
communications systems, network in^tiucture and related equipment websites and social
media accounts) owned by Seller for operation of foe School and located solely at the School,
other than any such devices, hardware, technology, communications systems, network
infrastructure and/or computer software that are located, maintained on or part of the Shared IT
PlatfoEm.

(000000,1)

l)Mi\9S3IOSM



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 7 of 59. PagelD #: 10629

"Knowledge of Seller" means to the best knowledge of the Receiver and the Seller, after
reasonable inquiry and diligence with respect to the matters in question.

"Liability" or "Liabilities" means any liability (whether known or unknown, asserted or
unassexted, absolute or contingent accrued or unacccued, whether liquidated or unliquidated and
whether due, or to become due), including Trailing Liability or any liability for Indebtedness or
Taxes.

"License" means any Fennit, license, contract, agreement. Educational Approval,
authorization or other obligation issued by any Govenmiental Authority related to the Seller to
which Seller is a party or by which Seller or the Purchased Assets are bound,

"Lien" or "Liens" shall mean means all liens, Indebtedness, Encumbrances (including,
without limitation, any leasehold interests, licenses or other rights, in favor of a Third Party to
use any portion of the Purchased Assets), Claims, security interests, of whatever kind or nature,
mortgages, pledges, restrictions, charges, instruments, licenses, encroachments, options, ri^ts of
recovery, judgments, orders and decrees of any court or foreign or domestic governmental
authority, interest, products and Taxes Oncluding foreign, federal, state and local Taxes), in each
case of any kind or nature, whether secured or unsecured, choate or inchoate, filed or unfiled,
scheduled or unscheduled, noticed or unnoticed, recorded or unrecorded, contingent or non-
contingent, material or non-material, known or unknown.

"Managed Services Agreement^* means that certain Managed Services Agreement entered
into between the Seller and Buyer on or about March 28,2019 ("MSA").

"Material Contracts" has the meaning given to that term in Section 3.4 of this Agreement

'"Non-Core Services" has the meaning as defined in the MSA.

"Ordinary Course of Business" means the ordinary course of the operation of the School
consistent with past custom and practice.

"OrganizatioQal Documents" means any charter, certificate of formation, articles of
organization, articles of incorporation, certificate of incorporation, declaration of partnership,
articles of association, code or Regulatxccs, bylaws, operating agreement, limited liability
company agreement, partnership a^eement or similar foimatibh or gctyeri^
inEtruments.

"Permit" or "Pennits" shall mean any fianchise, grant, authorization, agreement, license,
permit, registration, easement, variance, exception, consent; clearance, certificate, approval,
order or aimilar rights issued, granted, or obtained for the School by or £tem any Govemmental
Authority, but excluding any Educational Approval.

"Person" means an individual, corporation, limited liability conqrany, partnership, trust,
unincorporated association or any other entity or organization.

"Post-Closing EducatioQa] Consent" means any of those Educational Consents that must
be effectuated or obtained following the Closing, as set forth in Schedule 7.2(f).

1

I  (900000.1)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 8 of 59. Page!D#: 10630

"Pre-Acquisition Review Application" means the materially complete electromc
applicatioii submitted to the DOE with respect to the transactioas contemplated hereby, marked
for pre-acquisition review, together with any required exhibits or attachments.

'Tre-Acquisition Review Notice" means a written notice or response jErom the DOB
following the DOE's review of a Pre-Acquisition Review Application regarding the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement, which shall not indicate the existence of any material
impediment to the issuance of a TPPPA or PPPA to the Buyer extending Seller's certification to
participate in the Title IV Program followuig the Closing.

"Fre-Closing Educational Consent" means any of those Educational Consents that must
be effectuated or obtained prior to the Closing, as set forth in Schedule 7.2(b}.

"Fre-Closing Period" means the period commencing on the date of this Agreement and
ending tiie later to occur (a) all Pre-Closing Educational Notices/Consents have been obtained
fiom the Governing Authorities and (c) the Court's entering Order approving the sale to the
Buyer pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

"Fieinises" shall mean the School's current location at 23S0 Corporate Circle, Suite 100,
Henderson, Nevada 89074 which are subject to a Lease Agreement with Tech Park 6, LLC.

"PPA" means a Program Participation Agreement issued to the School and countersigned
by or on behalf of the Secretary of the DOE, evidencing the DOH's certification of the School to
participate in the Title IV Programs prior to consummatioo of the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement.

"PPPA" means a Provisional Program Paiticipation Agreement issued to the School and
countersigned by or on behalf of the Secretary of the DOE, evidencing the DOE's certification of
the School to continue its Title IV Programs participation following consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

"Pre-Closing Audit" means that audit perfbimed fay Receiver's CFO for (i) any monetary
obligations that Seller or Buyer have under the MSA and TSA including but not limited to any
invoices for the period April I 2019 forward for expenses to be paid by Buyer under the MSA
but unpaid by Seller or Buyer, (b) sums paid or advanced by Buyer to Seller for payment of
School expenses including fiicul^ wd staff salaries, rent or oUier expenses that accrued or were
due for the period prior to April 1,2019, and (iii) all School expenses of any kind paid by Seller
on behalf of Buyer for the period April 1, 2019 forward from any funds other than those
designated entirely for the 2D19 Spring Quarter or any subsequent quarter.

"Purchased Assets" means all right, title and interest in Accounts Receivable and any and
all of the assets owned, used or held for use by Seller with respect to the School and the
Business, including all tangible and intangible assets, other than Excluded Assets, of the School
used or held for use by the School, including, without limitation, personal property, inventciy,
supplies, equipment, tangible personal property, fixed assets, library books located at School
Premises, Business Records or Business Data (excluding Excluded Assets), School educational
end student Records, Assumed Contracts, fixtures, leasehold improvements, equipment, prepaid
expenses, licenses, advertising material, Peimits, goodwill, School's OPE ID # 04051300,

(OOOOUW.!)

nMIVSSS039.(
8



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 9 of 59. RagelD #: 10631

Intellectual Property relating to the School, if any, any IT Systems or other computer system^s
used in financial aid management and administration located solely at the School, Schoors
tuition payments received or to be received by Seller for 2019 Spring Quarter and all SchooTs
subsequent quarters, including but not limited to the Title IV fimds and the VA fimds from April
1, 2019, forward. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Cuniculum is not a
Purchased Asset Buyer shall have the right to use the Curriculum for a period three (3) years
from the Elective Date.

"Real Property" means ail parcels and tracts of land, together with all buildings,
stmctuies, fixtures and improvements located thereon (including those under constiucticn), and
all privileges, rights, easements, hereditaments and appurtenances belonging to or for the benefit
of such land, including all easements appurtenant to and for the benefit of such land, and all
rights existing in and to any streets, alleys, passages ..and other rights-of-way included thereon or
adjacent thereto (iseforc or after vacation thereof and vaults beneath any such streets.

•*Receiver's CFO" means David Linscott

"Regulation" means any law, ordinance, treaty, statute, regulation, ruling or rule or order
or, administered or enforced by or on behalf of; any court, Educational Agency or Governmental
Authority.

"Sale Order" means the final, noa-appealable order, substantially in the fonn attached
hereto as Exhibit D. from the Court (i) authorizing Seller to sell, and confirming the sale the
Purchased Assets to Buyer, free and clear of all Liens, on the terms and conditions of this
Agreement (as may from time to time be amended as provided herein), and (b) confirming that
the Consent Judgment entered into In November 2015 between Education Management
Corporation, et al. and 39 state attorneys generai rad the District of Columbia does not apply to
the School or the Purchased Assets following Closing.

"Shared FT Platform" means any Technology owned by Dream Center Education
Holdings, LLC and currently subleased to Studio punuant to e sublease agreement approved by
the Court, which stores and maintains data, including, without limitation student and financial
data, relevant to and for operation of various universities, including the School,

"State Educational Agency" means any state educational licensing body that provides a
license or authorization necessary for the School to provide postsecondaiy education in the State
of Nevada, including without limitation, DETR.

"Studio" means Studio Enterprise Manager, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

"Tax" or "Taxes" means any federal, state, local, or foreign income, gross receipts,
license, payroll, employment, excise, severance, stamp, occupation, premium, windfall profits,
environmental customs, duties, franchise, profits, withholding, social security (or similar),
unemployment, disability, teal property, personal property, sales, use, capita] gain, transfer,
registratiDn, trisportation, value added, alternative or add-on minimoni, estunated, or other tax
of any kind whatsoever, including any interest, penalty, or addition to the Tax^ whether disputed
or not and including any obligations to indemnify or otherwise assume or succeed to the Tax
liahility of any other Person.

0
IseostHS'l) ^



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 10 of 59. PagelD #: 10632

"Technology" means infonnBtioii technology, hardware and computer systems, including
those relating to the transmission, storage, maintenance, organizatioa, presentation, generation,
processing or analysis of all data and infoimation collected, generate, or used in the conduct of
the Business and located solely at the School.

"Third Party** means any Feison other than the Parties.

'Title IV" means Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, 20 USC § 1001, et seq.,
as amended, or any successor statute thereto.

"Title IV Programs" means the programs of federal student financial assistance
administered pursuant to Title IV.

'TPPPA" means a Temporary Provisional Program Participation Agreement issued to the
School post-Closing, and countersigned by or on behalf of the Secretary of the DOE continuing
the Schoors certification to participate in the Title IV Programs on an interim basis following
the Closing.

"Trai^g Liability" or "Trailing Liabilities" means any obligation, Claim, Encumbrance,
Lien or Liability for which the School may owe or be required by the DOE or any Governing
Authority or Educational Agency to pay or otherwise be responsible for, relating to any student
stipend(a), unearned tuition, or other monetary obligatioa(s) incurred or accrued by the School
prior to April 1,2019,

"Transition Services Agreement" means that certain Transition Services Agreement
entered into between the Seller and Buyer on or about March 28,2019 ("TSA"),

"Transition Services and License Agreement" means a transition services agreement that
may hereafter be negotiated and executed by Buyer and Studio in the event and to the extent
that Buyer requires such transition services to be performed by Studio prior to or after Closing.
To die extent that the Buyer does not require any transition services from Studio before or after
Closing, Buyer shall not be obligated to enter into a Transition Services Agreement with Studio.

"2019 Spring Quarter" means School quarter commencing on April 1,2019 and ending
on June 15,2019.

"2019 Summer Quarter" means School quarter commencing on July 8,2019 and ending
on September 21,2019.

"2019 Winter Quarter" means School quarter commeucing on January 7, 2019 and
ending on March 23,2019.

ARTICLE n
PURCHASE AND SALE OP ASSETS AND ASSDMPHON OF LIABXLnTES.

2.1 Purchase and S^e. Subject to the teiins and conditions of this
Agreement at the Closing, Seller shall sell, contribute, convey, assign, transfer and deliver to
Buyers fi:ee and clear of all Claims, Encumbrances and Liens and Buyer shall purchase, acquire

(<»ea«o>i} 10
PM1\95SB0».4



case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#; 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 11 of 59. PagelD#: 10633

and lake asaigmnent and delivety of. in exchange for flie Purehaae Pnce ( as the srae may be
adjusted for any sums owed by SeUer to the Buyer), the Purchased Assets, including, without
limitation, aU of the following assets of SeUer (but excluding the Excluded Assets pursuant to
Section 2 J hereof):

(a) all Aecomns Receivable and other accounts and notes receivables (whrthK
cuirent or nonourrent) and all causes of action specifically pettaining to the coUection of the
foregoing (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the Excluded Receivables);

(b) all Intellectuai Property ovmed by the School and used solely by the Sctol
and all corresponding rights that, now or hereafter, may be secured throughout tte world md all
copies and tangible embodiments of any such Inteilectual Property m SeUet's possession or
control;

(c) all of Seller's rî ts existing under the Assumed Contracts listed on
Schedule 1;

(d) all machinery, equipment (including all transportation and office
equipment), computer equipment (including all servers, routers, and network
projection equipment, library equipment, telephone systems and furniture relating to the School
and owned by the Seller;

(e) all office supplies, spare parts, miscellaneous supplies, and other tangible
property of any kind relating solely to the School, including, wthout limitation, all property of
any kind located in any building, office or other space leased by Seller;

(f) all texts, journals, periodicals, documents, catalogs, indices, databases, core
materials, archives and other materials, written and electronic, located at the Premises owned by
Sellei^

(g) the Schoors OPE ID #04051300;

fh) Schoors tuition payments received or to be received by Seller or the School
for 2019 Soring Quarter and all SchooPs subsequent quarters, including, without limitation, the
Title IV funds and the VA funds) for the period April 1,2019 forward, including any Accounts
Receivable;

(i) the rî t to receive and retain mail (including electronic mail) and other
relating to the School as long as Buyer provides Sefier with copies of all mail

relating to the operation of the School received until the Closing;

(}) the rî t to bill and receive payment for services perfonned in connection
with the School for the period commencing 2019 Spring Quarter hut unbilled or unpaid as of the
Closing (other than with respect to any of the Excluded Receivables);

(k) all data, including, without limitation, student and financial data, stored or
maintained on the Shared IT Platform and any hard-copy paper files relating solely to the
School;

(i)g(m4sa>l)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 12 of 59. PagelD #: 10634

(1) all rr Systems solely for the benefit of the School that are located at the
Fiemises;

(m) ail telephone numbers used by Seller solely in connection with the operation
of the School;

(n) all indemnities from Third Parties relating to the Purchased Assets or the
Assumed Liabilities prior to the Closing Date.

All of the Purchased Assets will be sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed and delivered to Buyer
&ee and clear of all Liens.

2,2 Liabilities. Except for the Assumed Liabilities and the obligadons of
Buyer under the MSA as fox^ in Schedule 2.2, Buyer shall not assume, and sh^l have no
liability for, any Liabilities, obligations or commitments of Seller of any kind, character or
description, whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise, it being understood that Buyer is
expressly disclaiming any express or implied assumption of any Liabilities other than the
Assumed Liabilities (collectively, the "Excluded Liabilities"), each of which ̂ 11 be retained
and timely discharged by Seller. Regardless of whether any other Liabilities of Seller may be
disclosed to Buyer or whether Buyer may have actual knowledge of the same, Buyer shall not
assume, and Seller shall pay, perform, and discharge when due and remain exclusively liable for
the Excluded Liabilities, including, without limitation, all of the following Excluded Liabilities
(but excluding Assumed Liabilities):

(a) all obligations, claims, or Liabilities of Seller or any predecessor(s)
or AfEHate(s) of Seller that relate to Purchased Assets and the Excluded Assets prior to April 1,
2019;

(b) all obligations. Trailing Liabilities, Claims, Encumbrances or
Liabilities for which the School has, may owe or he required by the DOB or any Qoveniing
Authority to pay or be otherwise responsible for, relating to the student stipend(s) or other
monetaiy obligation(s) incuired or accrued by the School prior to April 1,2019;

(c) all Enviionmental liabilities unless caused by the action or
inaction of Buyer;

(d)' all obligations, claims, or Liabilities of Seller or any predecessor(s)
or Af51iate(s) of Seller or for which Seller or any predecessor(s) or AfSliates of Seller could be
liable relating to Taxes (including any Taxes relating to the Purchased Assets or otherwise) for
all periods, orportioos thereof, ending prior to April 1,2019;

(e) all obligafioas, claims, or Liabilities for any legal, accounting,
investment banking, brokerage, real estate appraisal, consulting or similar fees or e^qienses
incurred by Seller in connection with, resulting &om or attributable to the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement or otherwise;

{ooal2uo.t ( 12
I  OMIWSIOSM
I



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 13 of 59, PagelD #: 10635

all Indebtedness of Seller or any predece3aor(a) or A£6IiBte(s) of
Seller, includiog any Ibdebtednesa owed by Seller to any of its Affiliates or any Governmental
Authority;

(g) all Liabilities end obligations, including any and bll proceedings,
of Seller or any predece3sor(s) or AiSljate(s) of Seller resulting from, caused by or arising out of
the conduct or the operation of the School or the lease of the Premises or any other properties or
assets by Seller at any time prior to April 1,2019, or other actions, omissioDs or events occuning
prior to April 1,2019 (other than all cure payments payable in accordance with tenns of this
Agreement), whether past, present, future, known or unknown, liquidated or unliquidated,
acciued or unaccrued, pending or tbieatened;

(h) any Liability or obligation under any Assumed Contract which
arises after ike Closing but which arises out of any breach hereof by Seller that occuned prior to
the Aprill. 2019;

(i) any Liability or obligation of Seller under any contract:, agreement,
lease, mortgage, indenture or other instrument not assumed by Buyer hereunder except for those
obligations of Buyer under the MSA for period of April 1,2019 forward;

(j) any Liability or obligation of Seller under any employment,
severance, retention or termination agreement with any employee, consultant or contractor of
Sellerprior to April 1,2019;

(k) any Liability of Seller prior to April 1, 2019 for accrued but
unused vacation and sick leave;

(1) any Liability of Seller under any Employee Benefit Plan relating to
the School provided that Buyer terminates all employees at the School at Closmg;

(m) any Liability or obligation of Seller to indemnity, reimburse or
advance amounts to any officer, employee or agent of Seller prior to April 1,2019; and

(n) any Liability or obligation arising out of or resulting from Seller's
non-compliance with any Law or Kegulation prior to April 1,2019.

The Parties acknowledge and agree that disclosure of any obligation or Liability on any Schedule
to this Agreement will not create an Assumed Liability or other Liability of Buyer, except where
such disclosed obligation has been expressly assumed by Buyer as an Assumed Liability in
accordance with the provisions of Section 2.2 hereof; provided, however, that any and all
liabilities for obligations of Buyer under the MSA and any other expense incurred in die
Ordinary Course of Business for period of April 1, 2019 forward will not have to listed on
Schedule 2.2.

23 Purchase Price. As consideration for the sale of the Purchased Assets,
Buyer shall pay to Seller a purchase price of Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars
($250,000.00) adjusted by the Pre-Closing Audit (the "Purchase Price"), payable in cash by wire
transfer or other immediately available frmds at Closing. The Fre-Closing Audit shall be

iaKiz((o.t)

DMIVSjIIUM
13



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 14of 59. Page!D #: 10636

peifonned by Receiver's CFO and provided to the Buyer within thirty (30) days of the Effective
Date. To the extent that Buyer disputes the findings of the Fre-CIosing Audit, Buyer shall ootity
Seller in writing as soon as practicable after receipt of the Seller's Fre-Closing Audit but not later
than five (5) business days prior to Closbg of its objections (the "Objection Period") to Seller's
Pre^Ciosing Audit and provide to the Receiver's CFO documentation evidencing that (i) School
expenses were paid by Receiver from School's income generated fi:om April 1,2019, (ii) School
expenses were paid by Buyer or advanced by Buyer after April 1,2019 or (iii) School Expenses
were paid to Seller for payment of faculty salaries, rent or other expenses that accrued prior to
April 1,2019. Receiver's CFO shall take into account the documentation provided by Buyer and
shall, to the extent appropriate, make adjustment to the Pre-Closing Audit If Buyer fails to
provide written objections by the Objection Period, Buyer's ability to object to the Pre-Closing
Audit shall be deemed waived. Receiver's CFO'a fuidings and determmaiion which shall be
made in good fiiith shall be final between the Parties as to the Purchase Price.

24 Rights Held in Tnist. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, this
Agreement shall not constitute an agreement to assign any Purchased Asset if an attempted
assignment of such contract or agreement, without the consent of a third-party or Ooveming
Authorities, would constitate a breach thereof, or in any material adverse way affect the rights of
Seller (or the Buyer following the Closing) thereunder or with respect thereto. Buyer, with
Seller's cooperation, shall use its reasonable best efforts to obtain the consent to the assignment
of any such Purchased Asset in all cases in which such consent is required for assignment or
transfer and which Seller has agreed to coopeiate in a commercially reasonable manner.

ARTICLE m

REPRESENTATIONS OF SELLER

In order to induce Buyer to enter into this Agreement, Seller represents and warrants as
follows;

3.1 Existence and Good Standing of Seller.

(a) Seller is a limited liability company validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Arizona and is qualified to conduct business in the State
of Nevada. A Certificate of Full Force and Effect fiom the Arizona Secretary of State and a
Certificate of Force and Effect with the Nevada Secretary of State are jointly attached hereto as
Exhibit C.

(b) Seller has full power and authority to conduct its business at the
School as it is now being conducted, to own or use the properties and assets that it purports to
own or use at the School, and to perform all its obligations under the Assumed Contracts.

3.2 Authorization and Binding Obtigation. Pursuant to the Appointment
Order and subject to the entry of the Sale Order, Seller has fiill power and authority to execute
and deliver this Agreement and each other agreement, document, instrument and/or certificate
contemplated by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by Seller and to consummate the
Transaction and perform Seller's obligatioiis bereunder end thereunder.

{aco&4M.n 14
OM1V39SO)9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 15 of 59. Page!D#: 10637

3.3 Title to Purehaaed Assets. Seller has good and marketable title to, or a
valid leasehold interest in, all of the Purchased Assets, and subject to the entry of the Sale Order,
Seller can and shall deliver good and marketable title to, or a valid leasehold interest in, all of the
Purchased Assets, &ee and clear of all Liens. Pursuant to the entry of the Sole Order, none of the
Purchased Assets are nor shall be subject to Liens. The Purchased Assets shall be conveyed to
the Buyer &ee and clear of Liens, Claims or Encumbrances. Schedule 3.3 sets forth all tangible
personal property used or held for use by the School The Purchased Assets constitute all
properties and assets necessary to operate the School as currently operated.

Real Property. To the Knowledge of Seller, except as set forth in Schedule 3.5.
Seller does not own, and has never owned, any Real Property used by or held for use by the
School. Schedule 3.5 sets forth a complete and correct list of all Real Property in which the
Seller has a leasehold interest that is used or held for use by the School (the "School Real
Property"). Seller has delivered to Buyer a complete and coiiect copy of each lease or other
contract pertaining to School Real Property, together with all amendments, extensions, renewals,
modificatioos, alterations, guaranties and other changes thereto (the "School Leases") all of
which are identified on Schedule 3.5.

3.4 Broker's or Finder's Fees. No Person retained by Seller is or will be
entitled to any broker's or finder's fee or any sinular commission or fee in connecfion with the
Transaction.

3.5 Disclosure. No representation or wananty made by Seller in this
Agreement contains any untrue statements of a material fact or omits to state a fact necessary to
make the statements of fact contained herein not misleading.

article IV

REPRESENTATIONS OF BUYER

Buyer represents and warrants to Seller as follows:

4.1 Existence and Good- Standiug- of Buver. Buyer is a linoited liability
company validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Nevada and has all
requisite organizational power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry
on its business as now being conducted. A Cerhficate of Good Strading from the Nevada
Secretary of State is attached hereto as Exhibit E.

4.2 Authorization and Binding Obligation. Buyer has full power and
authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and each other agreement, document, instrument
and/or certificate contemplated by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by Buyer and to
consummate die Transaction and perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder. The
execution and delivery of this Agreement by Buyer and each other agreement, document,
instrument and/or certificate contemplated by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by
Buyer and the consummation by Buyer of the Transaction and performance of its obligations
hereunder and thereunder have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of Buyer.
This Agreement and each other agreement, document, instrument and/or certificate contemplated
by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by Buyer has been (or will be) duly executed and

CoecoMso-ii
DMl»SnO]9.4

IS



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #; 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 16 of 59. PagelD#: 10638

delivered by Buyer and, assuming the due authorization, execution, and deliveiy by Seller,
constitutes (or wiU constitutB) a valid and binding obligatioii of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer
in accordance with its tenns (subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization or
similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and the availability of equitable remedies).

4.3 Broker's or Finder's Fees. No Pezson retained by Seller is or will be
entitled to any broker's or finder's fee of any similar commission or fee in connection with the
Transaction.

44 No Vjolationa. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the
consummatioa of the Transaction and compliance with the provisions of this Agreement will not
conflict with, or result in any violation of, or de&ult (with or without notice or lapse of time, or
both) under, or give rise to a right of tenninatipn or acceleration of any obligation under, (a) the
Organizational Documents of the Buyer, (b) any agreement applicable to Buyer that would
impair the ability of Buyer to perform its obligations under this Agreement, or (c) any Applicable
Law.

41 AS IS. WHERE TS. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN
THIS AGREEMENT, ALL ACQUIRED PURCHASED ASSETS ARE BEING CONVEYED
HEREUNDER ON AN "AS IS, WHERE IS" BASIS AND SELLER MAKES NO
WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED. WITH RESPECT TO
THE PURCHASED ASSETS, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. ALL OF SUCH EXPRESS AND IMPLIED
WARRANTIES AND KEPRESENTATIONS, EXCEPT THOSE STATED HEREIN, ARE
HEREBY EXCLUDED. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SUBSECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE
CLOSING OR ANY TERMINATION HEREOF.

4.7 Current Oberations. Buyer acknowledges diat it has been providing
services to the School since April 1,2019 pursuant to the MSA. Except as otherwise stated in
this Agreement, Buyer is relying on its own knowledge and the knowledge it has gleamed from
praviding services to the School since April 1,2019,

4.8 Transition Services. Buyer acknowledges fliat if shared IT services or any
other kmd of services ("collectively, the "Services") previously provided by DCEH arc needed,
Buyer shall enter into a Transition Services and License Agreement with StucEo for said
Services. Buyer acknowledges that the Services that the Seller was providing pursuant to the
TSA can no longer be provided by DCEH or the Seller. To the extent that the Buyer does not
require any Services &om Studio, Buyer shall not be obligated in any way to negotiate or enter
into a Transition Services Agreement with Studio.

ARTICLE V

PRE-CLOSXNG COVENANTS OF SELLER

5.1 Conduct of the School Prior tb Closing. From the Effective Date through
and including the Closing, Buyer shall not, without the prior written consent of Seller, migage in
any practice, take any action, or enter into any transactibn with respect to the School outside the
Ordinaiy Course of Business other dian such actions taken in flntheiance of the transaction.

{9aaiM9<l I 16
OMIVSSU39.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 17 of 59. PagelD #: 10639

Until Closing, Sailer will use reasonable best efforts to take all action and do all ikings necessary
in order to consuxsmate and make effective die Transaction contemplated by this Agreement,
including, without limitation, compliance with and observance of the terms and conditions set
forth in this Article VI

5.2 Operation Of School until Ctosing. Seller will cooperate with Buyer for
Buyer to operate the School and Seller will not engage in any practice, take any action, or enter
in any transaction outside of the Ordinary Course of Business relative the School without
Buyer's approval which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, or except
as contemplated by this Agreement; provided, however, that if Seller and Buyer receive written
notice that the School is in violation of any Regulation by any Educational Agency which is not
being remedied by the Buyer, Seller shall have the right to take any action it deems necessary
mthout Ikst seeking approval of Buyer at Buyer's , sole cost and expense. To the .extent that
Seller is in receipt or prior to Closing receives any Accounts Receivable, funds or income
generated by the School after April 1,2019, Seller with Buyer's approval, agrees to either (i)
pay and apply such funds toward any outstanding expense of the School t^t was incuired after
April 1,2019 for which the Buyer is obligated to pay, or (ii) turn over funds, including without
limitation, any mccess ftmds after Seller's has paid Buyer's cbligations under 5.2(i), to Buyer.

5.3 Payment of Liabilities Incnnred Prior to AprO 1. 2019=. Seller shall
remain responsible for all obligations and Liabilities incuired by the School between the dates
January 18,2019 and April 1,2019, including any student stipends or unearned tuition or odier
obligations that a Governing Authority or Educational Agency requires to be satisfied for any
period prior to 2019 Spring Quarter. Seller agrees that Seller shall pay such obligatiofls or
Liabilities either prior to or immediately upon receipt of Title IV funds received for 2019
Winter Quarter. To the extent that Buyer, in its sole discretioa, advances any funds to pay off
any Liabili^ of Seller that is required to be paid by any Governing Authority or Educational
Agency in order to facilitate receipt of Title IV funds finm the DOE for the 2019 Winter
Quarter or otherwide to bring the School in compliance with any Governing Authority and
Educational Agency, such Buyer advanced funds shall be immediately paid by Seller to Buyer
from the Title IV fbnds received for the 2019 Winter Quarter or to fiie extent applicable adjust
the Purchase Price.

5.4 Access to Information. No later than five (5) business days after entry of
the. Sales Order, Seller shall copy and provide to Buyer in a manner acceptable to Buyer all data
located on the Shared FT Platform including, without limitation student and financial data set
foilb on CampusVue, LnageNow, CARS and the Lawson and Kronos Software, relevant to the
operation of the School. Prior to Closing, Buyer and Buyer's represoitatives shall hold all such
information in confidence and shall not disclose any such mfoimation to any third parties
without the express written consent of Seller. Should this transaction not close, any and all
documents, notes, memorandum. Curriculum, etc. provided to Buyer in any fbnnat pursuant to
this Agreement, whether set forth in this Section or in any other part of this Agreement, shall be
returned to Seller within three (3) business days of when this Agreement is terminated.

5^ Accounting. Fourteen (14) days of the Effective Date, Seller shall provide
Buyer wifii complete accounting on a cash basis showing all income and expenses or other
Liabilities of the School, including any invoices or evidence of indebtedness r^eived or paid by

(OOOCU«0.i) 17
0Mi\95SIQ39/(



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 18 of 59. Page!D #: 10640

Seller £roni January 18, 2019 to March 31,2019. For the period April 1, 2019 forward. Seller
shall provide Buyer wl& complete accounting on a cash basis showing all income and expenses
or other Liabilities of the School received or paid by Seller, including without limitations, any
and all invoices, whether paid or unpaid, as well as proof of payment

3,6 Consents and Approvals. Until Closing, Seller, will cooperate with
Buyer, in order for Buyer (1) to obtain ah necessary approvals, accreditations, acquiescences and
other authorizations necessary for the operatjon of the School after Closing, including without
limitatioas those from ACXCS, DOE, Educational Agency or any other Governmental Authority;
(ii) to obtain all necessary consents and approvals to consununate the purchase and sale of the
Purchased Assets and the assignment of Assumed Liabilities, if any, together with any other
necessary consents and approvals to consummate the Transaction, and (iii) to make all tilings,
.appIicatious,_atatements..and .rq3orts to all Educational Agencies or Governmental Authorities
that arc required to be made prior to Closing pursuant to any applicable Regulation in connection
with this Agreement and the transactions cootemplated hereby.

(a) Pre.C16s?ng: Educational J^otices/Consents. Seller shall cooperate
with BuQ^er for Buyer to obtain the Educatior^ Notic^Consents and aziy Educational Approvals
necessary for operation of the School, including, without limitation, obtaining the Pie-Closing
Educational Notices/CoDSeots, including, without limitation, cooperate with Buyer to (i)
complete all required and voluntary pre-acqoisition processes with (he Educational Agency,
including without limitation, DETR, end (U) assist Buyer in the filing of a Pre-Acquisition
Review Application with the DOE in order to obtain the DOB Pre-Acquisition Review Notice..
Seller shall use commercially reasonable best efforts to assist Buyer with the foregoing, and
Seller and Buyer shall each provide any additional inibimation concerning itself and shall
execute such documents as are necessary with respect to the Educational Notices/Consents and
any necessary Educational Approvals.

(b) Educational AgencV-Gommunicatiops. Seller shall cooperate with
Buyer in order for the Buyer to be able to submit letters, applications, or other documents to be
to any Educational Agency or Governmental Authority with respect to any consent, license or
Pre<Closing Educational Notices/Consent or in connection with the Pre-acqnisition Review
Application to be filed with the DOE. Seller shall not make any written or verbal statements or
representations regarding the transactions contemplated hereby to any Educational Agency or
other third party without tiie advance consultation and consent of Buyer which shall not be
unreasonably witiiheld, conditioned or delayed. Seller shall promptly advise Buyer conceming
any discussions or other communications, whether oral or written, with any Educational Agency,
Governmental Authority or other third party with respect to any such letters, applications or
other documents that Seller may receive the Educational Agency or the Govermnent
Authority. To the extent required by any Governmental Agency or Educational Agency,
Receiver will ensure that he is available to attend any scheduled hearings or meetings in
connection with obtaining any consent, license, Pre-Closing Educational Notices/Consent or
other Educational Approval.

5.7 Notice of Developments. Until Closing, Seller will give prompt written
notice to Buyer of all materially adverse developments or developments causing a breach of

(409B4U.1 > 18
OMIVSSKSM



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 19 of 59. Page ID #: 10641

any of Seller's representatioDS, warranties and covenants hereunder or developments adversely
affecting Seller's ability to perform its obligations bereunder.

M  Exclusivity. From the date of this Agreement tfaroagli and including the
Closing, Seller shaE not (i) solicit^ initiate or encourage the submission of any proposal or offer
firom, or enter into any agreement with, any Person relating to the acquisition of any equity
interests or other voting securities of, or any portion of the Puichased Assets (including any
acquisition structured as a merger, cousolidatioii, or share exchange) or (ii) participate in any
discussions or negotiations regarding, fuxnish any information with respect to, assist or
participate in, or facilitate in any other manner any effort or attempt by any Person to do or
seek any of the above.

Further Assurances. Each of the Parties agre^ to use cpnunacially
reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all action and to do, or cause to be done, and to
assist and cooperate with the other Party in doing, all things necessary, proper, or advisable to
consummate the Transaction.

Notice of Develooments. Until Closing, Seller will give prompt written
notice to Buyer of all materially adyerse developments or developments causing a breach of any
of Seller's representations, warranties and covenants hereunder or developments adversely
affecting Seller's abill^to perform Its obligations hereunder.

ARTICLE VI

PRE-CLOSINC COVENANTS OF BUVER

M  Operation :df School. Since the execution of the MSA and continuing
until Closing, Buyer, with the assist of Seller, shall to continue to operate the School and will not
engage in any practice, take any action, or enter in any transaction outside of the Ordinary
Course of Business except in each case (i) as contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) with Seller's
approval, or (iii) for actions taken or omitted to be taken at the request of Seller, Buyer, after the
entry of the Sale Order and prior to Closing, shall be solely and exclusively responsible to pay ail
costs and expenses set forth in MSA and shall deposit in SeUer's account sufiBcient funds as
determined by Seller, in his sole and exclusive detetmination, an amount to cover the costs and
®*P«p5e3 of the School. Further cpmcaencmg August .1, 2019 and continuing .thereafter until
Closing, Buyer agrees to pay for any and all expenses and costs set forth in the MSA or any other
expense of Ae School in the Ordinary Course of Business ftom April 1,2019 forward, including
but not limited to, rent, payroll, workers' compensation coverage, taxes relating to the operation
of the School of any and all kind, and all facility costs and expenses from April 1,2019 forward.

M  Payment of Liabilities Incurred: After. fo-Anril J. 2019. Buyer shall be
responsible for all obligations and Liabilities incuned by the School after April 1, 2019,
including any student stipends or unearned tuition or other obligations that a Governing
Authority or Educational Agency requires to be satisfied for 2019 Spring Quarter, 2019 Summer
Quarter or any subsequent School quarters.

(OOOUIW.! I 19
OMl\»Un39.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 20 of 59. PagelD #: 10642

^  -Consgnts 'Md Abofovals; After entry of the Sale Order, Buyer will use
reasonable best efforts with Seller^s cooperarton (1) to obtain all necessary approvals,
accreditations, acquiescence and other authorteatioQS for Buyer's operation of the School aher
Closing, including without linutations, Educational Approval and Qovemmental Approval from
ACICS, DOE, Educational Agency or any other Govenunenlal Authori^ (iQ to obtain all
necessary consents and approvals, as reasonably requested by Seller, to consummate the
purchase and sale of the Puicbased Assets and the assignment of Assumed Liabilities, if any,
together with any other necessary consents and approvals to consummate the TransactioD, and
(iii) to make, as reasonably requested by Seller, all 61ings, applications, statements and reports to
all Educational Authorities and Governmental Authorities that are required to be made prior to
Closing by or on behalf of Buyer or Seller pursuant to any applicable Regulation in connection
with this Agreement and the transacdons contemplated hereby.

(a) Pre'Closing Educational Kodces/Consents. Buyer shall use commercially
reasonably good faith best efforts, with Seller's cooperation, to obtain the Educational
Notices/Consents and any Educational Approvals necessary for the performance of its
obligations pursuant to this Agreement, including, without limitation, obtaining the Fre-Closing
Educational Notices/Consents, including, without limitation, to (i) complete all required and
voluntary pre-acquisition processes with the State Educational Agency, including DETR or any
other Educational Agency or Governmental Authority, and 00 fite a Pre-AcquiaitiDa Review
Application with the DOE in order to obtain die DOE Pre-Acquisition Review Notice. Seller
shall cooperate and assist Buyer with the foregoing, and Seller and Buyer shall each provide any
additional infonnation concerning itself and shall execute such documents as is necessary with
respect to the Educational Notices/Consents and any necessary Educational Approvals,

(b) Educational Aeencv Coromunieations. Buyer shall provide Seller with
copies of all letters, applications, or other documents to be submitted to, or received from, any
Educational Agency or Governmental Authority with respect to any consent, license or
Pre-CIosmg Educational Notices/Consent or in connection with the Pre-Acquisition Review
Application to be Bled with tee DOE, including drafts of any such letters, appEcations end other
documents; provided that no such letters, applications, or oteer documents shall be submitted to
any Educational Agency without the prior review and consent of Seller, such consent not to be
unreasonably delayed, conditioned or witiiheld, Keiteer party shall make any written or verbal
statements or represcutations regarding the transactions contemplated hereby to any Educatioaal
Agency or oteer third party without tee advance consultation and consent of tee other par^.
Each party will promptly advise the other party concerning any discussions or other
communications, whether oral or written, with any Educational Agency, Goveismental
Aufhority.or other third party with respect to any such letters, applications or oteer documents.
Each pa^ will ensure that their appropriate ofticers and employees shall be available to attend,
as any Govemxncntal Authority or Educational Agency may reasonably request, any scheduled
hearings or meetings in connection with obtaining any consent, license, Fre-Cloaing Educational
Notices/Consent or oteer Educational Approval

6.4 Notice of Devielobrnenfe. Until Closing, Buyer will give prompt written
notice to Seller of all materially adverse developments or developments causing a breach of any
of Buyeds representations, waxianties and covenants hereunder or developments advexsely
affecting Buyer's ability to perfonn its obligations hereunder.

{MOUMO-tl 20
DMt\9SSB019.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 21 of 59. Page!D#: 10643

^  Pre^Glbsfng Audits. Buyer ackcowledges and agrees at Buyer's sole cost
and expense, with Seller^s cooperation, to (a) complete any student financial aid compliance
audit(s) or any other audits of Ae School required by any Educational Agency related to all or
any portion of any period after September 1, 2013 (collectively, the "Pre-CIosing Compliance
Audits"); (b) provide Seller, for its review, copies of the Pre-Closing Compliance Audits
promptly upon their completion, but no later than fourteen (14) days before the date on which the
j?re-Clo5ing Compliance Audits are due under applicable Law or Educational Law, and (c)
permit Buyer to submit the Pre-CIosing Compliance Audits in accordance witii applicable Law
or Educational Law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Buyer shall not be re^onsible in any
manner for failure to complete any Pre-Closing Compliance Audits that were due or should have
been submitted to any Educational Agency or Government Authorify prior to the Effective Date.

Accounting. Ten (.10) days of the. Effective Date,..Buyer shall provide
Seller wdth complete accounting and other financial records showing all income and expenses or
other Liabilities of the School received or paid by Buyer from January 18, 2019, forward,
including without limitations, any and all invoices, whether paid or unpaid, as well as proof of
payment.

. Termination of Employee BenefitPlansi So long as all present employees
at the School are terminated by Buyer at Closing, Buyer will have no lability whatsoever for the
current Employee Benefit Plan relating to or for the School,

^  Change of Name oFSchooL Buyer shall take whatever steps are
necessary to obtain such consents or approval firom a Goveimnental Authority to effectuate a
change of name for the School in accordance with the Second Settlement Agreement by and
between the Receivership Entities and Studio and as approved by the court. Buyer upon Closing
shall take action to obtain approval from Governmental Authorities and Education Agencies to
change the name of the School and upon obtaining such approval Buyer will no longer be able to
use the name The Art Institute. Notwithstanding the foregoing, under no circumstances shall
Buyer be able to use the name The Ait Institute after Change of Control has been obtained.

ARTICLE Vn

CLOSING

2il . Glosihg. The closing of the Transaction contemplated .by this Agreement
(the "Closing") shall take place at the offices of Seller's counsel, McCarthy, Lebit, Ciyatal &
Llffinan CO., LPA at 101 W. Prospect Avenue, Suite 1800, Cleveland, Ohio 44115 and the
Transaction shall be effective as of 12:01 a.in. Pacific Time on the three (3"* ) business day
following Buyer's receipt of all Governmental Approvals and Educational Approvals or such
other ̂ date u the Buyer and Seller may mutually delennine (the "Closing Date*\)
NotwitlBtanding the foregoing, if the Closing were to occur after the 15*^ calendar day of the
month, it shall be extended to the first business day of the following month. The performance of
all of the obligations and actions required of the Parties at the Closing shall be deemed to have
occurred simultaneously, regardless of the order in which such performance actually occurs. If,
however, Closing does not occur prior to November 1,2019, this Agreement shall be null and
void db initio and the Parties shall have no ftirther liability to one another and the MSA shall
further terminate. The Pre-CIosing Audit shall then be performed and all sums due under the

poaww-ij 21
DMl\9S3t01M



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 22of 59. PagelD#: 10644

MSA asd TSA after adjustments for any sums paid Buyer to Seller for expenses incuiied prior
to April U 2019 shall be paid with three (3) ̂endar days of completion of the Pre-Closing
Audit.

7j2 Buyer's Cohditioas^to Glosing. The obligation of Buyer to consummate
the Transaction is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver of Buyer) as of the Closing of the
following conditions:

(a) the Court shall have issued the Sale Order approving the sale of
Purchased Assets to Buyer firee and dear of all Liens and Claims, which time for any appeal
shall have expired Sale Order, a copy of which shall have been delivered to Buyer;

(b) Buyer shall have received documentary evidence, to the sole satis&cfioa
of Buyer, that dl notices, approvals, consents, registrations, pennits, authorizations or other
ccn&mations, in each case, required, proper, or advisable to be made with or obtained from any
Governmental Authority or Hducational Agency to consummate the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement, including the Pre-Closing Educational Consents set forth on Schedule 7.2(b), have
heen made or obtained, as applicable, and do not contain any Adverse Regulatory Condition;

(c) Buyer shall have received written confirmatioR from DOE that the School's
planned documentation submittal intended to demonstrate compliance with 34 CFR §60Q,9(a)
will be accepted by the DOE and will not impede School's continued Title IV Programs
paiticipatioa after the Closing Date or result in the issuance of the TPPA or PPA that includes an
Adverse Regulatory Condition;

(d) the School shall have received a Pre-Acquisition Review Re^onse that does
not contain any Adverse Regulatory Condition or indicate the existence of any material
impediments to the Issuance of a TPPPA or FPPA following the Closing;

(e) none of Seller, the School, or Buyer shall have received from any
Educational Agency any communicatioa that any Educational Approval will be suspended,
revoked, tenninated, or cancelled unless caused by the actioa, inaction or omission on the part of
Buyer;

(0 none of Seller, the Schcwl, or Buyer shdl JiaYe^ w
Educatiohal Agency any comiriubicarion that any of the Post-Ciosing Education^ Consents set
forth on Schedule 7.2(f) will not be issued or will be subject to en Adverse Regulatory Condition
unless caused by the action, inaction or omission on the part of the Buyer;

(g) no proceeding by any Third Party, Educational Agency or any
Oovemmental Authority with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby shall be pending or
threatened in writing and no order shall have been entered in any proceeding that would have fiie
effect of (i) making any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the transaction
illegal, (ii) otherwise preventing die consummatioa of such transactions, or (iii) imposing
limitations on such transactions and/or the ability of Buyer to perform its obilgatioDS hereunder
or to operate the School after the Closing Date;

i  {araiMo.i ] 22
I  DMlVSStajM



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 23of 59. PagelD#: 10645

(h) the represeotatioos and warranties of Seller contained in this Agreement
shall be true and conect in all respects on and as of the Closing Date with the same effect as
though made at or as of the Closing Date, in each case, other than representations and warranties
that address matters only as of a specified date, which shall be true and correct as of such
specified date;

(i) the Seller shall have duly performed and complied in all material respects
with all agreements, covenants and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed or
complied with hy it prior to or on the Closing Date;

(j) at Closing, Seller shall have delivered to Buyen

(i) actual possession of Purchased Assets, if Buyer is not
already in possession, capable of passing by delivery with the intent that title in sucH Purchased '
Assets will pass by and upon delivery;

(ii) the Bill of Sale, duly executed by Seller for the Purchased
Assets and such other good and sufficient instruments of sale, conveyance, transfer and
assignment as may be required to vest in the Buyer all right, title and interest of Seller in and to
the Purchased Assets, firee and clear of all Liens, Claims, Encumbrances and obligations;

(Hi) Lien releases on any UCC filings with respect to the
Purchased Assets; and such other documents relating to the Transactioa contemplated by this
Agreement as Buyer may reasonably request,

7.3 Seller's Conditions, to. Closing. The obligation of Seller to consummate
the Transaction is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver of Seller) as of the Closing of the
following conditions:

(a) Buyer shall have perfonned and complied in all material respects
with all agreements, obUgatioDS and covenants required to be performed or complied with by it
on or prior to the Closing Date.

At Closing, Buyer shall have delivered to Seller all of foe following:

(i) the Purchase Price;

(ii) all documents to be delivered by Buyer necessary for the
Closing; ̂ d

(in) such other documents relating to foe Transaction
contemplated by this Agreement as Seller may reasonably request.

2A Form of Instruments. To foe extent foat a form of any document to be
delivered heteunder is not attached as an Exhibit hereto, such documents will be in form and
substance, and will be executed and delivered in a manner, reasonably satisfactory to Buyer and
Seller.

taoaaHO-l] 23
DMi\9jS»39.4



Case: 'l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 24 of 59. PagelD #: 10646

ARTICLE Vni

ADDITIONAL POST CLOSING COVENANTS

Sii ,Jomt P6st»Clos!hg CbVenaDt" of fee; Parties: The Parties jointly covenant
and agree that, £*001 and after the Closing Date, they will each use commercially reasonable
efforts in connection with any proceeding, investigation or audit of the other relating to (a) the
preparatioo of an audit of any Tax Retum of Seller for all periods prior to or including the
Closmg Date, and (b) any audit of Buyer and/or any audit of Seller with respect to the sales,
transfer and similar Taxes imposed by the laws of any state or political subdivision thereof,
relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, hi furriierance hereof, the Parties
further covenant and agree to promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries related to such matters
and to provide, to the extent reasonably possible, substantiaticn of transactions and to make
available and furnish appropriate documents and personnel in connection therewith. All costs
and expenses incurred in connection with this Section 8.1 will be home by the Party who is
subject to such action.

M  Trans^'tion. Seller will not take any action that is designed or intended to
have the effect of discouraging any lessor, licensor, customer, supplier, or other business
associate of Seller from maintaining the same business relationships with the Buyer and/or the
School after the Effective Date or Closing as it maintamed with Seller prior to the Effective Date
without the consent of Buyer.

ARTICLE DC

INDEMNIFICATION

2iJ. Survival of Repfesentatioiis. Warriainties and Govenahts. All covenants
and agreements of the Parties contained in this Agreement shall survive the Closing indefinitely
or for the period e^qilicitly ̂ ecified therein. The expiration of any covenant shall not affect any
claim made in good faith and in accordance with this Agreement prior to the date of such
expiration.

22 indemnification bv Buyer. Buyer shall indemnify and hold bannlcss
Seller and its directors, officers, employees, shafelioldeis, agents, representatives, successors and
assigns (collectively, the "Seller Indemnified Parties"), firom all losses, liabiHties, damages,
demands, claims, suits, actions, judgments, assessments, costs and expenses, including, without
limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, reasonable expenses incmied in investigating, preparing or
defending aga^t any litigation, commenced or threatened, and all amounts paid in settlement of
any claim or htigation ("Damages"), asserted against, imposed upon, or incurred or suffered by
any Seller Indemnified Party, as a result of or arising fiom any breach or ncofiiliiUment of any
covenants or agreements made by Buyer in this Agreement (collectively, the "Seller's
Indemnifiable Claims"), which arise or result ftom and to the extent they are attributable to;

(a) die breach of any representation or warranty made by Buyer
pursuant to this Agreement;

(b) the breach of, or failure to perform, any of the covenants,
commitments, agreements or cbligatioDS of Buyer under or contained in this Agreement;

(BOaUMO.!) 24
DMIUSSSOJM



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 25 of 59. PagelD #: 10647

(c) any Claim asserted against Seller with respect to any matter
concerning Buyer's Mure to provide by the terms and conditions set forth in the MSA and,
more specifically, any allegations made by any Accrediting Body, ACICS, Govemmental
Authority, or any Third Parly for any vioiafiona or Claims Qccuired or accrued firom April 1,
2019 forward;

(d) the use or operation of the School and the Purchased Assets fiom
April 1,2019 forward; or

(e) the Assumed Obligations.

ARTICLE X

MISCBLLANEDUS

10.1 Expenses. Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement,
each Party shall pay its own expenses in coimectioa with the negotiation, executioQ and
performance of this Agreement, the Transaction, and all things required to be done by it pursuant
to this Agreement, including counsel fees, brokerage, finder or financial advisor fees, filing fees
and accounting fees.

10.2 Spwific Petformance. Each Party's obligation under this Agreement is
unique. If any Party should breach its covenants under this Agreement, the Parties each
acknowledge that it would be extremely impracticable to measure the resulting damages;
accordingly, the non-breaching Party or Parties, in addition to any other available rights or
remedies, may sue in equity for specific perfoimance.

10.3 Governing Law: Waived of Jxiiv Trial:. Consent to Junsdictibn: Service of
Process.

(a) All issues and questions concerning the constiuctioD, validity,
enforcement and intecpretation of this Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in
accordance with, the laws of the State of Ohio without giving effect to any choice of law or
conflict of law rules or provisions.

(b) Each Party acknowledges and agrees that'ahy Actions' (in cohhact,
in tort or otherwise) arising out of or relating to this Agreement, any transactions contemplated
hereby, any relationships between or among the Parties beraunder 'and any disputes with respect
to any of the foregoing is likely to mvolve complicated and dlfiicult issues, and therefore it
hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waives any right it may have to a trial by jury in respect
of any such Action.

(c) EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES PERSONAL SERVICE
OF THE SUMMONS, COMPLAINT AND OTHER PROCESS ISSUED IN ANY ACTION
OR SUIT AND AGREES THAT SERVICE OF SUMMONS, COMPLAINTS AND
OTHER PROCESS MAY BE MADE BY REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED MAIL
ADDRESSED TO SUCH PARTY AT THE ADDRESS SET FORTH IN SECTION 10.4
OF THIS AGREEMENT AND THAT SERVICE SO MADE SHALL BE DEEMED

imuwa-i) 25
DMi\955n39.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 26 of 59. PagelD #: 10648

COMPLETED UPON THE EARLIER OF SUCH PARTY'S ACTUAL RECEIPT

THEREOF OR THREE (3) DAYS AFTER DEPOSIT IN THE UNITED STATES MAIL»
PROPER POSTAGE PREPAID.

10.4 Notices. All notices, requests, demands, and other communications
under this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given if delivered
by hand; sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage and fees prepaid;
Federal Express or similar overnight courier; sent by sent by facsimile; or sent by email, and
addressed as follows:

If to Seller:

with a copy to:

Mack £. Dottore

do Dottore Companies, LLC
2344 Canal Rd.

Cleveland, OH 44113
Attn: Ma^E Dottore
Email: mBik@dottoreco.com
Facsimile: (216) 771-2450

McCarthy, Lebit, Crystal & Llffinon Co., LPA
lOl W, Prospect Ave., Suite 1800
Cleveland, OH 44115
Attn: Charles A. Nemer, Esq.
Emml: can@mccacthylehit,com
Facsimile; (216) 696-1422

If to Buyer: Save the Ait Institute of Las Vegas Limited
2350 Corporate Circle, Suite 100
Henderson, NV 89074
Attn: William Turbay
Email: watuibBy@gmail.com
Facsimile: (702) 667-4818

with a copy to: Howard & Howard
3800HowardHughesPkwy. Suite 1000
Las Vegas, NV 89169
Attn: Owen RutorMullins, Esq.
Email: gmullin5@howardandhoward.com
Facsimile; (702) 667-4818

Addresses are pcimltted to be changed by notice in writing signed by a Party desiring to change
such Party's address, but any such notice of change of address will not be effective until actually
received by the other Party. All notices will be deemed given on the day delivered, if (a)
personally delivered, facsimiled (with confiiisation of transmission) or emailed to the Fa^
receiving such notice, provided that if delivered by facsimile or email, a copy of the notice shall
also be seat by the method in subsection (b) or (c) below; (b) on the business day after the day

(ooo2ii«.n
DMIV3SI019.4

26



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 27 of 59. Page!D#: 10649

deposited, if delivered by Federal Express or similar ovemiglit courier; or (c) on the third (3"^)
business day following deposit in the U.S. mail.

Counterparts. This Agreement is Fennitted to be executed in two or
more counterparts, all of which" taken together shall constitute one instrument Copies of
signatures of the Parties received by facsimile or email shall be effective as original signatures.

IM ^Headings. Ihe subject headings of the Sections and Paragraphs of this
Agreement are included for purposes of convenience only, and will not affect the construction or
mterpietation of any of its provisions.

IM 'No Third P^ Benefidanes. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of
the Parties hereto Md no provision of this Agreement will be deemed to confer upon Third
Parties any rights, remedies. Claims or causes of action.

IM. Further Assurances. At any time following the Effective Date, each of the
Parties agrees to execute and/or deliver such instruments or documents as may be reasonably
requested by the other Party to (i) constrmmate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement,
(ii) effectuate fully the purposes of this Agreement, and (iii) vest in each Party the rights and
interests confecred upon such Party under this Agreement

IM No Agency Relationship. Neither Party may bind the other or otherwise
act in any way as the representative of the other Party, unless otherwise expressly agreed to in a
writing signed by authorized representatives of both Parties before any such act or
representation. Neither Party may represent itself as the other Party's agent for any purpose to
any Third Party or to allow any of its employees to do so, unless specifically authorized, in
advance and in writing, to do so, and &en only for the limited purpose stated in such
authorization. Neither Party's employees are employees of the other Party.

10.10 Entire AEneement. This Agreement and Schedules and Exhibits
referenced in this Agreement embody the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior and contemporaneous agreements
and understandings, oral or written, relative to said subject matter.

10.11 Binding Effect: Assigmnerit. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and be binding upon teller and Buyer and their successors and Permitted assigns. Neither this
Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder shall be transferred or
assigned (by operation of law or otherwise) by any of the Parties without the prior written
consent of the other Parties, provided, however, that Buyer may assign this Agreement and all of
its rights, interests and obligations under this Agreement to an Affiliate of Buyer without the
consent of Seller. Any transfer or assignment of any of the rights, interests or obligations m
violation of the terms of this Agreement shall be null and void.

IMl Amendment: Waiver. This Agreement is not permitted to he amended,
terminated, augmented, rescinded or discharged (other than by perfonnance), in whole or in part,
except by a writing executed by each of the Parties. No waiver of any of the provisions or
conditions of this Agreement or any of the rights of a Party shall be effective or binding unless
the waiver is in writing and signed by the Party claimed to have consented to it

(oon»6»>}

PMI\SS5I039.4
27



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 28of 59. Page!D#: 10650

10.13 Severabil!^. With reap€Ct to any provision of this Agreement finally
determined fay a court of con^etrat jurisdiction to be unenforceable, the Parties agree that such
court shall have JuiisdictiDa to reform such provision so that it is enforceable to the maximum
extent Permitted by law, and the Parties agree to abide by such courfs determinatioQ. If any such
provision of this Agreement cannot be reformed, such provision shall be deemed to be severed
from this Agreement, but every other provision of this Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect

10.14 Tax Ad\dce and Rellaiice. None oflhe Parties to this Agreement (nor any
of the Parties* respective counsel, accountants or other representatives) has made or is making
any representations to any other Party (or to any other Party's counsel, accountants or other
representatives) concerning die consequences of the Transaction under applicable Tax laws.
£ach Party has relied solely upon the tax advice of its own representatives engaged by such Party
and not on any such advice provided by any other Party

10.15 Time. Time is of the essence widi respect to this Agreement and the
perfonnance by the Parties hereunder.

10.16 Court Approval. The Parties understand that this Agreement is subject to
Court approval.

[Remainder of page left Intentionally blank]
[Signature pages on following page]

28
OMl\9U8UM



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 29 of 59. PagelD #: 10651

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by or on behalf of each
of the Parties below as of the date iint above written.

BUYER;

Save The Art Institute Las Vegas: Limited

Name: Williani Turbay
Title: Mana;

SELLER:

Name solely in his capacity as
receiver ror Institute of Las Vegas,
LLC punuant to that certain Order
Appointiog Receiver entered on January
18,2019, by the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Ohio,
Eastern Division

[Signature Page to Asset Purchase Agreement]

{poaa«w.t|



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 30of 59. PagelD#: 10652

SCHEDULEI

Assumed-Contracts

NONE

I  DMl\955a»9,4



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 31 of 59. Page!D#: 10653

SCHEDULE 2.2

AssumedLiabilitiea

Any and all liabilities for obligations of Buyer under the MSA and any other expense incutied in
the Ordinary Course of Business for period of April 1,2019 forward

31
DMtW}U».4



Case: 1;19-cv-06145-DAP Doc#; 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 32 of 59. PagelD #: 10654

SCHEDULE 33

Tanpible Peraonal Brbpertv

All peisonal property owned by Seller located at the Premiees and/or on School Real
Property, including, wi&out limitation:

(a) all machineiy, equipment (includmg all transportation and^ office
equipment), computer equipment (including all aervers, routers, and network equipment),
projection equipment, library equipment, telephone systems and furniture relating to the School
in which Seller has all ligb^ title and ownership to;

(b) all office supplies, spare parts, miscellaneous supplies, and other legible
property of any kind relating solely to the School, including, without UmitatiGn, all property of
any kind located in any building, office or other space leased by Seller; and

(c) all texts, journals, periodicals, library books, documents, catalogs, indices,
databases, core materials, archives and other materials, written and electronic, located at the
School premises.

{OMStfe-n DMM55M5W



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 33 of 59. PagelD #: 10655

SCHEiDXJXrS 3>5

Real PrODertv

The following is a complete and correct list of all Real Property in which the Seller has a
leasehold interest:

(1) Seller Real Property located at 2350 Corporate Circle, Suite 1OO,
Henderson, Nevada 89074 which is currently subject to a Lease Agreement between Seller and
Tech Park 6, LLC.

(00032440.1) 33
0M)\MSia»>4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 34 of 59. PagelD#: 10656

scte:iiJgE^2

Pre-CIosing Educational Gonaehtis

Tre-Ctosing EHucationa! Co^ents. mdUdi'hgbul nbt limited to:.:

1. United States Department of Education (E^)
a. Receipt of DOEPre-Acquisltioa Review Letter.

2. Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation, Commission of
Fostsecondaiy Education (DETR)

a. Receipt of DETR application and approval of transfer and/or change of
ownership/control.

3. Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools (ACICS)
a. Notification, application and approval of Change of Ownership/Control

Application Part I.

4. American Culinary Federation Education Foundation's Accrediting Commission
(ACFEFAC)

a. Notification and approval prior to change of ownership.

{eoa2i««i-i| l>Ml\93Sta39.4 4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 35 of 59. Page!D #: 10657

SCHEDULE

pQst.Closihg Educiatidnil Consehts

Post-Closicg Educational Consents-mcluding but not limitedi:to!

1. United States Depaitment of Education (ED)
a. Application and approval.

2. Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools (ACICS)
a.

3, Nevada ConnnisBion on Poataecoudary Education (CPE)
a. Application and appfovaL

4. Council for Eiterior Design Accreditation (CIDA)
a. Notification and approval

DMI\95aiO».4

35



Case; l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed; 07/15/19 36 of 59. PagelD#: 10658

exhibit A

NONE

(CH224W-11



Case; 1;19-CV-00145-DAP Doo#: 390-1 Filed 07/15/19 37 of 59. PagelD #; 10659

exehbub

BillofSrie

(OMlMU't i
OMlV;5SaOS9.4



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 38 of 59. Page!D#: 10660

BtH of Sale

That, The Art Institute of Lbs Yegss, LLC, an Arizona nonprofit limited liability
company that is registered m the State of Nevada as The DC Ait Institute of Las Vegas, LLC the
"Schcor"'), by and through Mark B. Dottore, Receiver, appointed by the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division (the "Court"), the Grantor, for the
consideration as stated in the Assets Purchase Agreement received to its full satisfaction from
Save The Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited, the Grantee, has bargained sold and conveyed,
and by these presents, and with full authority, including the approval of the Court, does bargain,
sell and convey unto the said Grantee, its heirs and assigns, fiee and clear fiom all Interests as
defined in the Order of Sale, the following described goods, wares, merchandise, chattels and
effects, to-wit:

Purchased Assets, as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement dated July 15, 2019,
including without limitation, those assets set forth in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

To have and to hold the same unto the said Grantee, its heirs and assigns, to Grantee and
its own proper use and behoof forever.

And it, the said Grantor, does for itself and its heirs, covenants and agrees to and with the
said Grantee, Its heirs and assigns, that above bargained goods, wares, merchandise, chattels and
effects are fiee and clear fiom all Xnterests as defined in the Order of Sale, and that It is the true
and lawful owner thereof and has good li^t and lawM authority to bargain and sell the same in
the manner and form as aforesaid, and that it will and its heirs and assigns shall warrant and
defend die same against the lawful claims and demands of all persons whomsoever.

In Witness Whereof I hereunto set my hand at Cleveland, Ohio this
-  . 2019.

day of

The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC Signed in presence of:

By: Mark E. Dottore, solelyin his capacity
as receiver for The Art Institute of Las Vegas,
LLC pursuant to that certain Order Appointing
Receiver entered on January IS, 2019, by the
United States District Court for the Northern
District of Ohio, Eastern Division

(oiraasai-i}



case: I:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19'39of 59, PagelD#: 10661

exhibit 1

All riBto. dfle ".a " in any all of tfie Purchaaed Aaaata as dofinod in to Asset
Purchase Agreement, mcluding wilhout liimtation.

Slg(«S&avoidanccofdaubt.toExctoedRec.ivabh^^^^

control;

(C) all of SeUrfs rights existing under to Assumed Contracts listed on
Schedule I;

-that is owned by the School,

/ N 11 wmnliet soaie oarts, miscellaneous supplies, and other tangibleproperty of enjld mlatols^^to'th? School.
my kind located in any building, ofBce or oier space leased by Seller,

materials
Seller,

rfb «n f«ls ioumals periodicals, documents, catalogs, indices, databases, core
sals, archives «d S and electronic, located at to Premtaes ovrnad by

(g) the Schcors OPE ID # 04051300;

K«iSSSS3$3S
Receivable;

m to risht to receive and retain mail (including electromc mail)
commuDicaHo4 relating to to School as long "
TfLring to to operation of to School received unbl to Closmg,

®, "i -r-'n gg:isi:r2?,girjaa:

(Olssosm)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 40 of 59. PagelD #: 10662

(k) all data, mcluding, without limitatioD, student and financial data, stored or
maintained on the Shared IT Platfonn and any bard-copy paper files relating solely to the
School;

Fiemises;
(1) all n Systems solely for the benefit of the School diat are located at the

(m) all telephone numbers used by Seller solely in connection with the operation
of the School;

(n) all indemnities from Third Parties relating to the Purchased Assets or the
Assumed Liabilities prior to the Closing Date.

All of the Purchased Assets will be sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed and delivered to Buyer
fiee and clear of aU Liens.

4Sia.fiB71-1580.v.a

(OI330S07-1}



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 41 of 59. PagelD #: 10663

£:pDa3iTC

GerBfi^tea Good Stending

CMro5SS039.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 42 of 59. Page!D #: 10664

19070112474359

Ofllttofthe

CORPORATION COMMISSION

CERTmCATE OF GOOD STANDING

I, ihc undersigned Executive Director of the Arizonu Corporation Conunlsslon. do hereby certify thai:

THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC

ACC nie nufflben L21865306

vfos incoiponUed under the laws of the State of Arizona on 05/12/2017, and that, according to the records of the Arizona
Corporation Commission, said limited liability company is in good standing in the Slate of Arizona as of the dots this
Ceidficate is issued.

This Certificate relates only to the legal existence of the above named entity as of the date this CextUicale is Issued, ond
is not on endonement, nconunendsiion, or approval of the entity's coadlllon, business activities, affairs, or pncdees.

IN WfTNESS WHEHEOn, I liave hereutuo stt my ttand, afflud the oflliHii wat oflhe

Arizraa CotponOon CommlulM. Bfl4 tuwd Uili C«ttinea(e on liilt Mt: 07/DV3919■0mm

DITATDIUI

Matthew Neubert, Executive Director

01337320



case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 43 of 59. PagelD #: 10665

CERTIFICATE OF EXISTENCE
WITH STATUS IN GOOI) STANDING

in reravs'-c the duly dackd and qualified Nevada Secretary of State, do hsTGby

StS^ ofNevada since August 11,2017. and is m good standing in this state.

IN WITNESS "WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed tiie Great Seal of State, at my
office on July 1,2019.

Barbara K. Cegavske
Secretary of State

Bactrontc CertlRcata
Certlfioate Number C201907D1-1416

01337304



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 44 of 59. PagelD #: 10666

EXHIBIT D

Sal&OrdBr

(DaatZ4«»<l| 39



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 404-1 Filed: 07/26/19 1 of 3. PagelD #: 10841

AMENDMENT TO TTTE ASSET PURCHASE ACTir.F.MF.NT

This AMENDMENT is made and entered into as of July 24,2019 by and between SAVE
TEE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS LIMITED, a Nevada limited liability company, its
designee or assignee ("Buyer"), and THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC,' an
Arizona nonprofit limited liability company that is registered in the State of Nevada as The DC
M Institute of Las Vegas, LLC the ("School") , by and through Mark E. Dottore, Receiver
( SeUer ), appointed by the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio
Eastern Division (the "Court"). Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings ascribed to such terms in the Asset Purchase Agreement ("APA") executed on July 15,
2019

RECITALS!

WHEREAS, on July 15, 2019, Seller and Buyer entered into an Asset Purchase
Agreement for the purchase of the School.

WHEREAS, Seller and Buyer desire to amend certain provisions of the APA as set forth
herein;

)^REAS, pursuant to Section 10.12 (Amendment; Waiver) of the APA, the APA may
be amended in writing signed by Seller and Buyer.

WHEMAS, upon the execution of the APA, on July 15, 2019, Receiver filed an
^ergracy Mofion of Mark E. Dottore, Receiver of The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, for an
C^^r Authorizing the Sale of Substantially all of the Assets of The Art Institute of Las Vegas,
LLC, Free and Clear of All Liens, Encumbrances, Claims, and Other Interests (With Certain
Exertions) and for Tr^fer of the Interests of Unpaid Holders of Interests to the Proceeds of
the Sale ("Motion") with the Court.

«i j WIffiREAS, per the order of the Court, good faith objections to the Motion had to befiled on or before 5;00 p.m. on July 23,2019.

r.w ^ Enterprise Manager, LLC ("Studio") filed a limitedobjection to the Motion seeking inclusion of certain changes to the APA.

NOW, nffi^ORE, in consideration of the premises and perfbnnance of the terms and
condihons co^med m to Amendment, and for other good and valuable consideration, the
receipt Md sufBciency of which is hereby acknowledged. Buyer and Seller agree to amend the
APA as follows:

j T . ̂ sentence of the definition of "Accounts Receivable" in the APA is herebvdeleted m its entirety and r^laced with the following:

"Accounts Receivable shall not include any account receivable that Studio or its afBliates
are enbfled to, including pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Framework

1



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 404-1 Filed: 07/26/19 2 of 3. PagelD #: 10842

Agreement, dated January 7, 2019, by and among Studio, Seller, Dream Center
Education Holdings, LLC and the other parties thereto."

2. The last sentence of the defimtion of "Excluded Receivables" in die Asset
Purchase Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"Excluded Receivables shall include any account receivable that Studio or its affiliates
are entitled to, including pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Frameworic
Agreement, dated January 7, 2019, by and among Studio, Seller, Dream Center
Education Holdings, LLC and the other parties diereto."

3. The following language shall be added to the end of Section 5.4 of the APA:

"Notwithstan^g the foregoing, any data or access provided hereunder expressly
excludes any information or data of any other schools or students of any other schools."

4. This Amendment shall modify and amend the APA to the extent, and only to the
extent, expressly set forth herein (it being the intent of the Buyer and Seller that all of
the terms and provisions of the APA that are not expressly amended, modified,
waived or replaced hereunder shall be unaltered and shall remain in full force and
effect:.) From and after the date hereof, all references in the APA to 'this Agreement"
^herein , *hereunder" and words of like import shall mean and refer to the APA as
amended hereby.

5. This Amendment shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Ohio, without regard to the conflicts of law or rules of such state, to the
extent such principles or rules would require or permit the application of the laws of
another jurisdiction.

6. Facsimiles, e-mail transmission of pdf. signatures or other electronic copies of
signatures shall be deemed to be originals.

7. No pro^ion of this Amendment is intended to confer any rights^ benefits, remedies
or liabilities hereunder upon any Person other than the Parties to the APA and their
respective successors and permitted assigns.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank, Signature page to follow]



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 404-1 Filed: 07/26/19 3 of 3. PagelD #: 10843

WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by or on behalf of each
of the Parties below as of the date first above written.

BUYER:

Save The Art Institute Las VegasLj^imited

Namerwilliam Turbay /
Title: Manager '' 1~-

SELLER:

/kLp^JCA
Name: Mark E. iJQttore, solely in his cap^ity as
receiver for Tne Ajt Institute of Las Vegas, LLC
pursuant to that certain Order Appointing Receiver
entered on January 18,2019, by the United States
District Court for the Northern District of Ohio,
Eastern Division

[Signature Page to Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement]
4830-7336-4893, v. 3



Accreditation Notices



August 30, 2019 ID Code 00032209(MC)

VIA EMAIL AND REGULAR MAIL ailvaccreditation(a},aii.edu

Mr. Daniel Taylor
Interim Campus Director
Art Institute of Las Vegas
2350 Corporate Circle
Henderson, NV 89074

Subject: Special Visit - Continue Show Cause

Dear Mr. Taylor:

At its August 2019 meeting, the Council reviewed the visit report of, and institution's response
to, the special visit conducted on June 25, 2019. The purpose of this Fast Assessment and
Compliance Team (FACT) visit was to review the institution's operations and continued
compliance following the appointment of receivership and the reported ongoing transition to new
ownership. From the visit, there were 15 findings of which three were resolved to the Council's
satisfaction and two combined into one finding, leaving 11 remaining. The institution was
previously placed on a student achievement show-cause at the Council's December 2018
meeting due to a campus-level placement rate of 49 percent. As a result of its review, the
Council found the following, based on the Accreditation Criteria:

1. The institution does not have a current Campus Effectiveness Plan (CEP) which would
articulate its evaluation and assessment of all required outcomes with an emphasis on
institutional improvement. In addition, given that there was no plan, there was also no
evidence of implementation or monitoring of any improvement activities (Sections 3-1-
110, 3-I-111 and 3-I-112 & Appendix K). On the team's visit, there was no current CEP
to be evaluated. In response to the finding, the institution submitted a current CEP with
all of the elements, dated July I, 2019 through June 30, 2020, with a revision date of July
10, 2019 and based on a CEP from 2016 for historical data. However, the CEP, as
written, does not evidence a systematic process for ongoing CEP reviews of the schedule
for the completion of the various activities indicated for improvement throughout the
plan. Therefore, there is still no evidence of implementation or monitoring of the CEP.

2. Appropriate attention has not been given to educational activities, admissions, student
fmancial aid, financial operations, plant and equipment, career services, student services,
and compliance with applicable local, state, and federal laws (Section 3-I-202(a)). In
response to the finding, the institution provided a narrative explanation for the lack of

1350 Eye Street, NW. Suite 560 • Washington. DC 20005 • t - 202.336.6780 • f - 202.842.2593 • www.acics.org

ACCREDITING COUNCIL FOR INDEPENDENT COLLEGES AND SCHOOLS



Mr. Daniel Taylor
August 30,2019
Page 2 of?

oversight and supporting documentation for the students listed in the report but did not
address the other areas identified as being deficient.

3. There is no evidence that evaluations of faculty and staff have been conducted and
adequate records are not being maintained in regard to faculty, staff, and student
activities (Sections 3-1-202(b) and 3-1-303(a)). Faculty files reviewed had no evidence of
any evaluation of faculty in at least the past year. The institution responded by submitting
documentation of classroom observations of Summer 2019 faculty and a narrative
explaining the purchase of software to manage employee files once the Court approves
the Asset Purchase Agreement (APA) that was expected to happen on July 29, 2019.
However, this documentation did not include a master schedule of classes being offered
to confirm all current faculty have been evaluated. Much of the documentation provided
as faculty evaluations dated back to previous ownership in 2017.

4. There is no proof of graduation (POG) for two students, nor a current/accurate enrollment
agreement for at least three transfer students (Sections 3-1-411(b) & 3-1-414). The
institution submitted documentation to support its assertion that proof of graduation and
current/accurate enrollment agreements were available for all students noted in the report.
The institution was able to access all information that the corporate oversight. Dream
Center Education Holdings, LLC (DCEH), had centralized which included the digitally
signed enrollment agreements and copies of POG. However, the institution was not able
to produce POG (high school transcripts) fbr^: The transcripts were
requested on July 15,2019.

5. The institution is not following its published refiind policy or the state requirement of
providing refunds within 15 days (Section 3-1-433). In response to the fmding, the
institution provided extensive documentation for all students and the financial
discrepancies in the team's report, to include credits to accounts and return of fimds.
However, the narrative notes that "...moving forward the Institution will review each
graduating or withdrawn student's account to ensure that all transactions are correct, and
should there be any credit balances, they are disbursed to the appropriate party."
However, the documentation submitted did not provide evidence of the implementation
of this policy.

6. There is no one assigned to provide career services, nor is there documentation of
employment assistance provided to students (Section 3-1-441 (a & c)). There was no
individual onsite to assist students with career services. In response to the fmding, the
institution submitted a narrative that detailed the qualifications of the candidate for this
position, While is sufficiently qualified, the
institution did not submit the necessary documentation to evidence the hire and
onboarding

7. The Council is unable to determine appropriate program oversight by individuals whose
academic or experiential qualifications are related to the program of study (Section 3-1-
511). During the visit, the institution did not have access to its personnel files. In its



Mr. Daniel Taylor
August 30,2019
Page 3 of7

response, the institution presented its attempt to recreate departmental academic oversight
following the October 2018 actions by DCEH to centralize functions. The response
provided the names, as well as job descriptions, resumes, and transcripts of faculty who
have accepted lead roles, but it is not exhaustive for all program offerings at the
institution.

8. Prerequisites are not being followed (Section 3-1-513(b)). In the review of student files,
the team found at least two instances where prerequisites were not being followed in
accordance with the institution's own system of prerequisites. In response to the fmding,
a detailed narrative explained that such exceptions could not, and would not, be allowed.
However, the response did not provide a degree audit to demonstrate that all currently
enrolled students have taken courses in sequence, as required.

9. There is no evidence of the development or implementation of faculty development plans
in the past year (Section 3-1-543). In response to the fmding, the institution submitted a
narrative noting that a faculty development and in-service committee was formed after
the team's visit on June 25,2019, and that this committee met on July 16,2019. In-
service sessions for the next academic year were planned. However, the response did not
provide evidence that all current faculty have current and appropriate development plans
which include both professional growth and in-service activities.

10. There is no documented evidence that regularly scheduled faculty meetings are being
conducted and/or recorded (Section 3-1-544). In response to the fmding, the institution
provided a schedule for two upcoming full faculty meetings planned for July 25,2019
and August 8, 2019. Proposed agendas for these meetings were provided in the response,
but these planned meetings had not yet been conducted.

11. The catalog is not accurate in several areas, including, but not limited to, staff and faculty
listings and reference to digital books that are no longer being used (Section 3-1-701 &
Appendix C). In response to the fmding, the institution submitted a revised catalog, dated
July 10,2019, which corrected the inaccuracies. However, the Council could not confirm
the accuracy of the faculty listed in the catalog or determine if the faculty are sufficiently
qualified for their roles.

Council Action

Therefore, given the extensiveness of the issues identified during the FACT visit and the ongoing
concerns with the institution's ability to demonstrate ongoing compliance with ACICS standards,
the Council directs the institution to continue to show-cause, at an in-person hearing at its
December 2019 meeting, why its current grant of accreditation should not be withdrawn by
suspension or otherwise conditioned. The institution is required to review and follow the Council
hearing procedures as detailed in Section 2-3-500 of iht Accreditation Criteria and the
"Schedule of Fees" listing on the ACICS website. The institution must provide the appropriate
notification and fee within ten (10) business days, September 13.2019. of electronic receipt of



Mr. Daniel Taylor
August 30,2019
Page 4 of 7

this notice. Failure to do so may result in a withdrawal by revocation action in accordance with
Section 2-3-401 of tho Accreditation Criteria.

In response to the continued show-cause directive, the institution must submit the following
information via its online Show-Cause application, along with one physical hard copy mailed to
the Council office, by October 25,2019.

1. Evidence that the current CEP has been implemented and is scheduled to be evaluated
both periodically and annually. This evaluation must be congruent with findings from
data collected. Evidence must include documentation showing that the goals and specific
activities listed in the CEP are being implemented and completed. Documentation must
include, but is not limited to, a two-year plan for review of the CEP to ensure that
periodic and annual reports along with listed activities are completed. The institution
must also submit evidence of at least one periodic progress report for the current CEP,
documenting the implementation of planned activities and any changes in data that have
been completed prior to October 25,2019.

2. Evidence of appropriate day-to-day operation of the campus by key administrative staff
along with qualified faculty as defmed in the Accreditation Criteria. Documentation must
include, but is not limited to, a current organizational chart along with a signed job
description, resume, and copy of all transcripts for the chief executive officer and the
individual responsible for the oversight of all educational activities. An inventory of
equipment and evidence of any equipment purchased for school use must also be
submitted, to include copies of purchase orders listing equipment recently purchased to
support various departments. Meeting minutes from administrative and departmental
meetings as well as reports of the institution's effectiveness (such as attendance, SAP,
etc.) should be included. Finally, evidence of continued compliance with the Nevada
Commission on Postsecondary Education must be submitted to confirm that its license to
operate has been renewed with the state.

3. Evidence that evaluations of faculty and staff have been conducted. This documentation
must include evidence that faculty and staff members clearly understand their duties,
know their direct supervisor, and understand the standards by which the success of their
work is measured. Documentation must include, but is not limited to, updated job
descriptions that describe the activities and responsibilities associated with the position,
indicate each faculty and staff members' direct supervisor, and list the standards by
which the employee will be evaluated. All job descriptions, classroom observations, and
completed evaluations must be signed and dated by the employee and the supervisor. A
current organizational chart and current class schedule must also be submitted.

4. Evidence that proof of high school graduation (POG) is maintained for ail current
students. The institution must provide a copy of the official high school transcript forgg

confirming that she is a high school graduate. Further, the institution
must provide POG for any new starts between July 1, 2019 and October 1,2019, along
with the new students' signed enrollment agreements.



Mr. Daniel Taylor
August 30,2019
Page 5 of7

5. Evidence of implementation of the institution's stated internal policy for reviewing the
fmancial records of graduated or withdrawn students. Documentation must include, but is
not limited to, copies of account audits for all students who withdrew or graduated from
the Spring and Summer 2019 terms, along with a list of all current students, graduates,
and withdrawals as well as their ledger cards. Additional documentation must include
copies of any applicable refunds during these terms.

6. Evidence that or another qualified candidate, has accepted the position of
career services director and has begun to execute the responsibilities of that position.
Appropriate documentation must include a signed job description or a signed offer letter
and a current resume. Additionally, the response must include evidence that the
institution has implemented a plan to provide appropriate employment assistance to its
students and graduates and that the assignment of the employment assistance function is
effective. Documentation must include, but is not limited to, an action plan for the
activities to be undertaken once the career services director is in place to work with
students. Activities may include participation in job fairs, career fairs at the campus,
resume writing workshops, mock-interview sessions, and creating a job board with
postings ofjob opportunities in the community. Further, the institution must evidence its
ongoing efforts with placements through the submission of placement data through the
ACICS Placement Verification Program (PVP) for all confirmed placements during the
reporting year of July 1,2018 - June 30, 2019. A list of all graduates within the reporting
year with those identified as placed or not placed must be included.

7. Evidence that there is appropriate program oversight assigned to qualified individuals for
all programs. The institution must provide a current organizational chart that lists and
details the academic departments and the assigned administrator for each academic area.
Evidence that a qualified individual has been assigned to administer each program must
be included on this organizational chart. Additional documentation to evidence program
oversight must include, but is not limited to, a signed employment letter, signed job
description, ACICS data sheet, photocopies of official transcripts for all qualifying
credentials held, and a resume. Additionally, the response must include meeting minutes
for each department and for faculty meetings to ensure that it is clear who is providing
program-level direction and leadership to students and faculty.

8. Evidence that pre-requisites are being followed for all enrolled students for the Summer
2019 and Fall 2019 terms. Documentation must include, but is not limited to, degree
audits for all currently enrolled students along with their academic transcripts to
demonstrate that no student has taken courses out of sequence, as dictated by the
published prerequisite system. A draft catalog must also be submitted.

9. Evidence of the implementation of a current development plan for each faculty member.
The institution must provide a master schedule for the Summer 2019 and Fall 2019 terms
that identifies each faculty member teaching for those terms. A current faculty
development plan for each instructor along with documentation that all activities listed on



Mr. Daniel Taylor
August 30,2019
Page 6 of?

the plans to be completed prior to October 15,2019 have been completed. Faculty
development plans are to include an appropriate mix of in-service training and
professional growth activities and must identify the period of time for which the plan is
valid (period not to exceed one year in length) and must be signed by the faculty member
and his/her supervisor. Activities listed on the plan must be relevant to the instructors
teaching assignment(s) and must be quantifiable. Additionally, the institution should
submit the in-service schedule developed by the Faculty Development Committee as well
as all meeting minutes and sign-in sheets for this newly formed committee. Finally, the
institution must submit a schedule of in-service training for the 2019-2020 academic
year.

10. Evidence that regularly scheduled faculty meetings are being conducted. Documentation
must include, but is not limited to, a list of scheduled faculty meetings for the 2019-2020
academic year along with evidence that all faculty meetings scheduled to take place prior
to October 25, 2019 have taken place. An attendance roster (sign-in sheet) of the faculty
members who were present, meeting minutes, and documentation that faculty members
who were not present at the meetings have been provided with the minutes or other
relevant materials from the meetings.

11. Evidence that the faculty members listed in the July 10,2019 catalog are qualified to
teach their assigned courses. Documentation must include, but is not limited to, a signed
letter of employment, signed job description, ACICS Data Sheet, resume, and copies of
official transcripts for all qualifying credentials for the above-mentioned faculty
members. The campus must also submit a course schedule for the current term that lists
the assigned instructor for each course, and a revised catalog that accurately reflects the
current teaching faculty.

12. Additionally, the institution has been placed on Heightened Cash Monitoring (HCM2) by
the US Department of Education (DOE) following the appointment of receivership in
January of 2019. This calls into question the financial capability of the institution to
sustain operations. Therefore, the Council must receive a detailed explanation, to include
documentation, to substantiate the institution's ability to obtain financial stability given
the HCM2 status.

In addition to the online submission, one hard copy of your response must be received in the
ACICS office by the date indicated above. The institution is reminded that failure to submit a
response to the show-cause directive is subject to a revocation of accreditation action, consistent
with Section 2-3-401 of the Accreditation Criteria.

Institutional Teach-out and Notification

The institution must provide evidence that all current and prospective students have been made
aware of the show-cause directive as demonstrated by the public notice on the institution's
website, as well as via email or other published communication to the campus community. The
institution must provide the link to its webpage where the updated show-cause directive notice



Mr. Daniel Taylor
August 30,2019
Page 7 of 7

has been posted, as well as copies of the notice to current and prospective students, to the
Council no later than ten (10) business days of receipt of this communication.

Further, in compliance with Section 2-3-230 of the Accreditation Criteria, the institution must
submit an Executed Institutional Teach-out Plan, via the online application in Member Center,
which includes the following:

a. A listing of students with the student name, program of study, expected graduation date,
and status of unearned tuition, status of refunds due, and current account balance for each
student.

b. A listing of comparable programs offered at other nearby institutions with which the
institution has procured teach-out agreements or transfer arrangements if needed for
students to complete their programs elsewhere. Signed agreements must be submitted.

c. A custodian for all permanent academic records in case of closure that includes contact
information for this individual or entity and the process by which students can obtain
their records.

d. A description of the financial resources available to ensure that students can complete
their programs or receive refunds if the institution does cease operations.

The Council is obligated to take adverse action against any institution that fails to come into
compliance within established time frames without good cause, pursuant to Title II, Chapter 3,
Introduction of the Accreditation Criteria.

Please contact Ms. Karly Zeigler at kzeigler@acics.org or (202) 336-6846 if you have any
questions.

Sincerely,

Michelle Edwards

President and CEO

c: Ms. Cathy Sheffield, Accreditation and State Liaison, U.S. Department of Education
Ms. Kelly Wuest, Nevada Commission on Postsecondary Education

(kdwuest@detr.nv.gov)
Mr. Mark Dottore, Receiver (mark@dottoreco.com)



June 6,2019 ID Code: 00032209

Sent Via Email Only

Dr. Daniel M. Taylor ailvaccreditation@aii.edu
Interim Campus Director
Art Institute of Las Vegas
2350 Corporate Circle
Henderson, NV 89074

Dear Dr. Taylor,

As a result of the review of information relative to the potential sale of the Art Institute of Las
Vegas, the Council, at its last meeting determined that the pending sale and all matters related to
the ongoing operations of the institution require an on-site review to ensure continued compliance
with the Accreditation Criteria through the transition.

Therefore, in accordance with Section 2-3-900 of the Accreditation Criteria, a Fast Assessment
and Compliance Team (FACT) visit will be conducted on Tuesday, June 25,2019. The team will
review files, interview students and personnel, and assess compliance with the Accreditation
Criteria. You will subsequently receive further details about the visit, including the names and
addresses of the team members.

Thank you for your cooperation. If you have any questions, please contact me at (202) 336-6846
or via email at kzei2ler(a).acics. or^.

Sincerely,

' I I,Ms. I^rl}^Zeigler
Manager, Policy and Institutional Compliance

Enclosures

c: Ms. Kelly Wuest, Nevada Commission on Postsecondary Education
(kd\\'iiest(d).detr.nv. eovl

Ms. Connie Adelman, Dream Center Education Holdings, LLC (cadelman(a),dcedh. oiv)
Mr. Scott DeBoer, ACICS Commissioner Cscott.deboer(d)sbbcolle2e.edii)



VISIT ITINERARY

Institution to Be Visited

ACICS ID Code 00032209

Art Institute of Las Vegas
2350 Corporate Circle
Henderson, NV 89074
(702) 369-9944
Email: ciilvaccreclitation(a),aii.edii

Visit Date

Thursday, June 25, 2019

Visit Type

Fast Assessment & Compliance Team Visit

Current Level of Accreditation

Bachelor's Degree

Itinerary (approximate)

Arrive on Thursday, June 25,2019 at 9:00 a.m.
Depart on Thursday, June 25,2019 at 6:00 p.m.

Evaluation Team

STUDENT RELATIONS AND EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES SPECIALIST

Mr. Scott DeBoer

ACICS Commissioner

Santa Barbara Business College
1081 EMeta St

Ventura, CA 93001

scott.deboer@sbbcollege.edu

ACICS STAFF REPRESENTATIVE

Ms. Karly Zeigler
Manager, Policy and Institutional Compliance
Kzeigler@acics.org



EVALUATION VISIT MEETING ROOM MATERIALS

FACT VISIT

Institutions are to place the following materials in the room provided to the evaluation team.
Additional materials may be requested when the team is at the institution.

1. Current Information

a. Class schedule including course names, numbers, titles, room numbers, class
times, names of instructors, and student enrollment by class period for the entire
term/ quarter/ semester/module

b. Student enrollment on day of visit by program and by day and evening divisions
c. Floor plan of facility
d. Staff roster and organization chart
e. Course syllabi for currently offered courses (For courses not offered in the current

term, the syllabi must be provided with the exception of the following items:
instructional materials and references, out-of-class activities and assignments,
assessment criteria, and method of evaluating students)

f. Two copies of the most recently completed, and the prior year's ACICS Campus
Accountability Reports along with the complete back-up documentation. This
must include information to support enrollment, graduate, and withdrawal
numbers and placement information such as student name, program of study,
graduation date, job title, employer name, and employer telephone numbers.

g. A copy of the current Campus Effectiveness Plan along with the progress reports
and/or prior year's campus effectiveness plan

h. Board of directors and administrative staff meeting minutes
i. Faculty meeting minutes
j. Copies of correspondence with ACICS for any approvals or notifications for

modifications since the last New Grant Visit (campus additions, new programs,
distance education activity, substantive/non-substantive changes to an existing
program, change of location, change of name, etc.)

k. A copy of the approved and most current Academic Analysis for each program.
If applicable, this includes approved Clock to Credit Profiles with corresponding
letters of approval.

1. Copies of mutually signed agreements with all extemship sites used by the
institution.

2. Official Documents

a. State license and authorization to award degrees (if applicable)
b. Documentation that the institution is in compliance with copyright laws for

instructional materials utilized

c. U.S. Department of Education Program Participation Agreement and
Eligibility and Certification Approval Report (if applicable)



Reports from most recent reviews by agencies such as the U.S. Department of
Education, Inspector General, and guarantee agency, as well as the institution's
student financial aid compliance audit.

Files

a. Administrative staff personnel files that include updated ACICS data sheets
b. Faculty personnel files that include updated ACICS data sheets, copies of

administrative and student evaluations, and faculty development plans with
documentation of their implementation

NOTE. Student files und tncinscnipts will be selected rcindoinly for review by teum
members.

4. Inventories

a. Library resource and reference materials including online materials (if
applicable)

b. Instructional equipment for all programs

Publications

a. Most recent ACICS self-study application
b. All current advertising and promotional literature, including scripts, copies of

newspapers, magazines, brochures, and tapes of radio and television ads
c. Student, faculty, and staff handbooks (if applicable)
d. Current catalog with all addenda (if applicable)



AGICS

January 8, 2019 ID Code 00032209(MC)

VIA E-MAIL AND REGULAR MAIL ailvaccreditation@aii.edu

Mr. Roger Hosn
Campus Director
Art Institute of Las Vegas
2350 Corporate Circle
Henderson, NV 89074

Subject: Campus-Level Student Achievement Show-Cause - Placement

Dear Mr. Hosn:

The Council has reviewed your recently submitted 2018 Campus Accountability Report (CAR)
and the campus-level placement rate of 49% is materially below the Council standard of 60%.

Council Action

Therefore, the Council acted to direct the institution to show cause why its accreditation should
not be withdrawn, subject to the Council's subsequent review. In the interim, the institution is
required to complete and submit the following information, via the online Show-Cause
Application, for the Council's monitoring and review:

1. Quarterly submission of the following reports and plans, with the first submission due no
later than February 1, 2019, and the subsequent submissions on May 1,2019, and
August 1, 2019.

a) A corrective action plan that has been incorporated into the current Campus
Effectiveness Plan (CEP) and includes specific activities that are being implemented
to improve the programs that are negatively impacting the campus-level placement
performance. The institution must also submit a progress report, corresponding
documentation, and any necessary explanatory narrative of all activities implemented
and completed for the purpose of placement remediation.

b) Quarterly 2019 Campus Accountability Reports (CAR) to be submitted to the ACICS
CAR Portal. The institution is reminded that ONLY placements that have been
submitted to the PVP, verified by the graduate and/or employer, and validated by
ACICS, may be reported on the Reports.

c) An Institutional Teach-Out Plan with quarterly updates on the student progression of
current enrollments.

750 First Street. NE. Suite 980 • Washington. DC 20002-4223 • t - 202.336.6780 • f - 202.842.2593 • www.acics.org

ACCREDITING COUNCIL FOR INDEPENDENT COLLEGES AND SCHOOLS



Mr. Roger Hosn
January 8,2019
Page 2 of2

2. Evidence that all current and prospective students have been advised of the show-cause
status. The following statement must be placed prominently on the institution's website,
no later than five business davs following electronic transmission of this notice:

a) Notice to students and prospective students: Art Institute of Las Vegas has been
placed on student achievement show-cause by its accreditor, the Accrediting Council
for Independent Colleges and Schools ("ACICS"), because of material
noncompliance with placement standards, having reported a 49% on the 2018
Campus Accountability Report.

Failure to provide all information requested by the Council may result in the suspension or
revocation of your institution's grant of accreditation.

The Council is obligated to take adverse action against any institution that fails to come into
compliance with the Accreditation Criteria within the established time frames without good
cause. Given that the institution's longest program is offered at the bachelor's degree level, you
are advised that compliance must be achieved within 24 months. Please consult the Introduction
of Title II, Chapter 3 of the Accreditation Criteria for additional information.

Please contact Ms. Michelle Bonocore at mbonocore@acics.org if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Michelle Edwards

President and CEO

c: Ms. Cathy Sheffield, Accreditation and State Liaison, U.S. Department of Education
Ms. Kelly Wuest, Nevada Commission on Postsecondary Education

(kdwuest@cpe.state.nv.us)



V^CICS

January 9, 2019 ID CODE 00032209(MC)

VIA E-MAIL AND REGULAR MAIL ailvaccreditation@aii.edu

Mr. Roger Hosn
Campus Director
Art Institute of Las Vegas
2350 Corporate Circle
Henderson, NC 89074

Subject: Campus-Level Student Achievement Review Compliance Warning - Retention

Dear Mr. Hosn:

The Council has reviewed your recently submitted 2018 Campus Accountability Report (CAR) and the
campus-level retention rate of 59% does not meet the Council's standard of 60%.

Council Action

Therefore, the Council acted to place the campus on compliance warning for the below-standard results for
2018, subject to its subsequent review. In the interim, the campus is required to complete the following:

1. An Improvement Plan that has been incorporated into the current Campus Effectiveness Plan (CEP)
and includes specific activities that are being implemented to unprove the programs that are
negatively impacting the campus-level retention performance. This plan is subject to review by an on-
site evaluation team or upon request by the Council.

2. Quarterly 2019 CARs, to be submitted via the ACICS CAR system.

Failure to follow the Council's directive may result in the suspension or revocation of your institution's grant
of accreditation.

The Council is obligated to take adverse action against any institution that fails to come into compliance with
the Accreditation Criteria within the established time frames without good cause. Given that the campus's
longest program is offered at the bachelor's level, you are advised that compliance must be achieved within 24
months. Please consult the Introduction of Title II, Chapter 3 of the Accreditation Criteria for additional
information.

Please contact Michelle Bonocore at mbonocore@acics.org if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Michelle Edwards

President £ind CEO

c: Ms. Cathy Sheffield, Accreditation and State Liaison, U.S. Department of Education
Ms. Kelly Wuest, Nevada Commission on Postsecondary Education (kdwuest@cpe.state.nv.us)

750 First Street. NE, Suite 980 • Washington, DC 20002-4223 • t - 202.336.6780 • f - 202.842.2593 • www.acics.org

ACCREDITING COUNCIL FOR INDEPENDENT COLLEGES AND SCHOOLS



Denial of Renewal

and CPE requested
infornnation



EMI'LOV.MENTSFXI RITV

Division

Commission on Postsecondary
Education

Kelly D. VVlest

Commission Administrator

July 31, 2019

iDJCTR
Nevada Department ol Employment,

Training and Rehabilitation

Steve Sisolak

Governor

Dr. Tiffan\ G. Tm-ER-Gar\er

Director

RENEE L. Oi.SON

Administrator

Dottore Companies, LLC.
Mark E. Dottore

2344 Canal Road

Cleveland, OH 44113

Dear Mr. Dottore; Certified Mail: 7014 2870 0001 8495 2857

This is an official notice from the State of Nevada, Commission on Postsecondary Education
("CPE") of the denial of application for renewal of the Art institute of Las Vegas' license to
operate as a postsecondary educational institution in Nevada. On July 11, 2019, CPE received
a renewal application for the Art Institute of Las Vegas' private postsecondary educational
license due to expire on 7/31/19. The renewal packet received did not include the Release of
Substantiation of Financial Data as required by NAC 394.381(3) and a verification of the
applicants financial stability by providing either a financial statement reviewed or audited by a
certified public accountant, a financial statement prepared according to generally accepted
accounting principals or a balance sheet presented on forms provide within the renewal
application per NAC 394.381 (4). The renewal checklist was inappropriately marked as n/a for
both financial items. There were additional issues with the enrollment agreement and catalog
submitted with the renewal application which will be addressed under separate cover.

Evidence concerning the financial difficulties of Dream Center Educational Holdings, the parent
company of the Art Institute of Las Vegas is public information. Cn January 18, 2019, the
United States District Court, Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division appointed Receiver Mark
E. Dottore as the federal custodian and liquidator of Dream Center Educational Holdings LLC,
including the Art Institute of Las Vegas LLC, due to indebtedness in excess of $100,000,000.

The lack of financial stability has had a direct impact on the operations of the Nevada campus.
The Art Institute of Las Vegas cancelled the surety bond required by NRS 394.480 on March 9,
2019 and has failed to pay required quarterly fees for new student enrollment to the State of
Nevada as required by NRS 394.557. The institution has failed to refund students pursuant to
NRS 394.449 for unearned tuition for Winter and Spring terms upon withdrawal and pay faculty
as required by NRS Chapter 608. The lack of financial resources has caused several vendors
to stop providing products or services to the institutions making it difficult for the institution to
operate effectively.

As the Commission Administrator, I do not have the authority to renew a license when the
applicant fails to meet the criteria for granting the application and therefore must deny of
application for renewal of licensure. The Art Institute of Las Vegas has a right to request a
hearing before the Commission on September 18, 2019. To request a hearing, I must receive
the request in writing within 15 days. If the institution elects to pursue the hearing, the private

8778 SOUTH MARYLAND PARKWAY, SUITE 115, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89123
Office Phone: 702-486-7330 • OfHce Fax: 702-486-7340

500 East Third .Street • Carson City. Nevada 89713 or 280O E. St. Louis Avenue • Las Vegas. Nevada 89104
www.cpe.nv.gov • www.nvdetr.org



Page 2 of 2 Denial of Renewal - Art Institute of Las Vegas

postsecondary educational institution license will remain in effect pending Commission review
and decision at the hearing.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this notice.

Sincerely,

Kelly D. Wi
CPE Administrator

Co: Robert Whitney, Deputy Attorney General
Dan Taylor, Interim Campus Director, Art Institute of Las Vegas



NRS 394.460 License: Application; issuance; provisional license; term; change in ownership or location; addition to
facilities; renewal.

1. Each person required to be licensed as a postsecondary educational Institution by the Commission or each
postsecondary educational Institution requesting to add a new program or degree or to renew a license must apply
to the Administrator, upon forms provided by the Administrator. The application must be accompanied by the
required fees. The institution's curriculum and financial statement are confidential except as otherwise provided in
NRS 239.0115 or unless. In the opinion of the Commission, they militate against the issuance of a license.

2. After review of the application, any other information required by the Administrator and the report of the panel of
evaluators, and an investigation of the applicant if necessary, the Commission shall grant or deny a license or grant
a provisional license for a term specified by the Commission. Before the expiration of a provisional license, the
Administrator shall inspect the institution, or the Commission may require the appointment of a panel of evaluators
to inspect the Institution, and recommend whether to revoke or continue the provisional license or to grant an
unqualified license. The Commission may accept or reject the recommendation.

3. The license must state at least the following Information:
(a) The date of issuance, effective date and term of the license.

(b) The correct name, address and owner of the institution.
(c) The approved degrees or occupational subjects.
(d) Any limitation considered necessary by the Commission.

4. The term for which a license is given must not exceed 2 years. The license must be posted in a conspicuous place.
5. The license must be Issued to the owner or governing body of the institution and is nontransferable. If a change in

ownership of the institution occurs, the owner to whom the license was issued shall inform the Administrator, and
the new owner or governing body must, within 10 days after the change in ownership, apply for an approval of the
change of ownership. If it fails to do so, the license terminates.

6. Within 10 days after a change of location or an addition of buildings or other facilities, the institution must file a
notice of the change with the Administrator.

7. At least 60 days before the expiration of a license, the institution must complete and file with the Administrator an
application for renewal of its license.

NRS 394.490 Denial of license, permit or authorization: Notice; extension of time to correct deficiencies.
1. If the Commission, upon review and consideration of a person required to be licensed or of an application for a

license to operate, or the Administrator, upon review and consideration of an application for an agent's permit, for
renewal of a license or agenfs permit or for authorization to employ agents, determines that the applicant fails to
meet the criteria for granting the application, the Administrator shall notify the applicant by certified mail, setting
forth the reasons for the denial of the application.

2. The Administrator may grant to an applicant for renewal an extension of time to eliminate the reasons recited in
the denial letter if:

(a) The applicant has demonstrated his or her desire to meet the criteria; and
(b) The Administrator reasonably believes that the applicant can correct the deficiencies within the extension

period.

3. If the Administrator denies an application for an agent's permit, or an application for renewal, the Administrator
shall notify the institution the agent represented or sought to represent, setting forth the reasons for the denial.

NRS 394.510 Revocation of or conditions on license or permit: Grounds; notification; cessation of operations;
administrative fine.

1. The Commission may impose an administrative fine of not more than $10,000 against a licensee, revoke a license,
or make a license conditional after Its issuance, if the Commission reasonably believes that the holder has violated
the provisions of NRS 394.383 to 394.560, inclusive, or regulations adopted pursuant to those sections, or has failed
to comply with a lawful order of the Commission. The Administrator shall notify the Institution of the reasons for
the action by certified mail to its last known address, 20 days before the meeting of the Commission at which the
action will be considered.

2. If the Commission revokes a license, the Institution shall cease its operations and granting degrees and shall refund



to each enrolled student the cost of the student's current course or program.
3. The Administrator may impose an administrative fine of not more than $10,000 against an Institution or agent,

revoke an agent's permit, or make a permit conditional after its Issuance, if the Administrator reasonably believes
that the holder has violated the provisions of NRS 394.383 to 394.560, Inclusive, or regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. Before action is taken, the Administrator shall notify the holder by certified mail of facts or conduct that
warrant the impending action and advise the holder that If a hearing Is desired it must be requested within 10 days
after receipt of the notice letter. If no hearing Is requested within the prescribed period the action becomes final.

4. If an agent is fined or the agenf s permit is revoked or conditions imposed, the Administrator shall notify, by certified
mail, the institution the agent represented in addition to the agent and any other parties to any hearing.

NRS 394.530 Postponement of effective date of action pending review. If the Commission or the Administrator
determines that irreparable injury would result from putting Into Immediate effect a final action or penalty, the
Commission or Administrator, as appropriate, shall postpone the effective date of the action pending review.
(Added to NRS by 1975,1514; A1977,68; 1979,1635; 1985,1000)



Employment Seci ritv

Division

Commission on Postsecondary
Education

KELIT' D. Wl EST

Commission Administraior

DETR
Nevada Department ol Employment,

Training and Reiiabilitation

Steve Sisolak

Governor

Dr. Tiffany G. Tyler-Garner

Director

Renee L. Olson

Administrator

August 14, 2019

Art Institute of Las Vegas
Dan Taylor, Campus Director
2350 Corporate Circle
Henderson. NV 89074

Dear Dr. Taylor;

I am in receipt of the Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas and DC Art Institute of Phoenix. LLC request for
a hearing concerning the renewal of licensure denial. The meeting is schedule for September 18, 2019
starting at 9 am. Each party will receive a copy of the meeting agenda on the posting date. At the
meeting, the Commissioners will receive the court documents concerning the appointing of the Receiver,
services agreement and the court approved asset purchase agreement along with information concerning
accreditation issues, students' complaints, faculty pay and failure to pay required Commission fees. Each
party will receive a copy of the Commission report.

In preparation of the report for the hearing with the Nevada Commission on Postsecondary Education, the
following is a list of items are needed for support document to the Commission. Please provide these'
documents no later than August 26, 2019. Below this list of school documents are items concerning the
ongoing financial and administrative issues with the institution along with student complaints. Evidence of
the resolution of these Issues should be provided as it becomes available.

Items Requested no laterthan August 26, 2019

Current student list

Please provide a current list of all student including contact information (address and email) major, start
date, anticipated graduation date, and Veteran status to CPE to assist in the preparation of the report to
the Commissioners.

Current faculty Information and submission of all new and rehlred background processes

CPE has not received any faculty background submissions since March 21, 2019 although we have
received many calls from faculty who resigned due to lack of regular pay while meeting newly hired
faculty at the recent ACICS visit. All faculty must complete the background requirements of NRS 394.465
upon hire or rehire. CPE is requiring a list of all current teaching faculty Indicated courses being taught
along with the faculty members email and telephone number.

Submission of approvable enrollment agreement

The Enrollment Agreement requires revision to be in compliance with CPE and/or the VA Educational
Benefits program. The following statement requires revision "The contract indicates that first time
undergraduate students may incur a debt with the benefit provider for educational benefits paid if the
student cancels within the seventh calendar day following the student's first scheduled class or does not
meet requirements for admission." If the intention of the school is to permit a trial period, then a student
using VA educational benefits should be backed out of the school system and the certification should be
amended to withdraw prior to the first date of class. In this instance, the school will be required to

8778 SOUTH MARYLAND PARKWAY, SUITE 115, LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89123
Office Phone: 702-486-7330 • Office Fax: 702-486-7340

500 East Third Street • Carson City. Nevada 89713 or 2800 E. Si, Louis Avenue • Las Vegas, Nevada 89104
www.cpc.nv.gov • www.nvdetr.org



payback the VA any tuition payments. This same language is present in Example 1 and 2 along with the
catalog.

The enrollment agreement is in violation of the student refund policy pursuant to NRS 394.449. The
refund policy after class start does not Indicated that a student has a right to a refund of the full tuition If
the Institution substantially falls to provide the contracted education. The Student's Right to Cancel
Indicated that the institution may keep only a portion of the tuition or other charges if services cease to be
offered. If the institution ceases to offer services, the student has the right to a full refund.

In reference to statements within the sections, Non-Payment of Charges, Financial Plan and Interest on
Outstanding Balance - Please clarify who is the lender for the retail installment contract?

The contract refers to hybrid programs. Please Identify any program approved by ACICS as hybrid. If this
is no longer the case, please remove the reference from the contract.

Approvable institutional catalog to reflect current operations

The catalog submission received on 7/12/19 had several discrepancies related to processes requiring
contact with positions that were part of the DCEH corporate structure. The institutions need to develop a
catalog reflective of current staff positions and systems in place to properly effectuate each given
process. All reference to online education must be eliminated since the institution is not approved for this
modality.

Nevada enrollment agreement for all students

Related to the payment of new student fees, the ACICS audit revealed that Al was Inappropriately
permitting students to transfer to the institution without signing a Nevada enrollment agreement.
Documents provided in the renewal documents identified a disparity of 199 new student enrollments
during 2018.

Once the new enrollment agreement has been approved by the Commission, all transfer students
currently enrolled must sign an enrollment agreement and the appropriate new student fees be paid for
each impacted student. The Commission requires Al to provide a list of ail impacted students from the
transfer group along with the related $4.00 per student payment Any future transfer student must
complete a new enrollment agreement effective as of the transfer date.

Ongoing Deficiencies

There are several issued related to financial stability and campus administration that require resolution for
the institution to be viable and move forward. Commission staff will Inform the Commissioners of the
resolution of any Issues within the report or at the Information becomes available.

Payment of current and past employees for wages eamed

Art institute has not paid wages eamed as required by NRS 608.060. All employees who are currently
employed or were employed at the time the Receiver was appointed must receive payment for all wages
eamed.

Payment of quarterly CPE fees owed the state of Nevada

The Art Institute of Las Vegas has failed to pay the State of Nevada new students fees required by NRS
394.640(3) for the quarters October 1,2018 - December 31, 2018 - 62 students and January 1.2019 -
March 31,2019 - 23 students enrolled totaling $300.00 In fees and the associated late fees of $600.00.
New student enrollment was determined from the active student files sent to the Commission from the Al.

Resolution of student complaints



Pursuant to NRS 394.520, until one year after the last date of attendance or date on which damages
occurred, a student may file a complaint against an Institution for violations of NRS 394.383 to 394.560
inclusive or regulations adopted pursuant thereto. Starting in February 2019, student began filing
complaints with the Commission concerning the failure of the Al to pay student stipends, refund student
who withdrew or to pay debts owed to the VA Educational Benefits program and concerns over the
elimination of administrative staff and related processed to resolve issues.

Attached is information concerning student complaints filed and the required documents to be provided to
CPE. Evidence concerning payment of stipend, refunds and VA payments must be in the form of EFT
number or cancelled check and does not include ledger reference. Additional information or inquiry may
be required depending on the circumstances of each complaint. The Commission report will be updated
on the status of each complaint at the upcoming hearing.

I am available to meet concerning any items requested, provide guidance conceming school document
requirements and student complaint resolution.

Sincerely,

Kelly
CPE Administrator

Cc: Robert Whitney, Nevada Attorney peneral's Office
Mark E. Dottore, Receiver
William Turbay, Manager
Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.



Request for Hearing
on September 18,

2019



1

Dottore

August 6,2019

Kelly D. Wuest
CPE Administrator/SAA Director

Commission on Postsecondary Education
8778 South Maryland Parkway, Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Ms. Wuest:

I am writing in response to your letter dated July 31, 2019, which was the official notice denying
the renewal application for the state license for The Art Institute of Las Vegas. The license
allows the institution to operate as a postsecondary educational institute in the state of Nevada.
The Art Institute of Las Vegas is hereby exercising the right to request, and is requesting, a
hearing before the Commission on September 18, 2019. As stated in your letter, we understand
that, based on this request, the institution s license will remain in effect pending review and
decision at the hearing.

In this letter, I have also attached a copy of the DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC and The Art
Institute of Phoenix combined compliance audit reports, dated June 30, 2018. These audit reports
include The Art Institute of Las Vegas.

Please know that we will provide additional information and documents over the coming weeks
for inclusion in the Commission's packets (for review prior the hearing).

Please contact me should you need any additional information or have any questions.

Regards,

Mark fc. DotWe

Cc: Dan Taylor, Interim Campus President, The Art Institute of Las Vegas
Robert Whitney, Deputy Attorney General

Road, Cleveiand, Ohio 44113-2535

216.771.0727 fax: 216.771.2450 www.DottoreCo.com



DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC and
The Art Institute of Phoenix

Combined Compliance Audit Reports

June 30, 2018

BKD.
CPAs & Advisors

%\



DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC and
The Art Institute of Phoenix

June 30, 2018

Contents

Combined Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 1

Notes to the Combined Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 2

Report on the Combined Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards -
Independent Auditor's Report 3

Report on Compliance for the Student Financial Assistance Cluster
and Report on Internal Control over Compliance -
Independent Auditor's Report 5

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 7

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 8



DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC and
The Art institute of Phoenix

Combined Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through Passed
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Entity Identifying Through to Total Federal
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Subrecipients Expenditures

Department of Education
Student Financiai Assistance Ciuster

Federal Peii Grant Program 84.063 N/A $ $  6,712,789
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 84.007 N/A 610,615
Federal Perkins Loan Program (Note 4) 84.038 N/A 4,036,540
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 N/A 139,324
Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 N/A 15,607,956

Total Student Financiai Assistance Ciuster $ - $ 27,107,224

See accompanying notes.



DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC and
The Art institute of Phoenix

Note to the Combined Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Notes to Schedule

1. The accompanying combined schedule of expenditures of federal awards (Schedule) includes the
federal award activity of DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC under programs of the federal
government for the period from October 17,2017, to June 30, 2018, and the federal award
activity of The Art Institute of Phoenix, owned by Education Management Corporation, for the
period from July 1, 2017, to October 16,2017 (collectively, the Institute). The information in this
Schedule is presented following the guidance of Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance) with certain modifications. Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the Institute, it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net assets or cash flows of the Institute.

2. Effective October 17,2017, The Art Institute of Phoenix (a for-profit entity) changed ownership
and became the nonprofit entity, DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC. This schedule presents the
federal expenditures of the combined entities for the year ended June 30, 2018. This schedule has
been prepared following the Uniform Guidance. Modifications to the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance were necessary to apply them to the Institute due to the Institute being a for-
profit entity from July 1,2017, through October 16, 2017.

3. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement The
Institute has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

4. The Institute administers the Federal Perkins Loan Program (CFDA No. 84.038) and balances
and transactions relating to this program are included in the Institute's financial statements.
Loans outstanding at the beginning of the year and loans made during the year are included in the
federal expenditures presented in the Schedule. The balance of loans outstanding at June 30,
2018, consists of:

Outstanding Balance at
CFDA Number Program Name June 30, 2018

84.038 Federal Perkins Loan Program $ 3,255,551

5. Effective December 14, 2018, Art Institute Indianapolis and Art Institute of Phoenix were closed,
and the main campus was redesignated to Art Institute of Las Vegas on December 17, 2018.



BKD
CPAs & Advisors

600 N. Hurslbourne Parkway, Suile 350 I P.O. Box 22127 I Louisville. KY 40252-0127

502,581.0435 I Fax 502.581,0723 I bkd.com

Report on the Combined Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors

Dream Center Foundation

Los Angeles, California
and

Mr. Mark Dottore, Receiver for Dream Center Education Holdings, LLC
Dottore Companies, LLC
Cleveland, Ohio

Report on the Combined Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the accompanying combined schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the
financial statement) of DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC for the period from October 17,2017, to
June 30, 2018, and of The Art Institute of Phoenix, owned by Education Management Corporation,
for the period from July 1, 2017, to October 16, 2017 (collectively, the Institute), and the related notes
to the financial statement.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statement in
accordance with financial reporting described in Note 1 to the financial statements as requested by the
U.S. Department of Education. Management is also responsible for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of a financial
statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial statement based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) with modifications for the item
described in Note 2 to the financial statement. Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statement is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement in order to design audit procedures that are

0 PRAXIT Y



Board of Directors

Dream Center Foundation

Page 2

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statement.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statement referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the
combined expenditures of federal awards of the DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC for the period from
October 17,2017, to June 30,2018, and of The Art Institute of Phoenix for the period from July 1,
2017, to October 16, 2017, in accordance with financial reporting described in Note 1 to the financial
statement

Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statement, which describes the basis of accounting and
presentation. As described in Note 1 to the financial statement, the financial statement is prepared by
combining the federal expenditures for the fiscal year from July 1,2017, to June 30, 2018, which was
controlled by two organizations during the year, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, to meet the requirements of the U.S.
Department of Education. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Restriction on Use

Our report is intended solely for the information and use of the DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC and
the U.S. Department of Education and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Louisville, Kentucky
March 28, 2019



CPAs & Advisors
600 N. Hurslbourne Parkway. Suite 350 I P.O. Box 22127 t Louisville. KY 40252-0127

502.581,0435 I Fax 502.581.0723 I bkd.com

Report on Compliance for the Student Financial Assistance Cluster
and Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Independent Auditor's Report

Board of Directors

Dream Center Foundation

Los Angeles, California
and

Mr. Mark Dottore, Receiver for Dream Center Education Holdings, LLC
Dottore Companies, LLC
Cleveland, Ohio

Report on Compliance for the Student Financial Assistance Cluster

We have audited DC Art Institute of Phoenix's and The Art Institute of Phoenix's (collectively, the
Institute) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on the Institute's student financial assistance
cluster for the period from October 17, 2017, through June 30, 2018 (DC Art Institute of Phoenix,
LLC), and for the period from July 1, 2017, through October 16, 2017 (The Art Institute of Phoenix).

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Institute's student financial
assistance cluster based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as
modified for the item described in Note 2 to the Combined Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards. Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the student financial assistance
cluster occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Institute's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the student
financial assistance cluster. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Institute's compliance.

-flPRAXITY
IVr'



Board of Directors

Dream Center Foundation

Page 2

Opinion on the Student Financiai Assistance duster

In our opinion, the Institute complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the student financial
assistance cluster for the year ended June 30,2018.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the Institute is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Institute's internal control over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the student financial
assistance cluster to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for the student financial assistance cluster and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Institute's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of the student financial assistance cluster on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of the student financial assistance cluster will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of the student financial assistance cluster that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Louisville, Kentucky
March 28, 2019



DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC and
The Art institute of Phoenix

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Summary of Auditor's Results

Federal Awards

1. The independent auditor's report on internal control over compliance for the student financial
assistance cluster disclosed:

Significant deficiency(ies)?

Material weakness(es)?

im Yes ^ None Reported

□ Yes M No

2. The opinion expressed in the independent auditor's report on compliance for the student financial
assistance cluster was:

^ Unmodified O Qualified Q Adverse Q Disclaimer

3. The audit disclosed findings required to be reported by 2 CFR
200.516(a)? QYes |S|No

4. The Institute's major program was:

Ciuster/Progranft CFDA Number

Student Financial Assistance Cluster Various

5. The Institute qualified as a low-risk auditee? I~1 Yes 1^ No

Findings Required to be Reported by the Uniform Guidance

Finding

No matters are reportable.

Reference
Number



DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC and
The Art Institute of Phoenix

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings *
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Reference

Number Summary of Finding Status

2017-001

2017-002

2017-003

2017-004

2017-005

2017-006

2017-007

2017-008

2017-009

2017-010

2017-011

2017-012

Perkins Master Promissory Note

Ineligible Disbursement - In Excess of Financial
Need

Federal Pell Grant Calculation

Perkins Loan Exit Interview

Return of Title IV Funds

NSLDS Reporting - Perkins
Notices - Written Notification

ISIR "C" Code - Unusual Enrollment History
Federal Direct Loan -30 Day Hold
Federal Credit Balance

Federal Direct Loan - Ineligible Disbursement -
Plus Loan Denial

Payroll

Not warranting further
action - The Institute is not

issuing any new Perkins
loans. The Institute is in the

process of refunding the
necessary Perkins loan funds
back to the program.
Corrective action was taken

Corrective action

Corrective action

Corrective action

Corrective action

Corrective action

Corrective action

Corrective action

Corrective action

Corrective action

was taken

was taken

was taken

was taken

was taken

was taken

was taken

was taken

was taken

Corrective action was taken

♦ These findings were the result of an audit performed under the U.S. Department of Education's Guide
for Audits ofProprietary Schools and for Compliance Attestation Engagements of Third-Party Services
Administering Title IV Programs.



SAVE THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS. LIMITED
2350 CORPORATE CIRCLE

HENDERSON. NEVADA 89141

SAVEAILV19@GMAIL.COM
702-338-1762

August?, 2019

VIA E-MAIL (kdwuest@detr.nv.gov)

AND FIRST CLASS U.S. MAIL

Kelly D. Wuest, Administrator
Commission on Postsecondary Education
DETR - Nevada Department of Employment,
Training and Rehabilitation
8778 South Maryland Pkwy. Ste. 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

RE: July 31, 2019 Denial Letter re: Art Institute of Las Vegas application for renewal
of license

Dear Ms. Wuest:

As you are well aware. Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited ("Save the Art") has
entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement ("APA") to purchase the assets of the Art Institute of
Las Vegas ("AiLY"). The sale of the assets of AiLY, pursuant to the APA, was approved by the
United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division, Case No. 1:19-
cv-145, on July 26, 2019. The closing under the APA is to occur by no later than November 1,
2019. Save the Art is currently taking steps in order to close escrow on the purchase pursuant to
the terms of the APA, including to obtain appropriate governmental approvals.

We are in receipt of your correspondence dated July 31, 2019 addressed to Dottore
Companies, LLC, Mark Dottore, Receiver, wherein you indicated that you do not have the
authority to renew AiLV's license "when the applicant fails to meet criteria for granting application
and therefore must deny the application for renewal of licensure." You further indicated that AiLV
has a right to request a hearing before the Commission, which will be held on September 18,2019
by requesting such a hearing within 15 days of your letter. As we discussed over the telephone on
August 6, 2019, it is your understanding that the Receiver is in the process of requesting a hearing
before the Commission. As an interested party, Save the Art also has a right to request a hearing
before the Commission, since its rights are being affected with the denial of AiLV's renewal of
license. The license allows the institution to operate as a postsecondary educational institute in the
State of Nevada and is clearly needed for Save the Art to be able to continue with the school after
closing of the sale.



Kelly D. Wuest, Administrator
Commission on Postsecondary Education
DETR — Nevada Department of Employment,
Training and Rehabilitation
August 7,2019
Page 2 of2

Please let this letter serve as our formal request for a hearing before the Commission on
September 18, 2019 relative the denial of AiLV's application for renewal of licensure. As we
discussed, over the coming weeks. Save the Art will work with you and Robert Whitney, Esq., in
order to provide additional information and documents that Save the Art has in its possession in
order to address and/or correct the AiLV's deficiencies, referenced in your July 31, 2019
correspondence, that resulted in the denial of renewal of its licensure as well as for the inclusion
in the Commission's submission packets (for review prior the hearing). Per your letter, we
understand that AiLV's institution's license remains in effect pending review and decision at the
hearing.

Should you have any questions in this regard, please let me know.

SAVE THE ART INST^UTE LIMITED

William A. Turbay, Manager

cc: Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq. (via e-mail)
Dan Taylor, Interim Campus Director, The Art Institute of Las Vegas (via e-mail)
Robert Whitney, Deputy Attorney General (via e-mail)

4852-0577-1167. V. 1



To:

From:

CPE Commissioners

Kelly Wuest, Administratoi/

Subject: Election of Officers

For Action: September 18, 2019

Commission policy requires the election of officers who serve one-year terms.
Members may be re-elected. Commissioner B.J. North decided to resign her posts at
the end of the term of service, June 30, 2019.

Please refer to the current list of appointed Commissioners and the related term of

expiration.

Commissions Name Appointment Type Term Expiration

Date

Nate Clark Private Postsecondary June 2021

Sharon Frederick Private Postsecondary June 2021

Vacant Knowledge of Education

Jill Hersha General Public June 2020

Dr. Rene Cantu Knowledge of Education June 2020

Jon Ponder General Public June 2021

Vacant DETR Representative - Non Voting

Member



7^

To: CPE Commissioners

From: Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited

Subject: Art Institute of Las Vegas - Denial of Renewal

Date: September 10, 2019

For Action: September 18, 2019

Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited ("Save the Art"), as an interested party, by
and through its counsel, Howard & Howard Attorneys, PLLC hereby provides the
Commissioners with supplemental information in support of the Art Institute of Las Vegas's
("Ai Las Vegas") application for renewal of license. Before specifically addressing the
deficiencies noted in the July 31, 2019 renewal denial letter and the August 14, 2019 letter, it is
important to provide the Commission with additional background information about Ai Las
Vegas, the pending sale of the school to Save the Art as well as the circumstances that ultimately
resulted in Ai Las Vegas being brought before this Commission. The overall picture provides
this Commission the means and good reason to maintain Ai Las Vegas's license in effect and
allow the school to continue once the change of ownership occurs on or before November 1,
2019.

Save the Art consists of dedicated faculty, current students, alumni and local community
professionals united together to form this entity with the sole purpose of saving Ai Las Vegas for
the students, its faculty and this local community'. For the reasons set forth herein, as well as any
evidence that may be presented to the Commission at the time of the hearing on this agenda item,
it is in the best interests of Ai Las Vegas, its students, faculty and our community for this
Commission to renew Ai Las Vegas license, or at minimum grant a provisional license to Ai Las
Vegas. The denial of Ai Las Vegas's application to renew its license, or at minimum grant Ai
Las Vegas a provisional license imtil purchase with Save the Art can be consummated, would
force Ai Las Vegas to close its doors, leaving its students and faculty without any recourse and
leaving a large void in the community. In the event of such denial, students will be left out in the
cold with their hope of getting education completed vanished. Most of the students attending Ai
Las Vegas have obtained student loans to pay for their education, which they will still be
responsible to pay, but which they will not be able to complete and get credit for, if the school is
forced to close. Moreover, dedicated faculty, who have been teaching the students, for months
without pay, will also not only find themselves without a job but are likely not going to get paid
if the school closes. In that event, the Commission will also likely have to bear indemnification
responsibilities for cash pay stipends, third party payments, including tuition paid by the VA
Educational Benefits programs. Title IV programs and students with third party loans. Thus, it is
not to anyone's benefit (not Ai Las Vegas, the students, the community. Save the Art or this
Commission) to close the school at this juncture, which will undoubtedly occur if the application

' At the onset of the formation of Save the Art, this group gathered nearly 4,000 signatures from students, faculty
and local community members in support of this effort.





Page 2 of 17

for renewal of license is denied or unless at minimum this Commission grants a provisional
license to Ai Las Vegas to allow the sale to Save the Art be consummated and for a change of
ownership to occur.

Granting additional time for Ai Las Vegas to correct the outstanding deficiencies is
appropriate under current circumstances, especially in view of the pending sale of the assets of
Ai Las Vegas, which will bring the school out of the grasp of Federal Court and the receivership
and allow Save the Art to move forward with the school. As long as Ai Las Vegas's license
remains in effect, the contemplated sale to Save the Art can be consummated^ and, to the extent
any deficiencies noted in the July 31, 2019 or the August 14, 2019 letters have not been
corrected. Save the Art would be able to do so once the change of ownership is approved by this
Commission, ACICS and the Department of Education ("DOE").

The receivership has caused many obstacles for the school and its operation, which
obstacles will be removed once the sale is effectuated. Also, per the Order approving sale to
Save the Art, a copy of which is attached as Attachment A^, Save the Art, as a condition of the
sale, is assuming such liabilities, i.e., faculty salaries and student refunds/stipend deficiencies
noted in the CPE Administrator's denial of Ai Las Vegas's application for renewal of license
letter of July 31, 2019. Thus, if the license remains intact and change of ownership occurs, any
indemnification responsibilities of this Commission would be diminished by the bond that Save
the Art posts pursuant to NRS 394.480 as a condition for approval of the change of ownership.
Also, unlike most of the schools today. Save the Art wants complete transparency and intends to
operate the school as a benefit corporation. Prior to or upon acquiring the assets of Ai Las Vegas
Save the Art will either file Articles of Conversion with the Nevada Secretary of State whereby
Save the Art is converted into Citadel of the Arts Colleges, a Nevada for benefit corporation^ or
assign its rights of the purchase of assets of Ai Las Vegas to a newly formed Nevada for benefit
corporation, namely Citadel of the Arts Colleges. In either case, after the sale, the school will be
operated as a benefit corporation, albeit for profit but with complete transparency and for the
benefit of its students, faculty and the community it serves. The use of a name, Citadel of the
Arts Colleges, has already been approved by the CPE Administrator. See Attachment B.

It is also important to note that upon receipt of the July 31, 2019 letter, steps have already
been taken by both the Receiver and Save the Art to correct the noted deficiencies, set forth in

^ Ai Las Vegas's license must be in effect for Save the Art to proceed with the purchase.
^ The Order Approving Sale that was attached to the Submission of CPE Administrator was not the actual Sale
Order that was signed by the Federal Court judge. The Order Approving Sale that was attached to the CPE
Administrator's Submission to this Commission, was a draft order which was attached as Exhibit E to the Asset
Purchase Agreement. Attachment A provides this Commission with a copy of the actual Order that was entered by
the Court approving the sale of the assets to Save the Art.

^ Benefit corporation also commonly referred to as "a for benefit" corporation is a new type of entity that allows
companies to be socially responsible while still generating profits. Benefit corporation meets rigorous standards of
social and environmental performance, accountability and transparency. In essence a benefit corporation aspires to
use the power of markets to solve social and environmental problems.



Page 3 of 17

the CPE Administrator's letters of July 31, 2019 and August 14, 2019. Save the Art has been
diligently working with the CPE Administrator and the Commission's counsel, Robert Whitney,
in addressing the CPE Administrator's concerns and to the best of its ability has been providing
the information sought by the CPE Administrator in order to resolve these deficiencies. As of
the date of this submission, as noted below, many of the deficiencies have already been
corrected. Save the Art continues to address any outstanding deficiencies, although some of them
logistically cannot be corrected until after the sale is consummated and the changes of ownership
occurs. Again, to the extent that any deficiencies cannot be corrected prior to the consummation
of the sale, they would be corrected once Save the Art acquires the assets pursuant to the Asset
Purchase Agreement ("APA"), a copy of which is attached as Attachment C, and obtains
change of ownership approval.

Pursuant to the Order of Approving the APA and the sale to Save the Art, Save the Art is
assuming "any obligation, claim, encumbrance, lien or liability which the School may owe or be
required by DETR or the United States Department of Veterans Affairs to pay or otherwise be
responsible for, relating to any student stipend(s), unearned tuition, student reimbursements,
errors, omissions or other monetary obligation(s) incurred or accrued by the School prior to April
1, 2019 or, to the extent applicable, otherwise prevent any recovery pursuant to NRS 394.520 for
violations of NRS 394.393-NRS 394.560 or NAC Chapter 394.300-394.685, or for any recovery
for potential violations of 38 CFR § 21.4009(f)." Similarly, Save the Art is assuming "any
obligation, claim, encumbrance, lien or liability which the School may owe or be required by
DOE or the United States Department of Veterans Affairs to pay or otherwise be responsible for,
relating to any student stipend(s), unearned tuition, or other monetary obligation(s) incurred or
accrued by the School prior to April 1, 2019; provided, however, for avoidance of doubt that
under no circumstances will the Buyer be responsible for any trailing liabilities associated with
any institution or OPE ID associated with or under the ownership of Seller, Dream Center
Education Holdings, Argosy University of California, LLC, Dream Center South University,
LLC or The Arts Institute International, LLC other than the School.". See Sales Order,
Attachment A.

From the onset, students, faculty, and the school has been Save the Art's primary concern
and Save the Art intends to do right by them, once the sale is consummated. Save the Art also
agreed to the sale of the assets "free and clear of all Interests except for amounts that are required
to be paid as part of the process of approval of the Sale at the direction of the United States
Department of Education (the "DOE") or the Nevada Department of Employment, Training and
Rehabilitation, Commission of Postsecondary Education (the "DETR") (the "DOE/DETR
Required Amounts"). See Attachment C, Exhibit D, Sale Order in the APA. The APA, with all
exhibits, was included in the Emergency Motion to approve the Sale, that was filed on July 15,
2019. A copy of the Emergency Motion is attached as Attachment D. As it was never the



Page 4 of 17

intention of Save the Art to escape such liability, Save the Art agreed to add the additional
language requested by DETR.^

As the Commissioners are already aware, Ai Las Vegas currently remains under a
receivership before the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern
Division, Case No. l:19-cv-145 ("Federal Court"). On January 18, 2019 a Federal Court
appointed a Receiver for Ai Las Vegas as well as other campuses owned by its parent company.
Dream Center Education Holdings (DCEH). Most, if not all, of the issues and/or deficiencies
before this Commission stem from Ai Las Vegas being placed into receivership. Ai Las Vegas
was not placed in receivership due to its operations or financial woes, but was placed in
receivership simply because its parent company, DCEH, was placed into receivership. Ai Las
Vegas, on its own, has generated and continues to generate enough funds for its operations;
albeit during past few years, much of Ai Las Vegas's income was syphoned by its parent
company and "shipped" out of this State, for the benefit of DCEH and was not used for the
benefit of Ai Las Vegas or its students. The current predicament of Ai Las Vegas is a direct
result of the receivership creating the financial deficiencies noted by the CPE Administrator that
the school is currently facing. These issues will be resolved once the sale is consummated and
the school is placed out of the receivership.

Despite the receivership, Ai Las Vegas remains financially sound on its own and is in
position to meet its financial obligations, including payment of outstanding faculty and
administrative payroll, stipends and student refunds. Currently, there is an estimated $2.5 to 2.6
million of Title FV funds earned by Ai Las Vegas that remain with the DOE for the 2019 Spring
quarter and 2019 Summer quarter alone. Some Title FV funds for 2019 Winter Quarter also
remain with the DOE. Typically, those Title IV funds would have long ago been provided to Ai
Las Vegas under normal circumstances, but imfortunately, due to the issues that the DOE found
with the Receiver's 2019 Winter quarter submittal, Ai Las Vegas has been unable to post and
make its submission for 2019 Spring and 2019 Summer quarter funds until the 2019 Winter
quarter is reconciled and approved by the DOE. The DOE has recently only partially approved
the 2019 Winter quarter submission, which in turn, further delays Save the Art to post and make
2019 Spring quarter and 2019 Summer quarter submissions on behalf of Ai Las Vegas. See
Attachment E, a copy of the DOE partial approval letter received on or about August 14, 2019.
Had Ai Las Vegas been able to post and submit the 2019 Spring quarter and 2018 Summer
Quarter in due course, Ai Las Vegas would not be experiencing the financial difficulties noted by
the CPE Administrator. After the Order Approving Sale was entered. Save the Art took
immediate steps to retain an independent third-party company to assist with HCM2 submittal
process, including posting and submittal for the 2019 Spring quarter and 2019 Summer quarter.

^ Unlike DOE, DETR did not reach out to Save the Art or the Receiver prior to filing its Limited Objection. When
DOE reached out requiring additional language, Save the Art worked with the DOE and revised the proposed Sale
Order accordingly. Once DETR's Limited Objection was filed. Save the Art worked with its counsel, Robert
Whitney, and revised the Sale Order as requested. Even after DETR's agreed upon language changes were already
made to the Sale Order, when the DOE requested additional changes to certain paragraphs in the Sale Order, Save
the Art made sure that similar changes in the Sale Order were made with respect to DETR, all to DETR's benefit.





Page 5 of 17

The Commissioners should note that Global Financial Aid Services ("Global") has been
retained in this regard as well as in order to expedite the re-submittal of the 2019 Winter quarter
submission to the DOE. Once the 2019 Winter quarter is reconciled and re-submitted to the
DOE, and upon the DOE's acceptance of same, Global will be in the position to prepare and
submit the 2019 Spring quarter and 2019 Summer quarter submissions to the DOE. Global is
very experienced in these types of matters and has worked effectively with the DOE in the past
on numerous occasions. Global is also very familiar with the HCM2 submittal process as well as
steps necessary to get the school off HCM2 submittal process. After the sale. Global will
continue to work with the school and make the necessary postings and submissions on behalf of
the school to the DOE and assure continued compliance therewith. Thus, to the extent any
financial issues and/or deficiencies of Ai Las Vegas before this Commission are not or cannot be
resolved before the sale is consummated, they would be able to be resolved after the sale of the
assets of Ai Las Vegas and change of ownership to Save the Art occurs.

Moreover, at the DOE's recommendation. Save the Art also retained Aaron Lacey, Esq.
of Thompson Cobum, LLC, whose practice is dedicated entirely to helping institutions of higher
education navigate complex legal and regulatory matters. Mr. Lacey has substantive experience
in the array of federal, state, and accrediting agency laws and standards that govern
postsecondary institutions.^ By surrounding themselves with experts in the postsecondary
education field shows Save the Art's desire and intent to have the school in full compliance with
regulations, which are necessary for the school's continued success once the sale is
consummated. Additionally, Save the Art has also made arrangement with Laura Nowlan, who
will work with students with employment transitions, internships and capturing the required date
for the Campus Accountability Report (CAR). Ms. Nowlan will serve as a Provisional Career
Services Staff Member until the change of ownership occurs, at which time she will serve as a
Career Service/Placement Director for the school. Ms. Nowlan's resume is attached as

Attachment F.

Although the school on its own generates enough funds to operate, the future of the
school is even brighter if the change of ownership occurs. Of course, this will only be possible
so long as Ai Las Vegas's license is maintained. To date. Save the Art in good faith has already
fronted over $160,000, which it is at risk of losing, should the sale not be consummated. Save the
Art has also taken steps in finding potential investors and/or lenders in order to obtain financing
for the school. However, until the APA and the sale of assets was approved by the Court, Save
the Art was unable to do so as investors and lenders require assurances that sale of the assets to
Save the Art was approved. Save the Art had several potential lenders and investors interested in
helping the school once the sale was approved by the Federal Court. Once the sale was approved
but before Save the Art was able to do anything in that regard, Ai Las Vegas received July 31,
2019 denial of application for renewal license letter from the CPE Administrator. Although the
sale of the assets of Ai Las Vegas has now been approved, in view of the current status of the

^ In October 2017, the DOE selected Mr. Lacey to serve as one of 17 negotiators charged with overhauling the
DOE's complex and controversial "borrower defense" rule. The DOE selected Mr. Lacey to represent and negotiate
on behalf of general counsels, attorneys and compliance officers at postsecondary institutions nationwide. Mr. Lacey
is also a frequent writer and speaker on topics relating to higher education policy and the federal financial aid
programs.



Page 6 of 17

schoors Nevada license, Save the Art, as well as numerous investors and lenders, are reluctant to
fund further sums when the future of the school is unknown. The license to operate the school is
an integral and material part of the APA and if it is not renewed or provisional license not
granted by this Commission, the school will undoubtedly be forced to close. Under the current
predicament. Save the Art is not in the position, nor is financially prudent, for Save the Art to
fund the school with its own funds nor is it likely for Save the Art to find investors or lenders
that would be willing to take on such a risk. Prospective funding, loans, and investors will not be
an issue if this predicament can be resolved by this Commission extending or renewing the
current license of Ai Las Vegas and allow the sale of the school to go throu^ as contemplated
under the APA.^

To the extent that license is maintained. Save the Art will proceed to obtain interim
financing to cover the school's post and current daily expenses for the operation of the school,
which are needed since the Title IV funds earned and due to Ai Las Vegas for prior school
quarters had not yet been released. Save the Art has already procured an investor who is willing
to post letter of credit with a Nevada bank that would provide the school the means to pay for the
faculty past and present payroll expenses along with other operational expenses. Once the sale is
consummated, which is to occur by no later than November 1, 2019, the school will be out of
receivership and Save the Art will be in full control of the operations of the school.^ Ai Las
Vegas being in receivership has caused many, if not all, the issues before this Commission and
ACICS. The receivership also hinders both the school and Save the Art in their efforts to correct
deficiencies and in being able to operate the school in a traditional manner. Save the Art,
however, is confident that once the transfer of ownership occurs, the school, imder new
ownership will be able to correct the outstanding deficiencies and will once again thrive and
provide quality education for which it is known.

Prior to receivership, DCEH owned and operated the Art Institutes, Argosy and South
Universities across the country, including Ai Las Vegas. Not too long ago DCEH had over
54,000 students in combined enrollment across United States, namely about 22,000 students at
the Art Institutes campuses, about 17,600 students at the Argosy University campuses, and about
14,200 students at the South University campuses. At one point, Ai Las Vegas had up to 1,500
students. However, as a result of a series of operational decisions in the last few years, DCEH,
including Ai Las Vegas, landed in receivership, which resulted in closure of almost all their
campuses that it owned at the time of receivership.^ In fact, on a single day in February 2019,
almost 11,000 students lost their schools. Out of all campuses owned by DCEH or its affiliates at
the time of receivership, to our knowledge, Ai Las Vegas was the only campus that retained its

' Ai Las Vegas's license being in effect at the time of the sale is crucial for the sale to be consummated.
* Although Save the Art has entered into a Managed Services Agreement (Attachment G) and Transition Service
Agreement (Attachment H), other than daily operation of the school, Save the Art has not had complete access to
nor control of Ai Las Vegas, finances, data, financial or otherwise.
' It is our understanding that prior to receivership, DCEH sold some of its campuses to Studio and/or its affiliates. Ai
Las Vegas and several other campuses were, however, retained by DCEH. Other than Ai Las Vegas and Westem
Law School, all other campuses owned by DCEH have been closed.





Page 7 of 17

Title IV eligibility'®, which made it feasible to maintain Ai Las Vegas campus opened and for
Save the Art to negotiate with the Receiver for the purchase Ai Las Vegas assets.

For nearly 20 years, Ai Las Vegas has conferred postsecondary science and art degrees in
Applied Arts and Culinary Arts. In fact, until the current predicament, Ai Las Vegas has seen
much success, both financially and academically. Despite Ai Las Vegas's recent struggles, which
Save the Art believes were caused by DCEH's mismanagement of the schools and their funds
that the schools generated, including that of Ai Las Vegas, Ai Las Vegas, much to the pleasure of
its students and faculty, has maintained worthy educational and career development that has
culminated into a lengthy list of thriving and successful alumni. While the downswing of this
once-thriving program is now plagued by uncertainty brought on by the receivership. Save the
Art has stepped in with dedicated intentions to do right by the school and carry it forward. Save
the Art has pledged its tireless support and is committed to keeping the school in operation,
academically and financially, for the direct benefit of the students and future educational needs
of the community upon the completion of the sale. The dedication to save the school is easily
seen by school's administration and its faculty, most of whom continued to teach students and
operate the school despite not being paid. Their dedication and efforts to save the school should
not be dismissed or go unnoticed by this Commission and certainly should not be in vain. By not
granting the renewal application or at minimum grant a provisional license to Ai Las Vegas at
this juncture, when it is so close to the occurrence of change of ownership would vitiate the
tremendous amount of time, effort and commitment by everyone trying to save this school. The
school must be given a chance to succeed, which it cannot do, without this Commission granting
Ai Las Vegas's renewal of license application or at minimum granting a provisional license and
thereby allowing the sale to go forward. Once the change of ownership occurs, the school can go
back to its traditional operation, which has proved to be successful for the past 20 years. The
school should be given an opportunity to get out of the grasps of receivership so that it can thrive
as it once did.

The Commission should also be aware that the sole purpose, for which Save the Art was
formed, was to negotiate and provide for the survival of the school. After months of negotiations
with the Receiver, Save the Art executed an APA on July 15, 2019 to purchase the assets of the
Ai Las Vegas. See Attachment C. The sale of the assets of Ai Las Vegas, pursuant to the APA,
was approved by the Federal Court on July 26, 2019. See Attachment A. The closing under the
APA is to occur by no later than November 1, 2019. Save the Art is currently taking steps in
order to close escrow on the purchase pursuant to the terms of the APA, including obtain
appropriate governmental approvals. However, mere days after the approval of the sale occurred
on July 26, 2019, another obstacle presented itself - namely the denial of the application for
renewal of school's license on July 31, 2019. The Ai Las Vegas's renewal of the license, which
is before this Commission, is an integral part of the APA and Save the Art's acquisition of the
assets under the APA. Without this license, Ai Las Vegas, and upon acquisition. Save the Art
would not be able to operate the school.

Unlike majority of the schools under the receivership, Ai Las Vegas has its own OPE ID number and has not lost
Title IV funds.





Page 8 of 17

Without the license, the school will be forced to close and the students, faculty and this
community be subject to yet another school closure. By maintaining the license, this
Commission can prevent another school closure and the negative impact such closure would
have on the students, faculty and our community, and give the school a chance to continue to
operate under new ownership once the sale is consummated on or before November 1, 2019.

There is another important reason for keeping this school open. The curriculum and the
career arts skills that this school offers are unique to Nevada, as we are unaware of any other
school in Nevada offering the same type of postsecondary career arts skill education. Also, to our
knowledge, Ai Las Vegas may also be the only degree granting culinary arts skill school that
remains in Nevada. This type of school is, thus, a perfect fit for the Las Vegas metropolitan area.
This community boasts a wide variety of career opportunities representative of the areas of study
offered at the Ai Las Vegas. This is certainly an educational opportunity worth preserving and
carrying forward. Notably, significant groundwork has already been completed by Save the Art
to guarantee future operational success for the school once change of ownership occurs. Thus,
the loss of this school would be detrimental not only to the students and faculty but to our
community as a whole.

In addition to keeping the school open for its current students, the school is in a great
position to expand, not only in its enrollment, but also in developing additional colleges and
curricula. Such expansion will be good not only for the school but also for our community.

The closure of about 180 schools under the DCEH, has resulted in approximately 12,000
students displaced with incomplete and non-transferable degree programs across the country.
Such closures provide this school with enormous opportunity to attract these displaced students
and provide them with opportunities to have their degrees and certificates completed here. With
the full transfer of earned credits, there will be an incentive for these students to attend our
school. Save the Art has retained EZ Education Connect to assist school in the readmission

outreach to these students. Moreover, with EZ Education Connect, the school will focus on
foreign students, especially from India. EZ Connect has extensive experience, local presence and
education credentials to expand its network in India for recruitment of students for the school.
EZ Education Connect has a close working relationship with the government of India and is
familiar with India's government provided or subsidized policies promoting education. Through
EZ Education Connect it is anticipated that the school could easily add 500 to 1,000 students in
the first two years from India alone.

In addition to increasing student enrollment. Save the Art also intends to expand its
curricula. Currently Ai Las Vegas offers two schools, namely College of Applied Arts and
College of Culinary Arts. Save the Art intends to expand and develop the following additional
art skills colleges, namely College of Performance Arts, College of Medical Technical Arts,
College of Entrepreneurship, College of Continuing Education, and Online & Distance Learning
Programs. Both expansions will significantly benefit the school and our community.

As long as change of ownership occurs, which again hinges greatly upon Ai Las Vegas's
license staying in effect. Save the Art has great plans for not only being able to operate the





Page 9 of 17

school in a traditional manner as was done prior to school being placed in the receivership, but
also has plans to improve the school and our community through the use of opportunity zone
investments.

The Opportunity Zone ("OZ") legislation was enacted December 22, 2017 with
regulations issued on October 19, 2018 and April 17, 2019. The spirit of the OZ legislation is
intended to spark new investment in communities that are lacking business investment and real
estate development in specifically defined low income census tracts. Essentially the OZ
legislation allows investors with capital gain to defer and permanently eliminate a portion of
taxes on capital gains and completely eliminate taxes on capital gains if a capital gain is invested
in OZ real estate or an OZ business and holds such investment for a period of 10 years or more.

Save the Art has identified several OZ locations within City of Las Vegas ("City") that
match the Citadel of the Arts College ("COA")'' campus criteria and that align with the local
community development strategy. With the assistance of the City and State of Nevada
incentives and other traditional debt and equity financing. Save the Art will be able to accept
various size Opportunity Fund investments to supplement the short term and long term COA
development plan.

The development plan has identified and confirmed numerous OZ investors interested in
various aspects of the COA. Because the COA development plan includes both a real estate and
a "for benefit" business operation, we are in a unique position to secure OZ fimding from various
OZ investors, including: ultra-high net worth private investors, family office, private and public
banks, as well as corporate investors seeking development opportunities that match various
Socially Responsible Investing ("SRI") requirements. These OZ investors are seeking OZ
projects that are transformative in nature to the local community and benefit the arts and/or have
educational or other sustainability components. And, unlike odier tax credit financing tools, the
OZ investment formula requires that investors with deferred capital gains make such new
investments within 180 days from the date a gain is realized. This means that the COA
development project must be ready to accept initial investor equity placements before December
31, 2019 to avoid losing access to many OZ investors who are already within their 180-day
window to make a qualified investment. By way of example. Save the Art has a qualified
investor who has already established his Opportunity Fund who must make a qualified OZ
investment by October 22, 2019 or lose his ability to defer and eliminate tax on a $3M gain
generated in Q42018. However, this investor will only move forward on a $2.5M to $3M OZ
placement with COA after confirmation that Ai Las Vegas is out from receivership and free to
operate as COA with all the requisite licenses and accreditation. Because OZ investors must
make OZ investment decisions within a 180-day window from the date a capital gain is
generated, it is critical that the sale is consummated as quickly as possible with certainty about
all aspects of the COA, including with this license intact, so as not to lose out on the possibility
of many of these investors opting to place their OZ investments elsewhere.

' Upon change of ownership, the school will operate under the name of the Citadel of Arts Colleges, the name
previously approved by the CPE Administrator.





Page 10 of 17

The future of the school rests on the shoulders of this Commission. Without the license

none of this will be possible, and this Commission will once again be faced with another school
closure, which could be easily avoided. Not allowing the school to continue to operate in a
situation as presently presented and not giving the school a chance to come out of receivership
and be able to correct the deficiencies that still remain once the school is out of receivership, is
not in anyone's best interest, especially, where steps to correct many of the deficiencies have
already been taken by the school.

The Commission must consider the fact that Save the Art, along with the Receiver, have
both been cooperating with CPE Administrator to get the deficiencies noted in the denial of the
application for license renewal corrected and in otherwise addressing the concerns of
Administrator and this Commission. As noted by CPE Administrator, Save the Art, has been in
weekly communications with the CPE Administrator and the Commission's counsel, Robert
Whitney, and has been completely transparent though this entire process. The "unprecedented"
amount of time spent with CPE Administrator and Robert Whitney to address deficiencies and to
keep them apprised of the status of the corrective action, shows not only good faith, but also the
intent by both Save the Art and the Receiver in getting the deficiencies corrected for Ai Las
Vegas to maintain the license. Again, some of the deficiencies simply may not be able to be
corrected until the sale is consummated. That does not mean however, that they cannot be, nor
that they will not be corrected after the change of ownership occurs. It also does not mean that
Ai Las Vegas will not continue to correct the deficiencies on an ongoing basis. At this juncture,
it would be premature for the Commission to deny Ai LV license renewal or at minimum provide
a provisional license in order to give the school an opportunity to correct any remaining
deficiencies once the change of ownership occurs.

At this point, we would like to more specifically address CPE Administrator's
submission to the Commission that was prepared on September 5, 2019 ("Submission"). On
September 5, 2019 Save the Art provided CPE Administrator with additional documents in
response of noted deficiencies, which are not addressed or reflected in the Submission. Thus,
several Outstanding Issues noted in the Submission have or should now be resolved. Notably,
the catalog, payment of CPE quarterly fees, evidence of signed Nevada enrollment agreements
for students who transferred in from other Art Institute schools and documentation relative the

student complaints were all provided by Save the Art on September 5, 2019 but are not reflected
in the Submission. The corrections required by CPE Administrator to Ai Las Vegas's enrollment
agreement were also made and the corrected enrollment agreement was submitted to CPE
Administrator via e-mail on September 8, 2019. Once the enrollment agreement is approved by
CPE Administrator, Ai Las Vegas will proceed to have any transfer student that has not
previously executed a Nevada enrollment agreement execute the approved enrollment agreement
and provide a copy of it to CPE Administrator. Thus, other than payment of current and past
employee wages, all the Outstanding Issues set forth in the Submission and the July 31, 2019 and
August. 14,2019 letters relating to the denial of Ai Las Vegas's application for renewal of license
should now be completed. To the extent there are additional items that need to be provided.
Save the Art will work with the CPE Administrator to provide them.



Page 11 of 17

The chart on page 3 of the Submission, sets forth that several requested items had not
been received. Most of the outstanding items were delivered to the CPE Administrator on
September 5, 2019. It is likely that due to the timing of when the Submission was prepared and
when the additional items were provided to the CPE Administrator that several of the items in
the Submission were noted as "Not received" when in fact they had been provided. Moreover,
Ai Las Vegas and Save the Art continue to work with the CPE Administrator to resolve any
other outstanding matters.

Requested Item Rationale Status

List of Current faculty with
courses thought and contact
information

Identify staff current teaching.
CPE has received complaints
of faculty leaving and being
replaced with unqualified
individuals.

Received on September 10,
2019

All Faculty and required staff
complete background check
process as required under NRS
394.465

CPE has not received any
backgrounds since March
2019 in violation of NRS

394.465. ACICS visit revealed

several new staff who had not

completed the process. CPE
received a catalog dated
7/11/19 listing faculty who
had communicated to CPE

they left their position.

Partially Received. Additional
documents provided on
September 10, 2019.

To date, 10 out of 21 faculty
and required staff have been
fingerprinted and information
provided to Administrator.
The remaining 11 faculty
and/or required staff members
are in the process of
completing the background
check process at which time
additional documentation will

be provided.

As to any faculty member
whose qualification was
questionable based on CPE's
initial review of the

faculty/staff credentialing
form, Ai Las Vegas is
currently reviewing and will
provide secondary
credentialing documentation
(i.e., letters of
recommendation form,

employers, portfolio's, work
experience) as soon as
possible.



Page 12 of 17

Ai Las Vegas have been
working with the CPE
Administrator and has been

and continues to provide
documentation on a rolling
basis.

Submission of approvable
enrollment agreements

Enrollment agreement not
valid. Several references to

DCEH corporate structure.

Revised enrollment agreement
received on September 8,
2019

Approvable Catalog Catalog not valid. Several
references to DCEH corporate
structure and institutional

processes that are no longer in
existence.

Received on September 5,
2019

Payment of current and past
employee wages

Pursuant to NRS 608.060,

employers are required to
regularly pay employees.
Several faculty have indicated
the institution last paid wages
in May 2019 for part of April
wages.

Not received

Payment of CPE quarterly fees All institutions are required to
pay fee for new enrollments
pursuant to NRS 394.540(3).
CPE has not received payment
for quarters October 2018-
December 2018 & January
2019-March 2019 totaling
$300 and the required late fee
of$500

Received on September 5,
2019

Resolution of Student

Complaints
Provided the Institution with

list of required documents to
investigate student issues and
complaints. NRS 394.441(3)
requires institutions to
maintain adequate records.

Several investigations were
started during Winter term.
School has not provided
information required within
the student files.

Received updated student
ledgers, check copies and
description from Receiver's
office concerning some
payments related to Winter
2019 term.

Other documents requested
received on September 5,
2019.



Page 13 of 17

VA Suspension and Student Complaints

As a result of receivership, Ai Las Vegas has been suspended for enrollment of new VA
Educational Benefits program beneficiaries, we believe in large part because of complaints filed
by VA students, which are part of DETR's investigation and are reflected in the Submission (See
Attachment I) and an apparent failure of Ai Las Vegas to provide the requested student records
for these student complaints. Other than for two VA students for whom response was provided
to DETR on July 2, 2019 (See Attachment J), Save the Art and the Ai Las Vegas campus were
not aware of the student complaints in Attachment I until the August 14, 2019 letter. After Ai
Las Vegas provided its response on July 2, 2019 on the two student complaints Ai Las Vegas did
not receive any further feedback, response or request for further documentation from DETR on
the two VA students or an inquiry as to why responses were not provided as to the remaining 15
student complaints set forth in the Attachment

Despite the fact a response was provided on July 2, 2019 (See Attachment J), the two
VA students and the complaints they filed with DETR were again included in the August 14,
2019 letter. On September 5, 2019, Ai Las Vegas once again provided the documentation
relating to these two VA students to DETR along with the documentation requested as to the
remaining 15 student complaints, of which Save the Art and the local campus Ai Las Vegas had
no knowledge imtil August 14, 2019. Additionally, as reflected in Attachment I, the payment of
student stipends and/or tuition refunds, which were part of student complaint filed with the
DETR, was issued by the Receiver on August 15, 2019. Ai Las Vegas also provided
accommodation to its deaf students, including the student complaining that Ai Las Vegas is not
providing him with a disability accommodation, namely a sign language interpreter for class
times. In compliance with the ADA requirements, reasonable accommodation to its deaf
students can be made in the form of computer-aided transcription pursuant to 28 C.F.R. §
36.303(b)(1). This accommodation in a form of computer-aided transcription is currently being
provided to any deaf student attending the school even though Ai Las Vegas technically is not be
required to provide auxiliary aids or services if it would be an undue burden to the school.
Significant ifficulty or expense to the school is an undue burden to the school. The current
enrollment which is currently down because of the school being in receivership and in fact, the
mere fact that the school is in receivership, evidences that providing a sign language interpreter,
would cause an undue burden to Ai Las Vegas.

Ai Las Vegas has been cooperating, and will continue to cooperate, with DETR to get the
student complaints resolved. To the best of their ability under the current situation, Ai Las
Vegas has provided DETR with the documents requested by DETR relative the student
complaints. To the extent additional documentation is required for DETR to complete its
investigation or in order to resolve the student complaints, the school will continue to cooperate
with DETR to get the student complaint resolved.

Again, the first time that Save the Art and the local campus became aware of the 15 student complaints was not
until August 14, 2019 letter. It is unclear to whether and to whom DETR sent the notice and request for a response
as to the 15 student complaints.



Page 14 of 17

Accreditation Issues

Ai Las Vegas acknowledges the accreditation issues that resulted from the ACICS
"surprise" Fast Assessment and Compliance Team (FACT) visit on June 25, 2019.'^ Ai Las
Vegas responded to the deficiencies noted in its FACT visit of June 25, 2019. On August 30,
2019, Ai Las Vegas was issued a continue to show-cause notice requiring an in-person hearing at
the December 2019 Council. Save the Art is in the process of submitting its change of
ownership application to ACICS. The change of ownership and getting the school out of
receivership should address most if not all ACICS's concerns. Aaron Lacey, Esq. is working
with Save the Art and the school on accreditation with ACICS and to address the show-cause

notice that has been issued by ACICS against Ai Las Vegas.

Quarterly Fees

As previously noted, a check in the sum of $800 was submitted to DBTR on September 5,
2019. Therefore, Ai Las Vegas is current with its quarterly fees.

Denial of Renewal

On July 11, 2019, Ai Las Vegas submitted its renewal application. On July 31, 2019, 5
days after the Federal Court entered an order approving the sale of the assets of Ai Las Vegas, in
which DETR participated, DETR denied Ai Las Vegas's application for license renewal. Its
application was denied on the basis that since the Receiver is in possession of the institution the
institution cannot demonstrate financial soundness. Moreover, although an audited financial
statement for DCEH was provided by the Receiver on August 6, 2019, it was determined that
"the court permitting the company to be placed in Receivership in [sic] direct evidence of the
DCHC [sic] financial instability. The CPE Administrator therefore felt that she did not have "the
authority to renew a license when the applicant fails to meet the criteria for granting the
application and therefore, a denial of licensure was issued on July 31,2019.

Again, it is important for the Commission to note that Ai Las Vegas was not placed into
receivership because of its financial instability or of any fault of its own. Rather, Ai Las Vegas,
foimd itself being placed into receivership simply because its parent company, DCEH, was
placed into receivership. Ai Las Vegas, on its own, has generated and continues to generate
sufficient funds for its operations. Again, the DOE is currently holding Title IV Funds for 2019
Winter quarter, 2019 Spring quarter and 2019 Summer Quarter. Title IV funds held by the DOE
for 2019 Spring and Summer quarters alone are in the vicinity of $2.5 to $2.6 million. Global is
working with the Receiver, Save the Art and the DOE to get the 2019 Winter quarter re-
submitted, upon which time submissions and postings for the 2019 Spring quarter and 2019
Summer quarter can be made. Once received, the funds held by the DOE on their own are more
than enough to meet the school's operational expenses, including payment of faculty past and
current wages. Thus, on its own, Ai Las Vegas remains financially stable.

Although initially Ai Las Vegas was told that ACICS would be making the FACT visit sometime in
January/February 2020, ACICS gave Ai Las Vegas less than a week's notice of its June 25, 2019 FACT visit.



Page 15 of 17

Moreover, under the APA, Save the Art has agreed to purchase the assets of Ai Las
Vegas by no later than November 1, 2019. The sale to Save the Art was approved by the Federal
Court on July 26, 2019. See Attachment A. The Order approving the sale, which was entered
mere days before the July 31, 2019 denial of application for renewal, included language that was
specifically requested by the CPE Administrator through counsel Robert Whitney that made sure
that outstanding claims of students, VA and DETR would be taken care of.

Consideration of all these factors should have been given in consideration of Ai Las
Vegas's application for renewal license. At minimum, due to the impending sale, an extension
should have been provided to Ai Las Vegas, the applicant for renewal, pursuant to NRS
394.490(2) to allow Ai Las Vegas to resolve the issues and otherwise eliminate the reasons cited
in the denial letter. Such an extension would have provided the Receiver and Save the Art time
to consummate the sale and allow for the change of ownership to occur. Many, if not all the
concerns, are likely have been resolved once the change of ownership occurred and the school
was no longer in receivership.

Ai Las Vegas, along with the Receiver and Save the Art, have been cooperating with the
CPE Administrator to get the outstanding issues resolved. Many of the issues have been resolved
prior to this Commission hearing. To the extent that any remain outstanding, Ai Las Vegas will
continue the course of action to resolve them as expeditiously as possible. Again, Ai Las Vegas
being in receivership hinders both the school and Save the Art in their efforts to correct any
deficiencies and in being able to operate the school in a traditional manner. Save the Art,
however, is confident that once the transfer of ownership occurs, the school, under new
ownership will be able to correct any remaining outstanding deficiencies and will once again
thrive and provide quality education for which it is known. At this juncture, denial of Ai Las
Vegas's application for renewal or at minimum granting Ai Las Vegas a provisional license
would cause irreparable harm to the school, its students, faculty. Save the Art and our
community. The license should remain in effect and Ai Las Vegas given an opportunity to
proceed with the change of ownership. By keeping the license in effect will provide Ai Las
Vegas and after the change of ownership. Save the Art, an opportunity to correct outstanding
deficiencies. It will also provide the school, which has been successful in this community, to
survive and thrive once again. Thus, even if the Commission was inclined to accept the CPE
Administrator's denial of Ai Las Vegas's application for renewal, postponement of effective date
of such action is appropriate pursuant to NRS 394.530. NRS 394.530 provides:

NRS 394.530 Postponement of effective date of action
pending review. If the Commission or the Administrator
determines that irreparable injury would result from putting into
immediate effect a final action or penalty, the Commission or
Administrator, as appropriate, shall postpone the effective date of
the action pending review.

Undoubtedly, an outright denial of application for renewal, or denial to grant Ai Las
Vegas at least a provisional license to allow the sale and change of ownership to proceed would



Page 16 of 17

cause irreparable injury not only to the school, but also to its students, faculty. Save the Art and
the community in general. The closure of the school, which is likely to occur if Ai Las Vegas no
longer has a license, would also cause harm unnecessarily. The change of ownership is at
maximum less than two months away, as the sale is to be consummated by no later than
November 1, 2019. On the other hand, maintaining the license in effect and allowing the sale
and change of ownership to occur will be to everyone's benefit. The deficiencies noted in the
denial letter are not insurmountable. There is no reason that any deficiencies that remain prior to
the change of ownership cannot be corrected after the change of ownership occur. Many of the
deficiencies simply exist because of Ai Las Vegas being in receivership. Once the school is no
longer in receivership, the school will be in a better position of being able to resolve them to the
satisfaction of DETR. After the change of ownership, the school will also be able to operate in
traditional manner again. Therefore, the best course of action for the Commission is to allow Ai
Las Vegas to maintain its license and allow the change of ownership to occur.

Student Population Impact

In the event the license is not maintained, the impact of school closure is much greater
than Ai Las Vegas's current summer quarter enrollment. Historically, the summer quarter
student enrollment is less than for the remaining year. Also, in view of other Ai school closures,
there are thousands of students that have been displaced, which would be able to complete their
education at the school in Las Vegas. With the full transfer of earned credits, these displaced
students have an opportunity to be able to complete their degrees and certificates. Once the sale
is consummated, the school will once again be in the position to add additional courses, faculty
and staff to meet the student demands in order to fulfill student graduation requirements without
adding additional time and cost to the program.

Supporting Letters

The support for saving the school remains strong by the dedicated faculty, students,
alumni and local community professionals as well as local government officials. A sample of
supporting letters received is attached as Attachment K. Additionally, DOE has been working
with Save the Art to result in change of ownership of the school. Save the Art has surrounded
itself by professionals knowledgeable in the field of postsecondary education to make the change
of ownership as seamless as possible. The support for saving the school that the school has
received is yet another reason for the Commission to maintain the license to allow the change of
ownership to occur.

Conclusion

As this Commission can see, the prospects for the future success of the school are great
not only for the school but more importantly for its students and our community. Any adverse
action taken by the CPE Administrator and this Commission on Ai Las Vegas's license will
cause irreparable harm to the school, but more importantly to its faculty, students and our
community. The situation that Ai Las Vegas finds itself before this Commission is not typical in



Page 17 of 17

that the deficiencies which resulted in the CPE Administrator's denial of Ai Las Vegas's
application for renewal of license. Unlike other schools that typically find themselves before this
Commission for deficiencies that occurred during their traditional operation of their school, Ai
Las Vegas finds itself in a different predicament. In this case, the predicament that Ai Las Vegas
finds itself stems from being placed into receivership through no fault of its own. Had Ai Las
Vegas not been placed into receivership, it is likely that its application for renewal of license
would have been granted in due course. However, because of being placed into receivership,
caused Ai Las Vegas being placed into HCM2 status with DOE and thus has caused a significant
delay in getting the Title TV funds that it would typically have to operate. Yet despite of all this,
Ai Las Vegas has been able to remain open, largely due to its dedicated faculty and
administrative staff who continue to provide education to the students even though they have not
been paid for months. The utmost importance for Save the Art and the dedicated faculty and
administrative staff of Ai Las Vegas is to save the school for the students and our community.
None of this can happen, and all the efforts will be for naught if this Commission does not
maintain the license and allow the change of ownership to occur. As noted above, once the
change of ownership occurs, the plans and future of the school are bright for all involved.
Therefore, to avoid irreparable injury, which will undoubtedly occur in the event of loss of Ai
Las Vegas's license, the Commission should do the right thing and allow Ai Las Vegas to
maintain its license and allow the change of ownership to proceed. The change of ownership
will allow the school to correct any deficiencies that may remain and put the school back on the
right track from which it was derailed by being placed into receivership.

4850-4428-9444, v. 8



ATTACHMENT A

ORDER GRANTING EMERGENCY MOTION OF MARK E. DOTTORE,
RECEIVER OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, FOR AN
ORDER AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE
ASSETS OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, FREE AND CLEAR
OF LIENS, ENCUMBRANCES, CLAIMS AND OTHER INTERESTS
(WITH CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS) AND FOR TRANSFER OF THE
INTERESTS OF UNPAID HOLDERS OF INTERESTS TO THE

PROCEEDS OF SALE

(See Attached)

ATTACHMENT A



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 lot 18. PagelD#: 10844

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

EASTERN DIVISION

DIGITAL MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC,

Plaintiff,

V.

SOUTH UNIVERSITY OF OHIO,
LLC, et. al..

Defendants.

CASE NO. l:19-cv-145

JUDGE DAN AARON POLSTER

MAGISTRATE JUDGE

THOMAS M. PARKER

ORDER GRANTING EMERGENCY MOTION OF MARK E. DOTTORE,
RECEIVER OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, FOR AN
ORDER AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE
ASSETS OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, FREE AND

CLEAR OF LIENS, ENCUMBRANCES, CLAIMS AND OTHER INTERESTS
(WITH CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS) AND FOR TRANSFER OF THE

INTERESTS OF UNPAID HOLDERS OF INTERESTS TO THE PROCEEDS
OF THE SALE

This matter having come before the Court on the Motion (the Sale Motion )

of Mark E. Dottore (the "Receiver"), Receiver of The Art Institute of Las Vegas

LLC, for an Order Authorizing the sale of substantially all of the assets of The Art

Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, an Arizona nonprofit limited liability company that is

registered in the State of Nevada as The DC Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC OPE

ID #04051300 (the "School"), free and clear of all mortgages, pledges, security

interests, liens, encumbrances, claims, charges, and any other interests of any kind

or type whatsoever (the "Interests") (with certain exceptions as heieinafter

provided) and for the transfer the Interests of unpaid holders of Interests to the

Proceeds of the Sale. In the Sale Motion, the Receiver seeks the entry of an Order:

(i) authorizing the sale of all or substantially all of the assets (the "Assets") of the

{00022593-21



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 2 of 18. Page!D #: 10845

School to Save the Ai't Institute of Las Vegas Limited ("Save Las Vegas" or the

"Buyer"), consistent with the terms of an Asset Purchase Agreement (the "APA")

dated July 15, 2019; (ii) determining and directing that the sale of the Assets is free

and clear of all Interests except for amounts that are required to be paid as part of

the process of approval of the Sale at the direction of the United States Department

of Education (the "DOE") or the Nevada Department of Employment, Training and

Rehabilitation, Commission of Postsecondary Education (the "DETR") (the

"DOE/DETR Required Amounts"); and (iii) and transferring any unpaid claims of

the holders of Interests and other interest holders in the Assets to the proceeds of

sale; and (iv) granting such other and farther relief as is warranted in the

circumstances.

The Court having reviewed the Sale Motion, the Declaration of the Receiver,

and all other pleadings, motions, objections, and other responses (the "Written

Statements") related thereto, to consider the proposed sale (the "Sale") of the

Assets pursuant to the terms and conditions of the APA, at which time all parties in

interest were afforded an opportunity to be heard and the Court having weighed

and considered the Written Statements :

IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED THAT:

A. All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning

as set forth in the Sale Motion and the APA;

B. The relief requested in this motion is governed by FED. R. Civ. P. 66,

Rule 66.1(c) and (d) of the Local Rules for the United States District

(00022593-2}





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 3 of 18. Page!D #: 10846

Court for the Northern District of Ohio (the "Local Rules"), federal

common law and the Receiver Order;

C. The Interim Receiver Order provides,

2.n. The Receiver is authorized to negotiate and effect an
orderly sale, transfer, use or assignment of all or a portion
of any of the Property in or outside of the ordinary course
of business of the Receivership Entities and, for the
proceeds thereof, to pay the secured and unsecured
indebtedness of the Property, including the Real
Property ... The Receiver is authorized to conduct such a
sale of the Property in any manner which he, in his good
faith and reasonable discretion, believes will maximize
the proceeds received from the sale.;

D. The Amended Receiver Order provides that the Receiver's authority to

negotiate and effect a sale of the assets is subject Paragraphs 13 and

14 of the Amended Receiver Order. Paragraph 13 affirms that the

regulatory authority of the United States may not be stayed or

constrained and Paragraph 14 affirms the validity of the Federal

Priority Statute, 31 U.S.C. § 3713;

E. Notice of the Sale Motion and the Sale was provided to hundreds of

persons, who the Receiver identified as having an interest in the sale

proceeding. Notice was served upon all parties to this lawsuit and

their lawyers, the federal, state and local taxing authorities, all

secured creditors, unsecured creditors that have demonstrated an

interest in the assets, the Department of Justice, the Department of

Education, the Nevada state education regulators, the Nevada

Attorney General, and all regulatory and accrediting agencies. The list

100022593-2)



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 4 of 18. Page!D#: 10847

of persons served through the Court is a matter of record; the

additional parties served is contained in a certificate of service filed

with the Court;

F. Proper, timely, adequate and sufficient notice of the Sale Motion, the

Sale Hearing and the proposed Sale has been provided to all interested

parties;

G. Objections were filed as follows:

1. Tech Park 6, LLC's Limited Objection to Emergency Motion of

Mark E. Dottore, Receiver of The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC,

for an Order Authorizing the Sale of Substantially all of the

Assets of The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, Free and Clear of

All Liens, Encumbrances, Claims, and Other Interests (With

Certain Exceptions) and for Transfer of the Interests of Unpaid

Holders of Interests to the Proceeds of the Sale (Doc. No. 395) (the

"Tech Park Objection");

2. The State of Nevada, Commission on Postsecondary Education's

Good Faith Limited Objection to the Receiver's Sale of the Art

Institute of Las Vegas, LLC (Doc. No. 396) (the "DETR

Objection"); and

3. Studio Enterprise Manager, LLC's Limited Objection and

Reservation of Rights to Emergency Motion of Mark E. Dottore,

Receive?" of The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, for an Order

100022593-2}



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 5 of 18. Page!D #: 10848

Authorizing the Sale of Substantially all of the Assets of The Art

Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, Free and Clear of All Liens,

Encumbrances, Claims, and Other Interests (With Certain

Exceptions) and for Transfer of the Interests of Unpaid Holders

of Interests to the Proceeds of the Sale (Doc. No. 395) (the

"Studio Objection").

H. In addition to the Objections, the parties to the transaction received an

inquiry from the DOE (the "DOE Inquiry");

I. This Court has the authority to approve a Sale of the Assets free and

clear of all Interests (except for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts),

and to transfer all Interests whatsoever to the proceeds derived from

the respective sales of the Assets;

J. Liens reported against the Assets are as stated in the Sale Motion;

K. The DOE and DETR have an interest in the Assets in the amount that

is required to be paid prior to the change of ownership to Save Las

Vegas;

L. Those other holders of Interests who did not object to the Sale Motion

are deemed to have consented to the Sale. Those holders of Interests

who did object, if any, are adequately protected by having their

Interests, if any, attach to the proceeds of Sale;

M. Prior to the appointment of the Receiver, the School advertised itself as

for sale to a willing buyer. The School was one of the Excluded

I00022593-21





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 6 of 18. PagelD #: 10849

Campuses; that is, it was not selected for acquisition by Education

Principle Foundation, The Arts Institute International, LLC or the

Dream Center South University, LLC. Immediately after his

appointment, the Receiver was approached by Save Las Vegas and

another group who were seriously interested in acquiring the School;

N. Since his appointment in this case, the Receiver has marketed all of

the Assets in a manner that was designed to attract the maximum

number of individuals and groups with an interest in purchasing one

or multiple campuses. Further, this case has been the subject of

extensive press coverage. Through the press coverage and through

earlier efforts to sell the institution, the Receiver's interest in a sale

transaction and its financial situation were widely known among

educators, educational institutions and investors in educational

institutions and in excess of twenty prospective buyers have contacted

the Receiver about the possibility of purchasing one or more campuses

of the Receivership Entities;

O. The APA submitted by Buyer is the highest and best offer received for

the Assets. It represents the highest in terms of money offered for the

Assets and also includes the opportunity to continue the institution

and honor the students' wishes to complete their programs of study.

The APA offers the School's creditors the most money and the School's

students an uninterrupted education. Principals of Buyer have

!00022593-2)



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 7 of 18. Page!D #: 10850

demonstrated postsecondary education experience and knowledge and

are more likely than other prospective purchasers to be successful in

obtaining approvals from regulatory authorities which are required to

complete the sale transaction. Buyer also seeks to close at the earhest

possible time and demonstrates the financial wherewithal to do so. A

Sale to Buyer is consistent with good business judgment and is

approved by this Court;

?, If the Assets are not sold to Buyer at this time, they will be

substantially devalued or the sale will fail and the School will close.

The Assets are more valuable when sold as a "going concern," that is,

as an educational institution. The sale to Buyer will also benefit the

School's students, faculty and the community as the school will remain

open. In order to sell the Assets as a continuing educational enterprise

in good standing, the Seller must complete its sale transaction

immediately, as it cannot continue to operate as an educational

institution even for a short time without financial assistance and is in

danger of losing both its accreditation and its ability to participate in

federal student aid programs;

Q. A reasonable opportunity to object or be heard with respect to the Sale

Motion and the relief requested herein has been afforded to all

interested persons and entities, including but not limited to, all parties

and intervenors to this action, all secured lenders, all unsecured

100022593-2!





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 8 of 18. Page!D #: 10851

creditors who have requested that notices be sent to them, Attorney

General of the State of Nevada, all full time faculty members, all of the

School's educational accrediting agencies, and other parties that the

Receiver believes would have an interest in the Sale or who have

requested that they be notified of any sale;

R. The Receiver has demonstrated that approval of the Sale Motion and

consummation of the Sale to the Buyer at this time is in the best

interests of the School, its creditors and its students. The Receiver has

advanced good and sufficient business justification supporting the sale

of the Assets to the Buyer as set forth in the Sale Motion, and it is a

reasonable exercise of the Receiver's business judgment to

consummate a sale of the Assets on the terms and conditions set forth

in the APA, and to execute, deliver and perform its obligations

thereunder. Sound business judgment includes, but is not limited to,

the fact that (i) there is a risk of immediate and irreparable loss of

value of the Assets if the Sale is not consummated, (ii) there is a

substantial risk of loss of accreditation from the Accrediting Counsel

for Independent Colleges and Schools ("ACICS") and American

Culinary Federation Education Foundation's Accrediting Commission

("ACFEFAG"), and loss of eligibility to participate in federal student

aid programs (iii) the School cannot continue as an educational

institution for even a short time without financial assistance, (iv) if the

100022593-2 1



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 9 of 18. PagelD #: 10852

School ceases to operate as an educational institution, its students will

be unable to complete their programs of study, and (v) the

consummation of the transaction contemplated under the APA

presents the best opportunity to realize the value of the Assets to avoid

further decline and devaluation thereof; (vi) the sale is at arm's length;

and (vii) the Receiver has exercised reasonable diligence and good faith

judgment;

S. The consideration to be paid by the Buyer for the Assets constitutes

adequate and fair value for the Assets and the terms and conditions of

the APA are fair and reasonable;

T  The Receiver is authorized and directed to negotiate, execute and

deliver all documents necessary to consummate the Sale with the

Buyer on the same general terms and conditions as the APA with such

changes as the Receiver, in his sole discretion, deems necessary or

desirable, and is further authorized to execute other ancillary

agreements and other documents to sell the Assets and to complete the

Sale of the Assets without further order of this Court free and clear of

all Interests (except for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts), as long as

the terms and conditions of the APA and othei documents are not

materially worse, in the aggregate, to the School, or materially worse

with respect to the interests of individual secured creditors, than the

terms and conditions contained in the APA;

100022593-2!



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 10 of 18. PagelD#: 10853

U. The School has good title to the Assets, and accordingly the sale of

such Assets to the Buyer will be a legal, valid and effective sale of the

Assets;

V. The terms and conditions of the APA were negotiated, proposed and

entered into in good faith, from arm's length bargaining positions by

the Receiver and the Buyer and constitute the highest or otherwise

best offer for the Assets after a period in which third parties had ample

opportunity to seek information and enter into discussions or

negotiations with the Receiver concerning a sale of the Assets. The

Buyer is entitled to the protections of a good faith purchaser with

respect to the Sale approved hereby;

W. The APA is conditioned upon several events, which include (i) all of the

terms and conditions of the sale must be approved by the Court

through an Order of Sale and the Order of Sale must be final and not

appealable; (ii) the sale must be free and clear of all Interests (except

for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts); and (hi) all necessary

approvals from the Governing Authorities and Educational Agencies

are obtained. The Buyer will not consummate the transactions

contemplated in the APA, thus adversely affecting the School, its

creditors and its students, if the sale of the Assets to the Buyer is not

free and clear of all Interests, or if the Buyer would, or in the futui-e

;00022593-2) 10



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 11 of 18. PagelD#: 10854

could, be liable for any of the Interests (except for the DOE/DETR

Required Amounts);

X. The Receiver does not have any interest in Buyer or any party

affiliated with Buyer;

Y. The Sale was non-collusive, fair and reasonable and conducted in good

faith.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED

THAT:

1. The Sale of the Assets is approved and authorized on terms consistent

with those in the APA which is attached to the Sale Motion and made a part

hereof;

2. Any objections to the Sale Motion or the relief requested therein that

have not been withdrawn, waived or settled, and all reservations of rights

included therein, are overruled on the merits;

3. The APA is hereby approved and the Receiver is hereby authorized and

PTTipowered to fully perform thereunder and to consummate the sale as

contemplated under the APA on the same general terms and conditions as the

APA. To the extent that changes are needed to consummate the sale as

contemplated under the APA, the Receiver, in his sole discretion and without

fui-ther order of this Court, is authorized to execute such additional instruments

and documents that may be reasonably necessary or desirable to implement the

APA and to take all further actions as may reasonably be requested by the Buyer

J00022593-2) 11



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 12 of 18. Page!D#: 10855

for the purpose of selling, assigning, transferring, granting, conveying and

conferring to the Buyer, or reducing to the Buyer's possession, any or all of the

Assets free and clear of all Interests;

4. As of the closing of the Sale of the Assets, the sale of the Assets to the

Buyer will be a legal, valid, enforceable, and effective sale of the Assets, and will

vest the Buyer with all right, title, and interest in the Assets free and clear of all

Interests (except for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts);

5. Subject to Paragraphs 14 and 16, and except as may be expressly

permitted by the contemplated APA, all persons and entities holding liens or

interests, including the Secured Claimants, are hereby barred from asserting

such liens or interests against the Buyer, its successors or assigns, or the Assets;

6. Proper, timely, adequate and sufficient notice of the proposed Sale has

been provided by the Receiver to all relevant parties, and no other or further

notice is required;

7. The foregoing notwithstanding, subject to Paragraphs 14 and 16, the

provision of this Order authorizing the Sale of the Assets free and clear of all

Interests (except for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts) shall be self-executing,

and notwithstanding the failure of the Receiver, the Buyer or any other party to

execute, file or obtain releases, discharges, termination statements, assignments,

consents or other instruments to effectuate, consummate and/or implement the

provisions hereof or the contemplated APA with respect to the Sale of the Assets,

all liens, claims, encumbrances and interests on such Assets shall be deemed

;000225d3-2 > 12



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 13 of 18. PagelD#: 10856

released and shall attach to the proceeds of the Sale except for the DOE/DETR

Required Amounts;

8. Subject to Paragraphs 14 and 16, this Order shall be binding upon and

govern the acts of all entities, including without limitation, all fihng agents, filing

officers, title agents, title companies, recorders of mortgages, recorders of deeds,

registrars of deeds, administrative agencies, governmental departments,

secretaries of state, federal, state and local officials, and all other peisons or

entities who may be required by operation of law, the duties of their office or

contract to accept, file, register or otherwise record or release any documents or

instruments, or who may be required to report to or insure title or state of title in

or to any of the Assets;

9. Subject to Paragraphs 14 and 16, from and after entry of this Order,

neither the School nor any creditor or other party in interest shall take or cause

to be taken any action that would interfere with the sale of the Assets to the

Buyer in accordance with the terms of this Order,

10. Subject to Paragraphs 14 and 16, from and after entry of this Order, no

creditor or other party in interest shall assert any claims or take any legal or

other actions relating to the Assets to be sold to Buyer, before the closing of the

Sale against Buyer, its principals or the Assets;

11. The Receiver is authorized to execute such other documents as are

necessary or desirable to implement this Order,

!00022o93-21 13



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 14 of 18. Page!D#: 10857

12. This Court shall retain jurisdiction (i) to enforce and implement the

terms and provisions of the contemplated APA and all amendments thereto, any

waivers and consents thereunder and any other agreements executed in

connection therewith, (ii) to resolve any disputes arising under or related to the

APA, except as otherwise provided therein, and (iii) to interpret, implement and

enforce the provisions of this Order.

13. The Tech Park Objection shall be deemed resolved effective as of entry

by this Court of the proposed form of Order Surrendering Possession of Premises

to Intervening Landlord, Tech Park 6, LLC, Relieving Injunction and Stay as to

Leased Premises and the Lease and Related Relief submitted to this Court jointly

by the Receiver, the Buyer and Tech Park.

14. The DETR Objection is resolved. Nothing in the APA or this Order

shall constrain the regulatory authority of DETR to require the Buyer to assume

any obligation, claim, encumbrance, lien or liability which the School may owe or

be required by DETR or the United States Department of Veterans Affairs to pay

or otherwise be responsible for, relating to any student stipend(s), unearned

tuition, student reimbursements, errors, omissions or other monetary

obligation(s) incurred or accrued by the School prior to April 1, 2019 oi, to the

extent applicable, otherwise prevent any recovery pursuant to NRS 394.520 for

violations of NRS 394.393-NRS 394.560 or NAC Chapter 394.300-394.685, or for

recovery for potential violations of 38 CFR § 21.4009(f).

J00022593-2) 14



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 15 of 18. PagelD #: 10858

15. The Studio Objection is resolved. The parties shall amend the APA as

follows:

a. The last sentence of the definition of "Accounts Receivable in the APA

is modified to read "Accounts Receivable shall not include any account

that Studio or its affiliates are entitled to, including

pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Fiamewoik

Agreement, dated January 7, 2019, by and among Studio, Seller,

Dream Center Education Holdings, LLC and the other parties thereto."

b. The last sentence of the definition of "Excluded Receivables" in the

APA is modified to read "Excluded Receivables shall include any

account receivable that Studio or its affiliates are entitled to, including

pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Framework

Agreement, dated January 7, 2019, by and among Studio, Seller,

Dream Center Education Holdings, LLC and the other parties theieto.

c. The following language shall be added to the end of Section 5.4 of the

APA: "Notwithstanding the foregoing, any data or access provided

hereunder expressly excludes any information or data of any other

schools or students of any other schools.

16. The inquiry of the DOE is resolved. Nothing in the APA or this Order

shall constrain the regulatory authority of any agency of the United States,

including DOE, or affect DOE's authority to set conditions for participation under

the Title IV program of the Higher Education Act, including but not hmited to

!00022593-2) 15



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 16 of 18. PagelD #: 10859

requiring the Buyer to assume any obligation, claim, encumbrance, ben or

babUity which the School may owe or be required by DOE or the United States

Department of Veterans Affairs to pay or otherwise be responsible for, relating to

any student stipend(s), unearned tuition, or other monetary obbgation(s) incurred

or accrued by the School prior to April 1, 2019; provided, however, for avoidance

of doubt that under no circumstances wiU the Buyer be responsible for any

trailing babibties associated with any institution or OPE ID associated with or

under the ownership of Seller, Dream Center Education Holdings, Argosy

University of Cabfornia, LLC, Dream Center South University, LLC or The Arts

Institute International, LLC other than the School.

17. Pursuant to Fed. R. Civ.R. 54(B), this Order is a final Order and there

is no just reason for delay.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

Dated: July 26, 2019

a/Dan Aaron Polster

Dan Aaron Polster

United States District Judge

lomas iVhJ^ark

United States Magistrate Judge

100022593-2) 16



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 17 of 18. Page!D#: 10860

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Mary K. Whitmer

Mary K. Whitmer (0018213)
James W. Ehrman (0011006)
Robert M. Stefancin (0047184)
Whitmer & Ehrman LLC

2344 Canal Road, Suite 401
Cleveland, Ohio 44113-2535
Telephone: (216) 771-5056
Email: mkw@weadvocate.net

Counsel for Mark E. Dnttore. Receiver

/s/ Gwen Rutar Mullins

Gwen Rutar Mullins (NV-003146) (admitted pro hac vice)
Howard & Howard Attorneys PLLC
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000
Las Vegas, NV 89169
Telephone: 702,667.4818
Email: gmullins@howardandhoward.com

Counsel for Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited

AGREED AS TO PARAGRAPH 13

Richard A. Chesley (OH-0029442)
DLA Piper LLP
444 West Lake Street, Suite 900

Chicago, IL 60606
Telephone: 312.368.4000
Email: richard.chesley@dlapiper.com

- and -

/s/ Joshua D. Morse

Joshua D. Morse (admitted pro hac vice)
DLA PIPER LLP

555 Mission Street, Suite 2400
San Francisco, CA
Telephone: 415.836.2500
Email: joshua.morse@dlapiper.com
Counsel to Tech Park 6, LLC

100022593-2 I 17



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 405 Filed: 07/26/19 18 of 18. PagelD #: 10861

AGREED AS TO PARAGRAPH 14

/s/ Robert A. Whitney

Robert A. Whitney (NV-008726)
Aaron Ford - Attorney General
Office of Nevada Attorney General
555 East Washington Avenue, Suite 3900
Las Vegas NV 89101
Chicago, XL 60606
Telephone: 702.483.3104
Email: rwhitney@ag.nv.gov

Counsel for The State of Nevada,
Commission on Postsecondary Education

4850-1133-9421. v. 1

!00022593-2) 18



ATTACHMENT B

COMMISSION OF POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION LETTER

RE: APPROVAL OF NAME OF CITADEL OF THE ARTS COLLEGE

(See Attached)

ATTACHMENT B





KELLY WUEST STATE OF NEVADA 8778 S. Maryland Parkway Suite 115IVCLUY wui:9i Las Vegas, Nevada 89123
AdmtnUlrator (702)486-7330

Fax: (702) 486-7340

COMMISSION ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION

March 13, 2019

Citadel of the Arts College
Richard G. Rock

2350 Corporate Circle
Henderson, NV 89074

Dear Mr. Rock:

This letter serves as approval to use the word "College" in the name "Citadel
of the Arts College." to operate a private postsecondary educational
institution within the state of Nevada. This letter verifies Citadel of the Arts
College will be license with the Commission on Postsecondary Education
upon the final acquisition of the Art Institute of Las Vegas. College word use
approval is pursuant to NRS 394.625.

If you have any questions, please contact this agency.

Sincerely,

Kelly 0. Wlk
Administrator

(.NSm Rev l-l-V



Colleqq or University Authorization Application

APPLICATION IS HERKBY MADE TO USE THE 1ERM (Chock ono).
EXACT NAME FOR WHICH YOU ARE APPLYING

Colloflo D UnlvnroHy.

Cil^AVlBL. ITle
PURPOS0QUSINESS OF THE ABOVE NAMED ENTITY

Tos-l-5<2cc*/bft«u

FOR THE ABOVE NAMED ENTITY. ENTER

ADDRESS

Qexil't

/■fsA/DS^/eSa^ , "EMAIL
'  sfoyf

NAME OF CONTACT FOR THIS APPLICATION

PHONE FAX

WEBSITE URL

IF DIFFERENT FROM ABOVE. ENTER:

CONTACTS ADDRESSCONTACTS ADDRESS , uun i mu i o rnw.-.t

^v/v*- 89/0 >-

CONTACTS PHONE

CONTACTS EMAIL

ViA (2

CONTACT S FAX

-
ATTACHMENTS

You must atuch ovidonce of accrodllatlon and authorlzaUon to oporato In your ttato of domlcllo.
SIGNATURE BELOWS CONSTITUTES UNDERSTANDING THAT THE ENTITY IDENTIFIED ON IHIS FORM.
1. Is and will maintain accreditation as defined by NRS 304 091 AND NRS 394 840.
2. Is not aulhorteed to solidt students or operate in Nevada as defined In NRS 394.087. NRS 394.091. and. nk& ja^.tnu.
SIGNATURE OF APPl r/OATE SIGNED

■7 CPE USE ONLY BELOW THIS LINE
Pursuant to NRS 394.625

Approved to use the term 'coilege* or -university* as checked obovo Not approved to use the term -collego or university

COMMISSION ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION
8778 S MARYLAND PARKWAY STE 115

Las Vegas, Nevada 89123
PH; 702.486-7330 FX: 702-486-7340

www.cpG.state.nv.us





<v''0/;; -----::vA<f^,s<-
9y,





ATTACHMENT C

ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE OF ASSETS OF
THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS

(See Attached)

ATTACHMENT C



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 lof59. Page!D #: 10623

FINAL EXECUTION COPY July 15,2019

ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This ̂ SET PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made and entered into
BS of July [^ 2019 ("Effective Date"), by and between SAVE THE ART INSHTUTE OF
LAS VEGAS LIMItED, a Nevada limited liability company, its deslgnee or assignee
("Buyer"), end THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, an Arizona noiq)rofit limited
liability company that is registered in the State of Nevada as The DC Art Institute of Las
Vegas, LLC, by and throu^ Mark E. Dottore, Receiver ("Seller"), appointed by the United
States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division (the "Court"). Buyer
and Seller may be referred to in this Agireement individually as a "Party" and collectively, as the
"Parties."

REOTALS:

A. Seller owns and operates a private nonprofit, ACICS accredited and Title IV
Program participating (i.e. undw OPE ID # 04051300) institution of postsecondary education
offering ail or a portion of many academic degree and credential programs in design, media arts,
fashion and culinary arts at 2350 Corporate Circle, Suite 100, Henderson, Nevada 89074 (the
"School").

B. Pursuant to that certain Order Appointing Receiver (the "Appointment Order")
entered on January 18, 2019, by the Court in Case No. l:19-cv-145, Marie E. Dottore
("Receiver") was appointed receiver of various entities, including Dream Center Education
Holdings, LLC. The term "Seller" as used in this Agreement shall mean the School by and
through its Court appointed Receiver in connection with the sale of the Purchased Assets.

C. Buyer desires to purchase fiom Seller, and Seller desires to sell to Buyer, the
Purchased Assets (as hereinafter defined) held in connection with, necessary for, or material
ownership and operations of the School (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, tee Excluded
Assets), on terms and conditions set forte in this Agreement (tee "Transaction").

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of tee foregoing, tee mutual covenants,
agreements and representations set forth in this Agreement, and for oteer good and valuable
consideration, tee receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the Parties agree as
follows:

ARTICLE 1

DEFINITIONS

The terms set forte in this ARTICLE I have tee following meanings when used in this
Agreement:

"Accounts Receivable" means ail accounts receivable and all notes, bonds and oteer
evidence of indebtedness of and rights to receive payments arising out of tuition payments or
sales occurring in tee usual conduct of tee School, including but not linoited to VA fhnds, Title
rV tends and all student cash paid tuition made by students firom April 1, 2019 forward.

(OOOUMO.])



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 2 of 59. PagelD #: 10624

Accounts Receivable shall not include any account receiv^le that Studio is entitled to receive
pursuant to the Iirevocable Direction Letter Regarding Certain Accounts Receivable dated
February 27,2019.

"Accrediting Body^ means any non-governmental entity, including without limitation
institutional and specialized accrediting agencies, which engage in the granting or withholding of
accreditation of postsecondary educational institutions or programs, or accreditation of private
elementary and secondary schools or programs, in accordance with standards relating to the
performance, operations, financial condition or academic standards of such institutions and
schools, including, without limitation, ACICS, ACF or CIDA.

"ACF' means the American Culinary Federation.

"ACICS" means the Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools

"Actions" or "Proceedings" means any claim, action, cause of action, suit, demand,
inquiry, proceeding, audi^ hearing, subpoena, investigation, charge, notice of violation, citation,
summons, litigation or suit (of any nature, whether civil, criminal, administrative, regulatory,
judicial or investigative, whether formal or informal, whether public or private, whether at law or
in equity) commenced, brought, conducted or heard by or before, or otherwise involving, any
Goveramental Authority or Educational Agency, or any other aibitration, mediation or similar
proceeding.

"Adverse Regulatory Condition" shall mean any term or condition that would impede
Buyer from operating the School in the same manner and to the full extent it is currently being
operated by Seller, impose any conditions tbat would dilute, in any material respect, the benefits
of the contemplated transactions to Buyer and its Affiliates or otherwise require any provision of
credit support by Buyer or any of its Affiliates.

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person who directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with,
such Person. The term "control," including the terms "controlled by" and "under common
control with," means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the
direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether through the ownership of at least
fifty percent (50%) of the voting securities, by contract or otherwise, including the ability to elect
a majority of die membos of the governing board of such Person.

"Agreement" means this Asset Purchase Agreement, including all Exhibits and Schedules
hereto, as the same may be amended fiom time to time in accordance widi its terms.

"Applicable Law" or "Law" means any federal, state, or local law, statute. Regulation,
rule, ordinance, order, judgment, decision, or decree by any Governmental Authority applicable
to Seller and Buyer.

"Assignment and Assumption Agreement" means that assignment and assumption
agreement to be executed by Buyer and Seller, in die form attached as Exhibit A.

Ia00l24«0.| J

DMItfSSKUM



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 3 of 59. Page!D #: 10625

"Assumed Contracts" means all enrollment agreements and those contracts listed on
Schedule I attached hereto.

"Assumed Liabilities" means all liabilities of Seller arising or to be performed after the
Closing under the Assumed Contracts (but not related to matters, facts or circumstances existing
at, prior to or as a consequence of Closing) as identified in Schedule 2.2.

"Bill of Sale" means that bill of sale to be executed by Seller, in the form attached as
Exhibit B.

''Business Records or Business Data" means all data or infbnnation, in any format,
collected, generated, or used in the Oidinaty Course of Business or necessary for the conduct of
the Business, including, without limitatioD, records relating to accreditation, all financial data
relating to the Business, all educational and student records or data, including all financial,
educational and student data contained in any databases including on the Shared IT Platform
that are used in or necessary for the conduct of the Business of the School.

"Business" means the business of the School.

"CIDA" means the Council for Interior Design Accreditation.

"Claim" or "Claims" will have the meaning set forth in section 101(5) of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code,

"Closing" has the meaning given fliat term in Section 7.1 of this Agreement

"Closing Date" has the meaning given that term in Section 7.1.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

"Curriculum" means all curricula owned by Seller and used in any educational programs
of the School in the form of computer programs or software, slide shows, texts, films, web site
content, audio, videos or any other form or media, including &e following items: School catalog
(without reference to AI or AHV), faculty notes, course and faculty evaluation materials, syllabi
for all classes for the School, student handbook, faculty handbook policy and procedure
manuals, program ayd course cunicula, program and course materials, academic policies,
procedures and standards, handbooks and guidebooks. Curriculum does not include any online
courses or programs.

"DETR" means the Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation,
Commission of Postsecondary Education.

"DOB" means the United States Department of Education and any successor agency
administering student financial assistance under Title IV.

"Educational Agency" means any entity or organization, whether govemmental,
goveniment chartered, tribal, private, or quasi-private, that engages in granting or withholding
Educational Approvals, administers Financial Assistance Programs to or for students or

(oaau«u.i I ^
—  DM1\95jl039.4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 4 of 59. PagelD #: 10626

otiieiwise regulates postsecoodaiy schools or progranis, in accordance wiUi standards relating to
the perfonnance, operation, financial condition, privacy or academic standards of such schools
and programs, including DOE and any Accrediting Body or State Educational Agency.

"Educatiooal Approval" means any license, Permit, consent, franchise, approval,
authorization, certificate, or accreditation issued or required to be issued by an Educational
Agency to Buyer with respect to any aspect of the School and Seller's campus operations subject
to the oversight of such Educational Agency, including any such approval for the Buyer and the
School to participate in any Financial Assistance Program.

"Educational Notices/CoDsents" means any approval, authorization or consent by any
Educational Agency, or any notification to be made by Buyer with the cooperation of Seller to an
Educatiooal Agency, with regard to the transactions contenqilated by this Agreement, whether
required to be obtained prior to or alter the Closing Date, which is necessary under applicable
Laws or Regulations in order to maintain or continue any Educatjonal Approval held by Seller or
its School as of the date of this Agreement

"Educational Law" means any United States federal, state, local or similar statute, Law,
ordinance, Regulation, rule. Accrediting Standard, code, order or standard, including the
provisions of Title IV and any Regulations implementing or relating thereto, issued or
administered by any Educational Agency or any Financial Assistance Program.

"Employee Benefit Plan" means any "employee benefit plan" (as such term is defined in
ERISA §3(3)) and any other compensation or benefit plan, progrra policy, practice, agreement,
undersfani^g or arrangement of any kind, including, without limitation, all incentive, bonus,
severance, change in control, deferred compensation, vacation, holiday, ca&teria, medical or
disability.

"Encumbrance" means any mortgage, encumbrance, charge, Claim, community property
interest, condition, equitable interest. Lien, option, pledge, security interest, right of first refusal
or restrictioa of any including any restriction on use, voting, transfer (other dian restrictions
on transfer under applicable securities laws), receipt of income or exercise of any other attribute
of ownership.

"Environmental Laws" means all federal, state, and local laws, rules. Regulations, and
binding governmental determinations relating to environmental, healdi, and safety matters
(including, without limitation, those relating to toxic or hazardous substances), including,
without limitation, the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Solid Waste Management Act (as
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act), CERCLA (as amended by the
Superfimd Amendments and Reauthorization Act), the Emergency Planning and Community
Right-to-Know Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, and the Occupation Safety and Health
Act."

"Environmental Liabilities" means any Liability or investigatory, corrective or remedial
obligation, whenever arising or occurring, arising under Environmental Laws with respect to the
School or the Purchased Assets (including without limitation any arising from the on-site or off-

(OOOXUiO-il
DMI\9S]Sa39.4





Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 5 of 69. PagelD #: 10627

site release, tlireatened Release, treatment, storage, disposal, or arrangement for disposal of
hazardous substances).

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

"Excluded Assets" means:

(1) all bank accounts of Seller.

(2) all rights to receive mail and other communications addressed to Seller
relating to any of the Excluded Assets or Excluded Liabilities;

(3) all company records of Seller, including minute books and Organizational
Documents;

(4) all personnel and other records of Seller required by Applicable Law to be
retained by the Seller;

(5) all contracts end agreements, whether written or oral, to which Seller is a
patty other than die Assumed Contracts;

(6) any Excluded Receivables; and

(7) Trademark and tradename "The Art Institute of Las Vegas"; "AT'; "Art
Institute" or any variation thereof or similar names and nomenclature;

(8) any assets of Seller not used or held for use by the School.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, the Excluded Assets shall not include Accounts
Receivable or any funds in Seller's ba^ accounts or otherwise held by Seller that Seller received
or is to receive for tuition or otherwise for the 2019 Spring Quarter, 2019 Summer Quarter and
all subsequent quarters, including but not limited to VA funds and Title IV funds from Apni 1,
2019 forward.

"Excluded Liabilities" has the meaning given that term in Section 2.2.

"Excluded Receivables" means any student receivable of the School in existence at the
Closing Date that are attributable to the 2019 Winter Quarter or any prior quarters and all causes
of action pertaining to the collection of the foregoing. Excluded Receivables shall not include
any account receivable that Studio is entitled to receive pursuant to die Inevocable Direction
Letter Regarding Certain Accounts Receivable dated February 27,2019.

"Financial Assistance Programs" means the Title IV Program pursuant to which Title IV
Program funding has been provided to or on behalf of the School's students, and any other
government-sponsored or private program of student financial assistance other than the Title IV
Program pursuant to which student financial assistance, grants or loans were provided to or on
beh^f of the School's students.

tooau4M.i}

DM1\9SSS0)9,4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 6 of 59. PagelD #: 10628

"Govemmental Approval" means any Pennit, consent, waiver, approval, order or
authorization of, or registrBtion, accreditation, declaration Issued, granted, given or otherwise
made, or filing with, any Oovemmental Authority.

"Governmental Authority" means any government, any governmental or regulatory entity
or body, department, commission, board, agency or instrumentality.

"Indebtedness" with respect to any Person means any obligation of such Person for any
Trailing Liability or for borrowed money, including, without limitation or duplication, (a) any
obligation incurred for all or any part of the purchase price of property or other assets or for the
cost of property or other assets constructed or of improvements thereto, other than accounts
payable included in current liabilities and incuned in respect of property purchased in the
ordinary course of business, (b) the face amount of all letters of credit issued for the account of
such Person, (c) obligations (whether or not such Person has assumed or become liable for the
payment of such obligation) secured by Liens, (d) capitalized lease obligations, (e) dl
guarantees and similar obligations of such Person, (Q all accrued interest, fees and charges in
respect of any Indebtedness, and (g) all prepayment premiums and penalties, and any other fees,
expense, indemnities and other amounts payable as a result of the prepayment or discharge of
any Ind^tedness.

"Intellectual Property** means all of the fiillowing in any jurisdictioa throughout the
world: (a) patents, patent applications and invention disclosures, together with all reissuances,
continuations, continuations-in-part, revisions, extensions and reexaminations thereof; (b)
copyrights, works of authorship, mask works and copyri^table works, and applications,
registrations and renewals in connection therewith; (c) ti^e secrets and confidential business
information (including concepts, research and development, know-how, inventioDs, formulas,
compositions, discoveries, compositions, piivaqf data and non-public personal information,
algorithms, models, methodologies, technical and engineering data, business and marketing
plans, processes and techniques, designs, drawings and specifications); (d) IT Systems; (e)
copies and tangible embodiments of any of the foregoing in whatever form or medium; (g) rights
of publicity and privacy related to the use of the names, likenesses, voices, signatures and
biographical information of real persons; and (g) all other intellectual property or proprietary
rights protectable as a matter of law and licenses, immunitiBS, covenants not to sue relating to
any of the foregoing. Intellectual Property shall not mean any software programs fiom the
Shared IT Platform.

"IT Systems" means all devices and/or computer software (including but not limited to
source code, executable code data, databases, scripts, libraries, compilers, files, applications md
documentation, software that is available generally through consumer retail stores or distribution
networks including, without limitation, any software pre-installed in the Ordinary Course of
Busmess as a standard part of hardware), hardware, and technology (including but not limited to
communications systems, network intetructure and related equipment websites and social
media accounts) owned by Seller for operation of the School and located solely at the School,
other than any such devices, hardware, technology, communications systems, network
infrastructure and/or computer software that are located, maintained on or part of the Shared IT
Platform.

(OOOUMO-I)

OMl\9SSt039>(





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 7 of 59. Page!D #: 10629

"Knowledge of Seller" means to the best knowledge of the Receiver and the Seller, after
reasonable inquiry and diligence with respect to the matters in question.

"Liability" or "Liabilities" means any liability (whether known or unknown, asserted or
unasseited, absolute or contingent, accrued orunaccraed, whether liquidated or unliquidated and
whether due, or to become due), including Trailing Liability or any liability for Indebtedness or
Taxes.

"License" means any Pennit, license, contract, agreement, Educational Approval,
authorization or other obligation issued by any Governmental Authority related to the Seller to
which Seller is a party or by which Seller or the Purchased Assets are bound.

"Lien" or "Liens" shall mean means all liens, Indebtedness, Encumbrances (including,
without limitation, any leasehold interests, licenses or other rights, in fevor of a Third Party to
use any portion of the Purchased Assets), Claims, security interests, of whatever kind or nature,
mortgages, pledges, restrictions, charges, instruments, licenses, encroachments, options, ri^ts of
recovery, judgments, orders and decrees of any court or foreign or domestic governmental
authority, interest, products and Taxes ̂ cludtng foreign, federal, state and local Taxes), in each
case of any kind or nature, whether secured or unsecured, choate or inchoate, IMed or imfiled,
scheduled or unscheduled, noticed or unnoticed, recorded or unrecorded, contmgent or non-
contingent, material or non-material, known or unknown.

"Managed Services Agreement means that certain Managed Services Agreement entered
into between the Seller and Buyer on or about March 28,2019 (**MSA").

"Material Contracts" has the meaning given to that term in Section 3.4 of this Agreement

**Non-Core Services" has the meaning as defined in the MSA.

"Ordinary Course of Business" means the ordinary course of the operation of the School
consistent with past custom and practice.

"Organizational Documents" means any charter, certificate of formation, articles of
organization, articles of incorporation, certificate of incorporation, declaration of partnership,
articles of association, code or Regiilations, bylaws, operating agreement, limited liability
company agreement, partnership agreement or similar formation or governing documents and
instruments.

"Pennit" or "Permits" shall mean any ftanchise, grant, autiiorization, agreement, license,
permit, registration, easement, variance, exception, consent, clearance, certificate, approval,
order or «m\Ur rf̂ ts issued, granted, or obtained for the School by or from any Govemmental
Authority, but excluding any Educational Approval.

"Person" means an individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, trust,
unincorporated association or any other entity or organization.

"Post-Closing Educational Consent" means any of those Educational Consents that must
be effectuated or obtained following the Closing, as set forth in Schedule 7J2(t).

DMIMM039.4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 8 of 59. PagelD #: 10630

"Pre-Acquisition Review Application" means the materially complete electronic
application submitted to the DOE with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby, marked
for pre-acquisition review, together witii any required exhibits or attachments.

**Pie-Acquisition Review Notice" means a written notice or response from the DOE
following the DOE's review of a Pre-Acquisition Review Application regarding the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement, which shall not indicate the existence of any material
impediment to the issuance of a TPPPA or PPPA to the Buyer extending Seller's certification to
participate in the Title IV Program following the Closing.

"Fre-Closing Educational Consent" means any of those Educational Consents tiiat most
be effectuated or obtained prior to tiie Closing, as set forth in Schedule 7.2(b}.

'Tre'Closing Period" means the period commencing on the date of this Agreement and
ending the later to occur (a) all Pre-Closing Educational Notices/Consents have been obtained
from the Governing Authorities and (c) the Court's entering Order approving the sale to the
Buyer pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

"Premises" shall mean the School's current location at 2350 Corporate Circle, Suite 100,
Henderson, Nevada 89074 which are subject to a Lease Agreement with Tech Park 6, LLC.

iippA" means a Program Participation Agreement issued to the School and countersigned

by or on behalf of the Secretary of the DOE, evidencing the DOE's certification of the School to
participate in tiie Title IV Programs prior to consummation of the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement.

"PPPA" means a Provisional Program Participation Agreement issued to the School and
countersigned by or on behalf of the Secretary of the DOE, evidencing tiie DOE's certification of
the School to continue its Title IV Programs pazticipation following consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement

"Pre-Closing Audif' means that audit perfonned by Receiver's CFO for (i) any monetary
obligations that Seller or Buyer have under the MSA and TSA including but not limited to any
invoices for the period April 1 2019 forward for expenses to be paid by Buyer under the MSA
but unpaid by Seller or Buyer, (b) sums paid or advanced by Buyer to Seller for payment of
School expenses including faculty and staff salaries, rent or other expenses that accrued or were
due for the period prior to April 1,2019, and (iii) all School expenses of any kind paid by Seller
on behalf of Buyer for the period April 1, 2019 forward from any funds other than those
designated entirely for the 2019 Spring Quarter or any subsequent quarter.

"Purchased Assets" means all right, title and interest in Accounts Receivable and any and
all of the assets owned, used or held for use by Seller with respect to the School and the
Business, including all tangible and intangible assets, other than Excluded Assets, of the School
used or held for use by the School, including, without limitation, personal property, inventory,
supplies, equipment, tangible personal property, fixed assets, libraiy books located at School
Premises, Business Records or Business Data (excluding Excluded Assets), School educational
and student Records, Assumed Contracts, fixtures, leasehold improvements, equipment, pr^d
expenses, licenses, advertising material, Permits, goodwill, School's OPE ID # 04051300,

teoazi4«o.t) B
DMIV955I039.4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 9 of 59. Page!D #: 10631

Intellectual Property relating to the School, if any, any IT Systems or other computer systems
used in financial aid management and administration located solely at the School, SchooPs
tuition payments received or to be received by Seller for 2019 Spring Quarter and all School's
subsequent quarters, including but not limited to the Title IV fhnds and the VA funds from April
1, 2019, forward. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Curriculum is not a
Purchased Asset. Buyer shall have the right to use the Curriculum for a period tibree (3) years
from the Effective Date.

"Real Property" means all parcels and tracts of land, together with aU buildings,
structures, fixtures and improvements located thereon (mcluding those under construction), and
all privileges, rights, easements, hereditaments and appurtenances belonging to or for the benefit
of such land, including all easements appurtenant to and for the benefit of such land, and all
rights existing in and to any streets, alleys, passages and other rights-of-way included thereon or
adjacent thereto (before or after vacation thereof) and vaults beneath any such streets.

"Receiver's CFO" means David LInscott

"Regulation" means any law, ordinance, treaty, statute, regulation, ruling or rule or order
or, administered or enforced by or on behalf ofi any court, Educational Agency or Governmental
Authority.

"Sale Order" means the final, non-appealable order, substantiBlly in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit D. from the Court fi) authorizing Seller to sell, and confinning the sale o^ the
Purchased Assets to Buyer, free and clear of all Liens, on the tenns and conditions of this
Agreement (as may from time to time be amended as provided herein), and (b) confinning that
the Ccmsent Judgment entered into in November 201S between Education Management
Corporation, et al. and 39 state attorneys general and the District of Columbia does not apply to
the School or the Purchased Assets following Closing.

"Shared IT Platform" means any Technology owned by Dream Center Education
Holdings, LLC and currently subleased to Studio pursuant to a sublease agreement approved by
the Court, which stores and maintains data, including, without limitation student and financial
data, relevant to and for operation of various universities, including the School.

"State Educational Agency" means any state educational licensing body that provides a
license or authorization necessary for the School to provide postsecondary education in the State
of Nevada, mcluding without limitatioii, DBTR.

"Studio" means Studio Enterprise Manager, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

"Tax" or "Taxes" means any federal, state, local, or foreign income, gross receipts,
license, payroll, employment, excise, severance, stamp, occupation, premium, windfall profits,
environmental customs, duties, franchise, profits, withholding, social security (or similar),
unemployment, disability, real property, personal property, sales, use, capital gain, transfer,
registiatioa, transportation, value added, alternative or add-on minimum, estimated, or other tax
of any Idnd whatsoever, including any interest, penalty, or addition to the Tax, whether disputed
or not and including any obligations to indemnify or otherwise assume or succeed to the Tax
liability of any other Person.

(goosMo-i) ^
DM1^10S9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 10 of 59. PagelD #: 10632

Technology" means information technology, hardware and computer systems, including
those relating to the transmission, storage, maintenance, organization, presentation, generation,
processing or analysis of all data and information collected, generate, or used in the conduct of
the Business and located solely at the School.

"Third Party** means any Person other than die Parties.

'Title IV" means Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965,20 USC § 1001, et seq.,
as amended, or any successor statute thereto.

'Title IV Programs" means the programs of federal student financial assistance
administered pursuant to Title IV.

'TPPPA" means a Temporary Provisional Program Participation Agreement issued to the
School post-Closing, and countersigned by or on behalf of the Secretary of the DOE continuing
the Schoors certification to participate in the Title IV Programs on an interim basis following
the Closing.

"Trailing Liabiiity** or 'Trailing Liabilities" means any obligation. Claim, Encumbrance,
Lien or Liability for which the School may owe or be required by the DOE or any Governing
Authority or Educational Agency to pay or otherwise be responsible for, relating to any student
stipeDd(s), uneamed tuition, or other monetary obUgation(s) incurred or accrued by the School
piior to April 1,2019.

'Transition Services Agreement" means that certain Transition Services Agreement
entered into between the Seller and Buyer on or about March 28,2019 ('TSA").

"IVansition Services and License Agreement" means a transition services agreement that
may hereafter be negotiated and executed by Buyer and Studio in the event and to the extent
that Buyer requires such transitiou services to be performed by Studio prior to or after Closing.
To the extent that the Buyer does not require any transition services firom Studio before or after
Closing, Buyer shall not be obligated to enter into a Transition Services Agreement with Studio.

"2019 Spring Quarter" means School quarter commencing on April 1, 2019 and ending
on June 15,2019.

"2019 Summer Quarter" means School quarter commencing on July 8, 2019 and ending
on September 21,2019.

"2019 Winter Quarter" means School quarter commencing on January 7, 2019 and
ending on March 23,2019.

ARTICLE n

PURCHASE AND SALE OF ASSETS AND ASSUMPTION OF LIABILITIES.

2.1 Purchase and Sale. Subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, at the Closing, Seller shall sell, contribute, convey, assign, transfer and deliver to
Buyer, free and clear of all Claims, Encumbrances and Liens and Buyer shall purchase, acquire

<aaaa«9.|}
OMtV5Sm9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 11 of 59. PagelD #: 10633

and take assignment and delivery of, in exchange for the Purchase Price ( as the same may be
adjusted for any sums owed by Seller to the Buyer), the Purchased Assets, including, without
limitation, all of the following assets of Seller (but excluding the Excluded Assets pursuant to
Section 2.3 hereof):

(a) all Accounts Receivable and other accounts and notes receivables (whether
current or noncuirent) and all causes of action specifically pertaimng to the collection of the
foregoing (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, fee Excluded Receivables);

(b) all Intellectual Property owned by fee School and used solely by fee School
and all corresponding rights feat, now or hereafter, may be secured throughout fee world md all
copies and tangible embodiments of any such fetellectual Property in Seller's possession or
control;

(c) all of Seller's rights existing under fee Assumed Contracts listed on
Schedule

(d) all machinery, equipment (including all transportation and office
equipment), computer equipment (including all servers, routers, and network equipment),
projection equipment, library equipment, telephone systems and furniture relating to fee School
and owned by fee SeUer;

(e) all office supplies, spare parts, miscellaneous supplies, and other tangible
property of any kind relating solely to fee School, including, without limitation, all property of
any kind located in any building, office or other space leased by Seller;

(f) all texts, journals, periodicals, documents, catalogs, indices, databases, core
materials, archives and other materials, written and electronic, located at fee Premises owned by
Seller;

(g) fee School's OPE ID # 04051300;

(h) School's tuition payments received or to be received by Seller or fee School
for 2019 Spring Quarter and all School's subsequent quarters, including, without limitation, fee
Title IV funds and fee VA funds) for fee period April 1,2019 forward, including any Accounts
Receivable;

(i) the right to receive and retain mail (including electronic mail) and other
communications relating to fee School as long as Buyer provides Seller with copies of all mail
relating to fee operation of the School received until the Closing;

(j) fee rî t to bill and receive payment for services performed in coimection
wife fee School for fee period commencing 2019 Spring Quarter but unbilled or unpaid as of fee
Closing (other than wife respect to any of fee Excluded Receivables);

(k) all data, including, without limitation, student and financial data, stored or
maintained on the Shared IT Platform and any hard-copy paper files relating solely to fee
School;

teeonua.11 ^ ̂
DM1V9SSS0I9.4



case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 12 of 59. PagelD #: 10634

(1) all rr Systems solely for the benefit of the School that are located at the
Premises;

(m) all telephone numbers used by Seller solely in connection with the operation
of the School;

(n) all indemnities from Third Parties relating to the Purchased Assets or the
Assumed Liabilities prior to the Closing Date.

All of the Purchased Assets will be sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed and delivered to Buyer
free and clear of all Liens.

2.2 Liabilities. Except for the Assumed Liabilities and the obligations of
Buyer under the MSA as set forth in Schedule 11, Buyer shall not assume, and shall have no
liability for, any Liabilities, obligations or commitments of Seller of any kind, character or
description, whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise, it being understood that Buyer is
expressly disclaiming any express or implied assumption of any Liabilities other than the
Assumed Liabilities (collectively, the "Excluded Liabilities"), each of which shall be retained
and timely discharged by Seller. Regardless of whether any other Liabilities of Seller may be
disclosed to Buyer or whether Buyer may have actual knowledge of the same, Buyer shall not
assume, and Seller shall pay, perform, and discharge when due and remain exclusively liable for
the Excluded Liabilities, including, without limitation, all of the following Excluded Liabilities
(but excluding Assumed Liabilities):

(a) all obligations, claims, or Liabilities of Seller or any predecessoi(s)
or Affiliate(s) of Seller that relate to Purchased Assets and the Excluded Assets prior to April 1,
2019;

(b) all obligations. Trailing Liabilities, Claims, Encumbrances or
Liabilities for which the School has, may owe or be required by the DOE or any Governing
Authority to pay or be otherwise responsible for, relating to the student 5tipend(s) or other
monetary obligation(s) incurred or accrued by the School prior to April 1,2019;

(c) all Environmental Liabilities unless caused by the action or
inaction of Buyer;

(d) ' all obligations, claims, or Liabilities of Seller or any predecessor(s)
or Affiliate(s) of Seller or for which Seller or any predecessor(s) or Affiliates of Seller could be
liable relating to Taxes (including any Taxes relating to the Purchased Assets or otherwise) for
all periods, or portions thereof, ending prior to April 1,2019;

(e) all obligations, claims, or Liabilities for any legal, accounting,
investment banking, brokerage, real estate appraisal, consulting or similar fees or expeMes
incurred by Seller in connection with, resulting from or attributable to the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement or otherwise;

12
(SOOUMO-I )

OMI\9SnO}9/«



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 13 of 59. PagelD #: 10635

(f) all Indebtedness of Seller or any predecessor(s) or AfEiliate(a) of
Seller, including any Indebtedness owed by Seller to any of its Affiliates or any Govemmental
Authority;

(g) all Liabilities and obligations, including any and all proceedings,
of Seller or any predeces8or(s) or A£Bliate(s) of Seller resulting fiom, caused by or arising out of
the conduct or the operation of the School or the lease of the Premises or any other properties or
assets by Seller at any time prior to April 1,2019, or other actions, omissions or events occurring
prior to April 1,2019 (other thaTi all cure payments payable in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement), whether past, present, future, known or unknown, liquidated or unliquidated,
accrued or unaccrued, pending or threatened;

(h) any Liability or obligation under any Assumed Contract which
arises after fire Closing but which arises out of any breach thereof by Seller that occurred prior to
the April 1,2019;

(i) any Liability or obligation of Seller under any contract, agreement,
lease, mortgage, indenture or other instrument not assumed by Buyer hereunder except for those
obligations of Buyer under the MSA for period of April 1,2019 forward;

(j) any Liability or obligation of Seller under any employment,
severance, retention or termination agreement with any employee, consultant or contractor of
Seller prior to April 1,2019;

(k) any Liability of Seller prior to April 1, 2019 for accrued but
unused vacation and sick leave;

(I) any Liability of Seller under any Employee Benefit Plan relating to
the School provided that Buyer terminates all employees at the School at Closing;

(m) any Liability or obligation of Seller to indemnify, reimburse or
advance amounts to any officer, employee or agent of Seller prior to April 1,2019; and

(n) any Liability or obligation arising out of or resulting from Sellei's
non-compliance with any Law or Regulation prior to April 1,2019.

The Parties acknowledge and agree that disclosure of any obligation or Liability on any Schedule
to this Agreement will not create an Assumed Liability or other Liability of Buyer, except where
such disclosed obligation has been expressly assumed by Buyer as an Assumed Liability in
accordance with the provisions of Section 2.2 hereof; provided, however, that any and all
liabilities for obligations of Buyer under the MSA and any other e^qiense incurred in the
Ordinary Course of Business for period of April I, 2019 forward will not have to listed on
Schedule 2.2.

2.3 Purchase Price. As consideration for the sale of the Purchased Assets,
Buyer shall pay to Seller a purchase price of Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars
($250,000.00) adjusted by the Pre-Closing Audit (the "Purchase Price"), payable in cash by wire
transfer or other immediately available ftmds at Closing. The Pre-Closing Audit shall be

iaoa2J4io.] j

DM1VMSS039.4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 14 of 59. PagelD #: 10636

perfbimed by Receiver's CFO and provided to the Buyer within thirty (30) days of the Effective
Date. To the extent that Buyer disputes the findings of the Pre-Closing Audit, Buyer shall notify
Seller in writing as soon as practicable after receipt of the Seller's Pre-Closing Audit but not later
than five (5) business days prior to Closing of its objections (the ''Objection Period") to Seller's
Pre-Closing Audit and provide to the Receiver's CFO documentation evidencing that (i) School
expenses were paid by Receiver fiwm School's income generated from April 1,2019, (ii) Sdiool
expenses were paid by Buyer or advanced by Buyer after April 1,2019 or (iii) School Expenses
were paid to Seller for payment of faculty salaries, rent or other expenses that accrued prior to
April 1,2019. Receiver's CFO shall take into account the documentatfon provided by Buyer and
shall, to the extent appropriate, make adjustment to the Pre-Closing Audit. If Buyer fails to
provide written objections by the Objection Period, Buyer's ability to object to the Pre-Closing
Audit shall be deemed waived. Receiver's CFO's findings and determination which shall be
made in good faith shall be final between the Parties as to the Purchase Price.

2.4 Rights Held in Trust. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, this
Agreement shall not constitute an agreement to assign any Purchased Asset if an attempted
assignment of such contract or agreement, without the consent of a third-party or Governing
Authorities, would constitute a breach thereof, or in any material adverse way affect the rights of
Seller (or the Buyer following the Closing) thereunder or with respect thereto. Buyer, with
Seller's cooperation, shall use its reasonable best efforts to obtain the consent to the Msignment
of any such Purchased Asset in all cases in which such consent is required for assignment or
transfer and which Seller has agreed to cooperate in a commercially reasonable manner.

ARTICLE m

REPRESENTATIONS OF SELLER

In order to induce Buyer to enter into this Agreement, Seller represents and warrants as
follows:

3.1 Existencp- and Good Standing of Seller.

(a) Seller is a limited liability company validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Arizona and is qualified to conduct business in the State
of Nevada. A Certificate of Full Force and Effect from the Arizona Secretary of State and a
Certificate of Force and Effect with the Nevada Secretary of State are jointly attached hereto as
Exhibit C.

(b) Seller has full power and authority to conduct its business at the
School as it is now being conducted, to own or use the properties and assets that it purports to
own or use at the School, and to perform all its obligations under the Assumed Contracts.

3.2 /Xiithorizfltion and Binding Obligation. Pursuant to the Appointment
Order and subject to the entry of the Sale Order, Seller has full power and authority to execute
and deliver this Agreement and each other agreement, document, instrument and/or certificate
contemplated by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by Seller and to consummate the
Transaction and perform Seller's obligations hetcunder and thereunder.

14
(OOOB440.1)
DMl\9»ni}».4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 15 of 59. PagelD #: 10637

3.3 Title to Puichased Assets. Seller has good and marketable title to, or a
valid leasehold interest in, all of the Purchased Assets, and subject to the entry of the Sale Order,
Seller can and shall deliver good and marketable title to, or a valid leasehold interest in, all of the
Purchased Assets, free and clear of all Liens. Pursuant to the entry of the Sale Order, none of the
Purchased Assets are nor shall be subject to Liens. The Purchased Assets shall be conveyed to
the Buyer free and clear of liens, Claims or Encumbrances. Schedule 3.3 sets forth all tangible
personal property used or held for use by the School. Hie Purchased Assets constitute all
properties and assets necessary to operate the School as currently opmated.

Real Property. To the Knowledge of Seller, except as set forth in Schedule 3.5.
Seller does not own, and has never owned, any Real Property used by or held for use by the
School. Schedule 3.5 sets forth a complete and correct list of all Real Property in which the
Seller has a leasehold interest that is used or held for use by the School (the "School Real
Property"). Seller has delivered to Buyer a complete and correct copy of each lease or other
contract pertaining to School Real Property, together with all amendments, extensions, renewals,
modifications, alterations, guaranties and other changes thereto (the "School Leases") all of
which are identified on Schedule 3.5.

3.4 Broker's or FindePs Fees. No Person retained by Seller is or will be
entitled to any broker's or finder's fee or any similar commission or fee in connection with the
Transaction.

3.5 Disclosure. No r^resentadon or warranty made by Seller in this
Agreement contains any imtrue statements of a material feet or omits to state a feet necessary to
make the statements of fact contained herein not misleading.

article IV

REPRESENTATIONS OF BUYER

Buyer represents and warrants to Seller as follows:

4.t Existence and Good Standing of Buyer. Buyer is a limited liability
company validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Nevada and has all
requisite organizational power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to cany
on its business as now being conducted. A Certificate of Good Standing firom the Nevada
Secretary of State is attached hereto as Exhibit E.

4.2 AiithnriTation and Binding Obligation. Buyer has full power and
authority to execute and deliver this Agreranent and each ofiier agreement document, instrument
and/or certificate contemplated by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by Buyer and to
consummate the Transaction and perform its obligations hereunder and thereunder. The
execution and delivery of this Agreement by Buyer and each other agreement, document,
instrument and/or certificate contemplated by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by
Buyer and the consummation by Buyer of the Transaction and performance of its obligations
hereunder and thereunder have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of Buyer.
This Agreement and each other agreement, document, instrument and/or certificate contemplated
by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by Buyer has been (or will be) duly executed and

15{gaoa*eo.||
DMl\95580I9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 16 of 59. Page ID #: 10638

delivered by Buyer and, assuming the due authorization, execution, and delivery by Seller,
constitutes (or will constitute) a valid and binding obligation of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer
in accordance with its terms (subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization or
similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally and the availability of equitable remedies).

43 Broker's or Finder'a Fees. No Person retained by Seller is or wll be
entitled to any broker's or finder's fee or any similar commission or fee in connection with the
Transaction.

4,4 No Violations. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the
consummation of the Transaction and compliance with the provisions of this Agreement will not
conflict with, or result in any violation of, or default (with or without notice or lapse of time, or
both) under, or give rise to a right of termination or acceleration of any obligation under, (a) the
Organizational Documents of the Buyer, (b) any agreement applicable to Buyer that would
impair the ability of Buyer to perform its obligations under this Agreement, or (c) any Applicable
Law.

±5 AS IS. WHERE IS. EXCEPT AS SPECIHCALLY SET FORTH IN
THIS AGREEMENT, ALL ACQUIRED PURCHASED ASSETS ARE BEING CONVEYED
HEREUNDER ON AN "AS IS, WHERE IS" BASIS AND SELLER MAKES NO
WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WTTH RESPECT TO
THE PURCHASED ASSETS, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. AIX OF SUCH EXPRESS AND IMPLIED

A  WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS, EXCEPT THOSE STATED HEREIN, ARE
HEREBY EXCLUDED. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SUBSECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE
CLOSING OR ANY TERMINATION HEREOF.

4.7 Current Operations. Buyer acknowledges that it has been providing
services to the School since April 1,2019 pursuant to the MSA. Except as otherwise stated in
this Agreement, Buyer is relying on its own knowledge and the knowledge it has gleamed fi»m
providhig services to the School since April 1,2019.

4.g TransiHnn Services. Buyer acknowledges that if shared IT services or any
other kind of services ("collectively, the "Services") previously provided by DCEH are needed,
Buyer shall enter into a Transition Services and License Agreement with Studio for said
Services. Buyer acknowledges that the Services that the Seller was providing pursuant to the
TSA can no longer be provided by DCEH or the Seller. To the extent that the Buyer does not
require any Services firom Studio, Buyer shall not be obligated in any way to negotiate or enter
into a Transition Services Agreement with Studio.

ARTICLE V

PRE-CLOSING COVENANTS OF SELLER

5.1 Conduct of the School Prior to Closing. From the Effective Date through
and including the Closing, Buyer shall not, without the prior written consent of Seller, engage in
any practice, take any action, or enter into any transaction with respect to the School outside the
Ordinary Course of Business other than such actions taken in furtherance of the transaction.

laoaUMO.!}

OM1\9SSIO)9.4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 17 of 59. PagelD#: 10639

Until Closing, Seller will use reasonable best efforts to take all action and do all thmgs necessary
in order to consummate and make efiisctive the Transaction contemplated by this A^ement,
including, without limitation, compliance wife and observance of the terms and conditions set
forth in Siis Article VL

5.2 Ooeratjon of School until Closing. Seller will cooperate wife Buyer for
Buyer to operate fee School and Seller will not engage in any practice, take any action, or enter
in any transaction outside of the Ordinary Course of Business relative fee School without
Buyer's approval which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, or except
as contemplated by this Agreement; provided, however, feat if Seller and Buyer receive written
notice feat fee School is in violation of any Regulation by any Educational Agency which is not
being remedied by the Buyer, Seller shall have fee right to take any action it deems necessary
without first seeking approval of Buyer at Buyer's sole cost and expense. To fee extent that
Seller is in receipt or prior to Closing receives any Accounts Receivable, fimds or income
generated by fee School after April 1.2019, Seller wife Buyer's approval, agrees to either (i)
pay and apply such funds toward any outstanding expense of fee School that was incurred after
April 1,2019 for which the Buyer is obligated to pay, or (ii) turn over fimds, including without
limitation, any excess funds after Seller's has paid Buyer's obligations under 5.2(i), to Buyer.

5.3 Payment of Liabilities Incmred Prior to April 1. 2019. Seller shall
remain responsible for all obligations and Uabilities incurred by fee School between fee dates
January 18,2019 and April 1,2019, including any student stipends or unearned tuition or other
obligations feat a Governing Authority or Educational Agency requires to be satisfied for any
period prior to 2019 Spring Quarter. Seller agrees feat Seller shall pay such obligations or
Liabilities either prior to or immediately upon receipt of Title TV fimds received for 2019
Winter Quarter. To fee extent that Buyer, in its sole discretion, advances any funds to pay off
any Liability of Seller feat is required to be paid by any Governing Authority or Educational
Agency in order to facilitate receipt of Title IV funds firom fee DOE for fee 2019 Winter
Quarter or otherwise to bring fee School in compliance with any Governing Authority and
Educational Agency, such Buyer advanced funds shall be immediately paid by Seller to Buyer
from fee Title IV fimds received for fee 2019 Winter Quarter or to fee extent applicable adjust
fee Purchase Price.

5.4 Access to Ipfnrmarion. No later than five (5) business days after entry of
fee Sales Order, Seller shall copy and provide to Buyer in a manner acceptable to Bu^r all data
located on fee Shared IT Platform including, without limitation student and financial data set
forth on CampusVue, ImageNow, CARS and fee Lawson and Kronos Software, relevant to the
operation of the School. Prior to Closing, Buyer and Buyer's representatives shall hold all such
inforaiation in confidence and shall not disclose any such information to any third parties
without fee express written consent of Seller. Should this liansaction not close, any and all
documents, notes, memorandum. Curriculum, etc. provided to Buyer in any fonnat pursuant to
this Agreement, whether set forth in this Section or in any other part of this Agreement, shall be
returned to Seller within three (3) business days of when this Agreement is terminated.

5.5 A<»oniinriiifT. Fourteen (14) days of fee Effective Date, Seller shall provide
Buyer wife complete accounting on a cash basis showing aU mcome and eiqienses or other
Liabilities of fee School, including any invoices or evidence of indebtedness received or paid by

17(000124(0.1 I *■ '
OMraS5W)9j4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 18 of 59. Page ID #: 10640

Seller from January 18, 2019 to March 31,2019. For the period April 1,2019 forward, Seller
shall provide Buyer with complete accounting on a cash basis showing all income and eaqjenses
or other Liabilities of the School received or paid by Seller, including without limitations, any
and all invoices, whether paid or unpaid, as well as proof of payment.

5.6 Consents and Approvals. Until Closing, Seller, will cooperate with
Buyer, in order for Buyer (1) to obtain all necessary approvals, accreditations, acquiescence and
other authorizations necessary for Ure operation of the School after Closing, including without
limitations those from ACICS, DOE, Educational Agency or any other Governmental Authority;
(ii) to obtain all necessary consents and approvals to consummate the purchase and sale of the
Purchased Assets and the assignment of Assumed Liabilities, if any, together with any other
necessary consents and approvals to consummate the Transaction, and (iii) to make all ftlings,
applications, statements and reports to all Educational Agencies or Governmental Authorities
that are required to be made prior to Closing pursuant to any applicable Regulation in connection
with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.

(a) Pre«Closing Educational Notices/Consents. Seller shall cooperate
with Buyer fr)r Buyer to obtain the Educational Notices/Consents and any Educational Approvals
necessary for operation of the School, including, without limitation, obtaining the Pre-Closing
Educational Notices/Consents, including, without limitation, cooperate with Buyer to (i)
complete all required and voluntary pre-acquisltion processes with the Educational Agency,
including without limitation, DETR, and (11) assist Buyer in the filing of a Pre-Acquisition
Review Application with the DOE in order to obtain the DOE Pre-Acquisition Review Notice..
Seller shall use commercially reasonable best efforts to assist Buyer with the foregoing, and
Seller and Buyer shall each provide any additional information conceming itself and shall
execute such documents as are necessary with respect to the Educational Notices/Consents and
any necessary Educational Approvals.

(b) Educational Agencv Communications. Seller shall cooperate with
Buyer in order for the Buyer to be able to submit letters, applications, or other documents to be
to any Educational Agency or Governmental Authority with respect to any consent, license or
Pie-Closing Educational Notices/Consent or in connection with the Pre-acquisltion Review
Application to be filed with the DOB. Seller shall not make any written or verbal statements or
representations regarding the transactions contemplated hereby to any Educational Agency or
other third party without the advance consultation and consent of Buyer which shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Seller shall promptly advise Buyer conceming
any discussions or other communications, whether oral or written, with any Educational Agency,
Governmental Authority or other third party with respect to any such letters, applications or
other documents that Seller may receive from the Educational Agency or the Goveniment
Authority. To the extent required by any Governmental Agency or Educational Agency,
Rjeceiver will ensure that be is available to attend any scheduled hearings or meetings in
connection with obtaining any consent, license, Pre-Closing Educational Notices/Consent or
other Educational Approval.

5.7 Notice of Developments. Until Closing, Seller will give prompt written
notice to Buyer of all materially adverse developments or developments causing a breach of

(«oe»4<o.i) 18
OMI\9ijl039.4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 19 of 59. PagelD #: 10641

any of Seller's representations, warranties and covenants hereunder or developments adversely
affecting Seller's ability to perform its obligations hereunder.

5.8 Exclusivity. From the date of this Agreement through and including the
Closing, Seller shall not (i) solicit, initiate or encourage the submission of any proposal or offer
from, or enter into any agreement with, any Person relating to the acquisition of any equity
interests or other voting securities of, or any portion of the Purchased Assets (including any
acquisition structured as a merger, consolidation, or share exchange) or (ii) participate in any
discussions or negotiations regarding, furnish any information witii respect to, assist or
participate in, or facilitate in any other manner any effort or attempt by any Person to do or
seek any of the above.

5.9 Further Assurances. Each of the Parties agrees to use commercially
reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all action and to do, or cause to be done, and to
assist and cooperate with the other Party in doing, all things necessary, proper, or advisable to
consummate the Transaction.

5.10 Notice of Developments. Until Closing, Seller will give prompt written
notice to Buyer of all materially adverse developments or developments causing a breach of any
of Seller's representations, warranties and covenants hereunder or developments adversely
affecting Seller's ability to perform its obligations hereunder.

ARTICLE VI

PRE-CLOSING COVENANTS OF BUYER

6.1 Operation of School. Since the execution of the MSA and continuing
until Closing, Buyer, with the assist of Seller, shall to continue to operate the School and will not
engage in any practice, take any action, or enter in any transaction outside of the Ordinary
Course of Busmess except in each case (i) as contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) with Seller's
approval, or (iii) for actions taken or omitted to be taken at the request of Seller. Buyer, after the
entry of &e Sale Order and prior to Closing, shall be solely and exclusively responsible to pay all
costs and expenses set forft in MSA and shall deposit in Seller's accoimt sufficient fuin^ as
determined by Seller, in his sole and exclusive determination, an amount to cover the costs and
expenses of the School. Further commencing August 1, 2019 and continuing thereafter until
Closing, Buyer agrees to pay for any and all expenses and costs set forth in the MSA or any other
expense of the School in the Ordinary Course of Business &om April 1,2019 forward, including
but not limited to, rent, payroll, workers' compensation coverage, taxes relating to the operation
of the School of any and all kind, and all fhcility costs and expenses from April 1,2019 forward.

6.2 Pavment of Liabilities Incurred After to April L 2019. Buyer shall be
responsible for all obligations and Liabilities incuzred by the School afrer April 1, 2019,
including any student stipends or unearned tuition or other obligations that a Governing
Authority or Educational Agency requires to be satisfied for 2019 Spring Quarter, 2019 Summer
Quarter or any subsequent School quarters.

(000224M.I)

OM1V915S019.<

19



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 20 of 59. PagelD #: 10642

6.3 Consents and Approvals. After entry of the Sale Order, Buyer will use
reasonable best efforts with Seller's cooperation (1) to obtain all necessary approvals,
accreditations, acquiescence and other authorizations for Buyer's operatioa of the School after
Closing, including without limitations, Educational ̂ proval and Oovemmental Approval from
ACICS, DOE, Educational Agency or any other Governmental Authority; (ii) to obtain all
necessary consents and approvals, as reasonably requested by Seller, to consummate die
purchase and sale of the Purchased Assets and the assignment of Assumed Liabilities, if any,
together with any other necessary consents and approvals to consummate the Transaction, and
(iii) to make, as reasonably requested by Seller, all filings, applications, statements and reports to
all Educational Authorities and Governmental Authorities that are required to be made prior to
Closing by or on behalf of Buyer or Seller pursuant to any applicable Regulation in connection
with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.

(a) Pre-Closing Educational Notices/Consents. Buyer shall use commercially
reasonably good fiEiith best efforts, with Seller's cooperation, to obtain the Educational
Notices/Consents and any Educational Approvals necessary for the performance of its
obligations pursuant to this Agreement, inclut^g, without limitation, obtaining the Pre-Closiog
Educational Notices/Consents, including, without limitation, to (i) complete all required and
voluntary pre-acquisition processes with the State Educational Agency, including DETR or any
other Educational Agency or Governmental Authority, and (ii) file a Fre-Acquisition Review
Application with the DOE in order to obtain the DOE Pre-Acquisition Review Notice. Seller
shall cooperate and assist Buyer with the foregoing, and Seller and Buyer shall each provide any
additional information concerning itself and shall execute such documents as is necessary with
respect to the Educational Notices/Consents and any necessary Educational Approvals.

(b) Educational Agency Communications. Buyer shall provide Seller with
copies of all letters, applications, or other documents to be submitted to, or received ftom, any
Educational Agency or Governmental Authority with respect to any consent, license or
Pre-Closing Educational Notices/Consent or in connection with the Fre>Acquisition Review
Application to be filed with the DOE, including drafts of any such letters, applications and other
documents; provided that no such letters, applications, or other documents shall be submitted to
any Educational Agency without the prior review and consent of Seller, such consent not to be
unreasonably delayed, conditioned or withheld. Neither party shall make any written or vwhal
statements or representations regarding the transactions contemplated hereby to any Educational
Agency or other third party without the advance consultation and consent of the other party.
Each party will promptly advise the other party concerning any discussions or other
communications, whether oral or written, with any Educational Agency, Governmental
Authority or other third party with respect to any such letters, applications or other documents.
Each party will ensure that their appropriate ofBcers and employees shall be available to attend,
as any Governmental Authority or Educational Agency may reasonably request, any scheduled
hearings or meetings in connection with obtaining any consent, license, Pre-Closing Educational
Notices/Consent or other Educational Approval.

6.4 Notice of Developments. Until Closing, Buyer will give prompt written
notice to Seller of all materially adverse developments or developments causing a breach of any
of Buyer's representations, warranties and covenants bereunder or developments adversely
affecting Buyer's ability to perform its obligations bereunder.

(DCOZMM-t J
DM1V9SS80S9.4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 21 of 59. PagelD #: 10643

6.5 Pre-Closing Audits. Buyer acknowledges and agrees at Buyer's sole cost
and expense, with Seller's cooperation, to (a) complete any student financial aid compliance
audit(s) or any other audits of the School required by any Educational Agency related to ̂  or
any portion of any period after September Ij 2018 (collectively, the "Pre-Closing Compliance
Audits"); (b) provide Seller, for its review, copies of the Fre-Closing Compliance Audits
promptly upon their completion, but no later than fourteen (14) days before the date on which the
Fre-Closing Compliance Audits are due under applicable Law or Educational Law; and (c)
pennit Buyer to submit the Fre-CIosing Compliance Audits in accordance with applicable Law
or Educational Law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Buyer shall not be responsible in any
manner for failure to complete any Fre-Closing Compliance Audits that were due or should have
been submitted to any Educational Agency or Government Authority prior to the Effective Dale.

6.6 Accounting. Ten (10) days of the Effective Date, Buyer shall provide
Seller with complete accounting and other financial records showing all income and expenses or
other Liabilities of the School received or paid by Buyer from January 18, 2019, forward,
including without limitations, any and all invoices, whether paid or unpaii as well as proof of
payment.

6.7 Tftrmitiarinn of Emolovee Benefit Plans. So long as all present employees
at the School are terminated by Buyer at Closing, Buyer will have no lability whatsoever for die
current Employee Benefit Flan relating to or for the School.

6.8 Change of Name of School. Buyer shall take whatever steps are
necessary to obtain such consents or approval from a Governmental Authority to effectuate a
change of name for the School in accordance with the Second Settlement Agreement by md
between the Receivership Entities and Studio and as approved by the court. Buyer upon Closing
shall take action to obtain approval from Governmental Authorities and Education Agencies to
change the name of the School and upon obtaining such approval Buyer will no longer be able to
use the name The Art Institute. Notwithstanding the foregoing, under no circumstmces shall
Buyer be able to use the name The Art Institute after Change of Control has been obtained.

ARTICLE Vn
CLOSING

Zti Closing. The closing of the Transaction contemplated by this Agreement
(the "Closing") shall take place at the offices of Seller's counsel, McCarthy, Lebit, Crystal &
Lif&nan CO., LFA, at 101 W. Prospect Avenue, Suite 1800, Cleveland, Ohio 44115 and tbe
Transaction shall be effective as of 12:01 a.m. Pacific Time on the three (3"*) business day
following Buyer's receipt of all Governmental Approvals and Educational Approvals or such
other date as the Buyer and Seller may mutually detennine (the "Closing Date".)
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Closing were to occur after the calendar day of the
month, it shall be extended to the first business day of the following month. The performance of
all of the obligations and actions required of the Parties at the Closing shall be deemed to have
occurred simultaneously, regardless of the order in which such performance actually occurs. K;
however, Closing does not occur prior to November 1, 2019, this Agreement shall be null and
void ab initio and the Parties shall have no further liability to one another and the MSA shall
further terminate. The Pre-Closing Audit shall then be performed and all sums due under the

21
(OOSBMO-t)

DM1V9S5SQ39.4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 22 of 59. PagelD #: 10644

MSA and TSA after adjustments for any sums paid Buyer to Seller for expenses incurred prior
to April 1, 2019 shall be paid with three (3) calendar days of completion of the Pie-Closing
Audit

7,2 Buyer's Condirions to Closing. The obligation of Buyer to consummate
the Transaction is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver of Buyer) as of the Closing of the
following conditions:

(a) the Court shall have issued the Sale Order approving the sale of
Purchased Assets to Buyer free and clear of all Liens and Claims, which time for any appeal
shall have expired Sale Order, a copy of which shall have been delivered to Buyer;

(b) Buyer shall have received documentary evidence, to the sole satisfaction
of Buyer, that all notices, approvals, consents, registrations, permits, authorizations or other
confirmations, in each case, required, proper, or advisable to be made with or obtamed from any
Governmental Authority or Educational Agency to consummate the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement, including the Pre-Closing Educational Consents set forth on Schedule 7.2(b), have
been made or obtained, as applicable, and do not contam any Adverse Regulatory Condition;

(c) Buyer shall have received written confirmation from DOE that the SchooTs
planned documentation submittal intended to demonstrate compliance with 34 CFR §600.9(a)
will be accepted by the DOE and will not impede Schoors continued Title IV Programs
participation after the Closing Date or result in the issuance of die TPPA or PPA that includes an
Adverse Regulatory C^ondition:

(d) the School shall have received a Pre-Acquisition Review Response that does
not contain any Adverse Regulatory Condition or indicate the existence of any material
impediments to the issuance of a TPPPA or PPPA following the Closing;

(e) none of Seller, the School, or Buyer shall have received from any
Educational Agency any communication that any Educational Approval will be suspended,
revoked, terminated, or cancelled unless caused by the action, inaction or omission on the part of
Buyer;

(f) none of Seller, the School, or Buyer shall have received from any
Educational Agency any communication that any of the Post-Closing Educational Consents set
forth on Schedule 7.2(t) will not be issued or will be subject to an Adverse Regulatory Condition
unless caused by the action, inaction or omission on the part of the Buyer;

(g) no proceeding by any Third Party, Educational Agency or any
Governmental Authority with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby shall be pending or
threatened in writing and no order shall have been entered in any proceedmg that would have the
effect of (i) making any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the transaction
illegal, (ii) otherwise preventing the consummation of such transactions, or (iii) imposing
limitations on such transactions and/or the ability of Buyer to perform its obligatiGns hereunder
or to operate the School after the Closing Date;

{OOOSIMO.)) 22
DM1\95S«»9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 23 of 59. PagelD #: 10645

(h) the repcesentatioDS and warranties of Seller contained in this Agreement
shall be true and correct in all respects on and as of the Closing Date with the same effect as
though made at or as of the Closing Date, in each case, other than representations and warranties
that address matters only as of a specified date, which shall be true and correct as of such
specified date;

(i) the Seller shall have duly performed and complied in all material respects
with all agreements, covenants and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed or
complied with by it prior to or on the Closing Date;

(j) at Closing, Seller shall have delivered to Buyer;

(i) actual possession of Purchased Assets, if Buyer is not
aheady in possession, capable of passing by delivery with the intent that title in such Purchased
Assets will pass by and upon delivery;

(ii) the Bill of Sale, duly executed by Seller for the Purchased
Assets and such other good and sufficient instruments of sale, conveyance, transfer and
assignment as may be required to vest in the Buyer all right, title and interest of Seller in and to
the Purchased Assets, free and clear of all Liens, Claims, Encumbrances and obligations;

(iii) Lien releases on any UCC filings with respect to the
Purchased Assets; and such other documents relating to the Transaction contenqjlated by this
Agreement as Buyer may reasonably request

7.3 Sellef s Conditions to Closing. The obligation of Seller to consummate

the Transaction is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver of Seller) as of the Closing of the
following conditions:

(a) Buyer shall have performed and complied in all material respects
with all agreements, obligations and covenants required to be performed or complied with by it
on or prior to die Closing Date.

At Closing, Buyer shall have delivered to Seller all of the following:

(i) the Purchase Price;

(ii) all documents to be delivered by Buyer necessary fbr the
Closing; and

(iii) such other documents relating to the Transaction
contemplated by ̂bia Agreement as Seller may reasonably request.

7.4 Form of Instruments. To the extent that a form of any document to be
delivered hereunder is not attached as an Exhibit hereto, such documents will be in form and
substance, and will be executed and delivered in a manner, reasonably satisfactory to Buyer and
Seller.

23(0nU440.|}

OMI\933SO]9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#; 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 24 of 59. PagelD#: 10646

ARTICLE VTTT

ADDITIONAL POST CLOSING COVENANTS

g.l Joint PiKt-filnsing Covenant of the Parties. The Parties jointly covenant
and agree that, from and after the Cloaing Date, they will each use commercially reasonable
efForts in connection with any proceeding, investigation or audit of the other relating to (a) the
preparation of an audit of any Tax Return of Seller for all periods prior to or including the
Closing Date, and (b) any audit of Buyer and/or any audit of Seller with respect to the sales,
transfer and similar Taxes imposed by the laws of any state or political subdivision thereof,
relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement In furtherance hereof, the Parties
further covenant and agree to promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries relat^ to such matters
and to provide, to the extent reasonably possible, substantiation of transactions and to make
available and furnish appropriate documents and personnel in connection therewith. All costs

expenses incurred in connection with diis Section 8.1 will be borne by the Party who is
subject to such action.

8.2 Transition. Seller will not take any action that is designed or intended to
have the effect of discouraging any lessor, licensor, customer, supplier, or other business
associate of Seller from maintaining the same business relationships with the Buyer and/or the
School after the Effective Date or Closing as it maintained with Seller prior to the Effective Date
without the consent of Buyer.

ARTICLE IX

INDEMNIFICATION

9 J Survival of Representations. Warranties and Covenants. All covenants
and agxeements of the Parties contained in this Agreement shall survive the Closing indefinitdy
or for the period explicitly specified therein. The expiration of any covenant shall not affect any
claim made in good faith and in accordance with this Agreement prior to the date of such
expiration.

9.2 Indemnificatipn bv Buyer. Buyer shall indcnmity and hold harmless
Seller and its directors, officers, employees, shareholders, agents, representatives, successors and
assigns (collectively, the "Seller Indemnified Parties"), from all losses, liabilities, danaagcs,
demands, claims, suits, actions, judgments, assessments, costs and expenses, including, without
limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, reasonable expenses incnired in investigatiiig, preparing or
defending against any litigation, commenced or threatened, and all amounts paid in settlement of
any claim or litigation ("Damages"), asserted against, imposed upon, or incurred or suffered by
any Seller Indemnified Party, as a result of or arising from any breach or nonfulfillment of any
covenants or agreements made by Buyer in this Agreement (collectively, the "Seller's
Indemnifiable Claims"), which arise or result from and to the extent they are attributable to:

(a) the breach of any representation or warranty made by Buyer
pursuant to this Agreement;

(b) the breach of, or fbilure to perform, any of the covenants,
commitments, agreements or obligations of Buyer under or contained in this Agreement;

(00012M0.I) 24
DMl\9S5<t»9>t



(



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 25 of 59. PagelD #: 10647

(c) any Claim asserted against Seller with respect to any matter
concerning Buyer's fiulure to provide by the terms and conditions set forth in the MSA and,
more specifically, any allegations made by any Accrediting Body, ACICS, Govenunental
Authority, or any Third Party for any violations or Claims occurred or accrued from April 1,
2019 forward;

(d) the use or operation of the School and the Purchased Assets from
April 1,2019 forward; or

(e) the Assumed Obligations.

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

10.1 Expenses. Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement,
each Party shall pay its own expenses m connection with the negotiation, execution and
performance of this Agreement, the Transaction, and all things required to be done by it pursuant
to this Agreement, including counsel fees, brokerage, finder or financial advisor fees, filing fees
and accounting fees.

10.2 Specific Performance. Each Party's obligation under this Agreement is
unique. If any Party should breach its covenants under this Agreement, the Parties each
acknowledge that it would be extremely impracticable to measure the resulting damages;
accordingly, the non-breaching Party or Parties, in addition to any other available rights or
remedies, may sue in equity for specific performance,

10.3 Governing Law: Waiver of Jurv Trial: Consent to Jurisdiction: Service of
Process.

(a) All issues and questions conceniing the construction, validity,
enforcement and interpretation of this Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in
accordance with, the laws of the State of Ohio without giving effect to any choice of law or
conflict of law rules or provisions.

(b) Each Party acknowledges and agrees that any Actions (in contract,
in tort or otherwise) arising out of or relating to this Agreement, any transactions contemplated
hereby, any relationships between or among the Parties hereunder and any disputes with respect
to any of the foregoing is likely to involve complicated and difiBcult issues, and therefore it
hereby irrevocably and unconditionally waives any right it may have to a trial by Jury in respect
of any such Action.

(c) EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES PERSONAL SERVICE
OF THE SUMMONS, COMPLAINT AND OTHER PROCESS ISSUED IN ANY ACTION
OR SUIT AND AGREES THAT SERVICE OF SUMMONS, COMPLAINTS AND
OTHER PROCESS MAY BE MADE BY REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED MAIL
ADDRESSED TO SUCH PARTY AT THE ADDRESS SET FORTH IN SECTION 10.4
OF THIS AGREEMENT AND THAT SERVICE SO MADE SHALL BE DEEMED

(ooan«o.i) ^
DMIWSSa}9.4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 26 of 59. PagelD #: 10648

COMPLETED UPON THE EARLIER OF SUCH PARTY'S ACTUAL RECEIPT
thereof or three (3) DAYS AFTER DEPOSIT IN THE UNITED STATES MAIL,
PROPER POSTAGE PREPAID.

10.4 Notices. All notices, requests, demands, and other commimications
under this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given if delivered
by hand; sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage and fees prepaid;
Federal Express or similar overnight courier; sent by sent by facsimile; or sent by email, and
addressed as follows:

H to Seller:

with a copy to;

Mark E. Dottore

c/o Dottore Companies, LLC
2344 Canal Rd.
Cleveland, OH 44113
Attn: Mark E. Dottore
Email: mBik@dottoreco.com
Facsimile: (216) 771-2450

McCarthy, Lebit, Crystal & Lifl&nan Co., LPA
101 W. Prospect Ave,, Suite 1800
Cleveland, OH 44115
Attn: Charles A. Nemer, Esq.
Email: can@mccarthylebit.com
Facsimile: (216) 696-1422

If to Buyer:

with a copy to:

Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited
2350 Coiporate Circle, Suite 100
Henderson, NY 89074
Attn: William Turbay
Email: waturbay@gmail.com
Facsimile: (702) 667-4818

Howard & Howard
3800 Howard Hughes Pfcwy. Suite 1000
Las Vegas, NV 89169
Attn: Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.
Email: gmullins@bowBrdandhoward.com
Facsimile: (702) 667-4818

Addresses are permitted to be changed by notice in writing signed by a Party desiring to change
snch Party's address, but any such notice of change of address will not be effective until ectaally
received by the other Party. All notices will be deemed given on the day delivered, if (a)
personally delivered, facsimiled (with confirmation of transmission) or emailed to the Party
receiving such notice, provided that if deUvcred by facsimile or email, a copy of the notice shall
also be sent by the method in subsection (b) or (c) below; (b) on the business day after the day

{ooe:24«0.|)
OMiVlSIOSM

26





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 27 of 59. PagelD #: 10649

DMI\95SI039.4

deposited, if delivered by Federal Express or similar overnight courier; or (c) on the third {3!^)
business day following dqiosit in the U.S. mail.

IQ.S Counterparts. This Agreement is Permitted to be executed in two or
more counterparts, all of which taken together shall constitute one instrument Copies of
signatures of the Parties received by facsimile or email shall be effective as original signatures.

10.6 WeaHinps. The subject headings of the Sections and Paiagrs^hs of this
Agreement are included for purposes of convemence only, and will not affect die construcUon or
interpretation of any of its provisions.

10.7 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of
the Parties hereto and no provision of this Agreement will be deemed to confer upon Third
Parties any rights, remedies, Claims or causes of action.

10.8 Further Assurances. At any time following the Effective Date, each of the
Parties agrees to execute and/or deliver such instruments or documents as may be reasonably
requested by the other Party to (i) consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement,
(ii) effectuate fully the purposes of this Agreement, and (lii) vest in each Party the rights and
interests conferred upon such Party under this Agreement

10.9 No Aeencv Relationship. Neither Party may bind the other or otherwise
act in any way as the representative of the other Party, unless otherwise expressly agreed to in a
writing signed by authorized representatives of both Parties before any such act or
representation. Neither Party may represent itself as the other Party's agent for any purpose to
any Third Party or to allow any of its employees to do so, unless specifically authorized, in
advance and in writing, to do so, and then only for the limited purpose stated in such
authorization. Neither Par^s employees are employees of the other Party.

10.10 Entire Agreemept. This Agreement and Schedules and Exhibits
referenced in this Agreement embody the entire agreement and understanding of foe Parties with
respect to foe subject matter hereof, and supersede aU prior and contemporaneous agreements
and understandings, oral or written, relative to said subject matter.

ip.ll Binding Effft^^; Asstgnment. This Agreement shall inure to foe benefit of
and be binding upon Seller and Buyer and their successors and Permitted assigns. Neither this
Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder shall be transferred or
assigned (by operation of law or otherwise) by any of foe Parties without foe prior written
consent of foe other Parties, provided, however, that Buyer may assign this Agreement and all of
its rights, interests and obligations under this Agreement to an Affiliate of Buyer without the
consent of Seller. Any transfer or assignment of any of ̂  rights, interests or obligations in
violation of foe terms of this Agreement shall be null and void.

10.12 Waivcr. This Agreement is not permitted to he amended,
terminated, augmented, rescinded or discharged (other than by performance), in whole or in part,
except by a writing executed by each of foe Parties. No waiver of any of the provisions or
conditions of this Agreement or any of the rights of a Party shall be effective or binding unless
the waiver is in writing and signed by foe Party claimed to have consented to it.

27{00a24«0.i ) ^'



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 28 of 59, PagelD#: 10650

10.13 Severabilitv. With respect to any provision of this Agreement finally
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be rmenforceable, the Parties agree that such
court shall have jurisdiction to reform such provision so that it is enforceable to the maximum
extent Permitted by law, and the Parties agree to abide by such couit^s determination. If any such
provision of this Agreement cannot be reformed, such provision shall be deemed to be severed
firom this Agreement, but every other provision of this Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect.

10.14 Tax Advice and Reliance. None of the Parties to this Agreement (nor any
of the Parties' respective counsel, accountants or other representatives) has made or is making
any representations to any other Party (or to any other Party's counsel, accountants or other
r^resentatives) concerning the consequences of the Transaction under applicable Tax laws.
Each Party has relied solely upon the tax advice of its own representatives engaged by such Party
and not on any such advice provided by any other Party

10.15 Time. Time is of the essence vrith respect to this Agreement and the
performance by the Parties hereunder.

10.16 Court Approval. The Parties understand that this Agreement is subject to
Court approval

[Remainder of page left Intenttonally blank]
[Signature pages on following page]

(OOOU4M,| J 28
DM1V95S8D19.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 29 of 59. PagelD #: 10651

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by or on behalf of each
of the Parties below as of the date first above written.

BUYER:

Save The Art Institute Las V^as Limited

By:
NameT William Turb^
Title: Mana

SELLER:

By:
Name: Mi solely in his capacity as

receiver fer ThflcArt Institute of Las Vegas,
LLC pursuant to that certain Order
Appointing Receiver entered on January
18,2019, by die United States District
Court for the Nortbem District of Ohio,
Eastem Division

[Signature Page to Asset Purchase Agreement]

tOOOUMO.1 )



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 30 of 59. PagelD #: 10652

{00012460.1 i

SCHEDULE1

Assumed Contracts

NONE

DM1VS58039.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 31 of 59. PagelD #: 10653

SCHEDULE 2.2

Assumed Liatrilities

Any and all liabilities for obligations of Buyer under tbe MSA and any other expense incmxed in
the Ordinary Course of Business for period of April 1,2019 forward

DMIV9S5I0J9.4

r



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 32 of 59. PagelD#: 10654

SCHEDULE33

Tangible Personal Property

All peisonal property owned by Seller located at the Premises and/or on School Real
Property, including, wiAout limitatioo:

(a) all machinery, equipment (including all transportation and o£6ce
equipment), computer equipment (including all servers, routers, and network equipment),
projection equipment, library equipment, telephone systems and furniture relating to the School
in which Seller has all right, title and ownership to;

(b) all office supplies, spare parts, miscellaneous supplies, and other tangible
property of any kind relating solely to the School, including, widiout limitation, all property of
any kind located in any building, office or other space leased by Seller; and

(c) all texts, journals, periodicals, library books, documents, catalogs, indices,
databases, core materials, archives and other materials, written and electronic, located at the
School premises.

{ooonue-i) DMItf558aiM



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 33 of 59. PagelD #: 10655

SCHEDULE 3J5

Real Property

The following is a con^lete and correct list of all Real Property In which the Seller has a
leasehold interest:

(1) Seller Real Property located at 2350 Corporate Circle, Suite 100,
Henderson, Nevada 89074 which is currently subject to a Lease Agreement between Seller and
Tech Park 6, LLC.

33
(OOOUUO>I}
DMIWSIOM^



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 34 of 59. PagelD #: 10656

/^v

SCHEDULE 7.2fb)

Pre-Closinp Educational Consents

Pre-Closing Educational Consents, including but not limited to:

1. United States D^artment of Education (ED)
a. Receipt of DOE ?re-Acqmsition Review Letter.

2. Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation, CommisBion of
Postsecondary Education (DETR)

a. Receipt of DETR application and approval of transfer and/or change of
ownership/control.

3. Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools (ACICS)
a. Notification, application and approval of Change of Ownership/Control

Application Part I.

4. American Culinary Federation Education Foundation's Accrediting Commission
(ACFEFAC)

a. Notification and approval prior to change of ownership.

<eQSUMO.||
DMIWS8a39.4



/^\

Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 35 of 59. PagelD#: 10657

SCHEDULE 7.2fn

Post-Closing Educational Consents

Post-Closing Educational Consents, io binding but not limited to:

1. United States Department of Education (ED)
a. Application and approval.

2. Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools (ACICS)
a. Application and approval of Change of Own^ship/Control Ajqilication Part U.

3. Nevada Conunission on Postaecondary Education (CPE)
a. Application and approval.

4. Council for Interior Design Accreditation (CIDA)
a. Notification and approval.

PMiy95SS0S9.4

35





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 36 of 59. PagelD#: 10658

{Ua224i0.l I

EXHIBIXA

Ajjfiignmentfaiid Assumption Agreement

NONE

DMt\»S8039.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 37 of 59. PagelD#: 10659

EXHIBIT B

Bill of Sale

(00021460-1 (
PMltfSStO]9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 38 of 59. PagelD#: 10660

Bill of Sale

That, The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, an Arizona nonprofit limited liability
company that is registered in the State of Nevada as The DC Ait histitute of Las Vegas, LLC the
"Schoor"'), by and through Mark E. Dottore, Receiver, appointed by the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division (the "Court'*), the G^tor, for the
consideration as stated in the Assets Purchase Agreement received to its fiiU satisfaction from
Save The Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited, the Grantee, has bargained sold and conveyed,
and by these presents, and with fiill authority, including the approval of the Court, does bargain,
sell and convey unto the said Grantee, its heirs and assigns, free and clear from all Interests as
defined in the Order of Sale, the following described goods, wares, merchandise, chattels and
effects, to-wit:

Purchased Assets, as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement dated July 15, 2019,
including without limitation, those assets set forth in Exhibit I, attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein,

To have and to hold the same unto the said Grantee, its heirs and assigns, to Grantee and
its own proper use and behoof forever.

And it, the said Grantor, does for itself and its heirs, covenants and agrees to and with the
said Grantee, its heirs and assigns, that above bargained goods, wares, merchandise, chattels and
effects are free and clear fi»m all Interests as defined in the Order of Sale, and that it is the true
and lawfiil owner thereof and has good right and lawful authority to bargain and sell the same in
the manner and form as aforesaid and that it will and its heirs and assigns shall warrant and
defend the same against the lawful claims and demands of all persons whomsoever.

In Witness Whereof I hereunto set my hand at Cleveland, Ohio this day of
,2019.

The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC Signed in presence of:

By: MarkE. Dottore, solely in his capacity
as receiver for The Art Institute of Las Vegas,
LLC pursuant to that certain Order Appointing
Receiver entered on January 18,2019, by the
United States District Court for the Northern
District of Ohio, Eastern Division

(01330807.1)





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19• 39 of 59. PagelD#: 10661

EXHIBIT 1

All rights, title and interest in any and all of the Purchased Assets as defined in the Asset
Purchase Agreement, including without limitation:

(a) all Accounts Receivable and other accounts and notes receivables (whether
cunent or noncurrent) and all causes of action specifically pertaimng to the collection of the
foregoing (excluding, for ttie avoidance of doubt, the Excluded Receivables)^

(b) all Intellectual Property owned by the School and used solely by the School
and all corresponding rights that, now or hereafter, may be secured throughout the world and all
copies and tangible embodiments of any such Intellectual Property in Seller's possession or
control;

(c) all of Seller's rights existing under the Assumed Contracts listed on
Schedule I;

(d) all machinery, equipment (including all transportation and office
equipment), computer equipment (including all servers, routers, and network equipment),
projection equipment, library equipment, telephone systems and furniture relating to the School
that is owned by the School;

(e) all office supplies, spare parts, miscellaneous supplies, and other tangible
^  property of any kind relating solely to the School, including, without limitation, all property of

any kind located in any building, office or other space leased by Seller;

(f) all texts, journals, periodicals, documents, catalogs, indices, databases, core
materials, archives and other materials, written and electronic, located at the Premises owned by
Seller,

(g) the Schoors OPE ID # 04051300;

(h) School's tuition payments received or to be received by Seller or the School
for 2019 Spring Quarter and all School's subsequent quarters, including, without limitation, the
Title IV funds and the VA funds) for the period April 1, 2019 forward, including any Accounts
Receivable;

(i) the right to receive and retain mail (including electronic mail) and oIIiot
communications relating to the School as long as Buyer provides Seller with copies of all mail
relating to the operation of the School received until the Closing;

(j) the right to bill and receive payment for services performed in connection
with the School for the period commencing 2019 Spring Qu^er but unbilled or unpaid as of the
Closing (other than with respect to any of die Excluded Receivables);

(01330807.1}





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 40 of 59. PagelD #: 10662

(k) all data, iocluding, without limitation, student and financial data, stored or
maintained on the Shared IT Platform and any hard-copy paper files relating solely to the
School;

(1) all IT Systems solely for the benefit of the School that are located at the
Premises;

(m) all telephone numbers used by Seller solely in connection with the operation
of the School;

(n) all indemnities fi-om Third Parties relating to the Purchased Assets or the
Assumed Liabilities prior to the Closing Date.

All of the Purchased Assets will be sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed and delivered to Buyer
free and clear of all Liens.

4813.9871-1580, V. 3

101330807-1)
IF



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 41 of 59. PagelD #: 10663

EXHIBIT C

Seller^s Certificates of Good Standing

(cooa4a}.i)
DM1\9938039.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 42 of 59. PagelD #: 10664

19070112474359

Office of the

CORPORATION COMMISSION

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING

I, ihe undersigned ExecuUvc Dircclor of the Ariiona Coiporalion Commission, do hereby cerUfy ihol:

THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC

ACC file number: L2186S306

wos incorporxilcd under the laws of the State of Arizona on 05/12/2017, and that, according to the records of the Arizona
Corporation Commission, said limited liability cominuiy is In good standing in the Slate of Arizona as of Ihe date Ihis
Cerdficate is issued.

This Certificate relates only to the legal existence of the above named entity as of the date this Certificate is issued, and
is not an endorsement, recommendation, or approval of the entity's condition, business acUviUes, affaiis, or pracUccs.

IN WITNESS WHEREOP. t have hereunto at tn^ Innd. afflttd the ortieial neat of the

Axizuaa Coiponlton Cofflmiuton. and tutted (lib Chttificoie on (hit daiu tmol/ZOlf

DITAT

Matthew Neubert, Executive Director

01337320



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 43 of 59. PagelD #: 10665

S^,Ct®TARYOFST4re

CERTIFICATE OF EXISTENCE

WITH STATUS IN GOOD STANDING

I Barbara K. Cegavske, the duly elected and qualified Nevada Secretary of State, do hereby
certify that I am, by the laws of said State, the custodian of the records relating to filings by
corporations, non-profit corporations, corporation soles, limited-liability companies, limited
partnerships, limited-liability partnerships and business trusts pursuant to Title 7 of the Nevada
Revised Statutes which are eidier presently in a status of good standing or were in good standing
for a time period subsequent of 1976 and am the proper officer to execute this certificate.

I further certify that the records of the Nevada Secretary of State, at the date of this certificate,
evidence, THE DC ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, as a limited liability compaiiy
duly organized under the laws ofArizona and existii^ under and by virtue of the laws ofthe
State of Nevada since August 11,2017, andis in good standing in this state.

Beclronlc Certificate
Certificate Number C20190701-1416

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the Great Seal of State, at my
office onJuly 1,2019.

Barbara K. Cegavske

Secretary of State



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 44 of 59. PagelD#: 10666

EXHIBIT D

Sale Order

(OOOCMO-li
DMlWilUM

39



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 45 of 59. PagelD #: 10667

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

EASTERN DIVISION

DIGITAL MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC, CASE NO. 1:19-^-145

PlaiutiH^ JUDGE DAN AARON POLSTER

V. MAGISTRATE JUDGE

THOMAS M. PARKER

SOUTH UNIVERSITY OF OHIO,
LLC, et, al,t

Defendants.

ORDER GRANTING EMERGENCY MOTION OF MARK E. DOTTORE,
RECEIVER OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, FOR AN
ORDER AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE
ASSETS OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, FREE AND

CLEAR OF LIENS, ENCUMBRANCES, CLAIMS AND OTHER INTERESTS
(WITH CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS) AND FOR TRANSFER OF THE

INTERESTS OF UNPAID HOLDERS OF INTERESTS TO THE PROCEEDS
OF THE SALE

This matter having come before the Court on the Motion (the "Sale Motion")

of Mark E. Dottore (the •Receiver"), Receiver of The Art Institute of Las Vegas

LLC, for an Order Authorizing the sale of substantially all of the assets of The Art

Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, an Arizona nonprofit limited liability company that is

registered in the State of Nevada as The DC Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC OPE

ID #04051300 (the "School"), fi:ee and clear of all mortgages, pledges, security

interests, liens, encumbrances, claims, charges, and any other interests of any kind

or type whatsoever (the 'Interests") (with certain exceptions as hereinafter

provided) and for the transfer the Interests of unpaid holders of Interests to the

Proceeds of the Sale. In the Sale Motion, the Receiver seeks the entry of an Order:

(i) authorizing the sale of all or substantially all of the assets (the "Assets") of the

(00021402.1)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 46 of 59. PagelD #: 10668

School to Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited ("Save Las Vegas" or the

"Buyer"), consistent with the terms of an Asset Purchase Agreement (the "APA")

dated JulylS, 2019; (ii) determining and directing that the sale of the Assets is free

and clear of all Interests except for amounts that are required to be paid as part of

the process of approval of the Sale by the United States Department of Education

(the "DOK*)or the Nevada Department of Employment, Training and

Rehabilitation, Commission of Postsecondary Education (the "DETR") (the

"DOE/DETR Required Amounts"); and (iii) and transferring any unpaid claims of

the holders of Interests and other interest holders in the Assets to the proceeds of

sale; and (iv) granting such other and further relief as is warranted in the

circumstances.

The Court having reviewed the Sale Motion, the Declaration of the Receiver,

and all other pleadings, motions, objections, and other responses (the "Written

Statements") related thereto, and a hearing having been held before this Court on

July 2019 (the "Sale Hearing"), to consider the proposed sale (the "Sale") of the

Assets pursuant to the terms and conditions of the APA, at which time all parties m

interest were afforded an opportunity to be heard and the Court having weighed

and considered the Written Statements and the oral comments made at the Sale

Hearing by the parties in interest:

IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED THAT:

A. All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning

as set forth in the Sale Motion and the APA;

(OOOUtdM )



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 47 of 59. PagelD #: 10669

B. The relief requested in this motion is governed by FED. R. CiV. P. 66,

Rule 66.1(c) and (d) of the Iiocal Rules for the United States District

Court for the Northern District of Ohio (the "Local Rules"), federal

common law and the Receiver Order;

0. The Interim Receiver Order provides,

2.n. The Receiver is authorized to negotiate emd effect an
orderly sale, transfer, use or assignment of all or a portion
of any of the Property in or outside of the ordinary course
of business of the Receivership Entities and, for the
proceeds thereof, to pay the secured and unsecured
indebtedness of the Property, including the Real
Property... The Receiver is authorized to conduct such a
sale of the Property in any manner which he, in his good
faith and reasonable discretion, believes will maximize
the proceeds received &om the sale.

D. The Amended Receiver Order provides that the Receiver's authority to

negotiate and effect a sale of the assets is subject Paragraphs 13 and

14 of the Amended Receiver Order. Paragraph 13 aflSrms that the

regulatory authority of the United States may not be stayed or

constrained and Paragraph 14 afBrms the validiiy of the Federal

Priority Statute, 31 U.S.C. § 3713,

E. Notice of the Sale Motion and the Sale was provided to hundreds of

persons, who the Receiver identified as having an interest in the sale

proceeding. Notice was served upon all parties to this lawsuit and

their lawyers, the federal, state and local taxing authorities, all

secured creditors, unsecured creditors that have demonstrated an

interest in the assets, the Department of Justice, the Department of

{000224ml



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 48 of 59. PagelD #: 10670

Education, the Nevada state education regulators, the Nevada

Attorney General, and all regulatory and accrediting agencies. The list

of persons served through the Court is a matter of record; the

additional parties served is contained in a certificate of service filed

with the Court.

F. Proper, timely, adequate and sufficient notice of the Sale Motion, the

Sale Hearing and the proposed Sale has been provided to all interested

parties,

G. Objections were filed by .

H. This Court has the authority to approve a Sale of the Assets free and

clear of all Interests (except for the DOE/DBTB Required Amoimts),

and to transfer all Interests whatsoever to the proceeds derived from

the respective sales of the Assets.

I. Liens reported against the Assets are as stated in the Sale Motion;

J. The DOE and DBTR have an interest in the Assets in the amount that

is required to be paid prior to the change of ownership to Save Las

Vegas;

K. Those other holders of Interests who did not object to the Sale Motion

are deemed to have consented to the Sale. Those holders of Interests

who did object, if any, are adequately protected by having their

Interests, if any, attach to the proceeds of Sale;

{ooai2W2.li



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 49 of 59. PagelD #: 10671

L. Prior to the appointment of the Receiver, the School advertised itself as

for sale to a willing buyer. The School was one of the Excluded

Campuses; that is, it was not selected for acquisition by Education

Principle Foundation, The Arts Institute International, LLC or the

Dream Center South University, LLC. Immediately after his

appointment, the Receiver was approached by Save Las Vegas and

another group who were seriously interested in acquiring the School.

M. Since his appointment in this case, the Receiver has marketed all of

the Assets in a mazmer that was designed to attract the maximum

number of individuals and groups with an interest in purchasing one

or multiple campuses. Further, this case has been the subject of

extensive press coverage. Through the press coverage and through

earlier efforts to sell the institution, the Receiver's interest in a sale

transaction and its financial situation were widely known among

educators, educational institutions and investors in educational

institutionB and in excess of twenty prospective buyers have contacted

the Receiver about the possibility of purchasing one or more campuses

of the Receivership Entities;

N. The APA submitted by Buyer is the highest and best offer received for

the Assets. It represents the highest in terms of money offered for the

Assets and also includes the opportunity to continue the institution

and honor the students' wishes to complete their programs of study.

{00032(83.1)





Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 50 of 59. Page!D #: 10672

The APA offers the Schoors creditors the most money and the Schoors

students an uxdnterrupted education. Principals of Buyer have

demonstrated postsecondary education escperience and knowledge and

are more likely other prospective purchasers to be successful in

obtaining approvals from regulatory authorities which are required to

complete the sale transaction. Buyer also seeks to close at the earliest

possible time and demonstrates the financial wherewithEd to do so. A

Sale to Buyer is consistent with good business judgment and is

approved by this Court;

0. If the Assets are not sold to Buyer at this time, they will be

substantially devalued or the sale will fail and the School will dose,

The Assets are more valuable when sold as a "going concern," that is,

as an educational institution. The sale to Buyer will also benefit the

School's students, faculty and the community as the school will remain

open. In order to sell the Assets as a continuing educational enterprise

in good standing, the Seller must complete its sale transaction

immediately, as it cannot continue to operate as an educational

institution even for a short time without financial assistance and is in

danger of losing both its accreditation and its ability to participate in

federal student aid programs:

P. A reasonable opportunity to object or be heard with respect to the Sale

Motion and the relief requested herein has been afforded to all

(000X3481.1)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 51 of 59. PagelD #: 10673

interested persons and entities, including but not limited to. all parties

and intervenora to this action, all secured lenders, all unsecured

creditors wbo have requested that notices be sent to them, Attorney

General of the State of Nevada, all full time faculty members, all of the

Schoors educational accrediting agencies, and other parties that the

Receiver believes would have an interest in the Sale or who have

requested that they be notified of any sale;

Q. The Receiver has demonstrated that approval of the Sale Motion and

consummation of the Sale to the Buyer at this time is in the beat

interests of the School, its creditors and its students. The Receiver has

advanced good and sufficient business justification supporting the sale

of the Assets to the Buyer as set forth in the Sale Motion and at the

Sale Hearing, and it is a reasonable exercise of the Receiver's business

judgment to consummate a sale of the Assets on the terms and

conditions set forth in the APA, and to execute, deliver and perform its

obligations thereunder. Sound business judgment includes, but is not

limited to, the fact that (i) there is a risk of immediate and irreparable

loss of value of the Assets if the Sale is not consummated, (ii) there is

a substantial risk of loss of accreditation from the Accrediting Counsel

for Independent Colleges and Schools ("ACICS") and American

Culinary Federation Education Foimdation's Accrediting Commission

C'ACFEFAC"), and loss of eligibility to participate in federal student

{soota(aa>t}



Case; l:19-cv-06l45-DAP Doc #; 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 52 of 59. PagelD #: 10674

aid prograixiB (iii) the School cannot continue as an educational

institution for even a short time without financial assistance, (iv) if the

School ceases to operate as an educational institution, its students will

be unable to complete their programs of study, and (v) the

consummation of the transaction contemplated imder the APA

presents the best opportunity to realize the value of the Assets to avoid

further decline and devaluation thereof; (vi) the sale is at arm's length;

and (vii) the Heceiver has exercised reasonable diligence and good faith

judgment;

R. The consideration to be paid by the Buyer for the Assets constitutes

adequate and fair value for the Assets and the terms and conditions of

the APA are fair and reasonable;

S. The Receiver is authorized and directed to negotiate, execute and

deliver all documents necessary to constimmate the Sale with the

Buyer on the same general terms and conditions as the APA with such

changes as the Receiver, in his sole discretion, deems necessary or

desirable, and is further authorized to execute other ancillary

agreements and other documents to sell the Assets and to complete the

Sale of the Assets without further order of this Court free and clear of

aU Interests (except for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts), as long as

the terms and conditions of the APA and other documents are not

materially worse, in the aggregate, to the School, or materially worse

(oaos(U'i)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 53 of 59. Page!D#: 10675

with respect to the interests of individual secured creditors, than the

terms and conditions contained in the APA;

T. The School has good title to the Assets, and accordingly the sale of

such Assets to the Buyer will be a legal, valid and effective sale of the

Assets;

U. The terms and conditions of the APA were negotiated, proposed and

entered into in good faith, from arm's length bargaining positions by

the Receiver and the Buyer and constitute the highest or otherwise

best offer for the Assets after a period in which third parties had ample

opportunity to seek information and enter into discussions or

negotiations with the Receiver concerning a sale of the Assets. The

Buyer is entitled to the protections of a good faith purchaser with

respect to the Sale approved hereby;

V. The APA is conditioned upon several events, which include (i) all of the

terms and conditions of the sale must be approved by the Court

through an Order of Sale and the Order of Sale must be final and not

appealable; (ii) the sale must be free and clear of all Interests (except

for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts); and (iii) obtaining necessary

approvals from the Governing Authorities and Educational Agencies

(as defined in the APA). The Buyer will not consummate the

toansactions contemplated in the APA, thus adversely afrecting the

School, its creditors and its students, if the sale of the Assets to the

{SM124n.t)





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 54of 59. PagelD#: 10676

Buyer is not free and clear of all Interests, or if the Buyer would, or in

the future could, be liable for any of the Interests (except for the

DOE/DETR Kequired Amounts);

W. The Receiver does not have any interest in Buyer or any party

af&liated with Buyer;

X. The Sale was non-collusive, fair and reasonable and conducted in good

faith.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED

THAT:

1. The Sale of the Assets is approved and authorized on terms consistent

with those in the APA which is attached to the Sale Motion and made a part hereof;

2. Any objections to the Sale Motion or the relief requested therein that

have not been withdrawn, waived or settled, and all reservations of rights included

therein, are overruled on the merits;

3. The APA is hereby approved and the Receiver is hereby authorized and

empowered to fully perform thereunder and to consummate the sale as

contemplated under the APA on the same general terms and conditions as the APA

To the extent that changes are needed to consummate the sale as contemplated

under the APA the Receiver, in his sole discretion and without further order of this

Court, is authorized to execute such additional instruments and documents that

may be reasonably necessary or desirable to implement the APA and to take all

further actions as may reasonably be requested by tiie Buyer for the purpose of

{OOOU4t3-lI 10





Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 55 of 59. PagelD #: 10677

selling, assigning, transferring, granting, conveying and conferring to the Buyer, or

reducing to the Buyer^s possession, any or all of the Assets free and clear of aU

Interests;

4. As of the closing of the Sale of the Assets, the sale of the Assets to the

Buyer will be a legal, valid, enforceable, and effective sale of the Assets, and will

vest the Buyer with all right, title, and interest in the Assets free and clear of all

Interests (except for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts);

6. Except as may be expressly permitted by the contemplated APA, all

persona and entities holding liens or interests, including the Secured Claimants, are

hereby barred from asserting such liens or interests against the Buyer, its

successors or assigns, or the Assets;

6. Proper, timely, adequate and suflScient notice of the proposed Sale has

been provided by the Receiver to all relevant parties, and no other or further notice

is required;

7. The foregoing notwithstanding, the provision of this Order authorizing

the Sale of the Assets free and clear of all Interests (except for the DOE/DETR

Required Amounts) shall be self-executing, and notwithstanding the failure of the

Receiver, the Buyer or any other party to execute, file or obtain releases, discharges,

termination statements, assignments, consents or other instruments to effectuate,

consummate and/or implement the provisions hereof or the contemplated APA with

respect to the Sale of the Assets, all liens, claims, encumbrances and interests on

(OOOU(62.I) 11



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 56 of 59. PagelD#: 10678

auch Afiseta be deemed releaeed and shall attach to the proceeds of the Sale

except for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts;

8. This Order shall be binding upon and govern the acts of all entities,

including without limitation, all filing agents, filing officers, title agents, title

companies, recorders of mortgages, recorders of deeds, registrars of deeds,

administrative agencies, governmental departments, secretELn.es of state, federal,

state and local officials, and all other persons or entities who may be required by

operation of law, the duties of their office or contract to accept, file, register or

otherwise record or release any documents or instruments, or who may be required

to report to or insure title or state of title in or to any of the Assets;

9. From and after entry of this Order, neither the School nor any creditor

^  or other party in interest shall take or cause to be taken any action that would

interfere with the sale of the Assets to the Buyer in accordance with the terms of

this Order;

10. From and after entry of this Order, no creditor or other party in

interest shall assert any claims or take any legal or other actions relating to the

Assets to be sold to Buyer, before the closing of the Sale against Buyer, its

principeils or the Assets;

11. The Receiver is authorized to execute such other documents as are

necessary or desirable to implement this Order;

12. This Court shall retain jurisdiction (i) to enforce and implement the

terms Eind provisions of the contemplated AFA and all amendments thereto, any

(000Z2MS.I) 2^2



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 57 of 59. PagelD #: 10679

waivers and consents therevuider and any other agreements executed in connection

therewith, (ii) to resolve any disputes arising under or related to the APA, except as

otherwise provided therein, and (iii) to interpret, implement and enforce the

provisions of this Order.

13. The ObjBction of (the Objection") filed by

{"XXX') is hereby resolved as follows:

14. Pxirsuant to Fed. R. Civ.R. 54(B), this Order is a final Order and there

is no just reason for delay.

rriSSO ORDERED.

Date:

MAGISTRATE JUDGE THOMAS M.
PARKER

JUDGE DAN AARON POLSTER

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ MaryK. Whitmer

Mary K Whitmer (0018213)
James W. Ehrman (0011006)
Robert M. Stefancin (0047184)
Whitmer & Ehrman LLC
2344 Canal Road, Suite 401
Cleveland, Ohio 44113«2535
Telephone: (216) 771-5056
Rmail; mlcw@weadvQcate.net

Attorn^ for Mark E. DottoTB, Receiver
4833^628>18S2, V. 1

(0OOU4S14} 13



Case: l:l9-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 58 of 59. PagelD #: 10680

EXHIBIT E

Buyer's Gartifieate ftnm the Nevada Secretary of State

4S40-1709471S,V.1

(000334M-1)
DMl\93S«B9>4

40



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 59 of 59. PagelD #: 10681

CERTIFICATE OF EXISTENCE

WITH STATUS IN GOOD STANDING

I Barbara K. Cegavske, the duly elected and qualified Nevada Secretary of State, do hereby
certify that I am, by the laws of sard State, the custodian of the records relating to filings by
corporations, non-profit corporations, coiporalion soles, limited-liability companies, limited
partnerships limited-Habihty partnerships and business trusts pirrsuant to Title 7 of the Nevada
Revised Statutes which are either presently in a status of good standing or were in good standing
for a time period subsequent of 1976 and am the proper officer to execute this certificate.

1 further certify that the records of the Nevada Secretary of State, at the date of this certificate,
evidence SAVE THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS LIMITED, as a limited habihty
company duly organized under tire laws of Nevada and existing under and by virtue of the laws
ofthe State of Nevada since January 25, 2019, and is in good standing in this state.

SJfcfiS -• '.'I

Certified By: Paul Reyes
Certificate Number: C20190710-1431

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the Great Seal of State, at ray
office on My 10, 2019.

Barbara K. Cegavske
Secretary of State





AMENDMENT TO THE ASSET PPRCHASF. AORFF^MENT

This AMENDMENT is made and entered into as of July 24,2019 by and between SAVE
THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS LIMITED, a Nevada limited liability company, its
designee or assignee ("Buyer"), and THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, an
Arizona nonprofit limited liability company that is registered in the State of Nevada as The DC
Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC the (*'Schoor*) , by and throu^ Mark E. Dottore, Receiver
("Seller"), appointed by the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio,
Eastern Division (the "Court"). Capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the
meanings ascribed to such terms in the Asset Purchase Agreement ("APA") executed on July IS,
2019

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, on July 15, 2019, Seller and Buyer entered into an Asset Purchase
Agreement for the purchase of the School.

WHEREAS, Seller and Buyer desire to amend certain provisions of the APA as set forth
herein;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10.12 (Amendment; Waiver) of the APA, the APA may
be amended in writing signed by Seller and Buyer.

WHEREAS, upon the execution of the APA, on July 15, 2019, Receiver filed an
Emergency Motion of Mark E. Dottore, Receiver of The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, for an
Order Authorizing the Sale of Substantially all of the Assets of The Art Institute of Las Vegas,
LLC, Free and Clear of All liens. Encumbrances, Claims, and Ofiier Interests (With Certain
Exertions) and for Transfer of the Interests of Unpaid Holders of Interests to the Proceeds of
the Sale ('Motion") with the Court.

WHEREAS, per the order of the Court, good faith objections to the Motion had to be
filed on or before 5:00 p.m. on July 23,2019.

WHEREAS, on July 23,2019, Studio Enterprise Manager, LLC ("Studio") filed a limited
objection to the Motion seeking inclusion of certain changes to the APA.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and performance of the terms and
conditions contained in this Amendment, and for other good and valuable consideration, fiie
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged. Buyer and Seller agree to amend the
APA as follows:

1. The last sentence of the definition of "Accounts Receivable" in the APA is hereby
deleted in its entirety and r^laced with the following:

"Accounts Receivable shall not include any account receivable that Studio or its affiliates
are entitled to, including pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Framework

1



Agreement, dated January 7, 2019, by and among Studio, Seller, Dream Center
Education Holdings, LLC and the other parties thereto.*'

2. The last sentence of the definition of "Excluded Receivables" in the Asset
Purchase Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

"Excluded Receivables shall include any account receivable that Studio or its affiliates
are entitled to, including pursuant to that certain Amended and Restated Framework
Agreement, dated January 7, 2019, by and among Studio, Seller, Dream Center
Education Holdings, LLC and the other parties thereto."

3. The following language shall be added to the end of Section 5.4 of the AFA:

"Notwithstanding the foregoing, any data or access provided hereunder expressly
excludes any information or data of any ofiier schools or students of any other schools."

4. This Amendment shall modify and amend the APA to die extrat, and only to the
extent, expressly set forth herein (it being the intent of the Buyer and Seller that all of
the terms and provisions of the APA that are not expressly amended, modified,
waived or replaced hereunder shall be unaltered and shall remain in full force and
effect.) From and after the date hereof, all references in the APA to **this Agreement"
**herein", 'hereunder" and words of like import shall mean and refer to the APA as
amended hereby.

5. This Amendment shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Ohio, without regard to the conflicts of law or rules of such state, to the
extent such principles or rules would require or permit the application of the laws of
another jurisdiction.

6. Facsimiles, e-mail transmission of pdf. signatures or other electronic copies of
signatures shall be deemed to be originals.

7. No provision of this Amendment is intended to confer any rights, benefits, remedies
or liabilities hereunder upon any Person other than the Parties to the APA and their
respective successors and permitted assigns.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank, Signature page to follow]



IN WITNESS Whereof, this Agreement has been executed by or on behalf of each
of the Parties below as of the date first above written.

BUYER:

Save The Art Institute Las Veg0&-Limited

By:Namerwilliam Txirbay^
Title: Manager

SELLER:

By:
Name: Mark E. Oattore, solely in his capacity as
receiver for The Ait Institute of Las Vegas, LLC
pursuant to that certain Order Appointing Receiver
entered on January 18,2019, by the United States
District Court for the Northern District of Ohio,
Eastern Division

[Signature Page to Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement]

4830-733W893, v. 3



ATTACHMENT D

EMERGENCY MOTION OF MARK E. DOTTORE, RECEIVER OF THE
ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, FOR AN ORDER

AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE ASSETS

OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, FREE AND CLEAR OF

LIENS, ENCUMBRANCES, CLAIMS AND OTHER INTERESTS (WITH
CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS) AND FOR TRANSFER OF THE INTERESTS
OF UNPAID HOLDERS OF INTERESTS TO THE PROCEEDS OF SALE

(See Attached)

ATTACHMENT D



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390 Filed: 07/15/19 1 of 14. Page!D #: 10609

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

EASTERN DIVISION

DIGITAL MEDIA SOLUTIONS, LLC, CASE NO. l:19-cv-145

Plaintiff, JUDGE DAN AARON POLSTER

V. MAGISTRATE JUDGE

THOMAS M. PARKER

SOUTH UNIVERSITY OF OHIO,

LLC, et. aL,

Defendants.

INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, FOR AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE
SALE OF SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE ASSETS OF THE ART

INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC FREE AND CLEAR OF ALL LIENS,
ENCUMBRANCES, CLAIMS, AND OTHER INTERESTS (WITH CERTAIN
EXCEPTIONS) AND FOR TRANSFER OF THE INTERESTS OF UNPAID

HOLDERS OF INTERESTS TO THE PROCEEDS OF THE SALE

Mark E. Dottore, (the "Receiver") duly appointed and acting Receiver,

hereby moves this honorable Court, pursuant to the Order appointing him, federal

common law and Fed. R. Civ. P. 66, and Rule 66.1(c) and (d) of the Local Rules for

the United States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio for the entry of an

Order, (i) authorizing the sale of substantially all of the assets (the "Assets") of The

Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, an Arizona nonprofit limited liability company that

is registered in the State of Nevada as the DC Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC OPE

ID #04051300, (the "School"), to Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited, a

Nevada limited Lability company, or its assignee (the "Buyer"), consistent with the

terms of an Asset Purchase Agreement (the "APA") attached hereto as Exhibit A;

(ii) determining and directing that the sale of the Assets is free and clear of all

[00022443-11



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390 Filed: 07/15/19 2 of 14. PagelD #: 10610

mortgages, pledges, security interests, liens, encumbrances, claims, charges, and

any other interests of any kind or type whatsoever (the 'Interests"), except for

amounts that are required to be paid as part of the process of approval of the Sale

by the United States Department of Education (the "DOE") or the Nevada

Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation, Commission of

Postsecondary Education (the "DETR") (the "DOE/DETR Required Amounts");

(iii) transferring all unpaid claims of persons holding Interests (the "Claimants") in

the Assets to the proceeds of sale; and (iv) granting such other and further relief as

is warranted in the circumstances.

This Motion is brought on emergency basis because there are imminent

deadlines approaching that must be met for the School to be able to continue to

operate. Until the approval of the sale. Buyer is unable to obtain finances that are

necessary to continue to operate the School nor is Buyer able to submit appHcations

or other necessary documentations to Governing Authorities or Educational

Agencies (as defined in the APA) that are imperative to keep the School in

compliance. Also, there is a substantial risk of (i) loss of accreditation from the

Accrediting Counsel for Independent Colleges and Schools ("ACICS") and American

Culinary Federation Education Foundation's Accrediting Commission

("ACFEFAC"), (ii) loss of eligibility to participate in federal student aid programs,

and (iii) loss of School's State's licensure. The School simply cannot continue as an

educational institution for even a short time without financial assistance and

therefore immediate action by this Court is required to approve the sale of the

100022445-11



Case; l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390 Filed: 07/15/19 3 of 14. PageiD #: 10611

School. As this Court is well aware, the most important to all of this are the

students, and if the School ceases to operate as an educational institution, its

students will be unable to complete their programs of study and they will be

detrimentally hurt.

In support of this Motion, the Receiver says as follows:

PROCEDURAL HISTORY

1. This Court appointed the Receiver on January 18, 2019, on an

emergency basis, pursuant to its Order Appointing Receiver [Dkt. No. 8] (the

"Initial Receiver Order"). On January 25, 2019, after discussions with the

secured lenders of the Receivership Entities, the Receiver filed his Motion of Mark

E. Dottore, Receiver for Entry of Order Clarifying Order Appointing Receiver [Docket

No. 12], pursuant to which the Court entered the Clarifying Order, nuncpro tune to

the entry of the Initial Receiver Order. [Dkt. No. 14].

2. On February 25, 2019, the Receiver filed his Motion of Mark E. Dottore

Receiver for Entry of Amended Order Appointing Receiver, seeking the entry of an

Amended Order Appointing Receiver (the "Amended Receiver Order"),

incorporating changes requested by persons with significant interests in the

Receivership Entities and the operations of the receivership proceedings, including

government entities and lenders. The various iterations of the orders appointing

the Receiver shall be referred to herein as the "Receiver Order," when the

differences between the Initial Receiver Order, the Clarifying Order and the

100022445.]!



(



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390 Filed: 07/15/19 4 of 14. PagelD #: 10612

Amended Receiver Order (if entered by the Court) are insignificant for the purposes

of this Motion.

JURISDICTION AND AUTHORITY OF THE RECEIVER

3. The relief requested in this motion is governed by FED. R. CiV. P. 66,

Rule 66.1(c) and (d) of the Local Rules for the United States District Court for the

Northern District of Ohio (the "Local Rules"), federal common law and the

Receiver Order.

4. The Interim Receiver Order provides,

2.n. The Receiver is authorized to negotiate and effect an
orderly sale, transfer, use or assignment of all or a portion
of any of the Property in or outside of the ordinary course
of business of the Receivership Entities and, for the
proceeds thereof, to pay the secured and unsecured
indebtedness of the Property, including the Real
Property . .. The Receiver is authorized to conduct such a
sale of the Property in any manner which he, in his good
faith and reasonable discretion, believes will maximize
the proceeds received from the sale.

5. The Amended Receiver Order provides that the Receiver's authority to

negotiate and effect a sale of the assets is subject Paragraphs 13 and 14 of the

Amended Receiver Order. Paragraph 13 affirms that the regulatory authority of the

United States may not be stayed or constrained and Paragraph 14 affirms the

validity of the Federal Priority Statute, 31 U.S.C. § 3713.

FACTS AND HISTORY

6. Dream Center Education Holdings LLC ("DCEH") is a not for profit

holding company. Prior to the commencement of this case, DCEH held the equity

interests of Argosy University of California, LLC, Dream Center South University,

{00022445-1!





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390 Filed: 0//15/19 5 of 14. PagelD #: 10613

LLC, and The Arts Institutes International, LLC, an Arizona nonprofit LLC. Please

see the First Report of Receiver [Dkt. No. 91], which is fully incorporated herein for

further information as to DCEH's structure.

7. DC Art Institute of Phoenix, LLC ("DC AiP"), an Arizona nonprofit

LLC, is the parent and the sole member of The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, an

Arizona nonprofit limited lability company which is registered in the State of

Nevada as The DC Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC. Buyer wishes to purchase all of

the assets of the School used in the operation of the School, whether tangible or

intangible, and assume certain liabilities and contracts of the School as set forth in

the APA.

8. On or about March 28^^^ 2019, the Receiver on behalf of the School

entered into a Managed Services Agreement ("MSA") with Buyer whereby Buyer

agreed to provide certain Core services (as defined in the MSA) in support of the

School's academic mission and purpose and that certain Non-Core services would be

provided by DCEH pursuant to a Transition Service Agreement ("TSA").

THE SALE TRANSACTION

9. On March 28, 2019, Receiver on behalf of the School entered into a

Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with Buyer to acquire substantially all of

the assets of the School used in the operation of the School, whether tangible or

intangible.

{00022445-11



Case; l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390 Filed: 07/15/19 5 of 14. PagelD #: 10614

10. Subsequently, on July 15, 2019, the Receiver on behalf of the School

entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Buyer to acquire all of the assets of

the School used in the operation of the School, whether tangible or intangible.

11. The APA sets forth the following terms and conditions:

a. Buyer shall acquire substantially all of the assets of the School used in
the operation of the School, whether tangible or intangible ("Assets"),
and assume certain scheduled liabilities of the School including those
liabilities which Buyer already committed to under the MSA (the
"Transaction").

b. Consideration for the Transaction is Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand
Dollars ($250,000.00) as adjusted under the terms of the APA.

c. Conditions to closing include:

1.) Receiver obtaining a final order (the "Sale Order") from this
Court authorizing and approving the Transaction and ordering
that (i) Buyer shall receive the Assets of the School free and
clear of Interests (except for DOE/DETR Required Amounts);
and (ii) the time to appeal Sale Order shall have lapsed.

2.).Each party hereto shall bear and pay its own fees and
expenses and shall have no responsibility or obligation of any
other party's fees or expenses.

3.).Closing shall occur no later than three (3) business days
following Buyer's receipt of all Governmental Approvals and
Educational Approvals or such other date as the Buyer and
Seller may mutually determine, provided, however, the time
period may be extended if a party to this action files an appeal
of the Sale Order. In addition, the APA states that other
regulatory requirements and pre-conditions may otherwise
determine the date of the Closing.

THE SAI.E TRANSACTION IS CONSISTENT WITH SOUND
BUSINESS JUDGMENT AND IS IN THE BEST INTEREST OF CREDITORS

AND OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES. INCLUDING STUDENTS

12. Since his appointment in this case, the Receiver has marketed all of

the Assets in a manner that was designed to attract the maximum number of

{00022445-1! b



A



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390 Filed; 07/15/19 7 of 14. PagelD #: 10615

individuals and groups with an interest in purchasing the School. Prior to the

appointment of the Receiver, the School advertised itself for sale to a willing buyer.

13. In addition to the marketing efforts by the Receiver and the School,

this case has been the subject of extensive press coverage. Through the press

coverage and through earlier efforts to sell the institution, the Receiver's interest in

a sale transaction and its financial situation were widely known among educators,

educational institutions and investors in educational institutions. The Receiver's

business judgment is that no further marketing is required to produce interested

purchasers.

14. Immediately after his appointment, the Receiver was approached by

the Buyer. The APA submitted by Buyer is the highest and best offer received for

the Assets. It represents the highest in terms of money offered for the Assets and

also includes the opportunity to continue the institution and honor the students'

wishes to complete their programs of study. The APA offers the School s creditors

the most money and the School's students an uninterrupted education. Principals

of Buyer have demonstrated postsecondary education experience and knowledge

and are more likely than other prospective purchasers to be successful in obtaining

approvals from regulatory authorities which are required to complete the sale

transaction. Buyer also seeks to close at the earliest possible time and demonstrates

the financial wherewithal to do so. A sale to Buyer is consistent with good business

judgment and is approved by this Court.

{00022445-11





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390 Filed: 07/15/19 8 of 14. PagelD #: 10616

15. The Buyer must have authority to complete the sale transaction

through entry of an Order of Sale and submit an application for the change of

control before July 31, 2019, or else it is possible that the School's license will be

revoked. Even if the license is renewed, provisionally or permanently, absent an

Order approving the sale transaction, there is a substantial risk of loss of

accreditation from the Accrediting Counsel for Independent Colleges and Schools

("ACICS") and American CuHnary Federation Education Foundation's Accrediting

Commission ("ACFEFAC").

16. In short, the Buyer must close this transaction before July 31, 2019, or

risk closure and/or loss of eligibility to participate in federal student aid programs.

The failure to qualify for these programs is critical; the School cannot continue as

an educational institution for even a short time without financial assistance, and

without financial assistance, the Assets will be substantially devalued and/or the

School will close.

17. The Assets are more valuable when sold as a "going concern," that is,

as an educational institution. The sale to Buyer will also benefit the School's

students, faculty and the community as the school will remain open. In order to sell

the Assets as a continmng educational enterprise in good standing, the Seller must

complete its sale transaction immediately, as it cannot continue to operate as an

educational institution even for a short time without financial assistance and is in

danger of losing both its accreditation and its ability to participate in federal

student aid programs.

(00022445-1 i ^





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390 Filed: 07/15/19 9 of 14. PagelD #: 10617

18. The Receiver asserts that approval of the Sale Motion and

consummation of the Sale to the Buyer at this time is in the best interests of the

School, its creditors and its students. The Receiver further asserts that in his best

business judgment, the sale transaction on the terms and conditions set forth in the

APA, is in the best interest of students, creditors and the community. Sound

business judgment includes, but is not limited to, the fact that (i) there is a risk of

immediate and irreparable loss of value of the Assets if the School ceases to operate

as an educational institution, (ii) its students will be unable to complete their

programs of study, (iii) the consummation of the transaction contemplated under

the APA presents the best opportunity to realize the value of the Assets to avoid

further decline and devaluation thereof; (iv) the sale is at arm's length; and (v) the

Receiver has exercised reasonable diligence and good faith judgment.

19. The consideration to be paid by the Buyer for the Assets constitutes

adequate and fair value for the Assets and the terms and conditions of the APA are

fair and reasonable.

T.TENS AND ENCUMBRANCES

Liens reported against the Assets to be sold are as follows:

a. Non-consensual interests obtained by the United States Government

pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3713, known as the "federal priority statute";

b, U.S. Bank National Association, as Collateral Agent under the Senior

Secured Credit an Guaranty Agreement, dated as of October 17, 2017, by

The Dream Center Foundation and the other parties thereto; collateral is

100022445-1 I



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390 Filed: 07/15/19 10 of 14. PagelD #: 10618

all assets of the Debtor (DCEH), whether now owned or hereafter

acquired;

c. U.S. Bank National Association, as Collateral Agent under the Senior

Secured Credit an Guaranty Agreement, dated as of January 5, 2015, by

Education Management II LLC and the other parties thereto; collateral is

all assets of the Debtor (DCEH), whether now owned or hereafter

acquired;

d. Great American Insurance Company; the collateral is all rights of the

Debtors (DCEH and The Arts Institutes International, LLC, Dream

Center Argosy University of California, LLC) growing out of bonds issued

by Great American on behalf of Debtors and any of Debtors' subsidiaries

and related entities (etc);

e. Studio Enterprise Manager, LLC claims a lien and/or an interest on all of

the assets in the Receivership Entities including but not limited to The

Arts Institutes of California, San Diego and the Art Institute of Seattle,

LLC, and Accounts Receivable campuses located at Hollywood, Inland

Empire, Orange County, Sacramento, and San Francisco;

f. Dream Center Argosy University of California LLC has a lien on

"Contributed Receivables," which is accounts due from student Account

Debtors at various Argosy University campuses;

g. Studio Enterprise Manager, LLC has a right of first refusal on Argosy and

various other campuses.

{00022145' 1 I 10



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390 Filed: 0/715/19 11 of 14. PagelD #: 10619

T.AW AND ARGUMENT

This Court has the authority to approve a sale of the Assets free and clear of

all Interests, and to transfer the Interests to the proceeds derived from the

respective sales of the Assets. The Court's authority to impose and administer this

receivership is derived from its inherent powers as a court of equity. See S.E.C. v.

Forex Asset Mgmt., LLC, 242 F.3d 325, 331 (5th Cir. 2001); U.S. v. Durham, 86 F.3d

70, 72 (5th Cir. 1996); see also Fed. R. Civ. P. 66 ("The practice in the

administration of estate by receivers . . . shall be in accordance with the practice

heretofore followed in the courts of the United States or as provided in rules

promulgated by the district court."). A federal court exercises "broad powers and

wide discretion" in crafting rehef in an equitable receivership proceeding. See

S.E.C. V. Basic Energy <fe Affiliated Res., Inc., 273 F.3d 657, 668 (6th Cir. 2001).

The goal of a receiver charged with hquidating assets is to obtain the best

value for the estate available under the circumstances. Fleet Nat'I Bank v. H& D

Entm't, Inc., 926 F. Supp. 226, 239-40 (D.C. Mass. 1996) (citing Jackson v. Smith,

254 U.S. 586 (1921)). The paramount goal in any proposed sale of property of the

estate is to maximize the proceeds received by the estate. See, e.g.. Four B. Corp. u.

Food Barn Stores, Inc., 107 F.3d 558, 564-65 (8th Cir. 1997). Moreover, courts have

recognized that a receiver's business judgment is entitled to significant deference

when selecting the appropriate methods to achieve this goal. See, e.g.. Golden Pac.

Bancorp v. F.D.IC., 2002 WL 31875395 (S.D.N.Y. 2002); affd sub nom, Golden Pac.

Bancorp. v. F.D.I.C., 375 F.3d 196 (2nd Cir. 2004) (recognizing receivers are

!00022445-l| 11



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390 Filed: 07/15/19 12 of 14. PagelD #: 10620

afforded deference in corporate decision making); In re JFD Enter., Inc., 2000 WL

560189, *5 (1st Cir. 2000) ("The trustee has ample discretion to administer the

estate, including authority to conduct public or private sales of estate property.

Coiirts have much discretion on whether to approve proposed sales, but the

trustee's business judgment is subject to great judicial deference.") (internal

citations omitted). 51.

This Court's broad authority over a receivership estate includes the equitable

power "to sell property free of liens, transferring the lien to the proceeds." Seaboard

Natl. Bank v. Rogers Milk Prod. Co., 21 F.2d 414, 416 (2nd Cir. 1927); see also First

Natl. Bank v. Shedd, 121 U.S. 74 (1887) (affirming the sale of railroad property

deteriorating in value free and clear of hens); F.T.C. v. Trudeau, No. 03-C-3904

(N.D. 111. May 27, 2014) (order approving sale of receivership assets free and clear of

encumbrances, habilities, and claims); S.E.C. v. Pearson, No. 14 C 3785 (N.D. 111.

June 9, 2014) (order approving sale liens, claims, encumbrances, and interests);

Quilling V. Trade Partners, Inc., 2007 WL 296211 (W.D. Mich. 2007) (approving

receiver's sale of property free and clear of all hens and encumbrances), Stoder u.

Am. Crushing 18 & Recycling, LLC, 2006 WL 438615 (Conn. Super. Ct. 2006)

(granting receiver's motion to seU property free and clear of hens); Parks v. Carlisle

Clay Prod. Co. of Carlisle, 276 N.W. 591 aowa 1937) (allowing a receiver to seU the

assets of the corporation free of hens and encumbrances).

Under Local Rule 66.1, the Court is to administer receivership estates

"similar to that in bankruptcy cases." It is a bedrock principle of bankruptcy law

(00022445-1! I^



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390 Filed: 07/15/19 13 of 14. PagelD #: 10621

that bankruptcy courts (which are courts of equity like courts administering

receivership estates) may authorize the sale of estate assets free and clear of all

liens and interests. See 11 U.S.C. § 363.

OBJECTIONS

By a separate Motion filed contemporaneously herewith, and for the reasons

stated herein, the Receiver is requesting the shortening of time for the filing of

objections to the sale, and for an expedited hearing date.

NOTICE TO INTERESTED PARTIES

The Receiver will notify all interested parties of the sale of the Assets.

Specifically, the Receiver will notify the all parties to the lawsuit, the federal, state

and local taxing authorities, all secured lenders, unsecured creditors that have

demonstrated an interest in the Assets, the Attorney General of the State of

Nevada, the Accreditors, and other parties that the Receiver believes would have an

interest in the sale or who have requested that they be notified of any sale. Notice

shall consist of this Motion, with its exhibits, and any Notice of Hearing required to

be served by this Court. Upon completion of the notice to interested parties, the

undersigned will file an appropriate Certificate of Service with this Court.

WHEREFORE the Receiver moves this honorable court for an order

authorizing and approving the sale of the Assets free and clear of the Interests and

for the transfer of the Interests of the Claimants to the proceeds of the Sale to be

paid by further order of this Court as their interests appear under the law and for

such other and further relief as is just.

1 ̂
{00022445-11





Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390 Fiied: 07/15/19 14 of 14. PagelD #: 10622

Date: July 15, 2019 WHITMER & EHRMAN LLC

/s/Marv K, Whitmer

Mary K. Whitmer (0018213)
James W. Ehrman (0011006)
2344 Canal Rd., Suite 401

Cleveland, OH 44113

Telephone: (216) 771-5056
Facsimile: (216) 771-2450

Email: mkw@we advocate. net

Attorneys for the Receiver

(00022445 1; 14





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 lof59. PageiD #: 10623

FINAL EXECUTION COPY July 15,2019

ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is made and entered into
as of July [i^ 2019 ("Effective Date"), by and between SAVE THE ART INSTITUTE OF
LAS VEGAS LIMITED, a Nevada Urdted liability company, its designee or assignee
("Buyer"), and THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, an Arizona noi^rofit limited
liability company that is registered in the State of Nevada as The DC Art InsBtnte of Las
Vegas, LLC, by and throu^ Mark E. Dottore, Receiver ("Seller"), appointed by the United
States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division (the "Court"). Buyer
and Seller may be referred to in this Agreement individually as a "Party" and coUecdveiy, as the
"Parties."

RECITALS:

A. Seller owns and operates a private nonprofit, ACICS accredited and Title IV
Program participating (i.e. under OPE ID # 04051300) institution of postsecondary education
offering all or a portion of many academic degree and credential programs in design, media arts,
fashion and culinary arts 23SO Corporate Circle, Suite 100, Henderson, Nevada 89074 (the
"School").

B. Pursuant to that certain Order Appointing Receiver (the "Appointment Order")
entered on January 18, 2019, by the Court in Case No. l:19-cv-145, Mark E. Dottore
("Receiver") was appointed receiver of various entities, including Dream Center Education
Holdings, LLC. The term "Seller" as used in this Agreement shall mean the School by and
through its Court appointed Receiver in connection with the sale of the Purchased Assets.

C. Buyer desires to purchase from Seller, and Seller desires to sell to Buyer, the
Purchased Assets (as hereinafter defined) held in connectioQ with, necessary for, or material
ownership and operations of the School (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the Excluded
Assets), on terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement (the "Transaction").

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants,
agreements and representations set forth in this Agreement, and for other good and valuable
coQsideratioa, the receipt and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, the Parties agree as
follows;

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS

The terms set forth in this ARTICLE I have the following meanings when used in this
Agreement:

"Accounts Receivable" means all accounts receivable and all notes, bonds and other
evidence of indebtedness of and rights to receive payments arising out of tuitioir payments or
sales occurring in the usual conduct of the School, including but not limited to VA fimds. Title
IV funds and all student cash paid tuition made by students from April 1, 2019 forward.

(oasu4(».| I





Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 2 of 59. PagelD #: 10624

Accounts Receivable shall not include any account receivable that Studio is entitled to receive
pursuant to the hrevocable Direction Letter Regarding Certain Accounts Receivable dated
February 27, 2019.

"Accrediting Body*' means any non-govemmentai entity, including without limitation
institutional and specialized accrediting agencies, which engage in the granting or withholding of
accreditation of postsecondary educational institutions or programs, or accreditation of private
elementary and secondary schools or programs, in accordance with standards relating to the
perforniance, operations, fioancial condition or academic standards of such institutions and
schools, including, without limitation, ACICS, ACF orCIDA.

"ACF' means the American Culinary Federation.

"ACICS" means the Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools

"Actioiis" or "Proceedings" means any claim, action, cause of action, suit, demand,
inquiry, proceeding, audit, hearing, subpoena, investigation, charge, notice of violation, citation,
summons, litigation or suit (of any nature, whether civil, criminal, administrative, regulatory,
judicial or investigative, whether forraaJ or informal, whether public or private, whether at Jaw or
in equity) commenced, brought, conducted or heard by or before, or otherwise involving, any
Governmental Authority or Educational Agency, or any other arbitration, mediation or similar
proceeding.

"Adverse Regulatory Condition" shall mean any term or condition that would impede
Buyer from operating the School in the same manner and to die full extent it is cutrently being
operated by Seller, impose any conditions that would dilute, in any material respect, the benefits
of the contemplated transactions to Buyer and its Affiliates or otherwise require any provision of
credit support by Buyer or any of its Affiliates.

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person who directly or indirectly,
through one or more intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with,
such P«son. The term "control," including the terms "controlled by" and "under comnwn
control with," means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the
direction of the management and policies of a Person, whether through the ownership of at least
fifty percent (50®/o) of the voting securities, by contract or otherwise, including the ability to elect
a majority of the members of the governing board of such Person.

"Agreement" means this Asset Purchase Agreement, including all Exhibits and Schedules
hereto, as the same may be amended from time to time in accordance with its terms.

"Applicable Law" or "Law" means any federal, state, or local law, statute, Regulation,
rule, ordinance, order, judgment, decision, or decree by any Governmental Authority applicable
to Seller and Buyer.

"Assignment and Assumption Agreement" means that assignment and assumptioQ
agreement to be executed by Buyer and Seller, in the form attached as Exhibit A.

CaOBOM^Ii

DMItfSSIOSM



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 3 of 59. PagelD #: 10625

"Assumed Contracts" means all enrollment agreements and those contracts listed on
Schedule I attached hereto.

"Assumed Liabilities" means all liabilities of Seller arising or to be perfonned after the
Closing under the Assumed Contracts (but not related to matters, facts or circumstances existing
at, prior to or as a consequence of Closing) as identified in Schedule 2.2.

"Bill of Sale" means that bill of sale to be executed by Seller, in the form attached as
Exhibit B.

"Business Records or Business Data" means all data or information, in any format,
collected, generated, or used in the Ordinary Course of Business or necessary for the conduct of
the Business, including, without limitatioQ, records relating to accreditation, all financial data
relating to the Business, all educational and student records or data, including all financial,
educational and student data contained in any databases including on the Shared IT Platform
that are used in or necessary for the conduct of the Business of the School.

"Business" means the business of the School.

"CIDA" means the Council for Interior Design Accreditation.

"Claim" or "Claims" will have the meaning set forth in section 101(5) of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code.

"Closing" has the meaning given that term in Section 7.1 of this Agreement

**Closmg Date" has the meaning given that terra in Section 7.1.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

"Curriculum" means all curricula owned by Seller and used in any educational programs
of the School in the form of computer programs or software, slide shows, texts, films, web site
content, audio, videos or any other form or media, including the following items: School catalog
(without reference to AI or AILV), faculty notes, course and faculty evaluation materials, syllabi
for all classes for the School, student handbook, faculty handbook policy and procedure
manuals, program and course curricula, program and course materials, academic policies,
procedures and standards, handbooks and guidebooks. Curriculum does not include any online
courses or programs.

"DETR" means the Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilitation,
Commission of Postsecondary Education-

"DOE" means the United States Department of Education and any successor agency
administering student financial assistance under Title IV.

"EducationaJ Agency" means any entity or organization, whether governmental,
government chartered, tribal, private, or quasi-private, that engages in granting or withholding
Educational Approvals, administers Financial Assistance Programs to or for students of, or

lOOQUUO-I )

OMIV39IOJ9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 4 of 59. PagelD #: 10626

otherwise regulates postsecondary schools or programs, in accordance with standards relating to
the performance, operation, financial condition, privacy or academic standards of such schools
and programs, including DOE and any Accrediting Body or State Educational Agency.

"Educational Approval" means any license, Permit, consent, franchise, approval,
authorization, certificate, or accreditation issued or required to be issued by an Educational
Agency to Buyer with respect to any aspect of the School and Seller's campus operations subject
to the oversight of such Educational Agency, including any such approval for the Buyer end the
School to participate in any Financial Assistance Program.

"Educational Notices/Consents" means any approval, authorization or consent by any
Educational Agency, or any notification to be made by Buyer with the cooperation of Seller to an
Educational Agency, with regard to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, whether
required to be obtained prior to or after the Closing Date, which is necessary under applicable
Laws or Regulations in order to or continue any Educational Approval held by Seller or
its School as of the date of this Agreement.

"Educatdonal Law" means any United States federal, state, local or similar statute, Law,
ordinance. Regulation, rule. Accrediting Standard, code, order or standard, including the
provisions of Title IV and any Regulations implementing or relating thereto, issued or
administered by any Educational Agency or any Financial Assistance Program.

"Employee Benefit Plan" means any "employee benefit plan" (as such term is defined in
ERJSA §3(3)) and any other compensation or benefit plan, program policy, practice, agreement,
understanding or arrangement of any kind, including, without limitation, all incentive, bonus,
severance, change in contn}!, deferred compensaQon, vacation, holiday, cafeteria, medical or
disability.

"Encumbrance" means any mortgage, encumbrance, charge, Claim, community property
interest, condition, equitable interest. Lien, option, pledge, security interest, right of first refusal
or restriction of any Idnd, including any restriction on use, voting, transfer (other than restrictions
on transfer under applicable securities laws), receipt of income or exercise of any other attribute
of ownership.

"Environmental Laws" means all federal, state, and local laws, rules. Regulations, and
binding governmental determinations relating to environmental, health, and safety matters
(including, without limitation, those relating to toxic or hazardous substances), including,
without limitation, the Clean Air Act, the Clean Water Act, the Solid Waste Management Act (as
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act), CERCLA (as amended by the
Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act), the Emergency Planning and Community
Right-to-Know Act, the Toxic Substances Control Act, and the Occupation Safety and Health
Act."

"Environmental Liabilities" means any Liability or investigatory, corrective or remedial
obligation, whenever arising or occurring, arising under Environmental Laws with respect to the
School or the Purchased Assets (including without limitation any arising from the on-site or off-

{OOQlMtO-l >

0M1\9S»(D9.4



-U



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 5 of 59. PagelD #: 10627

site release, threatened Release, treatment, storage, disposal, or arrangement for disposal of
hazardous substances).

"ERISA" means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended.

"Excluded Assets" means:

(1) all bank accounts of Seller.

(2) all rights to receive mail and other communications addressed to Seller
relating to any of the Excluded Assets or Excluded Liabilities;

(3) all company records of Seller, including minute books and Organizational
Documents;

(4) all personnel and other records of Seller required by Applicable Law to be
retained by the Seller;

(5) all contracts and agreements, whether written or oral, to which Seller is a
party other than the Assumed Contracts;

(6) any Excluded Receivables; and

(7) Trademark and tradename "The Art Institute of Las Vegas"; "AT'; "Art
Institute" or any variation thereof or similar names and oomenciature;

(8) any assets of Seller not used or held for use by the School.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, the Excluded Assets shall not include Accounts
Receivable or any fiinds in Seller's bank accounts or otherwise held by Seller that Seller received
or is to receive for tuition or otherwise for the 2019 Spring Quarter, 2019 Summer Quarter and
all subsequent quarters, including but not limited to VA funds and Title IV hinds from April 1,
2019 forward.

"Excluded Liabilities" has the meaning given that term in Section 2.2.

"Excluded Receivables" means any student receivable of the School in existence at the
Closing Date that are attributable to the 2019 Winter Quarter or any prior quarters and all causes
of action pertaining to the collection of the foregoing. Excluded Receivables shall not include
any account receivable that Studio is entitled to receive pursuant to the Irrevocable Direction
Letter Regarding Certain Accounts Receivable dated February 27,2019.

"Financial Assistance Programs" means the Title IV Program pursuant to which Title IV
Program funding has been provided to or on behalf of the School's students, and any odier
govermnent-spQDSored or private program of student Enancial assistance other than the Title IV
Program pursuant to which student financial assistance, grants or loans were provided to or on
behalf of the Schoors students.

{«eau«Q.i)

OMIN9S$H}9.4



n
v.--



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 6 of 59. PagelD #: 10628

"Governmental Approval" means any Permit, consent, waiver, approval, order or
authorization of, or registration, accreditation, declaration issued, granted, given or otherwise
made, or filing with, any Governmental Authority.

"Governmental Authority" means any government, any governmental or regulatory entity
or body, department, commission, board, agency or instrumentality.

"Indebtedness" with respect to any Person means any obligation of such Person for any
Trailing Liability or for borrowed money, including, widiout limitation or duplication, (a) any
obligation incurred for all or any part of the purchase price of property or other assets or for the
cost of property or other assets constructed or of improvements thereto, other than accounts
payable included in current liabilities and incurred in respect of property purchased in the
ordinary course of business, (b) the face amount of all letters of credit issued for the account of
such Penon, (c) obligations (whether or not such Person has assumed or become liable for the
payment of such obligation) secured by Liens, (d) capitalized lease obligations, (e) all
guarantees and similar obligations of such Person, (f) all accrued interest, fees and charges in
respect of any Indebtedness, and (g) all prepayment premiums and penalties, and any other fees,
expenses, indemnities and other amounts payable as a result of the prepayment or discharge of
any Ind^tedness.

"Intellectual Property" means all of the following in any jurisdiction throughout the
world: (a) patents, patent applications and invention disclosures, together with all reissuances,
continuations, continuations-in-part, revisions, extensions and reexaminations thereof; (b)
copyrights, works of authorship, mask works and copyrightable works, and applications,
registrations and renewals in connection therewith; (c) trade secrets and confidential business
information (including concepts, research and development, know-how, inventions, formulas,
compositions, discoveries, compositions, privacy data and non-public personal information,
algorithms, models, methodologies, technical and engineering data, business and marketing
plans, processes and techniques, desi^, drawings and specifications); (d) IT Systems; (e)
copies and tangible embodiments of any of the foregoing in whatever form or medium; (g) rights
of publicity and privacy related to the use of the names, likenesses, voices, signatures and
blographicd information of real p>ersons; and (g) all other intellectual property or proprietary
rights protectable as a matter of law and licenses, immunities, cQvenants not to sue relating to
any of the foregoing. Intellectual Property shall not mean any software programs from the
Shared IT Platform.

"IT Systems" means all devices and/or computer software (including but not limited to
source code, executable code data, databases, scripts, libraries, compilers, files, applications and
documentation, software that is available generally through consumer retail stores or distribution
networks including, without limitation, any software pre-installed in the Ordinary Course of
Business as a standard part of hardware), hvdware, and technology (including but not limited to
communications systems, network mfrastiucture and related equipment websites and social
media accounts) owned by Seller for operation of the School and located solely at the School,
other than any such devices, hardware, technology, communications systems, network
infrastructure and/or computer software that are located, maintained on or part of the Shared IT
Platform.

ia»u4W.| I

OMt\»SSIOS9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 7 of 59. PagelD #: 10629

"Knowledge of Seller" means to the best knowledge of the Receiver and the Seller, after
reasonable inquiry and diligence with respect to the matters in question.

"Liability" or "Liabilities" means any liability (whether known or unknown, asserted or
unasserted, absolute or contingent, accrued or unaccrued, whether liquidated or unliquidated and
whether due, or to become due), including Trailing Liability or any liability for Indebtedness or
Taxes.

"License" means any Permit, license, contract, agreement, Educational Approval,
authorization or other obligation issued by any Governmental Authority related to the Seller to
which Seller is a party or by which Seller or the Purchased Assets are bound.

"Lien" or "Liens" shall mean means all liens, Indebtedness, Encumbrances (including,
without limitation, any leasehold interests, licenses or other rights, in favor of a Third Party to
use any portion of the Purchased Assets), Claims, security interests, of whatever kind or nature,
mort^ges, pledges, restrictions, charges, instruments, licenses, encroachments, options, rights of
recovery, judgments, orders and decrees of any court or foreign or domestic govenimental
authority, interest, products and Taxes (including foreign, federal, state and local Taxes), in each
case of any kind or nature, whether secured or unsecured, choate or inchoate, filed or unfiled,
scheduled or unscheduled, noticed or unnoticed, recorded or uniecorded, contjngent or non-
contingent, material or non-material, known or unknown.

"Managed Services Agreement" means that certain Managed Services Agreement entered
into betw^n the Seller and Buyer on or about March 28,2019 ("MSA").

"Material Contracts" has the meaning given to that term in Section 3.4 of this Agreement

"Non-Core Services" has the meaning as defined in the MSA.

"Ordinary Course of Business" means the ordinary course of the operation of the School
consistent with past custom and practice.

"Organizational Documents" means any charter, certificate of formation, articles of
organization, atticles of incorporation, certificate of incorporation, declaration of partnership,
articles of association, code or Regulations, bylaws, operating agreement, limited liability
company agreement, partnership agreement or similar formation or govemiog documents and
instruments.

"Permit" or "Peitoits" shall mean any franchise, grant, authorization, agreement, license,
permit, registration, easement, variance, exception, consent, clearance, certificate, approval,
order or similar rights issued, granted, or obtained for the School by or fi-om any Governmental
Authority, but excluding any Educational Approval.

"Person" means an individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, trust,
unincorporated association or any other entity or organization.

"Post-Closing Educational Consent" means any of those Educ^onal Consents that must
be effectuated or obtained following the Closing, as set forth :n Schedule 7.2(f).

<Q0«s4«a.i]

DM193iia39.4





Case; l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed; 07/15/19 8 of 59. PagelD #; 10630

"Pre-Acquisition Review Application" means the materially complete electronic
application submitted to the DOE with respect to the tiansactioas contemplated hereby, marked
for pre-acquisition review, together with any required exhibits or attachments.

'Tre-Acquisition Review Notice" means a written notice or response from the DOE
following the DOE's review of a Pre-Acquisition Review Application regarding the transaction
contemplated by this Agreement, which shall not indicate the existence of any material
impediment to the issuance of a TPPPA or PPPA to the Buyer extending Seller's certification to
participate in the Title IV Program following the Closing.

"Pre-Closing Educational Consent" means any of those Educationai Consents that must
be effectuated or obtained prior to the Closing, as set forth in Schedule 7.2(b).

"Pre-Closing Period" means the period commencing on the date of this Agreement and
ending the later to occur (a) all Pre-CIosing Educational Notices/Consents have been obtained
from the Governing Authorities and (c) the Court's entering Order approving the sale to the
Buyer pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

"Premises" shall mean the Schoors current location at 2350 Coiporate Circle, Suite ICQ,
Henderson, Nevada 89074 which are subject to a Lease Agreement with Tech Park 6, LLC.

"PPA" means a Program Participation Agreement issued to Uie School and countersigned
by or on behalf of the Secretary of the DOE, evidencing the DOE's certification of the School to
participate in the Title IV Programs prior to consummation of the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement.

"PPPA" means a Provisional Program Participation Agreement issued to the School and
countersigned by or on behalf of the Secretary of the DOE, evidencing the DOE's certification of
the School to continue its Title IV Programs participation following consummation of the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

"Pre-Closing Audit" means that audit performed by Receiver's CFO for (i) any monetary
obligations that Seller or Buyer have under the MSA and TSA including but not limited to any
invoices for the period April 1 2019 forward for expenses to be paid by Buyer under the MSA
but unpaid by Seller or Buyer, (b) sums paid or advanced by Buyer to Seller for payment of
School expenses including faculty and staff salaries, rent or other expenses that accrued or were
due for the period prior to April 1,2019, and (iii) all School expenses of any kind paid by Seller
on behalf of Buyer for the period April I, 2019 forward from any funds other than those
designated entirely for the 2019 Spring Quarter or any subsequent quarter.

"Purchased Assets" means all right, title and interest in Accounts Receivable and any and
all of the assets owned, used or held for use by Seller with respect to the School and the
Business, including all tangible and intangible assets, other than Excluded Assets, of the School
used or held for use by the School, including, without limitation, personal property, inventory,
supplies, equipment, tangible personal property, fixed assets, library books located at School
Premises, Business Records or Business Data (excluding Excluded Assets), School educational
and student Records, Assumed Contracts, fixtures, leasehold improvements, equipment, prepaid
expenses, licenses, advertising material, Permits, goodwill, School's OPE ID # 04051300,

(tOttZMft-l)

DMIS9J5SQ39.4

8



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed. 07/15/19 9 of 59. PagelD #: 10631

Intellectual Property relating to the School, if any, any IT Systems or other computer systems
used in financial aid management and administration located solely at the School, SchcoPs
tuition payments received or to be received by Seller for 2019 Spring Quarter and all School's
subsequent quarters, including but not limited to the Title IV flmds and the VA ftmds from April
I, 2019, forward. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Curriculum is not a
Purchased Asset. Buyer shall have the right to use the Curriculum for a period three (3) years
from the Effective Date.

"Real Property" means all parcels and tracts of land, together with all buildings,
structures, fixtures and improvements located thereon (including those under construction), and
all privileges, rights, easements, hereditaments and appurtenances belonging to or for the benefit
of such land, including all easements appurtenant to and for the benefit of such land, and all
rights existing in and to any streets, alleys, passages and other rights-of-way included thereon or
adjacent thereto (before or after vacation thereof) and vaults beneath any such streets.

"Receiver's CFO" means David Linscott

"Regulation" means any law, ordinance, treaty, statute, regulation, ruling or rule or order
or, administered or enforced by or on behalf of, any court, Educational Agency or Governmental
Authority.

"Sale Order" means the final, non-appealable order, substantially in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit D. from the Court (i) authorizing Seller to sell, and confiiming the sale of, the
Purchased Assets to Buyer, free and clear of all Liens, on the terms and conditions of this
Agreement (as may from time to time be amended as provided herein), and (b) confirming that
the Consent Judgment entered into in November 2015 between Education Management
Corporation, et al. and 39 state attorneys general and the District of Columbia does not apply to
the School or the Purchased Assets following Closing.

"Shared IT Platform" m^ns any Technology owned by Dream Center Education
Holdings, LLC and currently subleased to Studio pursuant to a sublease agreement approved by
the Court, which stores and maintains data, including, without limitation student and financial
data, relevant to and for operation of various universities, including the School.

"State Educational Agency" means any state educational licensing body that provides a
license or authorization necessary for the School to provide postsecondary education in the State
of Nevada, including without limitation, DETR.

"Studio" means Studio Enterprise Manager, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company.

"Tax" or 'Taxes" means any federal, state, local, or foreign income, gross receipts,
license, payroU, employment, excise, severance, stamp, occupation, premium, windfall profits,
environmental customs, duties, franchise, profits, withholding, social security (or similar),
unemployment, disability, real property, personal property, sales, use, capital gain, transfer,
registration, transportation, value added, alternative or add-on minimum, estimated, or other tax
of any kind whatsoever, including any interest, penalty, or addition to the Tax, whether disputed
or not and including any obligations to indemnify or otherwise assume or succeed to the Tax
liability of any other Person.

)  9
D141»iSiOS9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 10 of 59. PagelD #: 10632

"Technology" means information technology, hardware and computer systems, including
those relating to die transmission, storage, maintenance, organization, presentation, generatioa,
processing or analysis of all data and information collected, generate, or used in the conduct of
the Business and located solely at the School.

"Third Party" means any Person other than the Parties.

"Title IV" means Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, 20 USC § 1001, et seq.,
as amended, or any successor statute thereto.

"Title rv Programs" means the programs of federal student financial assistance
administered pursuant to Title IV.

"TPPPA" means a Temporary Provisional Program Participation .Agreement issued to the
School post-Closing, and coimtersigned by or on behalf of the Secretary of the DOE continuing
the Schoors certification to participate in the Title IV Programs on an interim basis following
the Closing.

"Trailing Liability" or "Trailing Liabilities" means any obligation, Claim, Encumbrance,
Lien or Liability for which the School may owe or be required by the DOE or any Governing
Authority or Educational Agency to pay or otherwise be responsible for, relating to any shident
stipend(s), unearned tuition, or other monetary obligation(s) incurred or accrued by the School
prior to April 1,2019.

"Transition Services Agreement" means that certain Transition Services Agreement
entered into between the Seller and Buyer on or about March 28, 2019 ("TSA").

"Transition Services and License Agreement" means a transition services agreement that
may hereafter be negotiated and executed by Buyer and Studio in the event and to the extent
that Buyer requires such transition services to be performed by Studio prior to or after Closing.
To the extent that the Buyer does not require any transition services from Studio before or after
Closing, Buyer shall not be obligated to enter into a Transition Services Agreement with Studio,

"2019 Spring Quarter" means School quarter commencing on April 1, 2019 and ending
on June 15, 2019.

"2019 Summer Quarter" means School quarter commencing on July 8, 2019 and ending
on September 21, 2019.

"2019 Winter Quarter" means School quarter commencing on January 7, 2019 and
ending on March 23,2019.

ARTICLE II

PURCHASE AND SALE OF ASSETS AND ASSUMPTION OF LIABBLmES.

2.1 Purchase and Sale. Subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, at the Closing, Seller shall sell, contribute, convey, assign, transfer and deliver to
Buyer, free and clear of all Claims, Encumbrances and Liens and Buyer shall purchase, acquire

(flOQUitO-I} 10
DM1\9S5I(09.4





Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 11 of 59. PagelD #: 10633

and take assigmnent and delivery of, in exchange for die Purchase Price ( as the same may be
adjusted for any sums owed by Seller to the Buyer), the Purchased Assets, including, without
limitation, all of the following assets of Seller (but excluding the Excluded Assets pursuant to
Section 2.3 hereof):

(a) all Accounts Receivable and other accounts and notes receivables (whether
current or noncuirent) and all causes of action specifically pertaining to the collection of the
foregoing (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the Excluded Receivables);

(b) all Intellectual Property owned by the School and used solely by the School
and all corresponding rights that, now or hereafter, may be secured throughout the world and all
copies and tangible embodiments of any such Intellectual Property in Seller's possession or
control;

(c) all of Seller's rights existing under the Assumed Contracts listed on
Schedule I;

(d) all machinery, equipment (including all transportation and office
equipment), computer equipment (including all servera, routers, and network equipment),
projection equipment, library equipment, telephone systems and furniture relating to the School
and owned by the Seller;

(e) all office supplies, spare parts, miscellaneous supplies, and other tangible
property of any kmd relating solely to the School, including, without limitation, all property of
any kind located in any building, office or other space leased by Seller;

(f) all texts, Journals, periodicals, documents, catalogs, indices, databases, core
materials, archives and other materials, written and electronic, located at the Premises owned by
Seller

(g) the School's OPE ID 04051300;

(h) School's tuition payments received or to be received by Seller or the School
for 2019 Spring Quarter and all School's subsequent quarters, including, without limitation, the
Title TV funds and the VA funds) for the period April 1, 2019 forward, including any Accounts
Receivable;

(i) the right to receive and retain mail (including electronic mail) and other
communications relating to the School as long as Buyer provides Seller with copies of all mail
relating to the operation of the School received until the Closing;

(j) the right to bill and receive payment for services perfonned in connection
with the School for the period commencing 2019 Spring Quarter but unbilled or unpaid as of the
Closing (other than with respect to any of the Excluded Receivables);

(k) all data, including, without limitation, student and financial data, stored or
maintained on the Shared IT Platform and any hard-copy paper files relating solely to the
School;

{OIOZ24(0'l f 1 I
DUl\9SSt019.4



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 12 of 59. PagelD #: 10634

(1) all IT Systems solely for the benefit of the School that are located at the
Premises;

(m) ail telephone numbers used by Seller solely in connection with the operation
of the School;

(n) all indemnities from Third Parties relating to the Purchased Assets or the
Assumed Liabilities prior to the Closing Date.

All of the Purchased Assets will be sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed and delivered to Buyer
free and clear of all Liens.

2.2 Liabilities. Except for the Assumed Liabilities and the obligations of
Buyer under the MSA as set forth in Schedule 2,2, Buyer shall not assume, and shall have no
liability for, any Liabilities, obligations or commitments of Seller of any kind, character or
description, whether accrued, absolute, contingent or otherwise, it being understood that Buyer is
expressly disclaiming any express or implied assumption of any Liabilities other than the
Assumed Liabilities (collectively, the "Excluded Liabilities"), each of which shall be retained
and timely discharged by Seller. Regardless of whether any other Liabilities of Seller may be
disclosed to Buyer or whether Buyer may have actual knowledge of the same, Buyer shall not
assume, and ScUer shall pay, perform, and discharge when due and remain exclusively liable for
the Excluded Liabilities, including, without limitation, all of the following Excluded Liabilities
(but excluding Assumed Liabilities);

(a) all obligations, claims, or Liabilities of Seller or any predecessor(s)
or Affiliate(s) of Seller that relate to Purchased Assets and the Excluded Assets prior to April 1,
2019;

(b) all obligations, Trailing Liabilities, Claims, Encumbrances or
Liabilities for which the School has, may owe or be required by the DOE or any Governing
Authority to pay or be otherwise responsible for, relating to the student stipend(s) or other
monetaiy obiigation(s) incurred or accrued by the School prior to April 1,2019;

(c) all Environmental Liabilities unless caused by the action or
inaction of Buyer;

(d) all obligations, claims, or Liabilities of Seller or any predecessors)
Of Affiliate(s) of Seller or for which Seller or any predecessor(s) or Affiliates of Seller could be
liable relating to Taxes (including any Taxes relating to the Purcliased Assets or otherwise) for
all periods, or portions thereof, ending prior to April 1,2019;

(e) all obligations, claims, or Liabilities for any legal, accounting,
investment banking, brokerage, real estate appraisal, consulting or similar fees or expenses
incurred by Seller in connectioD with, resulting from or attributable to the transactions
contemplated by this Agreement or otherwise;

{ODaUMb-l) 12
DMl\9SSS039.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 13 of 59. PagelD #: 10635

(f) all Indebtedness of Seller or any predecessor(s) or Affiliate(s) of
Seller, including any Indebtedness owed by Seller to any of its Affiliates or any Governmental
Authority;

(g) el) Liabilities and obligations, including any and all proceedings,
of Seller or any predecessor(s) or Affiliate(s) of Seller resulting from, caused by or arising out of
the conduct or the operation of the School or the lease of the Premises or any other properties or
assets by Seller at any time prior to April 1,2019, or other actions, omissions or events occurring
prior to April 1, 2019 (oUier ̂ han ail cure payments payable in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement), whether past, present, future, known or unknown, liquidated or unliquidated,
accrued or unaccrued, pending or threatened;

(h) any Liability or obligation imder any Assumed Contract which
arises after the Closing but which arises out of any breach thereof by Seller that occurred prior to
the April 1, 2019;

(i) any Liability or obligation of Seller under any contract, agreement,
lease, mortgage, indenture or other instrument not assumed by Buyer hcreunder except for those
obligations of Buyer under the MSA for period of April 1, 2019 forward;

(j) any Liability or obligation of Seller under any employment,
severance, retention or termination agr^^ci^t with any employee, consultant or contractor of
Seller prior to April 1,2019;

(k) any Liability of Seller prior to April 1, 2019 for accrued but
unused vacation and sick leave;

(1) any Liability of Seller under any Employee Benefit Plan relating to
the School provided that Buyer terminates all employees at the School at Closing;

(m) any Liability or obligation of Seller to indenmify, reimburse or
advance amounts to any officer, employee or agent of Seller prior to April 1,2019; and

(n) any Liability or obligation arising out of or resulting from Seller's
non-compliance with any Law or Regulation prior to April 1,2019.

The Parties acknowledge and agree that disclosure of any obligation or Liability on any Schedule
to this Agreement will not create an Assumed Liability or other Liability of Buyer, except where
such disclosed obligation has been expressly assumed by Buyer as an Assumed Liability in
accordance with the provisions of Section 2.2 hereof; provided, however, that any and all
liabilities for obligations of Buyer under the MSA and any other expense incurred in the
Ordinary Course of Business for period of April 1, 2019 forward will not have to listed on
Schedule 2.2.

2.3 Purchase Price. As consideration for the sale of the Purchased Assets,
Buyer shall pay to Seller a purchase price of Two Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars
($250,000.00) adjusted by the Pre-Closing Audit (the "Purchase Price"), payable in cash by wire
transfer or other immediately available funds at Closing. The Pre-Closing Audit shall be

{OOOUmi )

DMlVS5liU9.4



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed; 07/15/19 14 of 59. PagefD #; 10636

perfoimed by Receiver's CFO and provided to the Buyer within thirty (30) days of the Effective
Date. To the extent that Buyer disputes the findings of the Pre-Closing Audit, Buyer shall notify
Seller in writing as soon as practicable after receipt of the Seller's Pre-Closing Audit but not later
than five (5) business days prior to Closing of its objections (the "Objection Period") to Seller's
Pre-Closing Audit and provide to the Receiver's CFO documentation evidencing that (i) School
expenses were paid by Receiver from School's income generated from April 1,2019, (ii) School
expenses were paid by Buyer or advanced by Buyer after April 1,2019 or (ill) School Expenses
were paid to Seller for payment of faculty salaries, rent or other expenses that accrued prior to
April 1, 2019. Receiver's CFO shall take into account the documentation provided by Buyer and
shall, to the extent appropriate, make adjustment to the Pre-Closing Audit. If Buyer fails to
provide written objections by the Objection Period, Buyer's ability to object to the Pre-Closing
Audit shall be deemed waived. Receiver's CFO's findings and determination which shall be
made in good faith shall be final between the Parties as to the Purchase Price.

2.4 Riglits Held in Trust. Notwithstanding anything contained herein, this
Agreement ghall not constitute an agreement to assign any Purchased Asset if an attempted
assignment of such contract or agreement, without the consent of a third-party or Ooveraing
Authorities, would constitute a breach thereof, or in any material adverse way affect the rights of
Seller (or the Buyer following the Closing) thereunder or with respect thereto. Buyer, with
Seller's cooperatioD, shall use its reasonable best efforts to obtain the consent to the assignment
of any such Purchased Asset in all cases in which such consent is required for assignment or
transfer and which Seller has agreed to cooperate in a commercially reasonable manner.

ARTICLE in

REPRESENTATIONS OF SELLER

In Older to induce Buyer to enter into this Agreement, Seller represents and warrants as
follows:

3.1 Existence and Good Standing of Seller.

(a) Seller is a limited liability company validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Arizona and is qualified to conduct business in the State
of Nevada, A Certificate of Full Force and Effect from the Arizona Secretary of State and a
Certificate of Force and Effect with the Nevada Secretary of State are jointly attached hereto as
Exhibit C.

(b) Seller has friU power and authority to conduct its business at the
School as it is now being conducted, to own or use the properties and assets that it purports to
own or use at the School, and to perfonn ail its obligations under the Assumed Contracts.

3.2 AuthorizatioD and Binding Oblieatioo. Pursuant to the Appointment
Order and subject to the entry of the Sale Order, Seller has full power and authority to execute
and deliver this Agreement and each other agreement, document, instrument and/or certificate
contemplated by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by Seller and to consummate the
Transacdon and perform Seller's obligadoos hereunder and thereunder.

{ooasw-i I 14



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 15 of 59. PagelD #: 10637

3.3 Title to Purchased Assets. Seller has good and marketable title to, or a
valid leasehold interest in, all of the Purchased Assets, and subject to the entry of the Sale Order,
Seller can and shall deliver good and marketable title to, or a valid leasehold interest in, all of the
Purchased Assets, free and clear of all Liens. Pursuant to the entry of the Sale Order, none of the
Purchased Assets are nor shall be subject to Liens. The Purchased Assets shall be conveyed to
the Buyer free and clear of Liens, Claims or Encumbrances. Schedule 3.3 sets forth all tangible
personal property used or held for use by the School. The Purchased Assets constitute all
properties and assets necessary to operate the School as currently operated.

Real ProDCTtv. To the Knowledge of Seller, except as set forth in Schedule 3.5.
Seller does not own, and has never owned, any Real Property used by or held for use by the
School. Schedule 3.5 sets forth a complete and correct list of all Real Property in which the
Seller has a leasehold interest that is used or held for use by the School (the "School Real
Property"). Seller has delivered to Buyer a complete and coirect copy of each lease or other
contract pertaining to School Real Property, toget^ with all amendments, extensions, renewals,
modifrcatiDns, alterations, guaranties and other changes thereto (the "School Leases") all of
which are identified on Schedule 3.5.

3.4 Broker's or Finder's Fees. No Person retained by Seller is or will be
entitled to any broker's or finder's fee or any similar commission or fee in connection with the
Transaction.

3.5 Disclosure. No representatioD or warranty made by Seller in this
Agreement contains any untrue statements of a material feel or omits to state a fact necessary to
make the statements of fact contained herein not misleading.

ARTICLE rV

representations of buyer

Buyer refK'esents and warrants to Seller as follows:

4.1 Existence and Good Standing of Buyer. Buyer is a limited liability
company validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Nevada and has all
requisite organizational power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry
on its business as now being conducted. A Certificate of Good Standing from the Nevada
Secretary of State is attached hereto as Exhibit E.

4.2 Authorization and Binding ObiiBation. Buyer has full power and
authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and each other agreement, document, instrument
and/or certificate contemplated by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by Buyer and to
consummate the Transaction and perform its obligations bereunder and thereunder. The
execution and delivery of this Agreement by Buyer and each other agreement, document,
instnimeot and/or certificate contemplated by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by
Buyer and the consummation by Buyer of the Transaction and performance of its obli^lions
bereunder and thereunder have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the part of Buyer.
This Agreement and each other agreement, document, instrument and/or certificate contemplated
by this Agreement to be executed or delivered by Buyer has been (or will be) duly executed and

t««n«6D>i I 1S
DMl\9SnD».4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 16 of 59. PagelD #: 10638

delivered by Buyer and, assuming the due authorization, execution, and delivery by Seller,
constitutes (or will constitute) a valid and binding obligation of Buyer, enforceable against Buyer
in accordance with its terms (subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization or
similar laws affecting the rî ts of creditors generally and the availability of equitable remedies).

4.3 Broker's or Finder's Fees. No Person retained by Seller is or will be

entitled to any broker's or finder's fee or any similar commission or fee in connection with the
Transaction.

4.4 No Violations. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the

consummation of the Transaction and compliance with the provisions of this Agreement will not
conflict with, or result in any violation of, or default (with or without notice or lapse of time, or
both) under, or give rise to a right of termination or acceleration of any obligation under, (a) the
Organizatioaal Documents of the Buyer, (b) any agreement applicable to Buyer that would
impair the ability of Buyer to perfomi its obligations under this Agreement, or (c) any Applicable
Law.

4^ AS IS. WHERE IS. EXCEPT AS SPECIFICALLY SET FORTH IN
THIS AGREEMENT. ALL ACQUIRED PURCHASED ASSETS ARE BEING CONVEYED
HEREUNDER ON AN "AS IS, WHERE IS" BASIS AND SELLER MAKES NO
WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO
THE PURCHASED ASSETS. INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. ALL OF SUCH EXPRESS AND IMPLIED

WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS, EXCEPT THOSE STATED HEREIN, ARE
HEREBY EXCLUDED. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SUBSECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE
CLOSING OR ANY TERMINATION HEREOF.

4.7 Current Operations. Buyer acknowledges that it has been providing

services to the School since April 1,2019 pursuant to the MSA. Except as otherwise stated in
this Agreement, Buyer is relying on Its own knowledge and the knowledge it has gleamed fi:oni
providing services to the School since April 1,2019.

4.8 Transition Sers'lces. Buyer acknowledges that if shared IT services or any
other kind of services ("collectively, the "Services") previously provided by DCEH are needed,
Buyer shall enter into a Transition Services and License Agreement with Studio for said
Services. Buyer acknowledges that the Services that the Seller was providing pursuant to the
TSA can no longer be provided by DCEH or the Seller. To the extent that the Buyer does not
require any Services from Studio, Buyer shall not be obligated in any way to negotiate or enter
into a Transition Services Agreement with Studio.

ARTICLE V

PRE-CLOSING COVENANTS OF SELLER

5.1 Conduct of the School Prior to Closing. From the Effective Date through

and including the Closing, Buyer shall not, without the prior written consent of Seller, engage in
any practice, take any action, or enter into any transaction wi& respect to the School outside the
Ordhiary Course of Business other than such actions taken in fiirthcrance of the transaction.

(aoat24w.>)

DMl\»15in9.4

16



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 17 of 59. PagelD #: 10639

Until Closing, Seller will use reasonable best efforts to take all action and do all things necessary
in order to consummate and make effective the Transaction contemplated by this Agreement,
including, without limitation, compliance with and observance of the terms and conditions set
forth in this Article VI.

5.2 Operation of School until Ciostne. Seller will cooperate with Buyer for
Buyer to operate the School and Seller will not engage in any practice, take any action, or enter
in any transaction outside of the Ordinary Course of Business relative the School without
Buyer's approval which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, or except
as contemplated by this Agreement; provided, however, that if Seller and Buyer receive written
notice that the School is in violation of any Regulation by any Educational Agency which is not
being remedied by the Buyer, Seller shall have the right to take any action it deems necessary
without first seeking approval of Buyer at Buyer's sole cost and expense. To die extent that
Seller is in receipt or prior to Closing receives any Accounts Receivable, funds or income
generated by the School after April 1, 2019, Seller with Buyer's approval, agrees to either (i)
pay and apply such funds towaifi any outstanding expense of the School that was incurred after
April 1,2019 for which the Buyer is obligated to pay, or (ii) turn over funds, including without
limitation, any excess funds after Seller's has paid Buyer's obligations under 5.2(i), to Buyer.

5.3 Payment of Liabilities Incurred Prior to April 1. 2019. Seller shall

remain responsible for all obligations and Liabilities incurred by the School between the dates
January 18, 2019 and A^ril 1,2019, mcluding any student stipends or unearned tuition or other
obligations that a Governing Authority or Educational Agency requires to be satisfied for any
period prior to 2019 Spring Quarter. Seller agrees that Seller shall pay such obligations or
Liabilities either prior to or immediately upon receipt of Title IV funds received for 2019
Winter Quarter. To die extent that Buyer, in its sole discretion, advances any funds to pay off
any Liability of Seller that is required to be paid by any Governing Authority or Educational
Agency in order to facilitate receipt of Title IV funds from the DOE for the 2019 Winter
Quarter or othersvise to bring the School in compliance with any Governing Authority and
Educational Agency, such Buyer advanced funds shall be immediately paid by Seller to Buyer
from the Title IV funds received for the 2019 Winter Quarter or to the extent applicable adjust
the Purchase Price.

5.4 Access to inFnrmfltion. No later than five (5) business days after entry of
the Sales Order, Seller shall copy and provide to Buyer in a manner acceptable to Buyer all data
located on the Shared IT Platform mcluding, without limitation student and financial data set
forth on CampusVue, ImageNow, CARS and the Lawson and Kronos Software, relevant to the
operation of the School. Prior to Closing, Buyer and Buyer's representatives shall hold all such
information in confidence and shall not disclose any such information to any third parties
without the express written consent of Seller. Should this transaction not close, any and all
documents, notes, memorandum, Curriculum, etc. provided to Buyer in any format pursuant to
this Agreement, whether set forth in this Section or in any other part of this Agreement, shall be
returned to Seller within three (3) business days of when this Agreement is terminated.

5.5 Accounting. Fourteen (14) days of the Effective Date, Seller shall provide
Buyer with complete accounting on a cash basis showing all income and expenses or other
Liabilities of the School, mcluding any invoices or evidence of indebtedness received or paid by

{«aou«ca.>)

DMIVSSiai9.4

17



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 18 of 59. PagelD #: 10640

Seller from January 18, 2019 to March 31, 2019. For the period April 1, 2019 forward, Seller
shall provide Buyer wiOi complete accounting on a cash basis showing all mcome and expenses
or other Liabilities of the School received or paid by Seller, including without limitations, any
and all invoices, whether paid or unpaid, as well as proof of payment

5.6 Consents and Approvals. Until Closing, Seller, will cooperate with
Buyer, in order for Buyer (1) to obtain all necessary approvals, accreditations, acquiescences and
other authorizations necessary for the operation of the School after Closing, including without
limitations those from AGIOS, DOE, Educational Agency or any other Governmental Authority;
(ii) to obtain all necessary consents and approvals to consummate the purchase and sale of the
Purchased Assets and the assignment of Assumed Liabilities, if any, together with any other
necessary consents and approvals to consummate the Transaction, and (iii) to make all filmgs,
applications, statements and reports to all Educational Agencies or Governmental Authorities
that are required to be made prior to Closing pursuant to any applicable Regulation in connection
with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby.

(a) Pre-Closing Educational Notices/Consents. Seller shall cooperate
with Buyer for Buyer to obtain the Educational Notices/Consents and any Educational Approvals
necessary for operation of the School, including, without limitation, obtaining the Pre-Closing
Educational Notices/Consents, including, without limitation, cooperate with Buyer to (i)
complete all required and voluntary pre-acquisition processes with the Educational Agency,
including without limitation, DETR, and (ii) assist Buyer in the filing of a Pre-Acquisition
Review Application with the DOE in order to obtain the DOE Pre-Acquisition Review Notice..
Seller shall use commercially reasonable best efforts to assist Buyer with the foregoing, and
Seller and Buyer shall each provide any additional information concerning itself and shall
execute such documents as are necessary with respect to the Educational Notices/Consents and
any necessary Educational Approvals.

(b) Educatioaal Agencv Communications. Seller shall cooperate with
Buyer in order for the Buyer to be able to submit letters, applications, or other documents to be
to any EducatioDal Agency or Governmental Authority with respect to any consent, license or
Pre-Closing Educational Notices/Consent or in connection with the Pre-acquisition Review
Application to be filed with the DOE. Seller shall not make any written or verbal statements or
representations regarding the transactions conten^lated hereby to any Educational Agency or
otiier third party without the advance consultation and consent of Buyer which shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Seller shall promptly advise Buyer concerning
any discussions or other communications, whether oral or written, with any Educational Agency,
Governmental Authority or other third party with respect to any such letters, applications or
other documents that Seller may receive the Educational Agency or the Government
Authority. To the extent required by any Governmental Agency or Educational Agency,
Receiver will ensure that he is available to attend any scheduled hearings or meetings in
connection with obtaining any consent, license, Pre-Closing Educational Notices/CoDsent or
other Educaticnal Approval.

5.7 Notice of Developments. Until Closing, Seller will give prompt written
notice to Buyer of all materially adverse developments or developments causing a breach of

I4MU4U.I J 18
DM1>9SSI0J9.4



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 19 of 59. PagelD #: 10641

any of Seller's representations, warranties and covenants hereunder or developments adversely
affecting Seller's ability to perform its obligations hereunder.

5.8 Exclusivity. From the date of this Agreement through and including the
Closing, Seller shall not (i) solicit, initiate or encourage the submission of any proposal or offer
from, or enter into any agreement with, any Person relating to the acquisition of any equity
interests or other voting securities of, or any portion of the Purchased Assets (including any
acquisition structured as a merger, consolidation, or share exchange) or (li) participate in any
discussions or negotiations regarding, furnish any information with respect to, assist or
participate in, or facilitate in any other manner any effort or attempt by any Person to do or
seek any of the above.

5.9 Further Assurances. Each of the Parties agrees to use commercially
reasonable efforts to take, or cause to be taken, all action and to do, or cause to be done, and to

assist and cooperate with the other Party in doing, ail things necessary, proper, or advisable to
consummate the Transaction.

5.10 Notice of Developments. Until Closing, Seller will give prompt written
notice to Buyer of all materially adverse developments or developments causing a breach of any
of Seller's representations, warranties and covenants hereunder or developments adversely
affecting Seller's ability to perform its obligations hereunder.

ARTICLE VT

PRE-CLOSING COVENANTS OF BUYER

6.1 Operation of School. Since the execution of the MSA and continuing
until Closing, Buyer, with the assist of Seller, shall to continue to operate the School and will not
engage in any practice, take any action, or enter in any transaction outside of (be Ordinary
Course of Business except in each case (i) as contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) with Seller's
approval, or (iii) for actions taken or omitted to be taken at the request of Seller. Buyer, after the
entry of the Sale Order and prior to Closing, shall be solely and exclusively responsible to pay all
costs and expenses set forth in MSA and shall deposit in Seller's account sufEcient funds as
determined by Seller, in his sole and exclusive deteimination, an amount to cover the costs and
expenses of the School. Further commencing August 1, 2019 and continuing thereafter until
Closing, Buyer agrees to pay for any and all expenses and costs set forth in the MSA or any other
expense of ̂e School in the Ordinary Course of Business from April 1, 2019 forward, including
but not limited to, rent, payroll, workers' compensation coverage, taxes relating to the operation
of the School of any and all kind, and all facility costs and expenses from April 1,2019 forward.

6.2 Payment of Liabilities Incurred After to April 1. 2019. Buyer shall be
responsible for all obligations and Liabilities incurred by the School after April I, 2019,
including any student stipends or unearned tuition or other obligations that a Governing
Authority or Educational Agency requires to be satisfied for 2019 Spring Quarter, 2019 Summer
Quarter or any subsequent School quarters.

19
OMl\9]S8aJ9.«



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 20 of 59. PagelD #: 10642

6.3 Consents and Approvals. After entry of the Sale Order, Buyer will use
reasonable best efforts with Seller's cooperation (1) to obtain all necessary approvals,
accreditations, acquiescence and other authorizations for Buyer's operation of the School after
Closing, including without limitations, Educatjonal Approval and Covemmental Approval from
ACICS, DOE, Educational Agency or any other Governmental Authority, (ii) to obtain all
necessary consents and approvals, as leasonabiy requested by Seller, to consummate the
purchase and sale of the Purchased Assets and Ihe assignment of Assumed Liabilities, if any,
together with any other necessary consents and approvals to consummate the Transaction, and
(iii) to make, as reasonably requested by Seller, all filings, applications, statements and reports to
all Educational Authorities and Governmental Authorities ̂ at are required to be made prior to
Closing by or on behalf of Buyer or Seller pursuant to any applicable Regulation in connection
with this Agreement and the transactioDS contemplated hereby.

(a) Pre-Closinti Educational Notices/Consents. Buyer shall use commercially
reasonably good fiaith best efforts, with Seller's cooperation, to obtain the Educational
Notices/Consents and any Educational Approvals necessary for the performance of its
obligatioos pursuant to this Agreement, including, without limitation, obtaining the Pre-Closing
Educational Notices/Consents, including, without limitation, to (i) complete all required and
voluntary pre-acquisition processes with the State Educational Agency, including DETR or any
other Educational Agency or Governmental Authority, and (ii) file a Pre-Acquisition Review
Application with the DOE in order to dstain the DOE Pre-Acquisition Review Notice. Seller
shall cooperate and assist Buyer with the foregoing, and Seller and Buyer shall each provide any
additional information concerning itself and shall execute such documents as is necessary with
respect to the Educational Notices/Consents and any necessary Educational Approvals.

(b) Educational Aeencv Communicatioas. Buyer shall provide Seller with
copies of all letters, applications, or other documents to be submitted to, or received from, any
Educational Agency or Governmental Authority with respect to any consent, license or
Pre-Closing Educational Notices/Consent or in connection with the Pre-Acquisition Review
Application to be filed with the DOE, including drafts of any such letters, applications and other
documents; provided that no such letters, applications, or other documents shall be submitted to
any Educational Agency without the prior review and consent of Seller, such consent not to be
unreasonably delayed, conditioned or withheld. Neither party shall make any written or verbal
statements or representations regarding the transactions contemplated hereby to any Educational
Agency or other third party without the advance consultation and consent of the other party.
Each party will promptly advise the other party conccraing any discussions or other
communications, whether oral or written, with any Educational Agency, Goveramental
Authority or other third party with respect to any such letters, applications or other documents.
Each party will ensure that their appropriate officers and employees shall be available to attend,
as any Govenunenlal Authority or Educational Agency may reasonably request, any scheduled
hearings or meetings in connection with obtaining any consent, license, Pre-Closing Educational
Notices/Consent or other Educational Approval.

6.4 Notice of Developments. Until Closing, Buyer will give prompt written
notice to Seller of all materially adverse developments or developments causing a breach of any
of Buyer's representations, warranties and covenants bereunder or developments adversely
affecting Buyer's ability to perform its obligations bereunder.

inocjjttH) 20
DMl\9S5aO}9.1



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 21 of 59. PagelD #: 10643

6.5 Pre-Closing Audits. Buyer acknowledges and agrees at Buyer's sole cost
and expense, with Seller's cooperation, to (a) complete any student Bnancial aid compliance
audil(s) or any other audits of the School required by any Educatjonal Agency related to all or
any portion of any period after September I, 2018 (collectively, the "Pre-Closing Compliance
Audits"); (b) provide Seller, for its review, copies of the Pre-Closing Compliance Audits
promptly upon their completion, but no later than fourteen (14) days before the date on which the
Pre-Closing Compliance Audits are due under applicable Law or Educational Law; and (c)
permit Buyer to submit the Pre-Closing Compliance Audits in accordance with applicable Law
or Educational Law. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Buyer shall not be responsible in any
manner for failure to complete any Pre-Closing Compliance Audits tliat were due or should have
been submitted to any Educational Agency or Government Authority prior to die Effective Date.

6.6 Accounting. Ten (10) days of the Effective Date, Buyer shall provide
Seller with complete accounting and other finaociaJ records showing all income and expenses or
other Liabilities of the School received or paid by Buyer from January IS, 2019, forward,
including without limitatioas, any and all invoices, whethn paid or unpaid, as well as proof of
payment.

6.7 Twminarion of Emplovee Benefit Plans. So long as all present employees
at the School are terminated by Buyer at Closing, Buyer will have no lability whatsoever for the
current Employee Benefit Plan relating to or for the School.

6.8 Change of Name of School. Buyer shall take whatever steps are
necessary to obtain such consents or approval from a Governmental Authority to effectuate a
change of name for the School in accordance with the Second Settlement Agreement by and
between the Receivership Entities and Studio and as approved by the court. Buyer upon Closing
shall take action to obtain approval from Governmental Authorities and Education Agencies to
change the name of the School and upon obtaining such approval Buyer will no longer be able to
use the name The Art Institute. Notwithstanding the foregoing, under no circumstances shall
Buyer be able to use the name The Art Institute after Change of Control has been obtained.

ARTICLE Vn

CLOSING

7.1 Closing. The closing of the Transaction contemplated by this Agreement
(the "Closing") shall take place at the offices of Seller's counsel, McCarthy, Lebit, Crystal &
Liffrnan CO., LPA, at 101 W. Prospect Avenue, Suite 1800, Cleveland, Ohio 44115 and the
Transaction shall be effective as of 12:01 s.in. Pacific Time on the three (3"*) business day
following Buyer's receipt of all Governmental Approvals and Educational Approvals or such
other date as the Buyer and Seller may mutually determine (the "Closing Date".)
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Closing were to occur after the 15"* calendar day of the
month, it shall be extended to the first business day of the following month. The performance of
all of the obligations and actions required of the Parties at the Closing shall be deemed to have
occurred simultaneously, regardless of the order in which such performance actually occurs. If,
however, Closing does not occur prior to November 1, 2019, this Agreement shall be null and
void ab initio and fee Parties shall have no further liability to one another and the MSA shall
further terminate. The Pre-Closing Audit shall then be performed and all sums due under the

{0003460-1)

DMltfiJ1019.4

21



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 22 of 59. PagelD #: 10644

MSA and TSA after adjustments for any sums paid Buyer to Seller for expenses incurred prior
to April 1, 2019 shall be paid with three (3) calendar days of completion of the Pre-Closing
Audit

7.2 Buyer's Conditions to Closing. The obligation of Buyer to consummate
the Transaction is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver of Buyer) as of the Closing of the
following conditions:

(a) the Court shall have issued the Sale Order approving the sale of
Purchased Assets to Buyer free and clear of all Liens and Claims, which time for any appeal
shall have expired Sale Order, a copy of which shall have been delivered to Buyer;

(b) Buyer shall have received documentary evidence, to the sole satisfaction
of Buyer, that all notices, approvals, consents, registrations, permits, authorizations or other
confirmations, in each case, required, proper, or advisable to be made with or obtained from any
Governmental Authority or Educational Agency to consummate the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement, including the Pre-Closing Educational Consents set forth on Schedule 7.2(b), have
been made or obtained, as applicable, and do not contain any Adverse Regulatory Condition;

(c) Buyer shall have received written confinnation from DOE that the School's
planned documentation submittal intended to demonstrate coxnpliance with 34 CFR §600.9(a)
will be accepted by die DOE and will not impede School's continued Title IV Programs
participation after the Closing Date or result in the issuance of the TPPA or PPA that includes an
Adverse Regulatory Condition;

(d) the School shall have received a Pre-Acquisition Review Response that does
not contain any Adverse Regulatory Condition or indicate the existence of any material
impediments to the issuance of a TPPPA or PPPA following the Closing;

(e) none of Seller, the School, or Buyer shall have received from any
Educational Agency any ccmmunication that any Educational Approval will be suspended,
revoked, terminated, or cancelled unless caused by the action, inaction or omission on the part of
Buyer;

(f) none of Seller, the School, or Buyer shall have received from any
Educational Agency any communication that any of the Post-Closing Educational Consents set
forth on Schedule 7.2(f) will not be issued or will be subject to an Adverse Regulatory Condition
unless caused by the action, inaction or omission on the part of the Buyer;

(g) no proceeding by any Third Party, Educational Agency or any
Governmental Authority with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby shall be pending or
threatened in writing and no order shall have been entered in any proceeding that would have the
effect of (i) making any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement or the transaction
illegal, (ii) otherwise preventing the consummation of such transactions, or (iii) imposing
limitations on such transactions and/or the ability of Buyer 1o perform its obligations hereunder
or to operate the School after the Closing Date;

lOOUMO.] }

DUl\HStO)9.4

22



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 23 of 59. PagelD #: 10645

(b) the representations and warranties of Seiler contained in this Agreement
shall be true and coirect in all respects on and as of the Closing Date with the same effect as
though made at or as of the Closing Date, in each case, other than representations and warranties
that address matteia only as of a specified date, which shall be true and correct as of such
specified date;

(i) the Seller shall have duly perfonned and complied in all material respects
with all agre«nents, covenants and conditions required by this Agreement to be perfonned or
complied with by it prior to or on the Closing Date;

(j) at Closing, Seller shall have delivered to Buyer:

(i) actual possession of Purchased Assets, if Buyer is not
already in possession, capable of passing by delivery with the intent that title in such Purchased
Assets will pass by and upon delivery;

(ii) the Bill of Sale, duly executed by Seller for the Purchased
Assets and such other good and sufficient instiumcnts of sale, conveyance, transfer and
assignment as may be required to vest in the Buyer all right, title and interest of Seller in and to
the Purchased Assets, free and clear of all Liens, Claims, Encumbrances and obligations;

(iii) Lien releases on any UCC filings with respect to the
Purchased Assets; and such odier documents relating to the Transaction contemplated by this
Agreement as Buyer may reasonably request.

7.3 Seller's Copditions to Closing. The obligation of Seller to consummate

the Transaction is subject to the satisfaction (or waiver of Seller) as of the Closing of the
following conditions:

(a) Buyer shall have performed and complied in ail material respects
with all agreements, obligations and covenants required to be performed or complied with by it
on or prior to the Closing Date.

At Closing, Buyer shall have delivered to Seller ail of the following;

(i) the Purchase Price;

(ii) all documents to be delivered by Buyer necessary for the
Closing; and

(iii) such other documents relating to the Transaction
contemplated by this Agreement as Seller may reasonably request.

7.4 Form of Instruments. To the extent that a form of any document to be
delivered hereunder is not attached as an Exhibit hereto, such documents will be in form and
substance, and will be executed and delivered in a manner, reasonably satisfactory to Buyer and
Seller.

{oeouw-i) 23
DMIV»51l(n9.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 24 of 59. PagelD #: 10646

ARTICLE VUI

ADDITIONAL POST CLOSING CO\'ENANTS

8.1 Joint Post-Closing Covepaj^t of the Parties. The Parties jointly coveaaiit
and agree that, from and after the Closing Date, they will each use commercially reasonable
efforts in connection with any proceeding, investigation or audit of the other relating to (a) the
preparation of an audit of any Tax Return of Seller for all periods prior to or including the
Closing Date, and (b) any auit of Buyer and/or any audit of Seller with respect to the sales,
transfer and similar Taxes imposed by the laws of any state or political subdivision thereof,
relating to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. In furtherance hereof, the Parties
further covenant and agree to promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries related to such matters
and to provide, to the extent reasonably possible, substantiation of transactions and to make
available and furnish appropriate documents and personnel in connection therewith. All costs
and expenses incuired in connection with this Section 8.1 will be borne by the Party who is
subject to such action.

8.2 Transition. Seller will not take any action that is designed or intended to
have the effect of discouraging any lessor, licensor, customer, supplier, or other business
associate of Seller from maintaining the same business relationships with the Buyer and/or the
Schooi after the Effective Date or Closing as it maintained with Seller prior to the Effective Date
without the consent of Buyer.

ARTICLE IX

INDEMNIFICATION

9.1 Survival of Representations. Warranties and Covenants. All covenants

and agreements of the Parties contained in this Agreement shall survive the Closing indefinitely
or for the period explicitly specified therein. The expiration of any covenant shall not affect any
claim made in good faith and in accordance with this Agreement prior to the date of such
expiration.

9.2 Indemnification bv Buver. Buyer shall indemnify and hold hannlcss
Seller and its directors, officers, employees, shareholders, agents, representatives, successors and
assigns (collectively, the "Seller Indemnified Parties"), from all losses, liabilities, damages,
demands, claims, suits, actions, judgments, assessments, costs and expenses, including, without
limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, reasonable expenses incurred in investigating, preparing or
defending against any litigation, commenced or threatened, and all amounts paid in settlement of
any claim or litigation ("Damages"), asserted against, imposed upon, or incurred or suffered by
any Seller Indemnified Party, as a result of or arising from any breach or nonfulfillment of any
covenants or agreements made by Buyer in this Agreement (collectively, the "Seller's
Indemnifiable Claims"), which arise or result from and to the extent they arc attributable to:

(a) the breach of any representation or wairaoty made by Buyer
pursuant to this Agreement;

(b) the breach of, or failure to perform, any of the covenants,
conunitroents, agreements or obligations of Buyer under or contained in this Agreement;

(•00134(^1 ) 24
OM2W5U39.4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 25 of 59. PagelD #: 10647

(c) any Claim asserted against Seller with respect to any matter
concerning Buyer's &iluie to provide by the terms and conditions set forth in the MSA and,
more specifically, any allegations made by any Accrediting Body, ACICS, Governmental
Authority, or any Third Party for any violations or Claims occurred or accrued fi-om April I,
2019 forward;

(d) the use or operation of the School and the Purchased Assets firom
April 1,2019 forward; or

(e) the Assumed Obligations.

ARTICLE X

MISCELLANEOUS

10.1 Expenses. Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement,
each Party shall pay its own expenses in connection with the negotiation, execution and
perfonnance of this Agreement, the Transaction, and all things required to be done by it pursuant
to this A^eement, including counsel fees, brokerage, finder or financial advisor fees, filing fees
and accounting fees.

10.2 Specific Perfonnance. Each Party's obligation under this Agreement is
unique. If any Party should breach its covenants under this Agreement, the Parties each
acknowledge that it would be extremely impracticable to measure the resulting damages;
accordingly, the non-breaching Party or Parties, in addition to any other available rights or
remedies, may sue in equity for specific performance.

10.3 Governing Law: Waiver of Jurv Trial: Consent to Jurisdiction: Service of

Process.

(a) All issues and questions concerning the construction, validity,
enforcement and interpretation of this Agreement shall be govcraed by, and construed in
accordance with, the laws of the State of Ohio without giving effect to any choice of law or
conflict of lew rules or provisions.

(b) Each Party acknowledges and agrees that any Actions (in contract,
in tort or otherwise) arising out of or relating to this Agreement, any transactions contemplated
hereby, any relationships between or among the Parties hereunder and any disputes with respect
to any of the foregoing is likely to involve complicated and difficult issues, and therefore it
hereby irrevocably and unconditiooaliy waives any right it may have to a trial by jury in respect
of any such Action.

(c) EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES PERSONAL SERVICE
OF THE SUMMONS, COMPLAINT AND OTHER PROCESS ISSUED IN ANY ACTION
OR SUIT AND AGREES THAT SERVICE OF SUMMONS, COMPLAINTS AND
OTHER PROCESS MAY BE MADE BY REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED MAIL

ADDRESSED TO SUCH PARTY AT THE ADDRESS SET FORTH IN SECTION 10.4

OF THIS AGREEMENT AND THAT SERVICE SO MADE SHALL BE DEEMED

(oaauMo.11 25
DMItfSSnSM



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 26 of 59. PagelD #: 10648

COMPLETED UPON THE EARLIER OF SUCH PARTY'S ACTUAL RECEIPT

THEREOF OR THREE (3) DAYS AFTER DEPOSIT IN THE UNITED STATES MAIL,
PROPER POSTAGE PREPAID.

10.4 Notices. All Doticcs, requests, demands, and other communications
under this Agreement must be in writing and will be deemed to have been duly given If delivered
by band; sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage and fees prepaid;
Federal Express or similar ovemi^t courier; sent by sent by facsimile; or sent by email, and
addressed as follows:

If to Seller

with a copy to;

Mark E. Dottore

c/o Dottore Companies, LLC
2344 Canal Rd.

Cleveland, OH 44113
Attn: Mark E. Dottore

Email: mark@dottoreco.com
Facsimile: (216) 771-2450

McCarthy, Lebit, Crystal &. Liffinan Co., LPA
101 W. Prospect Avc,, Suite 1800
Cleveland, OH 44115
Attn: Charles A. Nemer, Esq.
Email: can@mccarthylebit.com
Facsimile: (216) 696-1422

If to Buyer: Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited
2350 Corporate Circle, Suite 100
Henderson, NV 89074
Attn: William Turbay
Email: waturbay@gmail.com
Facsimile: (702)667-4818

with a copy to: Howard & Howard
3800 Howard Hughes Pkwy. Suite 1000
Las Vegas, NV 89169
Attn: Gwen Rutar Mullins, Esq.
Email: gmuliins@howBrdandhoward.com
Facsimile: (702) 667-4818

Addresses are permitted to be changed by notice in writing signed by a Party desiring to change
such Party's address, but any such notice of change of address will not be effective until actually
received by the other Party. All notices will be deemed given on the day delivered, if (a)
personally delivered, facsimiled (with confirmation of transmission) or emailed to the Party
receiving such notice, provided that if delivered by facsimile or email, a copy of the notice shall
also be sent by the method in subsection (b) or (c) below; (b) on the business day after the day

<aean4M-) |

DM1\MSI019.4

26



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 27 of 59, PageiD #: 10649

deposited, if delivered by Federal Express or similar overnight courier; or (c) on the third (3"^)
business day following deposit in the U.S. mail

1Q.5 Counterparts. This Agreement is Permitted to be executed in two or
more counterparts, all of which taken together shall constitute one instrument Copies of
BignatUTBS of the Parties received by facsimile or email shall be effective as original signatures.

10.6 Headings. The subject headings of the Sections and Paragraphs of this
Agreement are included for purposes of convcoicncc only, and will not affect the construction or
interpretation of any of its provisions.

10.7 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of
the Parties hereto and no provision of this Agreement will be deemed to confer upon Third
Parties any rights, remedies, Claims or causes of action.

10.8 Further Assmznces. At any time following the Effective Date, each of the
Parties agrees to execute and/or deliver such instruments or documents as may be reasonably
requested by the other Party to (i) consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement,
(ii) effectuate fully the purposes of this Agreement, and (iii) vest in each Party the rights and
Interests conferred upon such Party under this Agreement

10.9 No Agency Relationship. NeiAer Party may bind the other or otherwise
act in any way as the representative of the other Party, unless otheiwise expressly agreed to in a
writing signed by authorized representatives of both Parties before any such act or
representation. Neither Party may represent itself as the other Party's agent for any purpose to
any Third Party or to allow any of its employees to do so, unless specifically authorized, in
advance and in writing, to do so, and then only for the limited purpose stated in such
authorization. Neither Party's employees are employees of the other Party.

10.10 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and Schedules and Exhibits
referenced in this Agreement embody the entire agreement and understanding of the Parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersede all prior and conteraporaneous agreements
and understandings, oral or written, relative to said subject matter.

10.11 Binding Effect: Assignment. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of
and be binding upon Seller and Buyer and their successors and Permitted assigns. Neither this
Agreement nor any of the rights, interests or obligations hereunder shall be transferred or
assigned (by operation of law or otherwise) by any of the Parties without the prior written
consent of the other Parties, provided, however, that Buyer may assign this Agreement and all of
its riglits, interests and obligations under this Agreement to an Affiliate of Buyer without the
consent of Seller. Any transfer or assignment of any of the rights, interests or obligations in
violation of the terms of this Agreement shall be null and void.

10.12 Amendment: Waiver. This Agreement is not permitted to be amended,
tenninaled, augmented, rescinded or discharged (other than by performance), in whole or in part,
except by a writing executed by each of the Parties. No waiver of any of the provisions or
conditions of this Agreement or any of the rights of a Party shall be effective or binding unless
the waiver is in writing signed by the Party claimed to have consented to it.

<ogC34W.|) 27
DMI\95Sm9.«



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 28 of 59. PagelD #: 10650

10.13 Severabilitv. With respect to any provision of this Agreement finally
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable, the Parties agree that such
court shall have jurisdiction to reform such provision so that it is enforceable to the maximum
extent Permitted by law, and the Parties agree to abide by such court's determination. If any such
provision of this Agreement cannot be reformed, such provision shall be deemed to be severed
from this Agreement, but every other provision of this Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect.

10.14 Tax Advice and Reliance, None of the Parties to this Agreement (nor any
of the Parties' respective counsel, accountants or other representatives) has made or is making
any representations to any other Party (or to any other Party's counsel, accountants or other
representatives) concerning the consequences of the Transaction under applicable Tax laws.
Each Party has relied solely upon the tax advice of its own representatives engaged by such ParQ'
and not on any such advice provided by any other Party

10.15 Time. Time is of the essence with respect to this Agreement and the
performance by the Parties bereunder.

10.16 Court Approval. The Parties understand that this Agreement is subject to
Court approval.

[Remainder of page left IntentloDally blank]
(Signature pages on following page]

inQ]34ip.i I

OMraS5ID]}.4

28



Case; l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 29 of 59. PagelD #: 10651

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by or on behalf of each
of the Parties below as of the date first above written.

BUYER:

Save The Art Institute Las Vegas Limited

By:
Name: William Turbay
Title: Mana

SELLER:

By:
Name: Ma^k E\pott6^e, solely in his capacity as

receiver tor Thi.Art Institute of Las Vegas,
LLC pursuant to that certain Order
Appointing Receiver entered on January
18,2019, by the United States District
Court for the Nortbera District of Ohio,
Eastern Division

[Signature Page to Asset Purchase Agreement]

{MgU4t0.i)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 30 of 59. PagelD #: 10652

SCHEDULE I

Assiimed Contracts

NONE

I  DMI\9$SSUS.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 31 of 59. PagelD #: 10653

SCHEDULE 2.2

Assumed Liabilities

Any and all liabilities for obligations of Buyer under the MSA and any other expense incurred m
the Ordinary Course of Business for period of April 1,2019 forward

|M02Ma.t; 31



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 32 of 59. PagelD #: 10654

SCHEDULE 3-3

Tflnf?ib]e Personal Propertv

All personal property owned by Seller located at the Premises and/or on School Real
Property, including, without limitation:

(a) all machinery, equipmeDt (including all transportation and office
equipment), computer equipment (including all servers, routers, and network equipment),
projection equipment, library equipment, telephone systems and furniture relating to the School
in which Seller has all right, title and ownership to;

(b) ail office supplies, spare parts, miscellaneous supplies, and other tangible
property of any kind relating solely to the School, including, without limitation, all property of
any kind located in any building, office or other space leased by Seller; and

(c) all texts, journals, periodicals, library books, documents, catalogs, indices,
databases, core materials, archives and other materials, written and electronic, located at the
School premises.

0MIV9SSUUM



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 33 of 59, PagelD #: 10655

SCHEDULE 3.5

Real Propertv

The foUowmg is a complete and correct list of all Real Property in which the Seller has a
leasehold interest:

(1) Seller Real Property located at 2350 Corporate Circle, Suite 100,
Henderson, Nevada 89074 which is cuirentiy subject to a Lease Agreement between Seller and
Tech Park 6, LLC.

{OD«124iO-l) 33



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 34 of 59, PagelD #: 10656

SCHEDULE 1.2{\y)

Pre-CIosine Educational Consents

Pre-Closine Educational Consents, including bm not limited to:

1. United States Department of Education (ED)
a. Receipt of DOE Pre-Acquisition Review Letter.

2. Nevada Department of Employment, Training and Rehabilit^on, Commission of
Postseconda^ Education (DETR)

a. Receipt of DETR application and approval of transfer and/or change of
ownersfaip/contiol.

3. Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools (ACICS)
a. Notification, application and approval of Change of Ownership/Control

Application Part I.

4. American Culinary Federation Education Foundation's Accrediting Commission
(ACFEFAC)

a. Notification and approval prior to change of ownership.

{POBUWO-U OM 1^551039.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 35 of 59. PagelD #: 10657

SCHEDULE 7.2(0

Post-Closing Educational Consents

Post-Closing Educalioaal Consents, including but pot limited to:

1. United States Department of Education (ED)
a. Application and approval.

2. Accrediting Council for Independent Colleges and Schools (ACICS)
a. Application and approval of Change of Ownership/Control Application Part H.

3. Nevada Commission on Postsecondary Education (CPE)
a. Application and approval.

4. Council for Interior Design Accreditation (CIDA)
a. Notification and approval.

nMitfssnoM

35



Case; l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 36 of 59. PagelD #: 10658

EXHIBIT A

Assignmem and Assumption Agreement

NONE

(M224«fr.i I DM1\M5»)J.4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 37 of 59. PagelD #: 10659

EXHIBIT B

Bill of Sale

OMIV9S5U)M





Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed; 07/15/19 38 of 59. PagelD #; 10660

BiM of Sale

That, The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, an Arizona nonprofit limited liability
company that is registered in the State of Nevada as The DC Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC the
"School""), by and through Mark E. Dottore, Receiver, appointed by the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Ohio, Eastern Division (the "Court"), the Grantor, for the
consideration as stated in the Assets Purchase Agreement received to its full satisfaction from
Save The Art Institute of Las Vegas Linrited , the Grantee, has bargained sold and conveyed,
and by these presents, and with full authority, including the approval of the Court, does bargain,
sell and convey unto the said Grantee, its heirs and assigns, free and clear from all Interests as
defined in the Order of Sale, the following described goods, wares, merchandise, chattels and
effects, to-wit;

Purchased Assets, as defined in the Asset Purchase Agreement dated July 15, 2019,
including without limitation, those assets set forth in Exhibit I, attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

To have and to hold the same unto the said Grantee, its heirs and assigns, to Grantee and
its own proper use and behoof forever.

And it, the said Grantor, does for itself and its heirs, covenants and agrees to and with the
said Grantee, its heirs and assigns, that above bargained goods, wares, merchandise, chattels and
effects are free and clear from all Interests as defined in the Order of Sale, and that it is the true
and lawful owner thereof and has good right and lawful authority to bargain and sell the same in
the manner and form as aforesaidi, and that it will and its heirs and assigns shall warrant and
defend the same against the lawful claims and demands of all persons whomsoever.

In Witness Whweof I hereunto set my hand at Cleveland, Ohio this day of
,2019.

The Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC Signed in presence of:

By: MarkE. Dottore, solely in his capacity
as receiver for The Art Institute of Las Vegas,
LLC pursuant to that certain Order Appointing
Receiver entered on January 18, 2019, by the
United States District Court for the Northern

District of Ohio, Eastcni Division

(aU30l07-i}



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 39 of 59. PagelD #: 10661

EXHIBIT 1

All rights, title and interest in any and all of the Purchased Assets as defined in the Asset
Purchase Agreement, including without limitation:

(a) all Accounts Receivable and other accounts and notes receivables (whether
cunent or noncurrent) and all causes of action specifically pertaining to the collection of the
foregoing (excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, the Excluded Receivables);

(b) all Intellectual Property owned by the School and used solely by the School
and all corresponding rights that, now or hereafter, may be secured throughout the world and all
copies and tangible embodiments of any such Intellectual Property in Seller's possession or
control;

(c) all of Seller's rights existing under the Assumed Contracts listed on
Schedule I;

(d) all machinery, equipment (including all transportation and office
equipment), computer equipment (including all servers, routers, and network equipment),
projection equipment, library equipment, telephone systems and furniture relating to the School
that is owned by the School;

(e) all office supplies, spare parts, miscellaneous supplies, and other tangible
property of any kind relating solely to the School, including, without limitation, all property of
any kind located in any building, office or other space leased by Seller;

(f) all texts, journals, periodicals, documents, catalogs, indices, databases, core
materials, archives and other materials, written and electronic, located at the Premises owned by
Seller;

(g) the School's OPE ID #04051300;

(h) School's tuition payments received or to be received by Seller or the School
for 2019 Spring Quarter and all School's subsequent quarters, including, vrithout limitatioD, the
Title IV funds and the VA funds) for the period April 1, 2019 forward, including any Accounts
Receivable;

(i) the right to receive and retain mail (incliuJing electronic mail) and other
communications relating to the School as long as Buyer provides Seller with copies of all mail
relating to the operation of the School received until the Closing;

(j) the right to bill and receive payment for services performed in connection
with the School for the period commencing 2019 Spring Quarter but unbilled or unpaid as of the
Closing (other than with respect to any of the Excluded Receivables);

(On9M07-l}



Case; l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 40 of 59. PagelD #: 10662

(k) all data, including, without liniitadon, student and financial data, stored or
mamtained on the Shared IT Platform and any hard-copy paper files relating solely to the
School;

(I) all IT Sy^ems solely for the benefit of the School that are located at the
Premises;

(m) all tel^hone numbers used by Seller solely in connection with the operation
of the School;

(n) all indemnities from Third Parties relating to the Purchased Assets or the
Assumed Liabilities prior to the Closing Date.

All of the Purchased Assets will be sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed and delivered to Buyer
&ee and clear of all Liens.

4S-13-fiS71-1S80, V.3

(0!330e07-l}



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 41 of 59. PagelD #: 10663

EXHIBiTC

Seller's Cftrtificates of Good Standing

(MIUMD > 1 DMI>9Sif03».4





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 42 of 59. PagelD #: 10664

19070112474359

STATE OF ARIZONA

Ofllce of the

CORPORATION COMMISSION

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING

I, Ihc undersigned Execulivc Dinrclor of the Arizono Cotporalion Commission, do hereby cenify that:

THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC

ACC file number: U1865306

was Incorporaled under ihe lows of the State of Arizona on 05/12/2017, and that, according to the records of the Arizona
Corponilion Commission, said limited liability com;^y is In good standing in the State of Arizona as of the dole this
Certificate is issued.

This Certificate relates only to Ute legal existence of the above named entity as of the date this Cedincaie is issued, and
is not QD endorsement, recommendation, or opprovat of the entity's condition, business activities, afToirs, or practices.

IN WtTNESS WHOtEOF. 1 have hereuniD set my Intid. amxeU the o/Ttdal deal of ihe

Ailsoaa CoipcxsUon Ctuntnluloa. and iuunt thli Catificste on ihii dale; 07/01/2911C0RP5

DITAT

Matthew Neubert, Executive Director

01937320



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 43 of 59. PagelD #: 10665

o

ofstatb

CERTIFICATE OF EXISTENCE

WITH STATUS IN GOOD STANDING

I, Barbara K. Cegavske, the duly elected and qualified Nevada Secretary of State, do hereby
certify that I am, by the laws of said State, the custodian of the records relating to filings by
corporations, non-profit corporations, corporation soles, limited-liability companies, limited
partnerships, limited-liability partnerships and business trusts pursuant to Title 7ofthe Nevada
Revised Statutes which are eidier prescnfly in a status of good standing or were in good standing
for a time period subsequent of 1976 and am the proper officer to execute this certificate.

I fiirfiier certify that the records of the Nevada Secretary of State, at the date of this certificBte,
evidence, THE DC ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, as a limited liability compaity
duly organized under the laws of Arizona and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the
State ofNevada since August 11, 2017, and is in good standing in this state.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the Great Seal of State, at my
office on July 1, 2019.

Barbara K. Cegavske

Secretary of State

Qactronic Certificate

Certificate fvlumben C20190701-1416

01337SCf4



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 44 of 59. PagelD #: 10666

EXHIBIT D

Sale Order

QMIWSSOSfjt

39



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 45 of 59. PagelD #: 10667

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF OHIO

EASTERN DIVISION

DIGITAL MEDIA SOLUTIONS. LLC, ) CASE NO. I:l9-cv-145
)

Plaintiff, ) JUDGE DAN AARON POLSTER
)

V. ) MAGISTRATE JUDGE
)  THOMAS M. PARKER

SOUTH UNXVERSITY OF OHIO, )
LLC, et. a/., )

)
Defendants. )

ORDER GRANTING EMERGENCY MOTION OF MARK E. DOTTORE,
RECEIVER OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, FOR AN
ORDER AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF SUBSTANTIALLY ALL OF THE

ASSETS OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, FREE AND
CLEAR OF LIENS, ENCUMBRANCES, CLAIMS AND OTHER INTERESTS

(WITH CERTAIN EXCEPTIONS) AND FOR TRANSFER OF THE
INTERESTS OF UNPAID HOLDERS OF INTERESTS TO THE PROCEEDS

OF THE SALE

This matter having come before the Court on the Motaon (the "Sale Motion")

of Mark E. Dottore (the "Receiver"), Receiver of The Art Institute of Las Vegas

LLC, for an Order Authorizing the sale of substantially all of the assets of The Art

Institute of Las Vegas, LLC, an Arizona nonprofit limited liability company that is

registered in the State of Nevada as The DC Art Institute of Las Vegas, LLC OPE

ID #04051300 (the "Schoor), free and clear of all mortgages, pledges, security

interests, liens, encumbrances, claims, charges, and any other interests of any kind

or type whatsoever (the 'Interests") (with certain exceptions as hereinafter

provided) and for the transfer the Interests of unpaid holders of Interests to the

Proceeds of the Sale. In the Sale Motion, the Receiver seeks the entry of an Order:

(i) authorizing the sale of all or substantially all of the assets (the "Assets") of the



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 46 of 59. PagelD #: 10668

School to Save the Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited ("Save Las Vegas" or the

"Buyer"), consistent with the terras of an Asset Purchase Agreement (the "APA")

dated JulylS, 2019; (ii) determining and directing that the sale of the Assets is &ee

and clear of all Interests except for amounts that are required to he paid as part of

the process of approval of the Sale by the United States Departraent of Education

(the "DOE")or the Nevada Department of Employment, Training and

Rehabilitation, Commission of Posteecondary Education (the "DETR") (the

"DOE/DETR Required Amounts"); and (iii) and transferring any unpaid claims of

the holders of Interests and other interest holders in the Assets to the proceeds of

sale; and (iv) granting such other and further relief as is warranted in the

circumstances.

The Court having reviewed the Sale Motion, the Declaration of the Receiver,

and all other pleadings, motions, objections, and other responses (the "Written

Statements") related thereto, and a hearing having been held before this Court on

July , 2019 (the "Sale Hearing"), to consider the proposed sale (the "Sale") of the

Assets pursuant to the terms and conditions of the APA, at which time all parties in

interest were afforded an opportunity to be heard and the Court having weighed

and considered the Written Statements and the oral comments made at the Sale

Hearing by the parties in interest:

IT IS HEREBY FOUND AND DETERMINED THAT:

A. All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning

as set forth in the Sale Motion and the APA;

((MM24(3-I)





Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 47 of 59. PagelD #: 10669

B. The relief requested in this motion is governed by FED. R. CiV. P. 66,

Rule 66.1(c) and (d) of the Local Rules for the United States District

Court for the Northern District of Ohio (the "Local Rules"), federal

common law and the Receiver Order;

C. The Interim Receiver Order provides,

2.n. The Receiver is authorized to negotiate and effect an
orderly sale, transfer, use or assignment of all or a portion
of any of the Property in or outside of the ordinary course
of business of the Receivership Entities and, for the
proceeds thereof, to pay the secured and unseciired
indebtedness of the Property, including the Real
Property ... The Receiver is authorized to conduct such a
sale of the Property in any manner which he, in his good
faith and reasonable discretion, believes will maximize
the proceeds received from the sale.

D. The Amended Receiver Order provides that the Receiver's authority to

negotiate and effect a sale of the assets is subject Paragraphs 13 and

14 of the Amended Receiver Order. Paragraph 13 afSrma that the

regulatory authority of the United States may not be stayed or

constrained and Paragraph 14 affirms the validity of the Federal

Priority Statute, 31 XJ.S.C. § 3713.

E. Notice of the Sale Motion and the Sale was provided to hundreds of

persons, who the Receiver identified as having an interest in the sale

proceeding. Notice was served upon all parties to this lawsuit and

their lawyers, the federal, state and local taxing authorities, all

secured creditors, unsecured creditors that have demonstrated an

interest in the assets, the Department of Justice, the Department of



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 48 of 59. PagelD #: 10670

Education, the Nevada state education regulators, the Nevada

Attorney General, and all regulatory and accrediting agencies. The list

of persons served through the Court is a matter of record; the

additional parties served is contained in a certificate of service filed

with the Court.

F. Proper, timely, adequate and sufficient notice of the Sale Motion, the

Sale Hearing and the proposed Sale has been provided to all interested

parties.

G. Objections were filed by .

H. This Court has the authority to approve a Sale of the Assets free and

clear of all Interests (except for the DOE/DETR Eequired Amounts),

to transfer all Interests whatsoever to the proceeds derived from

the respective sales of the Assets.

I. Liens reported against the Assets are as stated in the Sale Motion;

J. The DOE and DETR have an interest in the Assets in the amount that

is required to be paid prior to the change of ownership to Save Las

Vegas;

K. Those other holders of Interests who did not object to the Sale Motion

are deemed to have consented to the Sale. Those holders of Interests

who did object, if any, are adequately protected by having their

Interests, if any, attach to the proceeds of Sale;

{OOOUtfZ-} >





Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 49 of 59. PagelD #: 10671

L. Prior to the appointment of the Receiver, the School advertised itself as

for sale to a willing buyer. The School was one of the Excluded

Campuses; that is, it was not selected for acquisition by Education

Principle Foundation, The Arts Institute International, LLC or the

Dream Center South University, LLC. Immediately after his

appointment, the Receiver was approached by Save Las Vegas and

another group who were seriously interested in acquiring the School.

M. Since his appointment in this case, the Receiver has marketed all of

the Assets in a manner that was designed to attract the maximum

number of individuals and groups with an interest in purchasing one

or multiple campuses. Further, this case has been the subject of

extensive press coverage. Through the press coverage and through

earlier efforts to sell the institution, the Receiver's interest in a sale

transaction and its financial situation were widely known among

educators, educational institutions and investors in educational

inatitutionB euid in excess of twenty prospective buyers have contacted

the Receiver about the possibility of purchasing one or more campuses

of the Receivership Entities;

N. The APA submitted by Buyer is the highest and best offer received for

the Assets. It represents the highest in terms of money offered for the

Assets and also includes the opportunity to continue the institution

and honor the students' wishes to complete their programs of study.

(Qoratn-i)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 50 of 59. PagelD #: 10672

The APA offera the Schoore creditors the most money and the Schoors

students an. uninterrupted education. Principals of Buyer have

demonstrated postsecondary education experience and knowledge and

are more likely than other prospective purchasers to be successful in

obtaining approvals from regulatory authorities which are required to

complete the sale transaction. Buyer also seeks to close at the earliest

possible time and demonstrates the financial wherewithal to do so. A

Sale to Buyer is consistent with good business judgment and is

approved by this Court;

0. If the Assets are not sold to Buyer at this time, they will be

substantially devalued or the sale will fail and the School will close.

The Assets are more valuable when sold as a "going concern," that is,

as an educational institution. The sale to Buyer will also benefit the

School's students, faculty and the comm\mity as the school will remain

open. In order to sell the Assets as a continuing educational enterprise

in good standing, the Seller must complete its sale transaction

immediately, as it cannot continue to operate as an educational

institution even for a short time without financial assistance and is in

danger of losing both its accreditation and its ability to participate in

federal student aid programs;

P. A reasonable opportunity to object or be heard with respect to the Sale

Motion and the relief requested herein has been afibrded to all

{DOOZ34U.1)



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 51 of 59. PagelD #: 10673

interested persons and entities, including but not limited to, ail parties

and intervenors to this action, all secured lenders, all unsecured

creditors who have requested that notices be sent to them, Attorney

General of the State of Nevada, ail full time faculty members, all of the

School's educational accrediting agencies, and other parties that the

Receiver believes would have an interest in the Sale or who have

requested that they be notified of any ssde;

Q. The Receiver has demonstrated that approval of the Sale Motion and

consummation of the Sale to the Buyer at this time is in the best

interests of the School, its creditors and its students. The Receiver has

advanced good and sufficient business justification supporting the sale

of the Assets to the Buyer as set forth in the Sale Motion and at the

Sale Hearing, and it is a reasonable exercise of the Receiver's business

judgment to consummate a sale of the Assets on the terms and

conditions set forth in the APA, and to execute, deliver and perform its

obligations thereunder. Sound business judgment includes, but is not

limited to, the fact that (i) there is a risk of immediate and irreparable

loss of value of the Assets if the Sale is not consummated, (ii) there is

a substantial risk of loss of accreditation from the Accrediting Counsel

for Independent Colleges and Schools C'ACICS") and American

Culinary Federation Education Foundation's Accrediting Commission

("ACFEFAC"), and loss of eligibility to participate in federal student

(no&««s.i}



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 52 of 59. PagelD #: 10674

aid programs (iii) the School cannot continue as an educational

institution for even a short time without financial assistance, (iv) if the

School ceases to operate as an educational institution, its students will

be unable to complete their programs of study, and (v) the

consummation of the transaction contemplated under the APA

presents the best opportvinity to realize the value of the Assets to avoid

further decline and devaluation thereof; (vi) the sale is at arm's length;

and (vii) the Receiver has exercised reasonable diligence and good faith

judgment;

R. The consideration to be paid by the Buyer for the Assets constitutes

adequate and fair value for the Assets and the terms and conditions of

the APA are feir and reasonable;

S. The Receiver is authorized and directed to negotiate, execute and

deliver all documents necessary to consummate the Sale with the

Buyer on the same general terms and conditions as the APA with such

changes as the Receiver, in his sole discretion, deems necessary or

desirable, and is further authorized to execute other ancillary

agreements and other documents to sell the Assets and to complete the

Sale of the Assets without further order of this Court free and clear of

ail Interests (except for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts), as long as

the terms and conditiona of the APA and other documents are not

materially worse, in the aggregate, to the School, or materially worse

(«0Qtt4U.t|



Case; l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc#: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 53 of 59. PagelD #: 10675

with respect to the interests of individual secured creditors, than the

terms and conditions contained in the APA;

T. The School has good title to the Assets, and accordingly the sale of

such Assets to the Buyer will be a legal, valid and effective sale of the

Assets;

U. The terms and conditions of the APA were negotiated, proposed and

entered into in good faith, from arm's length bargaining positions by

the Receiver and the Buyer and constitute the highest or otherwise

best offer for the Assets after a period in which third parties had ample

opportunity to seek information and enter into discussions or

negotiations with the Receiver concerning a sale of the Assets. The

Buyer is entitled to the protections of a good faith purchaser with

respect to the Sale approved hereby;

V. The APA is conditioned upon several events, which include (i) all of the

terms and conditions of the sale must be approved by the Court

through an Order of Sale and the Order of Sale must be final and not

appealable; (ii) the sale must be free and clear of all Interests (except

for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts); and (iii) obtaining necessary

approvals from the Governing Authorities and Educational Agencies

(as defined in the APA). The Buyer will not consummate the

transactions contemplated in the APA, thus adversely affecting the

School, its creditors and its students, if the sale of the Assets to the

(•Mmai-i)



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 54 of 59. PagelD #: 10676

Buyer is not free and clear of all Interests, or if the Buyer would, or in

the future could, be liable for any of the Interests (except for the

DOE/DETR Required Amounts);

W. The Receiver does not have any interest in Buyer or any party

affiliated with Buyer;

X. The Sale was non-coUusive, fair and reasonable and conducted in good

faith.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED

THAT:

1. The Sale of the Assets is approved and authorized on terms consistent

with those in the APA which is attached to the Sale Motion and made a part hereof;

2. Any objections to the Sale Motion or the relief requested therein that

have not been withdrawn, waived or settled, and aU reservations of rights included

therein, are overruled on the merits;

3. The APA is hereby approved and the Receiver is hereby authorized and

empowered to fully perform thereunder and to consummate the sale as

contemplated under the APA on the same general terms and conditions as the APA

To the extent that changes are needed to consummate the sale as contemplated

under the APA, the Receiver, in his sole discretion and without further order of this

Court, is authorized to execute such additional instruments and documents that

may be reasonably necessary or desirable to implement the APA and to take all

further actions as may reasonably be requested by the Buyer for the purpose of

{000U4U-1)



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 55 of 59. PagelD #: 10677

selling, assigning, transferring, granting, conveying and conferring to the Buyer, or

reducing to the Buyer's possession, any or all of the Assets free and clear of all

Interests;

4. As of the closing of the Sale of the Assets, the sale of the Assets to the

Buyer will be a legal, valid, enforceable, and effective sale of the Assets, and will

vest the Buyer with all right, title, and interest in the Assets free and clear of all

Interests (except for the DOE/DETK Required Amounts):

5. Except as may be expressly permitted by the contemplated APA, all

persons and entities holding liens or interests, including the Secured Claimants, are

hereby barred from asserting such liens or interests against the Buyer, its

successors or assigns, or the Assets;

6. Proper, timely, adequate and sufficient notice of the proposed Sale has

been provided by the Receiver to all relevant parties, and no other or further notice

is required;

7. The foregoing notwithstanding, the provision of this Order authorizing

the Sale of the Asseta free and clear of all Interests (except for the DOE/DETR

Required Amounts) shall be self-executing, and notwithstanding the failure of the

Receiver, the Buyer or any other party to execute, file or obtain releases, discharges,

termination statements, assignments, consents or other instruments to effectuate,

consummate and/or implement the provisions hereof or the contemplated APA with

respect to the Sale of the Assets, all liens, claims, encumbrances and interests on

loooua}.i>



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 56 of 59. PagelD #: 10678

such Assets shall be deemed released and shall attach to the proceeds of the Sale

except for the DOE/DETR Required Amounts;

8. This Order shall be binding upon and govern the acts of all entities,

including without limitation, all filing agents, filing officers, title agents, title

companies, recorders of mortgages, recorders of deeds, registrars of deeds,

administrative agencies, governmental departments, secretaries of state, federal,

state and local officials, and all other persons or entities who may be required by

operation of law, the duties of their office or contract to accept, file, register or

otherwise record or release any documents or instruments, or who may be required

to report to or insure title or state of title in or to any of the Assets;

9. From and after entry of this Order, neither the School nor any creditor

or other party in interest shall take or cause to be taken any action that would

interfere with the sale of the Assets to the Buyer in accordance with the terms of

this Order;

10. From and after entry of this Order, no creditor or other party in

interest Htmll assert any claims or take any legal or other actions relating to the

Assets to be sold to Buyer, before the closing of the Sale against Buyer, its

principals or the Assets;

11. The Receiver is authorized to execute such other documents as are

necessary or desirable to implement this Order;

12. This Court shall retain jurisdiction (i) to enforce and implement the

terms and provisions of the contemplated APA and all amendments thereto, any

|oooa«u.t t ^2



Case: l:19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 57 of 59. PagelD #: 10679

waivers and a)nseiit8 thereunder and any other agreements executed in connection

therewith, (ii) to resolve any disputes arising under or related to the APA, except as

otherwise provided therein, and (iii) to interpret, implement and enforce the

provisions of this Order.

13. The Objection of (the "XXX Objection") filed by

("XXX") is hereby resolved as follows:

14. Pursuant to Fed. K. Civ.R. 54(B), this Order is a final Order and there

is no just reason for delay.

mSSOOEDERED.

Date:

MAGISTRATE JUDGE THOMAS M.

PARKER

JUDGE DAN AARON POLSTER

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Afarv K Whitmer

Mary K Whitmer (0018213)
James W. Ehrman (0011006)
Robert M. Stefancin (0047184)
Whttmer & Ehrman LLC

2344 Canal Road, Suite 401
Cleveland, Ohio 44113-2535
Telephone: (216) 771-5056
Email: mkw@weadvocate.net

Attorney for Mark E. Oottore, Receiver
4033^628-1692. V. 1

(oooxaMt't) 13



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 58 ot59. PagelD #: 10680

EXHIBIT £

Buyer's Certificate frnm the Nevada Secretary of State

4840>1709-0716. V. 1

(OOOZZ4dO-l]

DMt\9S5iai9^

40



Case: l;19-cv-00145-DAP Doc #: 390-1 Filed: 07/15/19 59 of 59. PagelD #: 10681

Q i'/T

" A R Y OF S 7 j f.

CERTIFICATE OF EXISTENCE

WITH STATUS IN GOOD STANDING

1, Barbara K. Ceaavske, the duly elected and quaiihed Nevada Secretary of State, do hereby
certify that 1 amfby the laws of said State, the custodian of tlie records relating to filings by
corporations, non-profit corporations, corporation soles, limited-liabilify compares, limited
partnerships, liinited-liabiiity partnerships and business tinsts pursuant to Title / of the Nevada
Revised Staples which ai'e either presently in a status of good standing or were m good standing
for a time period subsequent of 1976 and am the proper officer to execute tins certificate.

I further certify that the record.s of the Nevada Secretary of State, at the date of this certificate,
evidence, SAVE THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS LIMITED, as a limited liabiUt>-
company duly organized under tlie laws of Nevada and existing under and by virtue of the laws
of the State of Nevada since January 25, 2019, and is in good standmg m this state.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the Great Seal of State, at my
office on July 10, 2019.

Certified By: Paul Reyes
Certificate Number: C20190710-1431

Barbara K, Cegavske

Secretary of State





ATTACHMENT E

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PARTIAL APPROVAL LETTER
RECEIVED IN MID-AUGUST 2019 RE: WINTER QUARTER

HCM2 SUBMISSION

(See Attached)

ATTACHMENT E





f*in£*o|

Mark Dottore

The Art Institute of Las Vegas
2350 Corporate Circle
Henderson, NV 89074-7737

Re: Partial Approval of HCM2 Submission
OPE ID: 04051300

DUNS: 926397829

Dear Mr. Dottore:

The Multi-Regional and Foreign Schools Participation Division received a complete HCM2
request from The Art Institute of Las Vegas (Ai Vegas) on June 12,2019. We have completed
our review of the submission and approved the following amounts for payment on August 16,
2019.

Program Amt Requested Amt Approved Amt Processed in G5
PellGrant $348,002.00 $2,797.00 $2,797.00
FSEOG $54,728.00 $0.00 $0.00
Direct Loan $488,718.00 $13,134.00 $13,134.00

Ai Vegas must correct the errors and resubmit the records as a complete, separate package,
including Form 270, Student Data Spreadsheet, etc. Do not include resubmitted records with
other records. Ai Vegas may submit the request without waiting for the original 30-day
submission period to pass. Upon receipt of the resubmitted request, a new 30-day period will
begin.

Our review of a random sample of student records detected an error in excess of 10%. Therefore,
payment on ail non-sampled students is also rejected. Ai Vegas must review these records for
errors similar to those identified among sample students, make necessary corrections, and
resubmit those students for payment.

Federal Student Aid. Multi-Regional and Foreign Schools Participation Division
830 First Street N.E., Washington, DC 20202

www.StudentAid.aov

FederalStudeotAid
An OFFICE of the U.S DEPARTMENT 0/ EDUCATION



The Art Institute of Las Vegas
OPE ID: 04051300

Page 2

Approval of a portion of this request shall in no way limit the Department of Education's nghts
to later determine that these funds were improperly expended and to recover these funds from Ai
Vegas as the result of an audit, program review, or in any other manner. In addition, the review
does not constitute a complete file review and does not relieve Ai Vegas of its annual audit
requirement.

Sincerely,

Brie Miles

Payment Analyst

Enclosure: Payment Rejection Details

cc: Dawn Batulla, Financial Aid Director (dbatulla@aii.edu)



The Art Institute of Las Vegas
OPE ID: 04051300
Page 1

Payment Rciection Details

General Deficiencies

Reason for Rejection: PeU grant funds requested on the Student Data Spreadsheet and Form 270
were paid to Ai Vegas prior to HCM2 claim submission.
Requirements to Resolve: Submit an updated Student Data Spreadsheet and Form 270.



ATTACHMENT F

RESUME OF LAURA NOWLAN

(See Attached)

ATTACHMENT F



Laura Nowlan

Las Vegas, NV
LauraN@S0eUsNowStaffinq.com

www.SeeUsNowStaffinq.com

702-902-2448

Qualifications: Hard working, multi-tasking, bilingual (Spanish) professional with over 20 years of leadership
experience 30 years of customer service experience and over 14 years in Human Resources/Staffing
experience'with an entrepreneurial spirit, passion and drive. Work experience consists of, but is not limited to
interviewing, screening, team building, and hiring qualified individuals for employment and all phases of
starting a business to selling. Able to work independently or with a team; work is completed efficiently and in a
timely manner. Works well with a broad range of cultural, ethnic, and economic backgrounds. Experienced;
with strong emphasis on public relations with the added experience of managing departments, projects,
scheduling, hiring, developing, budgeting and implementing marketing plans. Strong relationship building,
community organizing and people skills.

President/Owner: 10/2014-Present- See Us Now Staffing, Inc.
■ Responsible for day to day operations in growing the corporation by increasing sales
■ Providing goals and direction to the recruiters and account executives
■ Knowledgeable of the recruitment/staffing industry, self-confident, with a strong work ethic and high sense of
urgency in accomplishing corporate goals
■ Proven ability to design practical solutions and advise of problems before it becomes critical

Volunteer Executive Dlrector/Co-Founder: 1/2015-5/2019- Nevada Hispanic Business Group
■ Responsible for fulfilling the mission and vision of NVHBG: bringing the non-Hispanic and the Hispanic
business community together through education, advocacy, networking and volunteering.
- Responsible for creating, planning, coordinating, executing and organizing community events with board
members, sponsors and volunteers.
■ Responsible for developing, planning and executing community programs that inspire entrepreneurs, small
businesses and the community.
• Responsible for day to day operations of the organization. n ^ ♦
- Responsible for assisting in preparing the agenda and minutes for board meetings with the NVHBG President
and assist in conducting board meetings as a Co-Founder.
- Responsible for coordinating and conduct meetings with corporate sponsors, schools, other community
organizations and government officials to create alliances and partnerships with NVHBG.

Branch Manager: 9/2012-8/2014- Elite Resources Premier Staffing
■ Responsible for day to day operations of the Las Vegas Branch.
■ Providing goals and direction to the recruiters and account executives.
■ Knowledgeable of the recruitment/staffing industry, self-confident, with a strong work ethic and high sense of
urgency in accomplishing branch goals.
■ Proven ability to design practical solutions and advise of problems before it becomes critical.
■ Responsible for hiring and dismissing employees and following all labor laws in the state of Nevada, as well
as company policies. . . . u ■ ^
• Responsible for overseeing interviews, pre-screening, e-verify, processing background checks, and 10 panel
drug tests. x,
- Responsible for administrative functions of the office submitting payroll for all Las Vegas team.
■ Responsible for building a client base of companies using our staffing services, hiring the right talent to meet
the client's requirements and hiring the right team to meet all company goals. • •
■ Responsible for branding the Elite Resources company name and services in Las Vegas area, participating in
networking and community events.

Human Resource Manager: 10/2011-9/2012- HTL Optoelectronic Technology
■ Responsible for recruiting quaiified candidates, attending job fairs, and working ciosely with government
agencies to ensure quality talent acquisition.



- Responsible for: interviews, pre-screening, conducting background checks, and reference checks for
prospective candidates.
■ Review job placement tests and enter candidates into employee tracking database.
■ Assist the Accounting Department with payroll for all employees.
■ Responsible for hiring/dismissing employees and following all labor laws in the state of Nevada, as well as
company policies.
■ Responsible for invoicing state grants for SSW, SESP and WIA to non-profits and government agencies.

Experience Office Leader/Marketing: 8/2010-11/2011- H&R Block
- Assisted with Interviewing, pre-screening Customer Service Personal and Tax pros.
- Responsible for scheduling Tax Pros and CSP's work schedules for tax season.
" Responsible for marketing and growing tax business in office market located area.

Staffing Manager: 9/2006-5/2010- Millenium Staffing Services
■ Responsible for recruiting qualified candidates via internet searches and resumes submittal.
■ Interviewing, pre-screening, conducting 5 panel drug test and request criminal background checks.
■ Review job placement tests, check reference, enter candidates into employee tracking database.
- Assist clients with scheduling and coordinating work schedules.
■ Assist the Payroll Department to assure proper payment of employees' work hours.
■ Responsible for hiring/dismissing employees in the Light Industrial and Convention Services Division; in
accordance with all labor laws in the state of Nevada as well as company policies.
■ Project Manager operating at many large properties along the Las Vegas Strip to ensure customer
satisfaction.

Loan Officer: 5/2003-9/2006- Mortgage One Financial

Business Owner: Since 1997-9/2006 Latina Mobile Notary

^ NeighborWorks® HomeOwnership Center Director: 12/1997-4/2002- Neighborhood Housing Services of
the Inland Empire
■ Responsible for the center's day to day activities and programs.
- Responsible for developing the center's education courses curriculum and educating members of the
community as well as the lending industry on how to use the organizations down payment assistance
programs.

■ Responsible for securing volunteer instructors to teach home buyer education and home maintenance
classes

■ Developed marketing plan for the center's programs and implement effective tracking procedures to ensure
program compliance.
- Supervised administration of the City of Redlands, Highland and Rancho Cucamonga down payment
assistance program. Also over saw the Section 8 pilot program for the agency and special low rate first
mortgage loan programs that the staff implemented. ^ . . ..on-?*
■ Under my leadership, the number of individuals served had increased from three hundred fifty-six in 1997 to
one thousand ninety-six in 1998.

Academic Education:

BS in Business Administration, California State University, June 1997
AA in Business Administration, San Bernardino Valley Community College, San Bernardino, May 1993

Certificate of Continuing Education: Powerful Communication Skills, The Basic of MR Law & Family and
Medical Leave and Managing Human Resources under the Star12 National Seminar Training, BOWD, SBA
Emerging Leaders and Latin Chamber of Commerce Leadership Nevada Graduate

Memberships: Co-founder of Nevada Hispanic Business Group 501C3, Board Member of DECA, Member of
Women's Chamber of Commerce, Urban Chamber of Commerce, Dell Robison Middle School SOT
Committee, Voice Links Toastmasters. Christian Women in Business Nevada, and Nevada Subcontractors
Association.



n



ATTACHMENT G

MANAGED SERVICES AGREEMENT

(See Attached)

ATTACHMENT G





^  MANAGED SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Managed Services Agreement (this "Agreement**) is made as of March 28,2019, but
shall be effective as of April 1, 2019 (the "Effective Date") by, between, and among THE ART
INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC, an Arizona non-profit limited liability company, by and
through MARK E. DOTTORE, Receiver ("the "University") and SAVE THE ART INSTITUTE
OF LAS VEGAS LIMITED, a Nevada limited liability company, its designee or assignee
("AiLV" and, together with University, each a "Party** and together the "Parties*'), to provide
specified services to the University.

WHEREAS, Mark E. Dottore has been appointed Receiver of the University by Order
dated January 18,2019 in Digital Media Solutions, LLC v. South University of Ohio, LLC, etal.
Case No. l:19-cv-145 (N.D. Ohio) (the "Litigation");

WHEREAS, the University is an institution of higher education duly authorized by
applicable state and federal authorities to deliver programs of instruction leading to acadeniic
degrees institutionally accredited by the WASC Senior Commission of Colleges and Schools (tlie
"1 Iniversitv Accreditor");

WHEREAS simultaneously with entering into this Agreement, AiLV has entered into a
Transition Services Agreement (the "ISA") with Dream Center Education Holdings, LLC, an
Arizona not-for-profit limited liability company, by and tlirough MarkE. Dottore, Receiver
("DCEH");

WHEREAS, the University wishes to engage AiLV to provide certain Core Services (as
defined herein) in silpport of its academic mission and purposes, as well as to be responsible for
the payment and obligations of the University from the Effective Date under a ce^n ̂ se
Agreement entered into on September 14, 2001 by and among HLLC BSP Tech Park, LP, a
Nevada limited liability company and The Art Institute of Las Vegas, Inc., a Nevada corporation
for the property located at 2350 Corporate Circle, Henderson, NV 89074, security and other
services required by the University for the maintenance and repair of the ground cainpus and for
the payment of salaries and all health care benefits for the administration, faculty and staff of the
University;

WHEREAS, the University acknowledges that the a letter dated February 27, 2019 from
the Department of Education, Multi-Regional and Foreign Schools Participation Division, does
not make the University ineligible to participate in Title IV, HEA programs pursuant to emails
AiLV has received from the DOE;

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to memorialize the terms and conditions upon which
Services (as defined herein) are provided by AiLV to the University;

WHEREAS, the Board of the University has reviewed and approved the terms of this
Agreement;

{01300962-1}





NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

1. Scope of Services; Definitions.

1.1 Services. AiLV will provide, or cause to be provided, to the University, in
conjunction with the Board of the University, the area of Academics (determination of
curriculum, establishment and application of academic standards, establishment of criteria for the
award of academic credentials and the award of such credentials, provision of instruction,
student academic advising, establishment of criteria for the engagement of faculty and for their
engagement, oversight and training, and maintenance of necessary and appropriate state
authorization and institutional and professional accreditations) ("Core Services"). Ft^er.
AiLV shall have complete control of all of the daily operations of the University. In addition,
AiLV shall be solely and exclusively responsible for the obligations and liabiUties of the
University from the Effective Date under the Lease Agreement, as well as the (i) security, (n)
janitorial services; (iii) any other expenses required for the maintenance, repair and upkeep of the
University; and (iv) all salaries and health care benefits for the administration, faculty and staff
of the University t"('.ore Expenses"). AiLV shall provide the Receiver a monthly budget for any
and all costs and expenses involving the operations of the University on a quarterly basis within
ten (10) days prior to the commencement of each quarter ("Budget").

12 Non-Core Services. Pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the TSA
which shall be executed simultaneously with this Agreement, DCBH will provide, or cause to be
provided to the University, the operational support services for the following toctions:
(i) marketing support services (marketing and brand development, advertising, admissions, lead
development); (ii) corporate technology and other service; and (iii) other support servi^s,
student support, career development, industry alignment, in toherance of toe University s
mission and goals, all to toe extent described in toe TSA (collectively, toe "Non-Core Services ),
it being anticipated that DCEH will provide toe Non-Core Services from toe Effective Date,
while AiLV will remain responsible at all times for toe Core Services and Core Expenses.
Nothing in this Agreement will be construed as obligating DCEH to provide any Core Services
or pay for any Core Expenses.

1 3 Reservation of All Academic Functions The Parties agree that the Board of
the UnivCTsity,in conjunction with AiLV, will retain each and every one of the functions that are
necessary attributes of a duly authorized and accredited institution of higher education, mctoding
all Core Services. The University will at all times operate in accordance with lU established
academic policies and procedures in a manner consistent with the requirements of the applicable
Educational Agencies. The Board of the University, together with AiLV, shall remain
responsible for providing confirmation of the University's adherence to toe reqmrements of
Educational Agencies upon their request.

1 4 Validity This Agreement shall be effective upon the execution and delivery of
this Agreement by (a) toe Receiver and (b) an Authorized Representative of AiLV. The seroces
to be provided shall be effective upon the execution and delivery of this Agreement by toe
Parties hereto.

{01300962-1}



1.5 General Definitions. Unless otherwise defined herein, all capitalized terms
used in this Agreement are defined as set forth in Appendix (Definitions) attached hereto.

2. AiLV's Responsibilities.

2.1 Regulatory Matters. AiLV expressly acknowledges its affirmative obligations
to conduct its affairs on behalf of the University in carrying out its obligations under this
Agreement in a manner intended to be in accordance with applicable standards of the higher
education community. In furtherance thereof, and not by limitation, AiLV warrants, represents
and covenents that:

(a) AiLV's use and maintenance of any educational records containing
personally identifiable student information that is provided to it through this Agreement remains
subject to the oversight and control of the University. AiLV is familiar with, and will use
commercially reasonable efforts to comply in all material respects with, all applicable Laws
pertaining to student educational records and privacy, including the Family Educational Rights
and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C. § 1232g and subsequent codes, and its implementation regulations at
34 C.F.R. Part 99, and the Gramm Leach Bliley Financial Modernization Act, 15 U.S.C.
§§ 6801-6803 (collectively, the "Privacv Laws and Regulations"!. AiLV will not divulge any
protected student information to anyone without prior notice to and written consent of the
University; provided, however, that this requirement shall not apply to the divulging of protected
student information to DCEH in accordance with the TSA.

(b) In the event this Agreement is terminated, AiLV will use commercially
reasonable efforts to promptly deliver to the Univereity all data regarding prospective students,
applicants and students provided to it or obtained by it in accordance with this Agreement.

2.2 Service Standards. AiLV agrees that it will use commercially reasonable
efforts to provide or cause to be provided the Core Services in an ethical, professional,
workmanlike manner and in all material respects in accordance with this Agreement, the Laws
identified in Section 2.1 and any other applicable Laws and relevant evolving state of the
industiy standard.

3. AiLV Responsibilities.

3.1 AiLV's Responsibility to Operate in Normal Course and Provide Services
not Included in this Agreement. Other than the Non-Core Services to be performed by DCEH,
AiLV shall remain fully responsible for insuring the performance of all other functions
associated with the existing operations of the University, whether through institutional staff or
agreements with affiliates or third parties, in compliance with all applicable laws and together
with the Board of Trustees of the University.

3 2 Certain Actions of AiLV. AiLV, in conjunction with the Bord of the
University shall (a) operate the University and provide the Core Services in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement, and (b) comply in all material respects with all applicable Laws.

3 3 Payment of Payroll Arrearage. On or before April 5, 2019, AiLV shall loan
the Receiver the amount of One Hundred and Fifty Four Thousand Dollars ($154,000.00) for the

3

{01300962-1}



%



payment of payroll that is due and owing the faculty and staff at the University (the "Loan").
The Receiver shall repay the Loan within seven (7) business days from the date the funds the
Receiver receives from the DOE relating to Title IV Funds for the prior quarters. AiLV shall be
entitled to all Title IV Funds that the Receiver receives for the University as well as any and all
other school related income on a go forward basis.

3.4 Payment of Rent, AiLV agrees to pay the Receiver the sum of Sixty Three
Thousand Three Hundred and Eighty Nine Dollars and Thirty Three Cents ($63,389.33) for rent
the Receiver has paid or will pay the Landlord, Tech Park 6, LLC, for the period March 11,2019
through and including March 31, 2019. The aforementioned amount shall be repaid by reducing
the Loan that the Receiver shall repay to AiLV pursuant to Section 3.3 to the amount of Ninety
Thousand Six Hundred and Ten Dollars and Sixty Seven Cents ($90,610.67). Further, on or
before April 5, 2019 and and the 28^"^ day of each month thereafter so long as the University
remains at the premises located at 2350 Corporate Circle, Suite 100, Henderson, Nevada, AiLV
shall pay the Receiver the sum of One Hundred and Four Thousand Eight Hundred and Forty
One Dollars and Ninety Cents ($104,841.90) which equals the Rent that is owed each month at
the premises.

4. Asset Purchase Agreement.

4.1 Due Diligence. For thirty (30) days from the Effective Date, AiLV and AiLV's
agents and consultants shall have the right to inspect the Business Assets, ground campuses ̂ d
to request and receive from the Receiver any and all documentation in the Receiver's possession
as it relates to the University. Buyer shall further be permitted to discuss with the Department of
Education ("DOE") its transition plan so that students may begin to receive a disbursement of
Title IV program funds going forward. During this due diligence period, AiLV and Receiver
shall enter into negotiations with the goal to enter into an asset purchase agreement ("APA")
prior to the expiration of the due diligence period. The APA shall set forth the terms and
conditions by which AiLV shall purchase the Business Assets of the University at a price to be
negotiated between the Parties.

5, Term and Termination.

5.1 Term. This Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and continue for a
period of One Hundred and Eighty (180) days ("Term"); provided, that the term shall be
extended by agreement of the Parties or should the Parties enter into an APA prior to the
expiration of the Term whereupon, the Teim shall continue until the Court has issued an Order
on the Receiver's Motion to Approve Sale ("Mptipn"). If the Motion is granted, this Agreement
shall remain in effect for the period as long as is needed so that AiLV can transition all Non-Core
Services to its third party contractors and AiLV shall have attained approval from ACISC or any
other governmental agency. Upon agreement of the Parties, this Agreement may be terminated
sooner and, as a result, neither Party shall have further obligation to the other.

5.2 Effect of Termination. If this Agreement is terminated and the Parties have no
further liability or obligations towards one another except that any and all costs expenses which
have not been paid during the period of this Agreement shall remain the obligation of AiLV.

{01300962-1}



5.3 Indemnification. AiLV shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the
Receiver and the University, and its officers, trustees, directors, employees, equity holders,
members, managers, agents, attorneys and representative (each a "Receiver Indemnified Party")
from and against any and all claims, liability, losses, damages, costs and expenses (collectively,
"Losses") incurred by any Receiver Indemnified Party as a result of, related to or in conjunction
with this Agreement, inclduing Losses related to any uncured breach by AiLV of its contractal
obligations under this Agreement; provided, that the obligations of AiLV shall be relieved to the
extent (and solely to the extent) that any such Losses arise out of (i) the Receiver's breach of its
contractual obligations under the Agreement, or (ii) DCEH's material breach of the ISA which
is not cured within the applicable cure period.

6. Title IV Funding and Other Governmental Funding.

All Title IV Funding and funding from any other governmental agency shall be
deposited into a bank account in the name of Mark E. Dottore, Receiver for The Art Institute of
Las Vegas LLC. The receiver shall then transfer funds to the operating account for the
University within seven business (7) from the date the Receiver has received the fimds and the
Budget.

7. Confidentiality and Disclosure.

7.1 Definition of Confidential Information. In the course of providing or
receiving Services, each Party may disclose ("Disclosing Party") its Confidential Information to
the other Party r"Receiving Party").

7.2 Non-Disclosure, Limitation on Use. The Receiving Party will not disclose to a
third party (which, for the avoidance of doubt, does not include DCEH) any of the Disclosing
Party's Confidential Information, and no Receiving Party will use the Disclosing Party's
Confidential Information for any purpose other than in connection with the provision or receipt
of the Services. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Receiving Party may disclose the Disclosing
Party's Confidential Information to the Receiving Party's affiliates, officers, directors,
employees, accoimtants, attorneys, financing sources, agents and representatives who need to
know such information in connection with the Receiving Party's performance of its obligations
under this Agreement; provided that, in each case, the confidentiality of which shall be
maintained in accordance with Section 7 of this Agreement.

8. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of AiLV. AiLV represents, warrants and
covenants as follows:

(a) Contracts. Its entry into and performance of this Agreement will not
violate or constitute a material breach of any of its contractual obligations with third Parties.

(b) Laws. It will, and will cause its affiliates to, comply in all material
respects with all applicable federal, state, local and foreign laws and regulations to the extent
related to its responsibilities under this Agreement.

(c) Criminal Title IV Adjudications. AiLV, its Affiliates nor, to the
knowledge of it, any of such AiLV's Affiliates' employees, have pled guilty to, pled nolo

{01300962-1}



contendere to or have been found guilty of, a crime involving the acquisition, use or expenditure
of funds under the Title IV Programs or been judicially determined to have committed ftaud
involving funds under the Title IV Programs.

(d) Bankruptcy. AiLV and its Affiliates have not filed for relief in
Bankruptcy or had an involuntary action entered against it for relief in Bankruptcy.

(e) Authority. AiLV has and will have all requisite corporate power and
authority to enter into this Agreement and to carry out the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby.

(f) Corporate Action. The execution, delivery and performance of this
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have
been duly authorized by all requisite corporate action on the part of AiLV.

(g) Valid and Binding Obligation. This Agreement has been duly executed
and delivered by AiLV and (assuming the due authorization, execution, and delivery hereof and
thereof by AiLV) is a valid and binding obligation of AiLV, enforceable against it m accordance
with its terms.

9. General.

9 1 Waiver. Failure of any Party to insist on performance of any term or condition
of this Agreement or to' exercise any right or privilege hereunder will not be construed as a
continuing or future waiver of such term, condition, right or privilege. All rights and remedies
existing under this Agreement are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies
otherwise available. No waiver of any provision of tlus Agreement shall be effective unless
made in writing and executed by the applicable Party giving such waiver.

9 2 Severabillty. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid or
unenforceable, such provision will be deemed deleted from this Agreement and wll be repla^d
bv a valid and enforceable provision which so far as possible achieves the same objectives as the
severed provision was intended to achieve, and the remaining provisions of this Agreement will
continue in full force and effect.

9 3 Counterparts. This Agreement, and any amendments thereto may be executed
in separate counterparts by the Parties. Each such counterpart when so executed will be deem^
an original, but all such counterparts together will constitute the same instrument. A facsimile,
telecopy pdf or other reproduction of this Agreement may be executed by one or more ParUes,
and an executed copy of this Agreement may be delivered by one or more Pames by ernail,
facsimile or similar instantaneous electronic transmission device pursuit to which the signature
of or on behalf of such Party can be seen, and such execution and delivery shall be coimder^
valid binding and effective for all purposes as of the date hereof. At the request of a Party, the
other'Parties agree to execute an original of this Agreement as well as any facsimile, telecopy or
other reproduction hereof.

{01300962-1}



9.4 Governing Law; Jurisdiction and Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial.

(a) Governing Law. This Agreement, and all Proceedings or counterclaims
(whether based on contract, tort or otherwise) arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the
actions of the Parties hereto in the negotiation, administration, performance and enforcement
hereof and thereof, shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the internal
substantive Laws of the State of Ohio, without giving effect to any choice or conflict of Laws
provision or rule (whether of the State of Ohio or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the
application of the Laws of any jurisdiction other than the State of Ohio.

(b) Jurisdiction and Venue. Each of the Parties hereto submits to the
exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the United States District Court, Northern District, Eastem
Division, located in Cleveland, Ohio, or, if such court shall not have jurisdiction, in any state or
federal court sitting in Cleveland, Ohio, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to
this Agreement and agrees that all claims in respect of the action or proceedings may be heard
and determined in any such court and hereby expressly submits to the personal jurisdiction and
venue of such court for the purposes hereof and expressly waives any claim of improper venue
and any claim that such courts are an inconvenient forum. Each of the Parties hereto hereby
irrevocably consents to the service of process of any of the aforementioned courts in any such
suit, action or proceeding by the mailing of copies thereof by registered or certified mail, postage
prepaid, to its address set forth in Section 8.6, such service to become effective ten (10) days
after such mailing.

(c) Waiver of Jury Trial. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO WAIVES
ANY RIGHT IT MAY HAVE TO TRIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION
BASED ON ARISING OUT OF, UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT
OR ANY TRANSACTION DOCUMENT, OR ANY COURSE OF CONDUCT, COURSE OF
DEALING, VERBAL OR WRITTEN STATEMENT OR ACTION OF ANY PARTY
HERETO.

9.5 Assignment. No Party will assign (by operation of law or otherwise) any right
or obligation under this Agreement without the other applicable Party's prior written consent.
Any attempted assignment without such consent will be void. Subject to the foregoing, this
Agreement, including Section 8.4 hereof, will be binding upon and will inure to the benefit of the
Parties' respective successors and permitted assigns.

9.6 Notices. Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be sufficient if in
writing and sent by E-maii transmission (provided that any notice received by E-mail or
otherwise at the addressee's location on any Business Day after 5:00 p.m. (local time of the
recipient) shall be deemed to have been received at 9:00 a.m. (local time of the recipient) on the
next Business Day), by reliable overnight delivery service (with proof of service), hand delivery
or certified or registered mail (retum receipt requested and first-class postage prepaid), addressed
as follows (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified in a notice given in
accordance with this Section 8.6):

{01300962-1}



(a) if to Receiver to:

Mark E. Dottore, Receiver
Dottore Companies, LLC
2344 Canal Road
Cleveland, Ohio 44113
E-Mail: Mark@DottoreCo.com

with cnpv (which shall not constitute noticed to:

McCarthy, Lebit, Crystal & Liffman Co., L.P.A.
101 West Prospect Avenue, Suite 1800
Cleveland, Ohio 44115
E-mail: can@mccarthylebit.com
Attention: Charles A. Nemer, Esq.

(b) ifto AiLV. to:

William A. Turbay
3017 West Charleston Boulevard, Suite 20E
Las Vegas, NY 89102
E-mail: waturbay@gmail.com
Attention: William A. Turbay

with COPV (which shall not constitute notice) to:

Howard and Howard
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000
Las Vegas, NV 89169
E-mail: gmullins@howardandhoward.com
Attention: Gwen Rutar-Mullins, Esq.

9.7 Interpretation.

(a) Unless otherwise indicated, all references herein to Articles, Sections or
Schedules, shall be deemed to refer to Articles, Sections or Schedules of or to this Agreement, as
applicable.

(b) Unless otherwise indicated, the words "include, includes and
"including," when used herein, shall be deemed in each case to be followed by the words
"without limitation."

(c) The word "or" is not exclusive.

(d) The words "hereof," "herein," and "hereunder" and words of simUar
import when used in this Agreement shall refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any
particular provision of this Agreement.

{01300962-1}





(e) The table of contents and headings set forth in this Agreement are for
convenience of reference purposes only and shall not affect or be deemed to affect in any way
the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement or any term or provision hereof.

(f) Whenever the context may require, any pronouns used in this Agreement
shall include the corresponding masculine, feminine or neuter forms, and the singular form of
nouns and pronouns shall include the plural, and vice versa.

(g) When used herein, the word "extent" and the phrase "to the extent" means
the degree to which a subject or other thing extends, and such word or phrase shall not simply
mean "if."

(h) Any Law defined or referred to herein or in any agreement or instrument
that is referred to herein means such Law as from time to time amended, modified or
supplemented, including (in the case of statutes) by succession of comparable successor Laws.

(i) Unless "Business Days" are expressly specified, all references to "days"
are to calendar days.

(j) The Parties hereto agree that they have been represented by counsel during
the negotiation and execution of this Agreement and, therefore, waive the application of my
Law, holding or rule of construction providing that ambiguities in an agreement or other
document will be construed against the party drafting such agreement or document.

9.8 No Joint Venture. Nothing in this Agreement, is intended to or shall constitute
the parties hereto as partners or participants in a joint venture.

9 9 Title and Headings. The titles and captions in this Agreement are for referent
purposes only, and shall not in any way define, limit, extend or describe the scope of this
Agreement or otherwise affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

9.10 Expenses. Except as may otherwise be expressly set forth herein or in any
other document all fees and expenses incurred in connection with the authorization, preparation,
negotiation execution and performance of this Agreement and the potential consummation of the
trmsactions contemplated hereby shall be the obligation of the respective Party incumng such
fees and expenses.

9.11 Amendments. This Agreement, and any other exhibits, appendices, schedules,
or attactenents hereto, may be amended or modified in whole or in part only by a writing signed
by all of the Parties.

9 12 Entire Agreement. The terms contained in this Agreement, and any schedules,
anoendices exhibits or other attachments, which are incorporated (including any updated
versions thereof) into this Agreement by this reference constitutes the entire agreement between

{01300962-1}



the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, superseding all prior understandings,
proposals and other communications, oral or written, with respect to the subject matter hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of
the day and year first above written.

THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS, LLC,
by and through Mark E. Dottore, Receiver

Dated

tore. Receiver

SAVE THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS
LIMITED

Dated:

Manager

3 ' -

10

{01300962-1}



APPENDIX I - DEFINITIONS

The following terms have the meanings set forth below:

"Accrediting Body" means any non-governmental entity, including institutional and
specialized accrediting agencies, which engage in the granting or withholding of accreditation of
postsecondary educational institutions or programs in accordance with standards relating to the
performance, operations, financial condition or academic standards of such institutions,
including the University Accreditor.

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries controlling, controlled by or under common control with
such other Person. For purposes of the immediately preceding sentence, the term "control"
(including, with correlative meanings, the terms "controlling," "controlled by" and "under
common control with"), as used with respect to any Person, means the possession, directly or
indirectly, of the power to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of such
Person, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

"Authorized Representative" means a Person authorized to sign this Agreement pursuant
to a Paity's delegation of authority policy in effect at the time of signing or otherwise in
accordance with its internal control documentation.

"Board" means, with respect to any Person, the board of trustees, board of managers,
board of directors or similar governing body of such Person.

"Business Assets" means all right, title, and interest in and to all of the assets owned,
used or held for use by the University or its Affiliates with respect to the business of the
University located at 2350 Corporate Circle Drive, Henderson, Nevada, including all of their
respective (a) personal property, (b) University's intellectual property rights and other
intellectual property rights, (c) agreements and contracts, (d) governmental approvals,
(e) business data and other written materials, (f) accounts receivable, (g) goodwill, (h)the
sponsorship of and all assets maintained pursuant to or in connection with any assumed
Employee Benefit Plan, (i) all inventory, and (k) any computer systems used in financial aid
management and administration, any curricular materials, curricular know-how, any accoimts
receivable, student records, in each case related to (i) academic functions (instruction, advising,
tutoring, faculty oversight and training) and (ii) financial aid functions.

"Business Dav" means any day other than (a) a Saturday or Sunday or (b) a day on which
banking institutions located in Cleveland, Ohio are permitted or required by Law to remain
closed.

"Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Information" means: (a) all confidential and proprietary information (in
oral written, electronic, or other form) of, or relating to, a Disclosing Party, mcludmg
information relating to its business and operations, employees, plans, strategies, assets, liabiliUes,
and future, current, and prospective students and applicants; and (b) the terms and conditions of
this Agreement.

{01300962-1}



"Core Exoenses" means, for the applicable period, all cash expenses paid by or on behalf
of the University for Core Services, but only to the extent that such costs are related to
obligations, agreements and employees actually employed directly by and paid by the University
plus any and all expenses from the Effective Date associated with the Lease Agreement, secunty,
janitorial services and the physical campus.

"Core Services" has the meaning set forth in Section 1.1.

"Court" means the United States District Court, Northern District of Ohio, Eastem
Division, which is hearing the Litigation matter.

"DOE" means United States Department of Education and any successor agency
administering student financial assistance under Title IV.

"Educational Agency" means any entity or organization, whether governmental,
government chartered, tribal, private, or quasi-private, that engages in granting or withholding
Educational Approvals, administers Financial Assistance Programs to or for students of, or
otherwise regulates postsecondary schools or programs, in accordance with standards relating to
the performance, operation, financial condition, privacy or academic standards of such schools
and programs, including the DOE, any Accrediting Body and any State Educational Agency.

"HEA" means the Higher Education Act of 1965, 20 U.S.C. § 1001 et seq., as amended,
or any successor statute thereto.

"Law" means any applicable law, statute, treaty, constitution, principle of common law,
ordinance code, rule, regulation. Order or other legal requirement issued, enacted, adopted,
promulgated, implemented or otherwise put into effect by or under the authority of any
Governmental Authority, as amended, unless expressly specified otherwise herein.

"Non-Core Expenses" means, for the applicable period, the ISA Fee payable to DCEH
under the TSA.

"Non-Core Services" means all Services other than Core Services that are to be
performed by DCEH under the TSA.

"Order" means any order, judgment, decision, decree, injunction, pronouncement, ruling,
writ or assessment of, by or on behalf of any Governmental Authority (whether temporary,
preliminary or permanent) or arbitrator.

"Proceeding" means any claim, charge, complaint, grievance, inquiry, audit,
investigation, action, suit, litigation or proceeding by or before (or could come before) or brought
on behalf of any Govemmental Authority, Educational Agency or arbitrator.

"Title IV Programs" means the programs of federal student financial assistance
administered pursuant to Title IV.

"Title IV" means Title IV of the HEA.

(01300962-1)2





ATTACHMENT H

TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT

(See Attached)

ATTACHMENT H





TRANSITION SERVICES AGREEMENT

This TR ANSTTTON SRRVTCRS AGRRRMRNT (this "Agreement"), is made and entered
into as of March 28,2019, but shall be effective as of April 1, 2019 (the "Effective Date") by and
among DREAM CENTER EDUCATION HOLDINGS, LLC, an Arizona not-for-profit limited
liability company ("DCEH"), by and through MARK E. DOTTORE, Receiver, and SAVE THE
ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS LIMl'I'KD, a Nevada limited liability company, its designee
or assignee ("Buver"). DCEH and Buyer may be referred to herein individually as a "Party" and
collectively as the "Parties".

WHEREAS, Buyer has entered into a certain Managed Services Agreement (the
"Managed Sei-vices Agreement"), dated as of the date hereof, with THE ART INSTITUTE OF
LAS VEGAS, LLC, an Arizona not-for-profit limited liability company ("University") for the
campus located at 2350 Corporate Circle, Henderson, NV 89074;

WHEREAS, prior to the date hereof, the University is an Affiliate of DCEH and
received certain services from DCEH;

WHEREAS, Buyer and its Affiliates will need the full right and ability to Use certain
software and other Technology or to receive certain Transition Services from DCEH;

WHEREAS, DCEH desires to convey to Buyer and its Affiliates the full right and ability
to use such software and other Technology and to receive certain Transition Services, all as
delineated more fully herein;

WHEREAS, this Agreement is an integral component of the transactions consummated
pursuant to the Managed Services Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements and
understandings herein contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged,
the Parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I

Definitions

Capitalized terms that appear in this Agreement are used with the meanings set forth in Exhibit 1
(attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference), or otherwise where such term is first
identified and set off by quotation marks.

{01294248-1}



article n

Transition Services

2.1 Transition Services.

(a) Transition Services. During the term of this Agreement, DCEH agrees to
orovide or to cause its Affiliates to provide, the certain transition services set forth on
Schedule A attached hereto (the "Tmnsition Services"). D^ng die f
Buyer may decrease any of the Transition Services being provided by DCEH if fad when Buyer
determines that those Transition Services are no longer required or can be provided by the Buyer
or its third party provided.

(b) tinnriarH of Services. DCEH agrees that it will provide or cause to be
provided the Transition Services in an ethical, professional, workmanlike manner md in all
Lterial respects in accordance with this Agreement, the Uw and relevant evolving state of the
industry standard.

2 2 Transition Services Fees. In consideration of providing the Transition Services,
Buver shall pay or cause to be paid to DCEH or its designee the monthly fees set forth on
Sedule A (die "TSA Fee"), payable on the first (1st) day of each month of the Term; praWedEffLi^^U not toe first (1st) of toe month, then on toe Effective Date, Buyer
shall pay the TSA Fee for the period from toe Effective Date through the last day of the calendarmontrCt^uLtanding the fLgoing, the initial payment for toe Transition Services shall be
made on or before April 5 2019. To the extent that Buyer decreases or eliminates any of the

accordingly and Buyer shall not be responsible to pay the portion of the TSA Fee for the
Transition Services that are no longer provided by DCEH.

ARTICLE III

Technology Services

11 Aereement to Provide Existing Services. DCEH shall provide the Buyer, at all
times during the Term, with access to: (a) all of toe services (toe "Shared IT Services") toat d
pmWdes now to toe University with respect to toe Shared IT Systems,
Tthose Shared IT Systems set forth on Exhibit 2 and (b)all of toe serves ^
ThirH-Pnrtv IT Services") that it provides now to the University with respect to Third Pai^
Materials Shared IT Systems, including access and Use of such Third-Party Matenals,
in each case ((a) and (b)). The foregoing Shared IT Services shall be provided on toe fee basis
pelSirto toe pmviously mentioned Schedule A hereto. Other Third-Party IT Semces «e
pSd pursuaift to Thkd-Party Agreement which DCEH has entered mto with third-party
vendors.

^ 2 ResDonsibility for Maintenance. DCEH is solely responsible for providing
maintaining, and supporting all infrastructure, personnel. Technology and other resources, and
for obtaining any third-party licenses.

3 3 Scheduled Maintenance. Unless the Parties agree otherwise in ̂ ting, DCEH
will perform all maintenance, other than emergency maintenance, between toe hours of 2 AM

{01294248-1}



and 5 AM Eastern Time and with forty-eight (48) hours advance notice to Buyer. Without
limiting any of DCEH's other obligations under this Agreement, DCEH may perform emergency
maintenance outside of scheduled maintenance windows m the event such maintenance is
reasonably and urgently required to protect the integrity, availability, safety, or secunty of any
Technology Used by the Business. In the event that DCEH determines that such emergency
maintenance is required, DCEH shall notify Buyer of such maintenance as soon as reasonably
possible.

3.4 Service Levels.

(a) Pmprirtarv Technology. With respect to Proprietary Technology, DCEH
will ensure that such Proprietary Technology continues to perform consistent with current
performance standards.

Third-Partv Technology. Without limiting DCEH's other obligations
under this AgrWment, DCEH shall ensure all Technology Used by the Business provided by
third parties other than DCEH's Affiliates is available in accordance with the service levels set
forth in the applicable agreement between DCEH and such third parties.

ARTICLE IV

Other Covenants of the Parties

41 Consideration; Withholding Taxes. DCEH is entering into this Agreement m
considenition for the amounts set forth in Schedule A, which shall be paid on the terms set forth
herein and therein.

4 2 Confidentiality. Each Party (the "Receiving Party") may use and disclose &e
other Party's (the »n;..r.ln.ing Party") Confidential Information in order to exercise the
Receiying Party's or its Affiliates' rights or perform its obligations under this Agreement

A A thut the Receiving Party (a) only discloses such Confidential Infoimation to its
Cpresentatives, (b) informs such Representatives of the confidential nature of such Confidential
Infonnation and (c) requires such Representatives to hold in confidence all such Confidential
T  +■ m or^A tn ii«;e it only for the purpose of exercising the Receiving Party s or the
Rec^tag Party's Affiliates' rights or performing the Receiving Party's obligations ^
Agreement The Receiving Party will use at least the same degree of care to protect the
DUclosing Party's Confidential Information as the Receivmg Party uses to protect the Receiving
Party's own Confidential Infonnation of like nature, but will use at least reasonable care.Reeling Party may disclose the Confidential Infonnation of the Disclosmg P^ m response toa 3 court order or other govenunen^ action, provid^ that: «^ the f tem
nprmi«ible the Disclosing Party is notified in wnting pnor to disclosure of such Co^dential
Lformation and given reasonable opportunity to obtain a protective order and (ii) the Receivmg
Party assists in any attempt to limit or prevent the disclosure of such Confidential Informahon.

{01294248-1}



ARTICLE V

Representations and Warranties

5.1 Mutual Representations. Each Party represents, warrants and covenants to the
other Parties that:

(a) Such Party has the full corporate power, right and authority to enter into
this Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder.

(b) The execution of this Agreement by such Party and the performance by
such Party of its obligations and duties hereunder does not conflict with any agreement to which
such Party is a party or by which it is bound.

(c) This Agreement is a binding obligation upon such Party and, when
executed by both Parties, is enforceable against such Party in accordance with its tenns.

(d) Such Party will comply with Laws in performing its obligations under the
Agreement.

ARTICLE VI

Term; Termination

a 1 Term. Unless sooner terminated by mutual agreement of the Parties, the term of
this Agreement begins on the Effective Date and will continue in effect for the penod as long^
is needed so that Buyer can transition all Transition Services to Buyer and/or its third party
contractors..

6 2 Effect of Termination. Termination of this Agreement shdl not relieve the
Buyer of its obligation to pay any outstanding TSA Fees for services utilized by the Buyer from
the Effective Date through the date of termination.

ARTICLE Vn

Miscellaneous

71 Waiver. Failure of either Party to insist on performance of any term or conation
of this Agreement or to exercise any right or privilege hereunder will not be constmed as a
continuing or future waiver of such term, condition, right or privilege. All nghte and remeies
exiting lider this Agreement are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or remedies
Otherwise available.

7 2 Severabiiity. In the event that any provision of this Agreement, or the
„i,v,t:on thereof becomes or is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, void

or unenforceable &e remainder of this Agreement will continue in full force and effect and the
application of such provision to other persons or circumstances will be interpreted so asapplication o i replace such

lTd°or uLnforceable provision of this Agreement with a valid and enforceable provision tiiat
will achieve, to the extent possible, the economic, business and other purposes of such
unenforceable provision.

{01294248-1}



7 3 Counterparts. This Agreement, and any amendments thereto may be executed in
one or more counterparts, all of which shall be considered one and J^^^^Sre^eirt^d sh^^^
become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by each of the P^es and
delivered to the other party, it being understood that all Parties need not sign the s^e
counterpart Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature pa^ to thrs Agreement by
fecS tmnsmission or by E-mail of a .pdf attachment shall be effective as delivery of a
manually executed counterpart of this Agreement.

7.4 Governing Law; Jurisdiction and Venue; Waiver of Jury Trial.

(a) rmveming Law. This Agreement, and all Proceedings or counterclaims
(whether based on contract, tort or otherwise) arising out of or relating to this Agreemenmd the
Transaction Documents or the actions of the Parties hereto in the negotiation, admimstrahon
nerformance and enforcement hereof and thereof, shall be governed by and constraed m
acirdance with the internal substantive Laws of the State of Ohio, without ̂ ving effect to any
choice or conflict of Laws provision or rule (whether of the State of Ohio or any oAer
jurisdiction) that would cause the application of the Laws of any jurisdiction other than the a
of Ohio.

(b) inricHiriion and Venue. Each of the Parties hereto submits to die
exclusive jurisdiction and venue of the United States District Court. Northern District of Ohio
Eastem located in Cleveland, Ohio, or, if such court shall not have jurisdiction, any stete or
federal court sitting in Cleveland, Ohio, in any action or proceeding arising out of or relating to
this Agreement and agrees that all claims in respect of the action or proceedings may be heard
and determined in any such court and hereby expressly submits to the personal jurisdiction and
t^le of such court for the purposes hereof and expressly waives any claim of myroper venue~y cTalm ̂ f such court/^are an inconvenient forum. Each of the Parties hemto hereby

Kiv rr»n.?ents to the scrvicc of piocess of any of the aforementioned courts m any such
'suracdoLr proceeding by the mailing of copies thereof by registered or wrtified mad pW
prepaid, to its address set forth in Section 7.6, such service to become effective ten (10) days
after such mailing.

M Waiver of Inrv Trial. EACH OF THE PARTIES HERETO WAIVK
AMV rtphT IT may have TO^RIAL BY JURY IN RESPECT OF ANY LITIGATION
R A Inn ON ARISING OUT OF UNDER OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT
of fSv ?nt^sIcTION Do6^^ or any COURSE OF CONDUCT, COURSE OFSlSo oroten statement or action of any party
HERETO.

7 5 Assignment. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, neither Party will
assign (by operation of law or otherwise) any ri^t or obligation under
toe Sher Party's prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

7 6 Notices. Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be sufficient if m
' ̂ Viv F-mail transmission (provided that any notice received by E-mail or

^Iwisrat the addressee's location on any Business Day after 5:00 p.m (local time of toe
Snt) shall be deemed to have been received at 9:00 a.m. (local time of toe recipient) on the

{01294248-1}



next Business Day), by reUable overnight delivery service (with proof of service), hand dehvery
or certified or registered mail (return receipt requested and first-class postage prepaid), addressed
as follows (or at such other address for a party as shall be specified in a notice given m
accordance with this Section 7.6):

(a) if to DCEH, to:

Dream Center Education Holdings, LLC
Mark E. Dottore, Receiver
Dottore Companies, LLC
2344 Canal Road
Cleveland, Ohio 44113
E-Mail: Mark@DottoreCo.com

witli coDV (which shall not constitute noticeltoi

McCarthy, Lebit, Crystal & Lif&nan Co., L.P.A.
101 West Prospect Avenue, Suite 1800
Cleveland, Ohio 44115
E-mail: can@mccarthylebit.com
Attention: Charles A. Nemer, Esq.

(b) i f to Buver. to:

William A. Turbay

3017 West Charleston Boulevard, Suite 20B
Las Vegas, NY 89102
E-mail: waturbay@gmail.com
Attention: William A. Turbay

with copies (which shall not constitute notice! to:

Howard and Howard
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 1000
Las Vegas, NV 89169
E-mail: gmullins@howardandhoward.com
Attention: Owen Rutar-Mullins, Esq

7 7 Further Assurances. On or after the date of this Agreement, the Parties will
execute Md deliver or cause to be executed and delivered such further documeiits and take such
further actions as may reasonably be required for the purposes of assunng and confimung theS"hereby created or granted hereunder or for otherwise facilitating the performance of the
terms of the Agreement.

7 8 Interpretation. All headings herein are not to be considered in the constoction
or interpretation of any provision of this Agreement. Throughout this Agreement, (i) nouns,

6

{01294248-1}



pronouns and verbs shaU be construed as masculine, feminine, neuter, singular or plmal,
whichever shall be applicable, (ii) the words "includes" or "including" means "mcluding wthout
limitation" and ate intended to introduce a non-exclusive set of examples, (m) the word or is
not exclusive and (iv)the words "hereof," "herein," "hereunder" and similar terms in this
Agreement refer to this Agreement as a whole and not any particular section or article m wluch
such words appear. All references to "dollars" or "$" are to the lawful currency of the Umted
States Unless "business days" are expressly specified, all references to "days" are to calenito
days All references herein to "Articles," "Sections" and "Paragraphs' shall refer to
corresponding provisions of this Agreement. This Agreement was drafted with the joint
participation of both Parties and will be construed neither against nor in favor of either, but
rather in accordance with the fair meaning thereof. In the event of any apparent conflicte or
inconsistencies between this Agreement and any schedules, exhibits or other attachments to it, to
the extent possible such provisions will be interpreted so as to make them consistent, and if such
is not possible, the provisions of this Agreement will prevail

7 9 No Joint Venture; Relationship of Parties. Nothing in this Agreement,
expressed or implied, is intended to or shall constitute the Parties hereto partners or participants
in a joint venture.

7 10 Title and Headings. The titles and captions in this Agreement are for reference
purposes' only, and shall not in any way define, limit, extend or describe the scope of this
Agreement or otherwise affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement.

711 Expenses. Except as may otherwise be expressly set forth herein, all fees and
expenses' incurred in connection with the authorization, preparation, negotiation, execution and
performance of this Agreement and the potential consummation of the transactions contemplated
hereby shall be the obligation of the respective party incurring such fees and expenses.

712 Amendments. This Agreement, including any exhibits, appendices, schedules, or
attachments hereto, may be amended or modified in tvhole or in part only by a wntii« sign^
and delivered by each of the Parties. To the extent &at any Edu^tio^l Agency nohfies the
University, DCEH or Buyer of concerns regardmg the terms of this A^ement, DCEH an
Buyer a^ee to immediately amend the terms of this Agreement to fully comply with the
Educational Agency's requirements.

713 Entire Agreement. The terms contained in this Agreement, and any schedules
appendic'es, exhibits or other attachments, which are incorporated (including any updated
versions thereof) into the Agreement by this reference, constitute the entire agreement be^een
the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, superseding all pnor understanings,
proposals and other communications, oral or written, with respect to the subject matter here .

714 ObUgations. In the event that any provision of this Agreement, or the application
thereof becomes or is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, void or
unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement wiU continue m fiill force and effect and the
application of such provision to other persons or circumstances will be mterpreted so as
rLsSly to effect tL intent of the Parties hereto. The Parties further agree to replace such
void or unenforceable provision of this Agreement with a valid and enforceable provision that

{01294248-1}



will achieve, to the extent possible, the economic, business and other purposes of such void or
unenforceable provision.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of
the day and year first above written.

dream center EDI^TION HOLDINGS, LLC

E. Dottore

iver

SAVE THE ART INSTITUTE OF LAS VEGAS
LIMITED

By; SyjU
Name: Willia^ A. Turbay
Title: Manager

{01294248-1}



F.XHIBIT 1

definitions

"Affiliate" means, with respect to any Person, any other Person directly or mdhectly
throughlJir^more intermediaries controlling, controlled by or under common coiitol wift
such other Person. For purposes of the immediately pmceding
(including with correlative meanings, the terms "controlling, controlled by and mder
common control with"), as used with respect to any Pei^on, means the possession, d^ctly or
indirectiy of the power to direct or cause the direchon of the management and policies of such
Person, whether through ownership of voting securities, by contract or otherwise.

"Business" means, coilectiveiy, the business of the University as it is currently conducted
and as such University (or such University's designee, successor or assign) determine to conduct
them in the future.

"CmifidenMInMaation" means, with respect to a Disclosing Party any confidential or
proprietary information of such Disclosing Party or its Affiliates that is either marked asking
"Confidential" or "Proprietary" or under the circumstances of disclosure should reasonably be
c2S S confiSal orl^roprietary. Confidential Information of both Parties includes tiie
terms (but not the existence) of tliis Agreement. The Studio Confidential Informauon includes
^ildio Data and any other Personal Data that DCEH or the Authonz^ Personnel may ̂ ve
access to under this Agreement. Confidential Information does not mclude information (otherftrL!^rDl%at W is in or enters the public domain without breach of this Agreemen
through no fauit of the Receiving Party; (b) the Receivmg Party was lazily in poss^sion of
withom any obligation of confidentiality or nondisclosure prior to Receiving it
Disclosing Party; (c) the Receiving Party can demonstrate was developed by the Receiving P^
or its Affiliates independently and without use of or reference to the Disclosing P^y sConLnSl MoJmXn; or (d)the Receiving Party receives from a third Person without
restriction on disclosure and without breach of a nondisclosure obligation.

"Law" means any applicable law, statute, treaty, constitution, principle of co^on law,
ordinan3r"code, rule, regulation, Order or other iegal requirement issued, enacted^ adopted,

implemented or otherwise put into effect by or under Ae authonty of any
Lvenmental Authority, as amended, unless expressly specified otherwise herein.

Tcchnologv" means any Technology Used by the Business which is owned
by, or developed by or on behalf of, DCBH or any of its Affiliates.

"Shjired IT Svstems" means Technology owned by DCEH and made available by DCEH
on a non-exclusive, restrictive access, shared service basis to &e University, on the one hand,
and any other imiversity where such shared services are provided, on the other hand.

"Teclinologv" means information technology, hardware and computer systems, induing
those relating to fee transmission, storage, maintenance, organization, presentation, generation.
?resSg 0? ̂aVsis of all data and information collected, generated^ or used in the conduc of
the Business. Technoiogy includes: (a) software, integrations, cloud services, databases.

Page 1 of Exhibit 1

{01294248-1}



websites domain names, applications, telecommunications solutions, other information
technology infrastructure and assets, hardware and other information technology or
communications equipment and (b) all related source code, object code, firmware, development
tools, files, records and data, and all media on which any of the foregoing is recorded and all
documentation associated with the foregoing.

"Thirrt-Partv Aereement" means any Contract between DCEH and a third Person pursuant
to which such third Person agrees to provide or license any Third-Party Materials, and any
Contracts for Third-Party Support. Third-Party Agreements include those agreements listed on
Exhibit 3.

"ThirH-Partv Materials" means Technology Used by the Business which consists of
Technology or other materials that are in each case owned or controlled by a Person other than
DCEH.

"Use" means to (a) access, load, execute, compile, manipulate, use. Process, store, purge,
transmit, receive, display, copy, connect, communicate with,
adapt, translate, enhance and create derivative works, anywhere in the world and (b) make, have
made, distribute, import and export, anywhere in the world.

Page 2 of Exhibit 1

{01294248-1}



EXHIBIT 2

Shared IT Systems

Shared IT Svstemsi

The following is a list of all Technology utilized by the University, which is not exclusive to it
and which constitutes Shared IT Systems. These Technologies are shared across the DCEH
platform:

Description
Name

Workstation Desktop or laptop computer system to display^ access and manipulate
data. DCEH will also provide the Studio Entities access to and the ability
to Use any Workstations constituting Technology Used by the Business.

Wireless Controller 5ata center device used to manage remote campus and CS
access points

Wireless
Wireless access points to allow wireless computers and approved
personal devices to access the corporate, student or public Internet

Webspace The Ai Parties are moving their student web space in-house to Amazon
ec2 Direct Admin Console. Faculty and staff may need to create their own
personal website within their own sub domain for educational purposes.
This is made possible by the Web Space System

Waves Gold and Platinum + Tunes +

360

Classroom Software - for audio editing and plugins

Wan Optimizations Device used to improve performance between the remote campus and
data center.

V-Ray Rendering Plugin for Maya Classroom Software animation rendering

VPN Cisco
Software used to provide full network access to remote employees and
contractors

Voyager / OPAC
.net Library Tracking

Vormetric

Vordel

Encryption and key mgmt to protect Pll data. At rest encryption only.

XML Gateway which provides SSO and web service security

VMWare - Fusion and Workstation
Virtuallzation software

VitalSource Online Classroom

Visix Axis SW Maintenance
Visix display systems at the campuses

Page 1 of Exhibit 2

{01294248-1}



Video Conferencing

Vectorworks

Conference room and personal video call services.

Classroom Software for 3D design

User Access Request Generic Configuration Item for tracking requests/issues with general User
Access Request items

USB Block USB Block Exception Requests for staff.

UPS
Generic Configuration Item for tracking requests/issues with UPS devices
within the Infrastructure

Universal Content Management

(UCM)

Content Management System

Turnitin.com
Plagiarism checker for students.

Tripwire Security and Audit Detection/Reporting

Classroom Software
Trimble SketchUp Pro

Trintech
3rd party SAAS Reconciliation services for General Ledger

Transcript Request System (STS) System used to manage transcript requests from students (both high
crhnni and collesel

Equipment Cage Check-out application
Trackit Works

Provides a website for efficiently loading transfer credits into CampusVueTOC (Transfer of Credits)

Tidal

Thinkingstorm

Textbooks Ul

Test Out

Enterprise Scheduler

On Demand tutoring provided to students via the online classroom. This
is used by AlO, Al Ground Plus Students, AUO, and AUG.
Website that allows textbook information to be loaded into CampusVue
in bulk.

Term Configuration Tool

Telephony

Telco Carrier

Team Foundation Server

Generic Configuration Item for tracking requests/issues with Telephony
equipment within the Infrastructure
Public utility company that provides us with both data and voice services.
AT&T, CenturyLink, XO are the most frequently used here.
Team Foundation Server (TFS) - A Microsoft Source Code Management
(SCM) and Project Tracking tool for software developers, which supports

Page 2 of Exhibit 2

{01294248-1}



Tax Factory

Symantec Validation and ID
Protection Service (VIP)

collaborative development of software within a team, and the tracking of
changes to software source code revisions.

tax calculation and payroll tax compliance solutions

Symantec Endpoint Protection Antivlrus protection.

Symantec Data Loss Protection (DIP) Safeguards intellectual property and ensures compliance by protecting
sensitive data wherever it lives—on premises, in the cloud, or at the
endpoints

Switch
Generic Configuration Item for tracking requests/issues with
within the Network

Student Payment Application (SPA)

Student Orientation

Student Financial Planning

User interface used by staff at The Center to accept payments from
students via the SecureNet iframe
Courseware product utilizing Adapt (purchased by Fulcrum)
Orientation courses and expanding its use to other courses.

Student Financial Planning (SFP) is a web-based solution that provides
students a financial plan to demonstrate affordabllity for their respective
program. The application helps users provide financial plans for students.

Student Course Scheduling System
(Student CSS)

Allows students to sign up for short courses

Student Body Flow (SBF)

Stipend Generator

Sterling

State Grants

Used by registrars to submit their student body flow reports to the CS
finance group for disclosure purposesTinam-c giuup iwi w ,—

Data Transfer process and website allowing for data entry and
transmission to Sallie Mae. Sallie Mae cuts checks to students and issues
a remittance file, which is loaded back into the SIS
This is an automated process that pulls data from third Person vendors,
secure FTP site and posts the student payments in CampusVue

Dynamic application used for generating State Grants data files

Staff Learning System
Brightspace staff LMS

Sourcefire IDS Intrusion Detection System

Solidworks 3D CAD

Socrates

Classroom Software for 3D modeling

Front end application for faculty to apply to be a teacher at our schools.

SOA
platform providing data/integration services for my campus portal and
other applications

Address validations toolSmartyStreets

Page 3 of Exhibit 2

{01294248-1}





SiteCore

SIS Custom Applications Landing Page

SharePoint

SGUI (Student Group User Interface)

SFA Custom Apps (Landing Page)

ServiceNow

SendWordNow

Security Equipment

Security

Schedule Manager

Scanners

Router

RightFax

RIC Process

Rhino by McNeel

Respondus

Rema Grad Team Application

RedHat

RACER

Content Management System for Marketing Websites

List of links to all of the custom applications created and managed by the
Student Information Systems team

For anything related to: go.dcedh.org; my.dcedh.org and go3.dcedh.org
(which has SSRS and Bl)

Website that allows advanced student group manipulations

Student Financial Custom Applications landing page

SaaS provider of IT Service Management. It will be used as
Incident/Problem Tracking and Management, Knowledge Management,

Generic Configuration Item for tracking requests/issues with Security
Equipment within the Infrastructure

All calls related to items the Security Team needs to be involved in.

Rebalances students in courses based on user selection. Helps the Center
determine how many sections are needed for a course by term
Generic Configuration Item for tracking requests/issues with Scanners

Generic Configuration Item for tracking requests/issues with routers
within the Network

Centralized enterprise fax solution

Retail Installment Contract Process is an automated process that runs
week days. It goes out and gets a file from third Person vendors. Tuition
Options, processes it, stores data in CVInterface and updates data in CARS
and CampusVue.

Classroom Software for 3D printing of Industrial design

3rd Party Course Management product that creates and manages exams
publishing directly with Brightspace

Keeps track of Grad Team members and organizational relationships

Linux OS for various DCEH servers

RACER stands for Regulatory Affairs & Compliance Electronic Records. It is
an in-house web-based document repository that houses school
accreditation documentation and data for the Regulatory Affairs
department. RACER is used by all CS Regulatory Affairs & Compliance

{01294248-1}

Page 4 of Exhibit 2





Qlikview

Public Key Infrastructure (PKI)

ProTools, ProTools HD, and Sibelius

department members as well as School Presidents and associated staff.

Data Warehouse Dashboard and Reporting

Microsoft CA Public Key. A public key infrastructure (PKI) consists of
software and hardware elements that a trusted third Person can use to
establish the integrity and ownership of a public key. The trusted party,
called a certification authority (CA), typically accomplishes this by issuing
signed (encrypted) binary certificates that affirm the identity of the
certificate subject and bind that identity to the public key contained in
the certificate. The CA signs the certificate by using its private key. It
issues the corresponding public key to all interested parties In a self-
signed CA certificate.
Classroom Software for audio editing

ProofPoint

Program Integrity

Email SPAM and A/V Gateway

Program Course Management
System (PCMS)

Printers

Presentation Technology

Program Integrity application provides the new program coordinators
with the ability to map state restrictions to CampusVue program versions,
as well as ability to create disclosures and disclaimers and Enrollment
Agreements for regulatory and compliance purposes
Program and course management for new courses; similar to Content
Alert/Course Revision

PlanView

Pixologic Z Brush

Generic Configuration item to be used for Printer configuration/Issues

Technology used in the classroom environment or conference rooms to
provide presentations. This includes Projectors, Conference lines, TVs,
Switchers, Inputs, etc.

Project Management Application

Classroom Software Animation for 3D/2D texturing and painting

PerformLine
Speech Analytics Software

Password System (Center) Manages passwords for all Internal systems; except for those using AD

Palo Alto (Captive Portal) System used to authenticate a user for Internet access on wired networks

Outlook

OpenVoice

Microsoft Outlook is a personal information manager from Microsoft,
available as a part of the Microsoft Office suite. Although often used
mainly as an email application. It also includes a calendar, task manager,
contact manager, note taking, journal, and web browsing. —
Citrix OpenVoice Conferencing is a reservation less audio-conferencing
service that has a SOO-participant limit and is accessible via a toll-free
number. The service also offers recording, the ability to manage

Page 5 of Exhibit 2

{01294248-1}



conference calls via an online console and Integrates with Outlook for
easier scheduling,

OpenAthens by EBSCO Allows for identity and access management for students to seamlessly
access e-resources. The OpenAthens tool eliminates the EZProxy product
for all brands. —

Office365 - Skype
Collaborative functionality provided by the Office 365 Suite. This provides
the ability to chat in live time with others using the Lync Online system.

Office365 - Power Bl Power Bl reports are developed and then published to 0365 Power Bl to
be consumed by our customers. There is also a process using a Gateway
that will refresh the reports with updated data if a schedule is setup for
the report. —

Office365 - Outlook Online Email functionality provided by the Office 365 Suite. This relates to the
Outlook email client and Exchange online technology

Office365 - OneDrive Office 365 Storage area for any documents/data

Office365 - Office Pro Plus This is the installation pack for the Office 365 client tools such as Outlook,
Word, Excel, PowerPoint, etc.

Nexpose
Vulnerability Scanning System

Network
Generic Configuration Item for tracking requests/issues with Network
devices within the Infrastructure
Network Node Manager

NetQOS

MyGroups Tool that allows users to create/manage their own distribution groups.

MyCampusPortal Student and Faculty Portal

MSBl Reports Web based reporting tool for employees to get reporting data.

Movie Magic Scheduling Classroom Software for video development

Movie Magic Budgeting Classroom Software for video development

Mobile Phone
Mobile/Cellular devices

Microsoft Azure SQL a cloud computing service created by Microsoft for building, testing,
deploying, and managing applications and services

Media Composer
Classroom Software for video editing

Maxon Cinema 4D Studio Bundle Classroom Software in game art 3D development

Marketing Websites Marketing Web Sites

Page 6 of Exhibit 2

{01294248-1}



•  iv ■

■ii- ■ •

Ci: ;



Lynda.com Tutorials that are Integrated into the online classroom.

Luxion Keyshot Pro Lab Pack t Classroom Software for 3D movement

Load Balancer
Application load testing tool

Lawson
Asset Management, including human capital and finance system

Kronos
Time Management System

Komplete Suite Classroom Software for audio instruction

iZotope Music Production Suite
(Includes: RX, Ozone, Neutron,

Classroom Software for audio production

InGenius Software

Informatica

Application that connects phone systems to CRMs - Microsoft Dynamics,
ServiceNow - with features like screen pop & click-to-call.

Data Integration and ETL

Infer Fxpense Management Travel & Entertainment Expense Vendor

Imperva
Database Access Management System

IModules Alumni Community Trhe objective of the IModules Data Integration project is to design and
implement an automated solution to facilitate the outbound and inbound
data exchange with the new IModules Encompass platform for all Ed
Systems except Western State. The outbound data will be used to create
and update alumni records for pending graduates, graduates and
students who are on externship/lnternship. The inbound write-back will
uodate student/graduate demographic information in the SIS.

ImageNow Upload Center Allows documents to be uploaded without direct access of ImageNow

ImageNow
Document Imaging

Image Onsite Bank of America Image Onsite

IDEA

lARM

[Student rating of Instruction Survey's given to students to rate faculty
effectiveness in a course. Most of the IDEA surveys are distributed via
paper form in the classroom and then sent to IDEA to process the
answers. Online does use a web system to do their surveys but the
student/faculty/course information is manually uploaded by the EDW

1 team.
~  lARM: The Identity Access and Role Management system. This system is

used to create/terminate/re-hire employee accounts based on HR data

{01294248-1}

Page 7 of Exhibit 2



HVAC

HP Virtual User Generator (VuGen)

HP uCMDB

This application was developed for use byiFA Advisors. Its use is to allow
FA Planners to show new and continuing students costs, aid, and loan
information over the length of their program of studies.
Regarding the central Heating/Ventilation and Air Conditioning systems in
the Data Center
VuGen is also used for HP BSM. It recordsthe scripts for Business Process
Monitor (synthetic transactions)

Configuration Management Database,

HP Systems Insight Manager System management tool designed to help manage HP servers.

HP SiteScope
Agent-less monitoring software focused on monitoring the availability
and performance of distributed IT infrastructures, including Servers,
Network devices and services. Applications and application components,
operating systems and various IT enterprise components.

HP OpenView Performance Manager
(OVPM)

HP OpenView Operations Manager
(OVOW)

trace running performance manager

System monitoring

HP Network Node Manager (NNM)

HP Device and Dependency Mapping

software that helps unify fault, availability, and performance monitoring
to

Improve network uptime and performance, and increase responsiveness
to business needs
Organizes hardware and software assets across the enterprise.

HP Data Protector

HP Business Service Management

HP Business Process Monitor (BPM)

Enterprise Backup Software

manage the performance of enterprise applications, systems, networks
and storage
software that uses synthetic transactions to identify performance issues
before they affect web or mobile customers

HP ArcSight ArcSight Logger, Enterprise Security Manager (ESM) and
SmartConnectors. Security log col lectio niand alerting system.—o w. ,

Holds Automation

Harmony and Story Board by
ToonBoom

Automation for the Non-Payment and Re-entry Policy Hold processes for
CampusVue

Halogen HR System that offers a talent management suite that reinforces and
drives higher employee performance across all talent programs - whether
that is performance management, learning and development, succession
planning, recruiting and onboarding, or compensation

Grasshopper This is a replacement Cl for Skype. This provides the ability to
time with others using the Grasshopper.*

Page 8 of Exhibit 2

{01294248-1}





Grad Team Affairs

GoToMeeting

Any tasks associated with the graduation team.

Gerber Accumark and Yunique PLM Classroom Sottware tor Tashion design and product development

Genesys A Telecom Solution that currently provides inbound routing for WCTs at
OHE and Ai Ground

Foglight

Firewall

Federal FA Repack Report Config

Faculty Session Prep

Faculty Course Import

EZ Proxy

Exchange

Application monitoring solution that helps organizations monitor and
control the performance of mission-critical enterprise applications
Device used to protect or separate network segments

This application is used to configure Federal FA Repack Report
parameters.

Used by Online Faculty to allow them to accept their courses as well as
order any supplies (textbooks, software etc.) that they may need
It allows "The Center" faculty scheduling team to update CVue courses
with the instructors that accept courses from invitations sent from the
Course Scheduling Team. It needs to be updated in CVue for reporting
purposes.

Estimated Financial Impact Plan
(EFIP)

Library System

Microsoft Exchange is an e-mail messaging system from Microsoft that
runs on Windows servers. The server side is Microsoft Exchange Server
and the featured client program is Microsoft Outlook, which Includes
contacts and calendaring

The application sends student-specific financial data from CampusNexus
Student to the CFPB via a student-specific uri so that applicants can
complete an exercise that shows them how much it will cost them to
attend the school, how much they have to borrow to cover the costs that
thev can't pay out of pocket, and what it means for their future.

Erwin Data Modeler
Erwin Modeling provides a collaborative data modeling environmerit to
manage enterprise data through an intuitive, graphical interface. With a
centralized view of key data definitions, you can leverage information as a
strategic asset and more efficiently manage your data resources to save
time and money

Erwin Data Governance

Enterprise Mass Storage

Enterprise File Transfer

Erwin Data Governance is a SSAS data governance tool that will be usec
to store our enterprise Business Glossary, Data Dictionary, Business Rules
and the relationships of our data. This tool can also be used to govern all
of the processes to maintain data quality and security.
Enterprise Storage

Enterprise file transfer system which ftp, pgp, or related data transfer of
data between disparate systems such as data to/from external sources or
between two internal sources

Page 9 of Exhibit 2

{01294248-1}



Enterprise Data Warehouse (EDW) Enterprise data repository which accepts data feeds from several of our
operational systems and organizes the data for reporting and analysis.

Employee Portal Related to Lawson ESS

eLibrary Online library available via respective portal for students and faculty.

eLearning Content
Identification of this Ci should be done via the URL -
www.thecampuscommon.com. If an incorrect/missing content is found
on these pages, then have the appropriate team make the necessary
updates.

The responsible team is not in IT and therefore not in ServiceNow. During
business hours - "_CS Webmasters" and off hours or paging - "_CS
eLearning Content Page"^

Education Collective by The Foundry
(Nuke, CaraVR, Modo, Mari, and

Classroom Software for 3D rendering and effects

1 EdConnect

1 eBook

Department of Education application that is used to pull ISIR transaction
lies.

Used to upload eBook fees

Domain Name Service (DNS)
[Classroom]
Domain Name Service (DNS)

1 DocuSign

Domain Name Service

Domain Name Service

DocuSign is a web-based application that allows staff to send documents
to students to be signed electronically

Direct Loan Pell Reconciliation

Digital Application

Provides the interface to work on reconciliation cases for Direct loan and
Pell loan. Through the tidal process the DOE loan data in loaded in this
app's DB (SISInterface) and the app allows search, claim, reassign to
supervisor, close and reporting functionalities to resolve the cases.—
Online application for applicants to apply to come to school. Provides
integration to CRM, CampusVue (eventually CARS), ImageNow, EchoSign,
Program Integrity, RACER and SecureNet.

Degree Estimator Degree Estimator is a web application used to calculate a potential
student's estimated graduation date and estimated cost of an academic
year.

Data Center
This will involve any issues with the management of the Daia Cenlci. I mi
includes the application used to track data center configurations -
Aperture Vista Data Suite is software that helps manage activities with
the Data Center (power, cooling, space allocation, cabling, etc.). It is used
primarily by the Data Center Manager; however, other staff members
involved in related decision making are also users (Systems
Administration, Network Provisioning & Support, and others). The
product is owned by the IT Operations team, specifically, the Data Center

{01294248-1}

Page 10 of Exhibit 2



Cycling MAX MSP Audio Plugin

Manager,

Classroom Software

event
Service for high school students to take noncredit courses

Custom Authentication System (CAT) AKA the Authentication Tool - Active Directory user access via Framework
Authentication System that allows users to maintain specific applications
within IT

Course Tracking System (CTS)

Course Scheduling System (CSS)

Course Revision

Course Listing

Core Network

Contract Management

Provides ability to manage courses, textbooks, and degrees

System used by OHE to schedule facilitators to courses and terms, and for
•acilitators to accept/reject those assignments

Tracks Revisions for courses. It Is used to track the progress of course
revisions through the QA process.
displays Program and Course Information for our online ed systems.

Generic ^nfiguratlon Item for tracking requests/issues with the
Core/Datacenter network configurations within the Infrastructure

Manages requests, to enter into or renew a contract with a vendor
Provides the requester with an intake form and routes the form through
the appropriate approver groups, such as Sourcing, IFO, Legal, Contract
Administration etc., until the request is either fully approved/executed or
rejected. The system also includes a document repository for storing
contract correspondence and documents. Was known as Worksite and
Autonomy is the software company (owned by HP)

Content Aiert 3 copies of this system. One for each brand SuO, AuO, and AiO. System
used by program development to QA proposed changes and/or revisions
to courses. Also includes a separate system for Alert admin.

CommonLine

Collections UI

CMS (Interwoven)

NSLP uses CommonLine to streamline the electronic loan application
process. CommonLine is used to transmit student loan applications to
NSLP. CommonLine is a set of standard file formats and protocols for
transmitting student loan applications
Update Activities, Fund Sources and Student Account Statuses when a
student's account is sent to an outside collection agency

Content Management System

Citrix

Check Point Client Encryption

Used when setting up a user with a Citrix account, problems with logging
into Citrix, general Citrix questions (for example, how to access
applications once logged in), and password resets
The Check Point Full Disk Encryption Software Blade provides automatic
security for all information on endpolnt hard drives, including user data,
operating system files and temporary and erased files. For maximum
data protection, multi-factor pre-boot authentication ensures user
Identltv. while encryption prevents data loss from theft.

Page 11 of Exhibit 2

{01294248-1}



Celemony Melodyne Classroom Software

Career Center (CSO) Career Services application to support the placement of students

Capture One Pro by PhaseOne Classroom Software used in the digital Photography program

CampusVue Portal Faculty and Student Portal that is part of the CampusVue application.
1 NOT the MyCampus Portal.

CampusVue CampusVue SIS by Campus Management Inc.

Campus Facilities

Campaign Dialer

Call Copy

For power issues and other issues, the ITOC currently handles that need
to be visible to other teams but handled by the ITOC use the ST\CT of

1 Network Admin\Lan-Wired and (others).
Provides business with opportunity to load and dial specific leads based
on calling campaigns uploaded to the Dialer.
Uptivity (Call Copy) Call Recording Application. Takes screen scrape of

1 activity during calls.

Call Compliance System Used to track call monitoring issues across various functional areas

Calero (Call Detail Recording) Installation of a new Telecommunications Expense Management (TEM)
and Call Detail Report Application system to collect monthly telecom
expenses and compare the internal collected data against the carrier
provided data for allocation to the campuses. This comparison will help
us to achieve greater accuracy on the allocation of the phone bills as well
as provide better data to the effectiveness of other projects. The existing
TEM and CDR systems do not have the ability to provide the granularity
needed to report on data at this level and the data integrated into one
SaaS system (Calero).

BrightSpace Learning Management System

Bridgestreet Housing School-sponsored student housing application, placement and customer
1 service/client management.

BMI (BROADCAST MUSIC INC) Base Student Fee

Batch Add Activity Ul The Batch Add Activity Ul is a tool that exists outside of CampusVue
whereby the user can create batches of activities and insert student
specific content/verbiage. The user has the ability to upload student data
for this tool either using a spreadsheet that contains student specific
identifying data (systudentID) along with specific content for each
student, or by using an existing student group in CampusVue. This Ul will
use the same functionality that exists within CampusVue for adding
activities, however, it will allow the user to do it in batches rather than

1 per individual student.

{01294248-1}

Page 12 of Exhibit 2



1 AWS Core Infrastructure

AwardSpring Scholarship Vendor

Amazon Web Services

Assists students in finding scholarships by matching them up wth
scholarships that match their student data

Avaya

Autodesk AECS and AEMS (Includes,
AutoCAD, Maya, 3DS Max, Revit,
Inventor, and Smoke)
Assist

Telephone and communications

Classroom Software

Application that makes data updates for CampusVue, CARS, Lawson,
MyGroups, UARF, MCP, and Student Apps

ASCAP
Music licensing agreement that DCEH has for music being played in
common areas- Basic License Fee

Aruba Clear Pass

Applied Voice Speech Technology
(AVST)

Applicant Tracking System ATS

Network admission control

Enterprise voice mail system

Deltek Applicant Tracking System aka HRSmart is an HR application used
to by recruiters to track New Hire candidates

Apple Logic Studio and Apple Remote
Desktop

Antares Auto-Tune
Classroom Software

Andersson Syntheyes

Altiris (ACEM)

Allegorithmic Substance

This application allows Desktop Services members to remotely instal
applications to user's PCs.

Classroom Software

AID Schedule (Current Schedule) CurrentSchedule lists course schedules by department. For each course,
it provides a seat availability snapshot from the AlPOD Course Schedule
for CARS campuses. Without this report, campuses using CARS don't
know which course/sections have available seatknow which course/sections have available seat

Aerialink

Adobe ETLA Creative Cloud

Aerialink will be utilized to facilitate the messages between and
student's wireless carriers.

Classroom Software

Active Directory Services (Classroom)

Active Directory Services (Admin) Directory Authentication and Authoritation Service

Active Directory Federation Services
(ADFS)

Maintenance Window: Sundays 2 a.m. -12 p.m.
Release windows: Wednesday night 9 p.m. - Thursday 6 a.m.

Page 13 of Exhibit 2

(01294248-1)



ACME SBC Session Border Controller (SBC) used for external SIP connections to the
Voice Network

A/V Studio Equipment Relating to campus Audio/Visual Studio Equipment

1098-T Reg application from CMC to generate 1098-T data.

SDK for Unreal Tournament by EPIC
Games

Classroom software for game development

Dragon Naturally Speaking by
Kurzweil

Software used to provide accommodation help students with disabilities

Microsoft Office 2016 and earlier
versions

Workstation software

Reason by Propellerhead Classroom software for audio production

Red Giant
Classroom Software for video production

Unity Product Suite by Unity
Technologies

Classroom software for game development

Vicon Blade by Vicon Classroom software for motion capture

Camworks by Geometric
Technologies

Classroom software for Industrial Design

Muster Render Engine Classroom software for rendering of animation

ClickDimensions Marketing Analytics

DoNotCall DNC database/system

FYSK - Facts You Should Know

JetSpring Webchat

Master Web Database Core Marketing Web site DataMart

Neustar / Decision Navigator Marketing lead management

PossibleNow

QuinStreet Marketing lead management

CRM (Star Portal) Customer Relationship Management

Page 14 of Exhibit 2
{01294248-1}



Cisco Secure Access Control Server
(ACS)

The Cisco Secure Access Control Server (ACS) Solution Engine is a
dedicated, rack-mountable appliance for network access policy control

mh<>r Software and SaaS Services:

This list sets forth specific products directly utilized by the Ai Uiiiveisily System only, llicsc
would be excluded from the Shared IT Systems.

Name •

Ableton Live Sound Classroom Software

Adobe Captivate Used by some Instructors at SU for classroom instruction

DZED Dragonframe Stop Motion software

Lectra Kaledo Classroom Software for fashion design and product development

Hollywood Camera Work Shot
Desifiner

Ai Video program to configure camera locations

. RhinoCam by MecSoft Classroom Software for 3D printing of Industrial design

Zayo Group -Dark Fiber Dark Fiber between Ai Seattle's Physical Buildings for network
connectivity between them

{01294248-1}

Page 15 of Exhibit 2



EXfflBIT 3

Third-Party Agreements

All Contracts between DCEH and a third Person related to any Third-Party Materials or Third-
Party Support, including:

1  Master Services Agreement between Calero Software, LLC and Education Management
II, LLC, dated September 30,2016.

2. Digital Master Services Agreement between Hewlett Packard Enterprise Company and
Education Management Corporation, dated October 10, 2007.

3. Business Associate Agreement between Hewlett Packard Enteiprise Company and
Education Management II, LLC, dated February 25,2016.

4. Services and Solutions Agreement between Xerox Corporation and Education
Management, LLC, dated May 29,2012.

5  Managed Services Agreement (70919118) between Xerox Corporation and Education
Management, LLC, dated December 15, 2004, as amended by General Amendment,
dated October 17,2008.

6. Software and Website Agreement between Tuition Options LLC and Education Finance
II LLC, dated February 26, 2013.

7  AWS Enterprise Customer Agreement between Amazon Web Services, Inc. and
Education Management, LLC, dated April 23,2013.

8  CampusCare Software Support Agreement between Campus Management Corp. and
Education Management II, LLC, dated April 30, 2004, as amended by the Second
Addendum, dated January 1,2014, and the Third Addendum, dated June 2,2016.

9. Professional Service Agreement between Campus Management Corp. and Education
Management, LLC, dated April 30,2004-.

10 Software License Agreement between Campus Management Corp. and Education
Management, LLC, dated April 30, 2004, as amended by Addendum, dated March 14,
2014.

11. Master Agreement between D2L Ltd. and EDMCII, dated September 23, 2014.

12. Perpetual license for Oracle Database software.

13. Agreement between Perceptive Software, LLC (n/l/a Lexmark Enterprise Software, LLC)
and Education Management, LLC, dated June 30,2011.

Page 1 of Exhibit 3

{01294248-1}



14. Subscription License and Services Agreements between Infer (US) Inc. and Education
Management, LLC, dated December 21,2012.

15. Platform Version Change Requirements Agreement between Infor (US) Inc., Business
Software Inc. and Education Management, LLC, dated December 21,2012.

16 Non-Exclusive License Agreement between Infor (US) Inc. and Education Management
II, LLC, March 23, 1992, as amended by Addendum, dated November 7,2016.

17. Non-Exclusive License Agreement between Infor (US) Inc. and Education Management
II, LLC, dated December 1995.

18. Master Services Agreement between Infor (US) Inc. and Education Management II, LLC,
dated August 17, 2005.

19. Business Associate Agreement between Infor (US) Inc. and Education Management II,
LLC, dated August 20, 2010.

20. Subscription License and Services Agreement between Infor (US) Inc. Education
Management Corporation, dated December 21,2012.

21. Software Customer Agreement between Uwson Group and EducaUon Management,
LLC, dated March 23,1992.

22 Master Services Agreement between Uwson Software Americas, Inc. and Education
Management, LLC, dated August 17,2005, as amended by Addendum, dated August 24,
2010.

23. Software Services Agreement for Web-Based Training between Infor (US) Inc. and
Education Management II, LLC.

24 License to Use Information Software between Informatica Corporation and Educatioii
Management, LLC, dated December 30, 2008, as amended by First Amendment, dated
June 25,2010.

25. Software License Agreement between Informatica Corporation and Education
Management, LLC, dated September 29,2011.

26. FastTrack for Dynamic 365 Microsoft Fast Track Services Agreement between Microsoft
Corporation and Education Management II, LLC, dated May 17,2017.

27 All other relevant agreements in the data room, as of January 1, 2018, including those
listed on Attachment I to this Exhibit 6.

Page 2 of Exhibit 3

{01294248-1}





Schedule A

Transition Services and TSA Rates:

1. Financial Information Svstems Services - $1.29/Student/Month

• UARF/incidents submittals and approvals for all Finance Systems

• Workflow modifications and daily support for the various systems within finance

.  Lawson Maintenance, support and monthly close activities which includes the
security of finance employees, ongoing inquiries, monthly closing activities of all
subsystems, system configuration, system monitoring

.  ProLease Maintenance which includes pulling and preparing monthly rent uploads,
month end close process and all maintenance

•  Reporting out of all finance systems

•  Pcard uploads and support which includes pulling bi-weekly statement, preparing
payment for AP and providing detail and tie out and month end close activities

•  T&E Expense management

• Management and administration for the Square system which includes all set up, user
training and configuration

O Month end and quarter end support which includes the migration of all exports from
SIS systems, imaging accruals, system updates
Miscellaneous support/projects/testing/interaction between finance, PR, HR and IT.
Varies from month to month

Vendor Maintenance and support along which includes procure to pay support for
requisitions

PO's and matching

hate Licensing Services - S2.04/Student/Month2.

Annual Reporting Requirements

Annual License Renewals

New Licensure Applications

Teach Out Notifications

Teach Out Filing Requirements

Change of Ownership

Quarterly Reporting (including financials)

New Program Applications

Program Modifications

Schedule A-1

{01294248-1}



3.

Quarterly ACICS Schools Requirements to State
Student Complaints - States

State Research, questions, follow up

BPC review time

Internal grants (research)

Catalog reviews

Document retention

Enrollment agreements (review, state changes)

Program integrity

Bonds - initial requests, distributions, cancellations

Tuition and Fee changes

Check requests and procurement

Re-entry exception requests

State Disclosures

Catalog Review

Mid Accreditation Review

Mock Visits

Self-Study Review

entral Student Financial Services (not CENTER) - $8.49/Student/Month

Annual Compliance Audits

Close out audits

State grant audits

VA visits and audits

Federal reporting requirements

Federal surveys

Annual student consumer information updates

Campus security and fire safety tracking and reporting
Closed school notifications and reporting

DUNS and SAM updates

Federal Program Reviews (if campus selected by Department of Ed) -
reviews are by OPE ID and would include any campus associated with the OPE ID
within the last 2 to 3 award years

Schedule A-2

{01294248-1}



Federal reporting for ACICS campuses

90/10 annual audit requirements

Federal Electronic applications

BPC

Default Management

Perkins Liquidation - Close outs

Perkins Liquidation - Ongoing

Policies and procedures

Forms

Regular CorapUanoe Calls - FA Specialist. VA. CFA, Student Accounting. Weekly
Occurrences

Campus Based Funding, FISAP Audits, Etc.

Federal research, regulatory review new federal updates, state review and research
Campus support-general questions & guidance

Campus Monitoring Reports - ANA, Attendance
CFPB Complaints

Student Complaints

IPEDS

Fisk Reporting

Career Services Reporting

VA Reporting

Accreditors Reporting

Call Recording

Call Analytics

Mystery Shopping

Training Reporting

Internal reporting and scorecards

Consent Judgment Reporting and Management

Ad hoc reporting

State Grant, Military Survey reporting

GE Disclosure

Schedule A-3

{01294248-1}





EFIP

Admission Scripts

Student Body Flow

Online Percentage Audit

GSM Analysis and data mapping

Persistence and Retention

Ai Linkage Report

Financial Aid reporting

Admissions data

Directing/loading data to Data Warehouse for reporting
[brmation Technology - S51.70/Student/Month

Data Center

Active Directory Services

Application Server Work

Avaya

Call Copy

Change Management

Citrix

Core Network

Database Services

Domain Name Service (DNS)

Informatica

ITOC Monitoring

Network

Project Management

Security

Telephony

VMWare

AfV Studio Party Equipment

Aerialink

AIO Schedule (Current Schedule)

Schedule A-4

{01294248-1}



• Applied Voice Speech Technology (AVST)
Assist

AWS Core Infrastructure

Bridgestreet Housing

Calero (Call Detail Recording)

Call Compliance System

CampusVue Portal

Check Point Client Encryption

Clarity

CMS (Interwoven)

Content Alert

Contract Management

Corporate Facilities

Course Listing

Course Revision

Course Scheduling System (CSS)

DataBase Inventory

Database Performance Monitoring

Decision Navigator

Direct Loan Pell Reconciliation

DocuSign

eBook

BdConnect

eLibrary

Employee Portal

Enterprise File Transfer

Enterprise Mass Storage

Enterprise Message Bus

Estimated Financial Impact Plan (EFIP)

ExamSoft

•  EZ Proxy

Schedule A-5

{01294248-1}



•  Faculty Course Import

•  Faculty Session Prep

•  Firewall

•  Foglight

•  GoToMeeting

®  Holds Automation

•  HP ArcSight

• HP Business Process Monitor (BPM)

•  HP Business Service Management

•  HP Data Protector

• HP Network Node Manager (NNM)

•  HP OpenView Operations Manager (OVOW)
•  HP SiteScope

• HP Systems Insight Manager

• HP Virtual User Generator (VuGen)

• HVAC

•  Image Onsite

•  ImageNow Upload Center

•  iModules Alumni Community

•  Imperva

®  IP Control

• Kronos

•  Load Balancer

o MHC Document Express

• MiniTab Registration

• Mobile (MCP)

• Mobile Phone

• MSBI Reports

• MyGroups

• NetQOS

• Nexpose

Schedule A-6

{01294248-1}





Office365 - Lync Online

Office365 - Office Pro Plus

Office365 - OneDrive

Office365 - Outlook Online

OneSource

OpenVoice

Outlook

Password System (Center)

Presentation Technology

Printers

Program Course Management System (PCMS)
ProofPoint

Public Key Infrastructure (PKI)

Rema Grad Team Application

RIC Process

Router

Satellite

Scanners

Schedule Manager

SecureNet (SN)

Security Equipment

SendWordNow

ShareKnowledge

ShowMgr

SimMan

SiteCore

SOA

Socrates

Software

•  Solar Winds

•  State Grants

Schedule A-7

{01294248-1}



stipend Generator

Student Body Flow (SBF)

Student Course Scheduling System (Student CSS)

Student Orientation

Student Payment Application (SPA)

Subversion

Switch

Symantec Data Loss Protection (DLP)

Symantec Endpoint Protection

Symantec Validation & ID Protection Service (VIP)

System Center Configuration Manager (SCCM)

System Galaxy

TargetVision

Tax Factory

Team Foundation Server

Telco Carrier

Textbooks UI

Third Party Collections UI (TPC)

TOC (Transfer of Credits)

Transcript Request System (STS)

Tripwire

UPS

VIsix

Vordel

Vormetric

Voyager / OP AC

VPN Cisco

WASP (Point of Sales)

WebCTRL

Wireless

• Wireless Controller

Schedule A-8

{01294248-1}



•  Exchange

Hyperion

lARM

ImageNow

Lawson

Lync

Other Services

Planview

RightFax

ServiceNow

SharePoint

Tidal

User Access Request

Video Conferencing

Workstation

Administrative Computing Services

Altiris

Audit

BizTalk

Brightspace

Campaign Dialer

Campus Facilities

CampusVue

Career Center

Classroom Computer Services

CRM

Digital Application

eCollege

eLeads

Enterprise Data Warehouse (EDW)

Genesys

Schedule A-9

{01294248-1}



9 Marketing Websites

• Microsoft BI Tools

• My Campus Portal

• Qlikview

• RACER

o  Student Financial Planning

® Universal Content Management (UCM)

• Webspace

4820-6464-9616, v. 1

Schedule A-10

{01294248-1}



ATTACHMENT K

LETTERS IN SUPPORT OF SAVING THE SCHOOL

(See Attached)

ATTACHMENT K



Anand Singh

Contact To Whom It May Concern

917 Thistlegate Road

Oak Park CA 91377

310 623 8085

CEO

Jai Capital Advisors

Co-Founder

EZ Education Connect

Chairman

DSVS Education Trust India

Co-Manager

Hoerner College India

Advisor to Vice Chancellor

RML Avadh University India

Advisor to Chairman

Star Film & Media Institute

Advisor to Chairman

ICS International India

We wish to express our firm unequivocal support for, the future, Citadel
Colleges of the Arts, currently, the Art Institute of Las Vegas as an advisor,
partner and patron.

We are currently working with the management of the Save the Art Institute
of Las Vegas in the following manners to express our support;

• Bolster student enrollment by creating recruitment programs in India with
our own colleges & institutes, and with other established entities

• Working with the Government of India to establish a private vocational
university with our India based family trust in joint venture with the Citadel
of the Arts Colleges

• Creating a College of Entrepreneurship in joint venture with the University
of Brussels, Belgium

• Working with Media & Entertainment Industry leaders, Equipment
Manufacturers and faculty to build a College of Performing Arts

In addition, we are working with management to attract investment,
endowments and other forms of capital to create a new permanent

educational and residential campus in Las Vegas.

We strongly feel that the institute is a much-needed educational asset for the
Las Vegas area and for the State of Nevada. We further here affirm our view
that based on our due diligence and review, we feel that this is a feasible and
stable venture, both based on current enrollment and future potential.

We stand ready to testify to our assumption, beliefs and convictions
regarding the need and future success for this institution. Please reach us
with any questions or concerns. With best wishes and regards,

Sincerely,

Anand Singh

Tuesday, September lo, 2019



STUDENT

LETTERS



Chase Reynolds

3001W Warm Springs Rd, #1927
Henderson, NV. 89014

September 09,2019

State of Nevada Commission on Postsacondary Education
8778 South Mwytand Paefcway, Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: September 18,2019 Hearing
Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Commissioners,

I write this letter as an Individual student standing for what I vrhole-heartedly believe to be the r^
thing However, I hope that this letter Is Interpreted as one of many in a student body Imploring those
whom have Influence to stand for what provides the most utilltyto our community. I cannot speak to
the experience of any other student, but I can speak to the profound Influence, the relentless
dedication, and the world class education I have received from the staff at this school. My Intention Is to
share my experience In hopes that my narrative will encourage those whom are tasked with d^ktogthe fate of this school to grace the current students with skill sets immensely practical to the city of las

Vegas.

I feel as though I must digress slightly In order to give a better perspective on how much this
meanstome. i have had trouble adjustlngto society dnce my exit from the Marine Corps In mid 2016. I
was a Force Recon Marine and was faced with a career endlr« Injury In which I was lucky to survl^ To
say I strugglad once rdntroduced to 'normal" society would be a massive understatement For the 2
years Immediately folkwiilng my exit untreated depression, PTSD, and substance abuse had me
convinced I vwuld never be able to adjust. I decided to try one last time to pursue a passion of mine
(cooUnd and find purptrse again. This Is where this school came Into my Ofe.
After a google search I quickly filled out all the paperwork from the school and VA to apply, got a^ted
totheschool. Ithen moved myself, my wife, and our Infant son to Henderson from Colorado Springs In
December of 2018. Within my first quarter at the school we were faced with the potential shutdown.
Even amidst a complete shutdown I saw no change In the dedication to duty by our InstructOT. I saw
men and women with unwavering dedication to those they serve press forward as hard as ̂  rouW tosttnd for whatthey believed to be the right thing. This was somethlnglhave been looking for since!

left the Marines and It earned my unwavering loyalty. It was reminiscent of my firrt day at 2- teco" Bn.
where my Sgt Maj. told me "Do the right thing. Needing no reason other than the fact that it Is the right
thli« to do, and you will likely survive. If you don't survive. It will be a certainty that you went down
serving."





Commissioners

September 10^ 2019

Page Two

I am finishing my quarter at this school, and I have been more Impressed by these fine men and
women every quarter. I cannot deny that it has been hard attending the school knowing at times that
ail our work may be completely cut short, and our credits not transferred. It has been hard not ever
being paid my Peil Grant funds after hastily moving my family from CO to NV. It has been hardJosing
our online portal In which we could check grades and keep up with assignments. It has been hard to see
the teachers Improvise due to not always having what they need to teach the curriculum they were used
to. All while not being paid. We have been living in hardship, and I believe that the Improved
curriculum, the restructuring of a chain of command, and the open rommunicatton with the student
body demonstrate that this school is here to stay. I believe maintaining a 3.8 GPA and learning more
about cooking than I ever imagined during all this chaos denwnstrates that I am here to stay as well.

We have done our work, raised support, gained structure, and stood firm. It is now on the powers at be
to make the right decision. I ask that those afore mentioned powers to follow Sgt. Maj. Rabldoux's
advice and "Do the right thing. For no reason other than it is the right thing to do." and allow this school
to continue. Free from the corporate corruption and with a mission to better a community.

Thank you for the opportunity to share my story.

Very Respectfully,

-Chase Reynolds



September 5,2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator

State of Nevada

Commission on Postsecondary Education

8778 South Maryland Parkway Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

I am currently enrolled at The Art Institute of Las Vegas. I have been in Digital Film and Video
Production program for about two years. Creative colleges and universities iike ours are not common.
We have these huge campuses that gloss over the fine arts and creative fieids because, to them they
aren't important majors for our real lives. It is very unfortunate because, a small centered campus like Al
does wonders. I moved to Nevada from Illinois about two and a half years ago. i moved to get a better
education in a field that I wanted to study. Art based schools are underrated and virtually unseen. We
have learned tons of real life skills and additional ones In our classes and from our professors. I never
imagined that i would be able to learn a variety of skills from only a handful of Individuals. The
professionals that are here at the school now hold so much vital information and suggestions that are
tailored to each student to be successful in their given fields.

Communication is the one thing all humans need to understand and practice religiously.
Without good communication the students and staff will never be on the same page and will
continuously be in a cycle of miscommunlcatlon. When they have good communication both parties are
able to understand and process the exact Information being transcribed. The Art institute of Las Vegas
and many other coileges are doing everything in their power to communicate the importance of the fine
arts to the generai public. The fine arts makes individuals who were once shy be more outspoken and
independent. Al shows and practices individual and team growth to reach the status of professional,
helps analyze and problem solve whenever something doesn't go according to plan. These are only a
few of the real life skills that are learned and practiced at Ai to get students ready to incorporate them
into their future workpiaces. To be biunt, fine art coileges are equally as important and generate the
same skills as any other traditional college. The only difference is that we are just focused on whatever
set major we want to be in. Which means not dealing with a lot of unnecessary classes, drama and
boredom that connects with traditional colleges.

I want to personally thank two of my professors for helping me achieve my goals of becoming a
producer and director in my future. It's a Very long and stressful process to go through, but the end
result will definitely be worth all of the hard work and sleepless nights. Josh Hudson, who Is now m
charge of the DFVP program, has guided me through the steps carefully for over a year. He broke own
the exact way to edit, why camera angles and lighting are vital, and finally showed what a true teacher



should act like. He saw potential in me that I didn't even see myself. When I first started at Al, I use to
hate editing and motion graphics due to some now resigned teachers. Josh went through each lesson
and lecture slowly with massive amounts of information for us to process. He would push me to edit out
of my comfort zone and the right way each week and then explained why I made each cut and what
emotional connection it had with the audience. At first, I wasn't a fan of his teaching because I was so
accustomed to being fed useless information from YouTube videos my teachers would display. I am
thankful for Josh for taking over our once dying program and rebuilding it from the ground up. Josh also
brought back one of our former teachers Ken Cioe. Ken teaches storyboarding and scene analysis which I
am currently in. The last ten weeks he has shown my classmates and me the importance of not only
writing, but also why each scene flows into the next. Each scene tells a certain vivid emotion and story
that sways the audience and their overall thinking. It is a truly insightful class that is taught from a
professional who is passionate about the course material and the students. The key to OUR success as
students and future leaders in our fields is to have individuals to look up to and follow in their steps
towards our always expanding and changing industry. Leaders will be made if we have the best
professionals as our teachers who are willing to educate us. We traded the bad and unprofessional for
the honest and professional. We have already made some big changes within the last few months that
will benefit the school and students immensely. Just imagine what Al can do when we have a year or five
at our disposal, the possibilities are endless as long as we keep striving forward each day.

Respectfully,



September 5,2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator
State of Nevada

Commission on Postsecondary Education

8778 South Maryland Parkway Suite 115

Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

Hello, my name is Demltrius Monico, I am currently a student at the Art Institute of Las Vegas.
Since becoming a student In 2016, 1 was able to learn a lot of things thanks to the teachers who have
strived to teach everyone who came to class. As for someone with a learning disability they have been
very helpful so that I am not behind in class. They would go that extra mile to ensure that everyone who
is In class is able to pass. I feel that these kind of teachers Is what we need in a school like this.

I believe that we need a school like this In Las Vegas because it can be of great help to the
community. With the programs that are available, this school can provide knowledge that Is necessary to
help students to get the Industry Jobs that they desire. That Is were the passionate teacher's with the
desire to teach come In. Even with the current disposition of the school there are teachers here that are
still teaching us what we need to know In our programs. We have even had teachers that have taught
years ago come back to teach while other teachers have left, because they believe that the students
education is very important.

There are a lot of students that are eager to learn that are here and a lot more that are not
because of the school's current disposition. That goes the same for the teachers that have a desire to
teach us what we need to know. All the teachers, including faculty have not been paid for months and
they are still here teaching and administering the students, but there are those who have left because
they cannot afford to stay without being paid. So I kindly ask for your understanding and help and to do
whatever you can so that we can thrive as a school of eager students wanting to learn and eager
teachers that are passionate to teach.

Respec^fuHy^^

Demitrii^ Monlcb (Student)
demitrius.lamoya.monlco@gmail.com



September 5,2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator
State of Nevada

Commission on Postsecondafy Education
8778 South Maryland Parkway Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re; The Art institute of las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

The students need a school like ours because our fields we choose to go into are highly
specialized. It Is not easy to teach these fields In a more traditional way with theoretical course work it
requires a more hands on approach that teaches you how to work In the field by having you actua ly do
the work. Practicing and being able to come with solutions to new Issues as they happen because that
what happens In the real field. Our fields are ever changing as time and technology progress so do
trends and techniques. We need to able to adapt the way the material Is taught to meet these
requirements as they occur.

We don't just sit In a classroom listening to lectures In every class we work with the tools of our
trade. We aren't doing It alone we work together because that's how It will be once we leave here.
Learning to come together as a team Is an Important part of our fields. We learn to work together what
we're strong at and where we need help. We find the strengths and weaknesses of each other and build
teams that complement one another to work toward a common goal.

Our Instructors have worked In our fields and their main goal Is to prepare us for the real world.
They actually care about their students and won't let us do mediocre work they push us and guide us
to\A/ard the best we can be.

Respectfully,

f ̂

Tristlan Pete Student
(Name) (Student)

TrlstlanPete(a)gmall.com

(Email contact)



September 5th, 2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms, Kelly Wuest, Administrator
State of Nevada

Commission on Postsecondary Education
8778 South Maryland Parkway Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

MY name is Jerrlmeh, I am a student at the Art Institute of Las Vegas. I want the school to stay
mostly because of the current Instructors we have teaching. From Ken Cioe to Josh Hudson all my
current instructors have been interested In my personal growth In my particular field of study. Over the
course of my years here at the school I have seen it change from a place I loved, to a ptece which hated
going, now however I see It again as a place In which I have the opportunity to learn about my field as
well as develop my own tips and tricks to take with me In the future. I believe this school deserves to
stay where It's at because I know what they have to teach here Is valuable and not just useless tricks.

Respectfully,



FACULTY

LETTERS



September 8,2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator
Nevada Commission on Postsecondary Education
8778 South Maryland Parkway, Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners, and Administrator Wuest,

Greetings.

I am not certain if any words can adequately stress the importance a creative studies college has
to offer this Community. As Las Vegas and all of Southern Nevada grow, it becomes more and more
important for there to be educational opportunities which our school has to offer. There is and will
continually be a growing demand for creatively and technically skilled individuals to fill positions in
specific industries in this state.

As someone with 25 years' experience in the creative and multi-media industries, I can assure
you that the need for skills taught in our school are still in incredible demand, not to mention that as Las
Vegas continues to grow and as more highly specialized industries come to Las Vegas with more
technical jobs, our educational model will be in high demand by employers and potential students. In
my professional creative circle here in Southern Nevada, my colleagues are ecstatic about our plans for
the new school. I have engaged in numerous conversations with local industry professionals and each
one of them has expressed excitement and sincere gratitude for the monumental efforts we have taken
to save the school and to have a school emerged from a horrible situation into a new stand alone local
college that will inspire and develop talent ready to enter the workforce in this area.

I was an instructor at the Art Institute of Las Vegas from 2003 until 2013 in the Media Arts &
Animation Departments. In 2013 I resigned my position at AILV because the teaching atmosphere was
toxic and disrespectful. I was horrified by the admissions practices as well as the unbearable and
oppressive corporate environment.

When I made the decision to move back to Las Vegas I heard from colleagues with whom I
taught in those same years, who have returned to AILV at the request of the men who stepped up to
save the school from closure, and as I learned what the plan is for the future I jumped at the chance to
be part of all of it. I joined the Team in the beginning of July 2019 at the beginning of this Summer
Quarter in Media Arts, Animation and Game Arts Departments to be an integral part of the new school
and the new vision. The atmosphere here-is forward thinking, respectful, compassionate, and intensely
exciting, i consider myself incredible lucky to be part of it all.



Postsecondary Education ComrDlssloners
September 8,2019

Page Two

I trust that you will work with us during this difficult transition and ail along the way as we
develop and grow and serve our students.

Thank you very much.

With respect,

Ken Cioe, M.F.A.

Faculty Instructor

The Art Institute of Las Vegas
kencioe@gmail.com



September 9,2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator

State of Nevada

Commission on Postsecondary Education

8778 South Maryland Parkway Suite 115

Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

I am and have been a teacher at the Art Institute of Las Vegas for over a year now; I also was a
student here from 2011-2014. This beloved school represents some of the best years of my life as I have
made lifelong friends and have been able to teach some really creative students as well. I do truly
believe a school such as this needs to be a large part of the community here in Las Vegas. Being a town
steeped in entertainment and tourism this city needs a school that can graduate out students who can
take those jobs of video production, audio production, graphic design, animation and anything else that
Is necessary to keep tourists coming to our city and boost the economy of our great state. I know there
is no other institution like this In the state, there is nothing that can boast so many diverse programs in
one location with the credibility to get graduates jobs upon completing their schooling here. We have
established connections with professionals, who are already working in the fields of our programs, to set
up internships that will lead to job placements because the students will be leaving here with experience
that they can put on their resumes and, as some-one who has been in this business a while, I know you
need experience to secure the job that you ultimately want. I know that you all will give us the full
support we need to make this school as successful as it can be.

Respectfully,

Peter Sullivan, Instructor

M.A. Music Production and Sound Design

Academy of Art University

petersullivanaudio@^hoo.com



September 10,2019

Josh J Hudson
Lead Faculty DFVP/VEMG
Art Institute of Las Vegas

2350 Corporate Circle
Henderson, NV 89074

State of Nevada

Nevada Commission on Postsecondary Education ^
8778 South Maryland Parkway Suite 115

Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

i am and have been a teacher at the Art institute of Las Vegas for almost 10 years, i left 6 years
ago due to the EDMC corporate structure not allowing faculty to best serve their students. I returned
after the DCEH debacle to help usher in a new era in this once proud institution. I am happy everyday
coming to work even under the hardest of circumstances because of the students I am allowed to
teach.This beloved school represents some of the best years of my life as I have made lifelong friends
and am able to teach really creative students a love for the film Industry and art in general. I do truly
believe a school such as this needs to be a large part of the community here in Las Vegas. Being a town
steeped in entertainment and tourism this city needs a school that can graduate out students who can
take those jobs of video production, audio production, graphic design, animation and anything else that
is necessary to keep tourists coming to our city and boost the economy of our great state.

I have 3 children in CCSD that need an institution like this available to nurture their culinary and
artistic skills and provide them with a career not just a job. Having been a teacher at CCSD, I understand
the lack of preparation that the school district gives to students that are different or want different
career paths than are generally accepted. There is no other institution like this in the state that delivers
a quality education in the artistic and culinary fields that are so sorely needed in the Las Vegas Valley.
We have established connections with professionals, who are already working In the fields of our
programs, to set up internships that will lead to job placements because the students will be leaving
here with experience that they can put on their resumes and, as some-one who has been in this
business a while, I know you need experience to secure the job that you ultimately want. I know that
you all will give us the full support we need to make this school as successful as it can be.

Respectfully, ^

Josh J Hudson, M.S.M, Lead Faculty

Art Institute of Las Vegas

DFVPVEMG@GMAILCOM



September 10,2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator

State of Nevada

Commission on Postsecondary Education

8778 South Maryland Parkway Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

As an industry professional I find that having a career college is very valuable.

I manage a 25-million-dollar restaurant on the Las Vegas Strip. I am a Restaurant Industry professional
and I am an alumnus of the Culinary School at the Art Institute of Las Vegas. I did very well by the Art
Institute and its phenomenal chefs and faculty. Now, when I Interview potential staff, I look at what
they have done In the past and what schooling he or she has accomplished, precisely because I know
how important the right educational path can do for you. After graduation from this AILV the I had the
base knowledge and the skills to walk into any restaurant, no matter if it was front-of-the-house or in
the kitchen, and get straight to work. I expect each person I hire to have basic knowledge of cooking and
industry standards and get right to work. Every student I have hired from the Art Institute has displayed
those characteristics and continues his or her education while working within any of my outlets. Making
sure this college remains open and continues to teach industry standards is very valuable to the
community and our particular very large industry. Having the school operate with local ownership will
only better each student academic career by virtue of the intensely close network in the restaurant
industry in Las Vegas. With a degree in hand from one of the only remaining degree bestowing Culinary
Schools in Southern Nevada, will exponentially improve the success rate for finding a job in this industry.
I can't stress enough on how valuable the school is to our industry. I recently accepted a position as an
Adjunct Instructor in Culinary Arts at Al, I have a Bachelors Degree in Cullnart Arts from Al, and I work in
the Culinary world - we sorely need this school.

Respectfully,

'hristlan R. Clinton

christianr.clinton@gmail.com

702-480-5733



STAFF

LETTERS



The Art Institute of Las Vegas*
CREATE TOMORROW

9 September 2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair
State of Nevada

Commission on Postsecondary Education ^
8778 South Maryland Parkway, Suite 115
Las Vegas, NV 89123

Re; The Art Institute of Las Vegas Licensing Hearing

Dear Ms. North,

I am writing today to express my continued support for The Art Institute of Las Vegas, not
as the Interim Campus Director but as an educator and a member of the greater Las Vegas
community.

I have spent over 19 years in the for-profit educational sector. During that time, I have had
the privilege of serving students, many of whom would not have had the opportunity to
attend college and improve their lives had it not been for schools such as The Art Institute
of Las Vegas. I have experienced watching these men and women walk across the stage at
graduation with a sense of confidence that comes with earning a degree and receiving a
college diploma. I have walked into various businesses and have witnessed former
students, fully employed and engaged in their passion-driven industry. I have observed the
changes that occurred within The Art Institute system when profit became more important
than the student experience. I have experienced the rise and fall of two corporate owners
and the devastation that their demise, often due to greed and mismanagement, as well as
the heavy burdens that were placed on the backs of the students, faculty, and staff as a
result of the court appointed receiver. Finally, I have seen the great lengths that SAVE The
Art Institute of Las Vegas has gone to in their journey to keep the school open so each
student has the opportunity to complete their degree, graduate and move forward in their
chosen careers.

The school that I returned to in April 2019 was not the school that laid me off on October
12,2018. Gone was the mentality of treating students like cattle, enrolling them at any cost
so an unrealistic metric could be met. Gone was the corporate mentality that created so
many of the problems as the corporations sought to increase shareholder value and did not
truly focus on the needs of the students or allow the school to become an integral part of
the greater Las Vegas community. In its place, the dedicated faculty and staff have planted
the seeds of respect for the student and respect for the quality of education. Seeds that if
allowed to flourish will produce an educational facility that will focus on the whole student
and the student experience and not just on the bottom line. I can say without hesitation
that I would not have considered returning as an employee of The Art Institute of Las Vegas
if I did not fully believe is the efforts that are underway by SAVE The Art Institute of Las
Vegas to fundamentally change the culture and course of the school.

2350 Corporate Circle • Henderson. NV 89074-7737 • 1.702.369.9944 . www.artinstitutes.edu/laavegas/



Without a doubt, there are still many challenges that the school needs to overcome if they
are to survive. Challenges caused by the uncertainty of whether or not the school would
remain open. Challenges caused by the dishonesty of the prior corporate owners, DCEH,
challenges caused by the neglect of the federally appointed receiver and finally challenges
caused by the inaction of the campus leadership hired after the decimation of the entire
academic staff in late September, early October 2018 with regards to maintaining licensure
and meeting the standards of accreditation. Nevertheless, I believe in the vision of the
future owners and leadership, the dedication of the faculty and the perseverance o£Jthe
students. I know that if the school is given the opportunity and the necessary time, the
school will not only correct any deficiencies caused by years of neglect at the hands of the
school's corporate owners, it will meet each standard needed for both licensure and
accreditation. The school will emerge from the current state of chaos as a new school,
primed and ready to continue its mission of educating students and preparing them for
j obs that will support the employers and citizens of the greater Las Vegas community.

Thank you for the opportunity to express my dedication to the heroic efforts associated
with saving The Art Institute of Las Vegas.

With Regards,

Dr. Daniel M. Taylor
Interim Campus Director
The Art Institute of Las Vegas



September 6,2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator
State of Nevada

Commission on Postsecondaiy Education
8778 South Maryland Parkway Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

1 have been with the Art Institute since July of 2007, first as an instructor and now as the
Dean of the Culinary School. When I started my tenure with the school, the leadership, faculty
and students created an amazing and vibrant community. I was very proud to be an instructor
for this company. The school remained in that state for a few years before it began a downward
spiral. At first it was small changes, but over the past several years those changes have impacted
the campus community in a very negative way. Multiple layoffs, services being centralized or
removed, lack of campus support and the constant boomerang of "we are closing...we are not
closing...we are closing.. .we are...". The culinary department has had at least five program
chairs since I have been employed, and through it all, I was fortunate enough to dodge the layoffs
and remain as the only full-time instructor for the program.

In January, we hit rock bottom. There was nowhere else to go but up or out. The school
was put into receivership, which we were initially told was a "good thing." I made the personal
decision to continue teaching until they told me to stop coming. When the last notice came that
the school was going to close, three individuals stood up for our campus and said, "We must save
AILV". In late March, I was asked to take on the role of interim Dean of the Culinary School as
part of the effort to save the school. I agreed. Already scheduled to teach classes for the Spring
term, I took on the added responsibility and increased workload/hours because I believe our
community needs a culinary/art school and that the students enrolled deserve to finish their
education.

When the transition started. The Receiver stood in front of myself and several colleagues
and told us not to worry, he was going to help transition our school to new ownership. Our own
Congresswoman sat in our restaurant and'also told us she was here to help. Not so. There have
been others who initially said they would help, but have become obstacles for us as we try to
move the school back into the li^t direction. We know things were messed up and we are
working to get the services and programs back where they need to be. DCEH put us in a very



bad position (hind sight is always 20/20), and banned students in a way that is unforgiveable.
WE ARE NOT DCEH! I am fortunate to be part of a group of individuals that truly want the
best for our students. We have vision and plans for a thriving campus that will allow our
students to fulfill their dreams of careers in culinary and art related fields. I have several alumni
that have achieved great things in their careers as a result of the training they received from our
campus. Some are in management positions, some own their own businesses, and others are still
finding their way. WE CAN make a positive difference in our students' lives if given the chance
to bring this school back to what it once was. In fact, I believe we can be even better than our
earlier years of success. ^

I am aware of the complaints that we have not been paid our full salaiy. As of this letter,
that is true, and it has created personal strife for many staff members, myself included. WhUe
the issue of pay exists, myself, faculty and fellow administrators have continued to put forth
every effort to teach our classes, run the campus, build community relationships and not obstruct
the learning environment due to our financial situation. 1 am privileged to work alongside
individuals with this much dedication and commitment to a cause we beUeve our community
needs.

We care about the students, we care about the impact on our community, and we want the
school to succeed. I personally believe in the vision of what our school can offer our
community. I believe we can provide an education that turns out qualified and skilled
professionals that will become leaders in our industry. I believe that once we own the school, we
will be an institution that operates with integrity, respect, kindness and benefit for those who
walk through the door. Teaching and being an administrator has intrinsic rewards that cannot be
delivered in dollars. Watching our students reach their goals in life and being part of that journey
is one of the best feelings in the world. Please allow us to continue to be part of the solution in
helping students reach their goals.

Thank you for your time.

Respectfully,

Michelle Vietmeier, MSM, CFE, HBSC
Dean of the Culinary School - The Art Institute of Las Vegas
mvietmeier@citadelartsu.org



September 6,2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator
Nevada Commission on Postsecondary Education
8778 South Maryland Parkway Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

I have been an employee of the Art Institutes for 9 years while working at multiple Ai campuses i"
positions. During that time, I have been under the dysfunctional ownership and leadership of both EDMC and
DCEH until I was finally let go in January of 2019 as the Registrar of the Ai Hollywood campus. I only agreed to
come back to the Art Institutes and relocate my entire life to the Us Vegas campus from Los Angeles due to the
philosophy, passion and vision of both William Turbay and Richard Rock who have been f
to save the Art Institute of Las Vegas. They brought me out here to the Us Vegas campus on Apnl 1,20191
their Registrar and for 5 months now I have watched them put that philosophy, passion and vision to practice
first-hand. Under the direst of circumstances left behind by the carnage of DCEH and the rece^er, they have
managed to keep this campus successfully running for 2 quarters now despite every constant hurdie thrown
their way and without collecting any real revenue out of the school to speak of. In addition, they have managed
to keep a staff together and focused on the operation of the school, myself Included, despite the fact that no
one has been paid for most of these two quarters due to the financial handcuffs of the receivership. I ve
watched them come to the school every morning and work tirelessly with a hands-on approach to interact wit
students, faculty and staff to resolve every problem that arises rather than conceal themselves m an office
somewhere to avoid negative or uncomfortable situations like what i experienced under past EDMC and DCEH
leadership. They have such an enormous desire to strive and make this school successful not only for its current
students but Its future students and the community as a whole. They are driven by a desire to provide
opportunities for this community and its residents rather than the pure greed I've witnessed from previous
ownership. It would be a total outrage and a complete travesty to prevent them from being able to see their
vision through when so many other less respectable operations and people have been given the same chance
they desire The simple fact alone that there Is a staff of employees working without pay for this long under
their direction, shows the sacrifice and dedication of what this school now represents while giving a peek
behind the curtain of what It could further represent for the state and the city if given the opportunity to grow
in the future.

Respectfully,

V...Brian Neidlinger, MBA, Registrar
Art Institute of Las Vegas
briecliDse@aol.com



September 3,2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator
State of Nevada

Commission on Postsecondary Education

8778 South Maryland Parkway Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas ^

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

I am writing this letter on behalf of Richard Rock and William Turbay in regards to keeping the doors
open for the Save the Art Institute in Las Vegas, Nevada.

When William and Richard told me what was happening with the Al school and it being shut down
nationwide, I felt bad for the students who were invested in the school and were now going to lose
credits, time, and money Invested for a trade they wanted to learn to perfect and grow into a
prospective profession.

As the Save the Art institute began its preliminary stages and started gaining momentum, I became a
little more attentive and asked if I could do anything to help. Money was the first priority to fund the
school in order to retain the staff, operating costs, and keep the doors open. I was not able to invest
monetarily at this time so iVe donated my time.

For the last 5 months I have been doing odds and ends - maintenance fixes, moving of offices, etc. as
well as getting to know the students on a daily basis. I had been helping out Monday-Friday from Sam
until 4pm and just recently switched to Tuesday through Thursday from 8am to 3pm.

I have been able to provide support to the administration by moving desks, accessing files in other
offices, mostly just trying to make this transition easier for them.

Since the administration Is not quite so stressed, the students have been able to sit back without having
a cloud over their heads knowing that they can continue to learn and not worry about whether or not
the school will be open the next day.

Anyone can go to college and learn to do whatever they want and STILL end up working at McDonalds.
This school provides the students a realistic, practical approach to use the talents they learn in the
profession that they choose. Or as I always think of it - How to make money doing what I am good at
and am passionate about.

Respectfully^

Robert Schilie



September 9,2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator
State of Nevada

Commission on Postsecondary Education

8778 South Maryland Parkvi/ay Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

I am writing this letter in support of the SAVE The Art Institute of Las Vegas. I have been given the
pleasure of working at the school as an Administrative Assistant. In the short period of time I have spent
at the school I have had the opportunity to meet with students that are eager to earn their degree to
have an advantage In getting hired in their chosen career. I have met students that are in their last
semester before graduating. They were stressed and felt uneasy due to past rumors that the school was
closing. Mr. Turbay and Mr. Rock have helped those students feel at ease with the approved court order
to purchase the school, but the battle does not end there. We are still fighting to remain open for the
students. It Is critical not just for the graduating students for the school to remain open but also for the
community. We need a career college like, SAVE The Art Institute to continue and help our local
community to produce graduates with a curriculum that is needed In our town. In addition, I have met
Instructors that are so passionate with what they do and even though they are not getting compensated
they still show up to work because they love what they do and the influence and impact they have on
their students. Getting away from Receivership would be the best thing for this school in order to move
forward. I saw all the challenges and the hard work each and every Individual had and continue to put In
to keep the school going. It has been a great honor to work at the school and with Mr. Turbay and Mr.
Rock. I hope to continue working at the school and help with the future plans under the new ownership.
In my opinion, the current and new students will be more engaged when this saga of closing the
purchase ends. There are plans for studios for each colleges which will not only help In learning their
field but would also give them an on the job training. There is a great plan for the future of this school
that I hope to see. Overall, I would like to see this school flourish to Its full potential and the new
curriculum would be a great addition to our city.

Resp

Kaf

Administrative Assistant

SAVE The Art Institute of Las Vegas, Umlted
kamilleclinton@gmall.com





September 10,2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair

Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator

State of Nevada

Commlslon on Postsecondary Education

8778 South Maryland Parkway, Suite 115 ^
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners, and Administrator Wuest:

My name Is Kristin Swlderski and I have been the Academic Advisor at The Art Institute of Las
Vegas for over five years. I have over 19 years of experience in higher education and 14 of
those years were for traditional, private colleges that catered to traditional students. I am
writing in support of SAVE The Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited.

My time at The Art Institute of Las Vegas has been rewarding because of the people i work with
and the students I have the privilege of working with. I am surrounded by many first
generation students who want a career that will allow them to use their artistic abilities to earn
a living. While i have enjoyed my time at The Art Institute of Las Vegas, it has also been
challenging and stressful. Within the first few months of being hired, there were fiaculty and
staff that were laid off. Employees would get nervous every summer and would wonder who
would be affected by the next round of layoffs. If we "survived," it typically meant that
additional work would be distributed amongst those left. It was a difficult time to work at the
school because the bottom line was more important than what was in the best interest of
students or the employees who worked there. When the Dream Center Education Holdings,
LLC took control of the system, it seemed like they wanted to make changes to improve the
school. They spoke of Investing in equipment and improving the services provided to students,
but it was soon apparent that was not the case. There were several times I thought about
searching for another job in education or even leaving the field because of the stress and the
greed of the administrators. I have always held the belief that if I ever did not enjoy or believe
in what I was doing that I would leave a job. Each time I contemplated leaving, I would always
come back to the ̂ ct that I was helping students achieve their educational goals.

I was laid off in January 2019. When i was asked to come back, i did not take the decision
lightly. My educational philosophy has been vastly influenced by working in Jesuit education, i
beiieve in education of the whole person and servant leadership. Education is more than just
the classroom but also what happens outside of it. The Art Institute of Las Vegas has provided
me an opportunity to work with a diverse student population. It has been a privilege to see
talented men and women enter their field of study.



I fully support SAVE The Art Institute of Las Vegas Limited and believe in the vision and the
future of the school. The school and administration have faced many challenges since January,
which have been a result of previous corporate ownership and being under receivership. The
efforts of SAVE The Art institute of Las Vegas Limited have been admirable and they have
worked tirelessly to correct the wrongdoings. I believe with local ownership and leadership that
the focus will be brought back to the students. The faculty and the staff who have remained .
with the school are dedicated to providing a quality education and the development of students
to become future leaders in their chosen industry and the local community.

Thank you for the opportunity to advocate for SAVE The Art institute of Las Vegas Limitedand
the students who currently attend and hope to attend in the future.

Sincerely,

n

Kristin Swiderski

Academic Advisor

The Art Institute of Las Vegas



September 9, 2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair
Ms. Kelly Wuest, Administrator
State of Nevada
Commission on Postsecondary Education
8778 South Maryland Parkway Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re: The Art Institute of Las Vegas

Dear Chairwoman North, Commissioners and Administrator Wuest,

i have been with the Art Institute of Las Vegas since July 2018. My position as
a Rnanciai Aid Officer was eliminated January 2019. i retumed on April 1, 2019 to
assist the new leadership team to SAVE the campus. Our current and active student
population were sold an educational experience that prornised a rewarding future.
They have spent or owe thousands of dollars believing this will ail pay off In the end.
i have had the privilege of getting to know many of these students on a personal
level. Despite the stresses and challenges that occurred over the past 8 months,
these students are still here and are eager to finish. They are owed the opportunity
to complete their program. They are grateful to the staff and faculty that are still
here helping them reach the finish line. These students fell victim to the
corporations (Education Management Corporation and Dream Center Education
Holdings).

Looking toward the future, the current administration, faculty and staff are
working together to deliver a product that positively serves our community. Our
current students (soon to be alumni), will be one of the first to give back.

Respectfully,

w

Dawn Batula - Staff

rihaHila@citadelartsu.ora



MAYOR

PRO-TEM

LETTER



OFFICE OF

MICHELE FIORE

MAYOR PRO TEM,

WARD 6

CITY OF LAS VEGAS

495 S. MAIN ST.
LAS VEGAS, NV 89101

702.229.6405 1 VOICE
702.382.85581 FAX

711|TTY
mfiore<aiasvegasnevada.gov

oo#o
cltyoflasvegas

lasvegasnevada.gov

September 9, 2019

Ms. BJ North, Chair ^
State of Nevada
Commission on Postsecondary Education
8778 South Maryland Pai'kway, Suite 115
Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Re; The Art Institute of Las Vegas
Hearing; September 18,2019 at 9:00 in the morning

Dear Ms. North,

I am writing to you today, not only as the Mayor Pro Tem of the city of Las
Vegas, but as a dedicated servant of this Nev^a community at large.

My conca:n at this moment is the future of the Art Institute of Las Vegas, which
has served this community for neai-ly 20 years and has been plagued by corporate
greed thi oughout recent times. Despite the demise of the two conglomerates that
bought and sold and re-sold and bankrupted and sold again, hundreds of college
campuses across the country were plunged into the abyss of receivership in
January 2019. At this point, it is a bittersweet saga with the loss of scores of
schools and tens of thousands of studeits left high and dry without being able to
continue their educational path to completion and graduation. But I am intensely
proud of two Nevadans witli a vision and with great passion who came to the fore
to SAVE the Art Institute of Las Vegas, against all odds.

The Art Institute of Las Vegas is the "last man standing" surrounded by the
carnage of fallen universities and colleges across the nation caused by the hand of
greed with utter disregard for the education of our young people. It seems it was
better to disburse corporate bonuses than to pay the students their living stipends
from their own borrowed money.

I happen to know the men who came forward. I have personally delved into their
philosophy of educatmg whole human beings while educating students in the
Applied and Culinary Arts on the path to sustainable careers in Nevada. I know
them very well and I am proud that Nevadans are about to embark on creating a
local career college, which is so sorely needed in today's society and our state. In
this process, they have systematically and purposefiilly divested and separated
from all remnants of and connections with 'the pirates' who pillaged from
hundreds of thousands of students over the years.



OFFICE OF

MICHELE FIORE

MAYOR PRO TEM.

WARD 6

CITY OF LAS VEGAS

495 S. MAIN ST.

LAS VEGAS. NV 89101

702.229.6405 1 VOICE
702.382.8558 1 FAX

711 ITTY
mfiore@lasvegasnevacla.gov

>#0

Ms. BJ North, Chair
Commission on Postsecondary Education
September 9,2019
Page Two

In the not too distant past, many of our local technical and career schools suffered
this very same fate at the very same 'unclean hands', but there is a bright light at
the end of this tunnel. A new school, a Benefit Corporation, dedicated to the
benefit of our local community, is at hand. ^

These visionaries and their team of dedicated instructors, students, friends and a
bevy of incredibly experienced and powerful advisors are ready to implode the
model and philosophy of the former predator educator and reeraerge as a new
local schoolhouse of the future, educating students to be ready for jobs which do
not yet exist. We will watch in amazement.

Several months ago, without a word to anyone, I made my way to Washington,
D.C and the offices of Secretary Betsy DeVos of the U.S. Department of
Education and Under Secretary Diane Auer Jones of the Department of
Postsecondary Education. Together, the three of us met for one hour solely about
The Art Institute of Las Vegas and these two extraordinary Nevadans. Those two
powerfiil and very busy women expressed to me personally how amazed beyond
words they are at how these two men have been able to keep the doors open,
continuing to educate our students without any funding for over eight months and
against all odds. The men attribute all of that to the support of many supremely
dedicated faculty members whose priority is educating young people, and to
students willing and courageous enough to see their way to the goal, while
overlooking, hurdling over and shielding away all of the slings and arrows of
rumors, lies, innuendoes, and diatribe hurled at them.

We at the city of Las Vegas want this new and vital school to move into our city.
We are actively looking for a forever home in our city for them, every single day.
We visit their school regularly and they include us in their discussions and
preparations for adding two additional schools to the college that will also fill
incredible needs for us; The School of Technical Medical Arts and The School of
Performance Arts, for which they have been actively prepaiing curricula.

I am writing to you all today to express my sincere dedication to this new school
project and to simply ask you to give them every consideration within your power.
Thank you.

Sincerely,

Michele Fiore

Mayor Pro Tern
Councilwoman, Ward 6

cc: Ms. Betsy DeVos, Ms. Diane Ayer Jones
cityoflasvegas

lasvegasnevada.gov


